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The franchisee will operate a Houlihan's Restaurant. Houlihan's Restaurants are stylish, casual 
restaurants and bars with an "indie" mentality, delivering on-trend drinks and contemporary-classic food 
with interest and fun. 

The total investment necessary to begin operating a Houlihan's franchise ranges from $1,960,000 
to $4,194,000. This includes $40,000 to $50,000 that must be paid to us. If you sign a Development 
Agreement, you also must pay us a development fee ranging from $10,000 to $25,000 for each restaurant 
that you agree to develop. 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. 
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement 
with, or make any payment to, us or our affiliates in connection with the proposed franchise sale or sooner 
if required by applicable state law. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the 
information contained in this document. 

You may wish to receive* your* franchise disclosure documenMA another format that is more" 
convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosure in different formats, contact Cindy Parres, 
General Counsel, Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, Leawood, Kansas 66206 
and (913)901-2500. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure 
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and 
this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can 
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying 
a Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the 
Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"). You can contact the FTC by calling 1-877-FTC-HELP or by 
writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D C. 20580. You can also visit the 
FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public 
library for other sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them. 

Issuance Date: January 24, 2014 
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STATE COVER PAGE 

Your state may have a franchise law that requires us to register or file with a state administrator 
before offering or selling franchises in your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A STATE 
DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED 
THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit A for information about us or franchising in 
your state. 

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW 
UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A 
NEW AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER TO CONTINUE 
TO OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE 
TO RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT 
IN ORDER TO RENEW. 

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise: 

L THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT GENERALLY REQUIRES YOU TO RESOLVE 
DISPUTES WITH HOULIHAN'S FIRST BY MEDIATION AND THEN LITIGATION 
ONLY IN THE CITY/JUDICIAL DISTRICT WHERE HOULIHAN'S PRINCIPAL 
PLACE OF BUSINESS IS LOCATED. OUT-OF-STATE MEDIATION AND 
LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE 
SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO MEDIATE 
WITH US AND/OR SUE US IN THAT STATE THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE. 

2. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT STATES THAT KANSAS LAW GOVERNS THE 
AGREEMENT, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE YOU WITH THE SAME 
PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS LOCAL LAW. YOU MAY WANT TO 
COMPARE THESE LAWS. 

3. THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE. 

Certain states require franchisors to make additional disclosures related to the information 
, contained in this disclosure document.- These disclosures are contained in Exhibit J to this disclosure 
document. 

The Effective Date: See the next page for state effective dates. 
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The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with 
the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, 
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin. 

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the 
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates: 

Indiana: 
Illinois: 
Maryland: 
Michigan: 
Minnesota: 
New York: 
Virginia: 
Wisconsin: 

In all other states, the effective date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is the issuance date of 
January 24,2014. 
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I T E M l 

T H E F R A N C H ^ O ^ A N D A N Y ^ 

T o s i m p ^ ^ ^ g u a g e m ^ d ^ ^ ^ d o c u ^ 
I ^ ^ f r a n C ^ O r ^ 0 u " ^ r 5 t 0 b 0 ^ y 0 U ^ a d ^ 0 p ^ u n ^ ^ D ^ 0 ^ ^ 

fr^i^unde^ T h e d ^ o ^ f r ^ ^ m ^ b e a ^ ^ c o ^ ^ 
partn^ip or h m i ^ h a b i ^ company ^^cdcvclop^franc^ccisacorporahon, partnership 
hahihtycompany,"you"doos not include the owners of interests in the co^^ 
liability company Unless otherwise stated, all r c f ^ ^ 
include both the Development Agreement and the Franchise Agreement. 

Houlihan'swas incorporated in Delaware on September 16, 1992 under the name Gilbcrt̂ Ro^ 
Inc. and is the successor toarestaurant business founded in t962,also named Gilbert Robinson, inc. 
Houlihan's maintains its principal o ^ 
Houlihan'sagents for service ofprocess are listed in Exhibits Houlihan'sisawholly-owned subsidiary of 
HRi Holding Corp. ("HHC) HHGisaOelaware corporation formed on May 16, 2007 with the same 
principal place ofbusiness as Houlihan's. 

Houlihan's develops, operates and services a system of full-service, casual diningrestaurants 
specializing in the sale ofhigh quality, moderately priced food and alcoholic beverages i ^ 
casual setting Houlihan'sRestaurants are open seven daysaweek, serving lunch, dinner and late evening 
meals Ĝ R opened the first Houlihan'sRestaurant in 1972 As ofSeptember 29,2013,Houlihan'soperated, 
either directly or through wholly owned subsidiaries, 50 restaurants These were comprised of35 Houlihan's 
Restaurants, lOseafood restaurants and5JGilbert'sRestaurants. As ofSeptember 29,2013,Houlihan'shad 
47 franchisedHoulihan'sRestaurants and one licensed seafood restaurant 

Ĝ R began offering franchises inl984 only tofranchisees in NewYorkGity In January 1994, 
Houlihan's began the current program of offering Houlihan's franchises for l oca t e 
Gity ^^lihan's and its predecessors have conductedabusiness of the type described in this disclosure 
documentsince 1972 Houlihan'sand its predecessors have never been involved in any type ofbusiness other 
than the restaurant businesses described in this disclosure document In 2014, Houlihan's plans to begin 
offeringj Gilbert's franchises for sale. Except as described in this I teml, neither Houlihan's, nor its 
predecessors or its affiliates have offered franchises in any line ofbusiness otherthanHoul^^^ 
Houlihan'sconducts business only under its corporate name and the names described below. 

Houlihan's Restaurants 

Houlihan's largest restaurant concept is the "Houlihan's" restaurant concept. Houlihan'sRestaurants 
are stylish, casualrestaurants and bars with an "indie" mentality,deliveringon-tren^ 
classic food with interest and fun. Committed to originality,quality and forward style, Houlihan'sRestaurants 
offer new taste and everyday fare, so their adult audience can be daring in small increments and experiencea 

sense of adventure. 

Houlihan'sRestaurants are characterized byadistinctive system, the distinguish^^ 
which include exterior and interior design, decor, color scheme and furnishings^ cons^ 
signs and equipment fbrthepremises^ special recipes and menu itemŝ  procedures, specification^ 
for preparing food and beverage productŝ  standards, specifications and procedures for m^^ 
and manual controls initial and ongoing management training, teaching tecl^iques and assis^^^ 
and promotional programŝ  and financial control concepts, all of which Houlihan'smay occasions 
improve and develop from time to time("System") The System is identified by means of cert 
service marks, trademarks, trade dress, logos, emblems and indicia of origin, i n c ^ 
("Marks"), to be used with the System. Every componentofthe System is importantto Houlihan^ 
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Houlihan's Other Restaurants 

Seafood Restaurants. The seafood restaurants compete in the upscale casual restaurant market. These 
restaurants target special occasion and business entertainment diners by offering an extensive selection of 
seafood and steaks, a high level of service and well-appointed facilities. As of September 29, 2013, Houlihan s 
operated 10 seafood restaurants in the following cities: Leawood, Kansas; O'Fallon, Missouri; Creve Coeur, 
Missouri- and Kansas City, Missouri (operating under the name "Bristol Seafood Grill"); Atlanta, Georgia 
(operating under the name "Chequers Seafood and Steak"); Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Chicago, Illinois 
(operating under the name "Devon Seafood Grill"); Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois; Milwaukee, Wisconsin; and 
Miami, Florida (operating under the name "Devon Seafood and Steak"). Houlihan's has one licensed seafood 
restaurant operating under the Devon Seafood Grill name in Hershey, Pennsylvania. 

J. Gilbert's Restaurants. As of September 29, 2013, Houlihan's operated 5 upscale polished casual 
steakhouses under the name "J. Gilbert's". These Restaurants are located in Overland Park, Kansas; Des Peres, 
Missouri Glastonbury, Connecticut; McLean, Virginia; and Worthington, Ohio. J. Gilbert's competes in the 
upscale casual restaurant market and features a menu that is printed daily and specializes in USDA choice aged 
steaks, chicken and seafood. We plan to begin offering J. Gilbert's restaurant franchises for sale m 2014. 

Currently we franchise only the Houlihan's concept. Houlihan's may or may not offer other 
franchises in the 'future, and it also may develop other restaurant concepts, some of which may be sold as 
franchises Houlihan's expects that any of these restaurant concepts would utilize trademarks or service marks 
that are different from the marks described in Item 13. You would have no rights associated with any 
trademarks, service marks or restaurant concepts that Houlihan's may develop and use in connection with these 
other concepts. 

Description of Franchise Offered 

General The franchise to which this disclosure document relates involves a plan for the development 
and operation of restaurants operating under the System and the Marks ("Restaurant(s)") within a defined 
geographic area ("Territory"). Pursuant to this disclosure document, you can purchase the rights to develop and 
operate one or more franchised Houlihan's Restaurants in a Territory under a Development Agreement (Exhibit 
D) Upon your execution of the Development Agreement, you will pay a nonrefundable development fee (as 
described in more detail in Item 5) to Houlihan's for each Restaurant you agree to develop and open under the 
Development Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, you will have the right to 
request Houlihan's consent to your development of additional Restaurants ("Additional Restaurants") in the 
Territory during the term of the Development Agreement. You must pay a nonrefundable development fee to 
Houlihan's for each Additional Restaurant when Houlihan's grants you the right to develop the Additional 
Restaurant. You must develop and operate the Additional Restaurants according to Houlihan's then-current 
standards and specifications. 

Following Houlihan's consent to a site for a Restaurant, you will sign a Franchise Agreement (Exhibit 
E) which will identify the site and govern the construction, opening and operation of the Restaurant, and you 
will pay to Houlihan's an initial franchise fee (as described in Item 5). Upon Houlihan's receipt of the initial 
franchise fee and the signed Franchise Agreement (including the Guaranty attached to the Franchise 
Agreement) Houlihan's will sign the Franchise Agreement. If you develop the Restaurant in a hotel, you and 
Houlihan's will also sign the Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for Hotel Locations (Exhibit F). You 
must at all times maintain the Restaurant in strict conformance with the System and all requirements, 
instructions directives and specifications as Houlihan's may occasionally establish in the set of Houhharf s 
manuals on restaurant operations ("Manuals") or as otherwise provided in writing or through electronic media 
to you by Houlihan's. 

•y FDD-01/14 
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^ ^ ^ C ^ ^ ^ ^ The market ^ r e ^ a m ^ serviees is wel̂ estahhshed Houhhan's 
Restaurants compete with other national and loeat restaurants^ 
products and services to the general puhhe The restaurant business is highly competitive in price, service, 
restaurant location and tbodquality,and is often affected by changes in consumertastes, economic 
population and traffic patterns Houlihan's believes, however, that Houlihan's Restaurants have particular 
appeal because oftheir distinctive features Houlihan'sbelieves that these features, c 
of service, good value andawidervarietyofmenu items, appeal to all ages and encourage regularpatronage by 

both families and adult groups. 

Houlihan's Restaurants are typically in suburban locations They may be constructed as 
free-standing buildings or as in-line premises Proximity to suburban office buildings and̂ or shopping malls 
and shopping centers is desirable. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ YourRestaurantwillbesub^ectto various federal, state and 
local lawsand regulations affectingthe restaurant business, including stateand local 
construction,environmentalregulationsandvarioushealth,sanitation,sa^ Your 
Restaurant will be subject to state and local liquor licensing laws and regulations The failure to receive or 
retainaliquor license, or delay in obtainingaliquor license, inaparticular location could adver̂ ^̂  
Restaurant'soperations at that location More stringent and varied requirements, particularly at the local level, 
may increase the cost and time required to develop and open Restaurants Difficulties in obtaining necessary 
licenses or permits could cause delays in or cancellations ofRestaurant openings In most states, Houlihan's 
Restaurants are subject to "dram shop''laws, which impose liability on licensed alcoholic beverage se^^^ 
juries ordamages caused by theirnegligentservice of alcoholic beverages toavisibly intoxicated 
aminor if that service is the proximate cause of the injury or damage or that injury or damage is reasonably 
foreseeable Your Restaurant also will be subject to employment laws, such as the Pair Labor Standards Act, 
Title Vtlofthe Civil Rights Act ofl964, the Family and Medical Leave Act and various state laws g 
mattersincludingminimumwages,overtimeandworkingconditions. in addition,the Americans With 
Disabilities Act may require you to expend certain amounts in the future in connection with ongoing 
remodeling ofyourRestaurantto comply with the legislation The operation of your Restaurant may requirea 
license for baking and preparing and serving food on-premises Your Restaurant must also comply with local 
fire codes Your Restaurantwill also be sub^ectto other laws orregulations that are not specific to the m^ 

but apply to businesses generally. 

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

ChiefExecutiveOffieer^Direetor: Robert Hartnett 

Mr Hartnett has held this position since October 2001. 

ChiefDeveloomentOffieer^ChiefEmanei^Offieer:Ro^ert Ellis 

Mr Lllis has held the position of ChiefPinancial Officer since October 2001 and the p o s i ^ 
ChiefDevelopmentOfficersince August 2006 

ChlefLe^al Officer and Vice President ofHuman Resources: CvnthlaD. Parres 

Ms. Parres has held the position ofChiefLegal Officer and Vice President ofHuman Resources 

sinceJuly2007 
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Execute Vice President of Ooera^n^Lou^Amhro^ 

Mr A m b ^ h ^ ^ d t ^ From May 1997 to August 2007, he ^rved 
as Houhhau's Vice President ofOperatious,SpeeiahyCou^^ 

Senior Vice President Mar^etin^: Jen Guivi^ 

Ms Gulvik has held this position since March 20t2 From August 2006 to March 2012 she served 
as Houlihan's Vice President ofMarketing From August 2002 to August 2006, she served as Houlihan's 
Creative Director and Brand Manager. 

Vice President oflnformationTeehnoio^Christonher Corn 

Mr. Corp has held this position since December 2001. 

Vice President Purchasing MnrravMei^enhons 

Mr Meikenhous has held this position since July 2000 

Vice President of Onerations: AmvN.Pashoit-Pisher 

Ms. Fasholt-Fisher has held this position since July 2013. From June 1995 to July 2013, sh^ 
as Houlihan'sRegional Operations Director. 

NationalEranchisin^Deveio^ment Director: barren Lane 

Mr Lane has held this position since July 2013 From April 2002 to July 2013, he held the position 

ofRegional Operations Director. 

Director: Van^andtHawn 

Mr HawnhecameaDirector in December 2012 He has beenaManaging Director of Ooldner 
Hawn in Minneapolis, Minnesota since April 1989 

Director: Tim Johnson 

Mr Johnson becameaDirectorinMay 2009. He is the Founder of ColdnerHawn in Minneapolis, 
Minnesota and has been its Managing Partner since April 1989 

Director: Oeor^eShadid 

Mr Shadid becameaDirector in July 2007.MrShadid presently provides financial consulting 
services to private clients From September 2006 until 2013, he served as Chief Financial Offi^^ 
Westlake Hardware in Kansas City, Missouri From August 2004 to August 2006, Mr Shadid was Chief 
Financial Officer ofAmericanltalianPastaCompany,apublicly held company basedinmetropolitan 

City,Missouri. 

L E G A T I O N 

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 
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ITEM 4 

BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 5 

INITIAL FEES 

You must pay to Houlihan's both a development fee and an initial franchise fee as more specifically 

set forth below. 

Development Fee. When you sign a Development Agreement, you must pay to Houlihan's a 
development fee that ranges from $10,000 to $25,000 for each Restaurant that you will develop under the 
Development Agreement. The development fee will be determined by Houlihan's in its sole discretion and 
will vary based on the size, income level, population density and other demographic characteristics of the 
Territory. The development fee is due at the time the Development Agreement is signed. If you seek to 
develop any Additional Restaurants under the Development Agreement, you must pay an additional 
development fee when you notify Houlihan's of your intention to develop each Additional Restaurant. No 
portion of the development fee is refundable under any circumstances; the fee is paid in consideration of the 
administrative and other expenses incurred by Houlihan's and for the opportunities lost or deferred as a result 
of the rights granted in the Development Agreement. The development fee will not be applied to the initial 
franchise fee due under any Franchise Agreement. 

Initial Franchise Fee. The initial franchise fee is $50,000 if you are developing one Restaurant. If 
you have signed a Development Agreement to develop multiple Restaurants, the initial franchise fee is 
$40,000 for each Restaurant. The initial franchise fee must be paid to Houlihan's when you sign the 
Franchise Agreement. The initial franchise fee is fully earned when paid, is non-refundable, and is paid in 
consideration of the administrative and other expenses incurred by Houlihan's and for the opportunities lost 
or deferred as a result of the rights granted in the Franchise Agreement. 

ITEM 6 

OTHER FEES 

TYPE OF FEE (1) AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 

Royalty 4% of Gross Revenues (2) Every Wednesday 
based on the 
Gross Revenues 
of the preceding 
week 

Payments are due by electronic fiinds 
transfer. 

Required Marketing 
Expenditure 

At least 1.7% and up to 
4.5% of Gross Revenues 

For local advertising and National 
Marketing Fund contributions. 

National Marketing 
Fund Contributions 

Currently, 0.7% of Gross 
Revenues 

Same as royalty 
fee 

The purposes for which Houlihan's 
may use these contributions are 
explained in Item 11. 

Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
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T Y P E O F F E E ^ AMOUNT DUEDATE REMARKS 

Local Advert ing difference between 
retired marketing 
expenditure and the 
amount you ecntrihu^etc 
the Marketing Fund; 
eurrendy,LO% of Cross 
Revenues 

^ot paid to 
Houlihan's 

The local advertising ^u^ment is 
explained in I temll . 

Market Cooperative Amount set hy the 
cooperative. 

Same as royalty 
fee 

There earrently are no Market 
cooperatives. If established in yonr 
market^yonmust^oin^he cooperative 
and your contributions will he credited 
against your local advertising 
requirements Seeltemlltbr 
additional details. 

Training Houhhan'sout-of-pocket 
expenses to provided 
training, including food, 
lodging and travel 
expensesofthe trainers 

Upon demand Houlihan'strainingprogramsare 
described in derail in I temll . 

AdditionaiTraining Reasonable tuition fee Upon demand Houlihan'smaychargeareasonable 
tuition tee for retreshertraining 
programs ĥat you may be required to 
complete. 

Rennbnrsementof 
Insurance Costs 

Cost of obtaining 
coverage 

Immediately upon 
receipt ofinvoice 

Ifyou fail to obtain and maintain the 
required insurance, Houlihan'smay 
procure reinsurance and chargers 
costs, along with any expenses 
incurredhy Houlihan's 5eeNo^e3 
for additional information regarding 
the insurance coverage you must 
obtain. 

Indemnification The losses and expenses 
incurred by Houlihan's 

As incurred You must indemnify and hold 
Houlihan'sand our affiliates harmless 
against all actions arising directly or 
indirectly fiom^he Agreements. 

Audit and Inspection 
Costs 

deficiency in amounts 
ô ved, plus interest 

Upon completion 
of audit 

Ifthe deficiency exceeds 2% or if an 
audit is required due to your failure to 
comply ^vith the Agreements, you 
must pay the reasonable cos^ofthe 
audit, all amounts ô ved and interest. 

TransferFee $^Oor,ifIIoulihan's 
reasonable costs and 
expenses to review the 
transfer exceed $7,500, 
that greater amount 

Time of transfer Transfers are subject to Houlihan's 
prior written approval. 
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TYPE OF FEE (1) AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 

Relocation Review Fee $2,500 
At time of request 
for approval of 
the new location 

Ifyou lose the right to occupy the 
premises of the Restaurant, other than 
as the result of a default by you, then 
you may apply to relocate the 
Restaurant within the Protected Area. 
The relocation process is described in 
greater detail in Item 12. 

Renewal Fee 
(Franchise Agreement) 

$10,000 for a 5-year 
renewal term 

At time of 
renewal 

Interest Interest on the amount 
owed from the date it was 
due until paid 

When any 
payment is 
overdue 

The interest rate is the lesser of the 
maximum rate permitted by law, or 
18% per annum. 

Taxes You must reimburse 
Houlihan's for any taxes, 
fees or assessments 
imposed on Houlihan's in 
connection with licensing 
the Marks or payment of 
royalties 

Within 30 days of 
invoice 

Software License Fee Currently, $7,500 per year Upon execution 
of the Software 
License and 
Support 
Agreement 
(Exhibit H) and 
upon each 
anniversary of the 
execution date of 
that Agreement 

Support Service Fees 
and Expenses 

Houlihan's regular hourly 
rates (currently, $125 per 
hour) and the out-of-
pocket expenses of 
Houlihan's employees 
who travel to the 
Restaurant to provide 
support services 

As incurred If we, in our reasonable discretion, 
elect to provide help desk support 
services for your computer system and 
software at your Restaurant, you must 
pay for the services of our employees 
that may be reasonably required. 

Recruiting Services 
Fee 

$1,750 initial fee to begin 
search; $1,000 -$1,750 
for each manager 
position; see Note 4 for 
additional information 

50% upon 
engaging 
Houlihan's and 
50% upon your 
hiring a candidate 
presented by 
Houlihan's 

You may request Houlihan's 
assistance in providing certain 
recruiting services under the 
Recruiting Services Agreement 
(Exhibit G). 

You must also reimburse Houlihan's 
for all out-of-pocket expenses incurred 
by Houlihan's that are uniquely related 
to assisting you under the Recruiting 
Services Agreement. 

Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
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T Y P E O F F E E ^ AMOUNT DUEDATE REMARKS 

Costs ofEnforcement Houhhan'sdamages, 
costs and expenses 

Upon demand You must pay Houhhan'sah damage 
costs aud expenses, mdudmg court 
costs and reasonable attorneys'fees 
incurred in successfully enforcing the 
terms ofthe franchise Agreement and 
Development Agreement. 

C o i t i o n Costs and 
Expenses 

Our costs and expenses On demand, if 
required 

NewProdnetand 
SnpplierTesting 

Reasonable cost of 
evaluation and testing 

As incurred Ifyou propose to purchase any items 
fromasupplier that we have not 
previously approved, you must suhmit 
to Houlihan'sawritten request, which 
evidences that the supplier conforms 
withHoulihan'sspecitications. 
ftoulihan'smay require that its 
representatives he permitted to inspect 
the supplier'sfacilities and that 
samples from the supplier he delivered 
to Houlihan'sor an independent 
testing facility designatedhyus. 

^ N n m h e r , Secret 
Shoppe^Eood Safety, 
Responsive Beverage 
andAndit Programs 

All costs associated with 
the 800 number, secret 
sbopper, online customer 
satisfaction smvey,food 
safety,responsible 
beverage and audit 
programs and otber 
programs as Houlihan's 
may require. 

As incurred 

Damages for Employee 
Raiding 

Annualized compensation 
forfinall^montbsof 
employment with former 
employer 

Upon demand Ifyou employ,seek to employer 
otherwise directly or indirectly induce 
any employee to leave his/her 
employment with Houlihan'sor any 
other franchisee or developer of 
Houlihan's, youmustpay Houlihan's 
ortheotherfranchisee or developer of 
Houlihan's, as appropriate, liquidated 
damages. 

NOTES 

(1) Unless otherwise noted, all fees are imposed hy,collectedhy and payahleto Houlihan'sand 

arenotrefrindahle Oenerally,allfeesareuniformlyimposedonourfranchisee^ 
circumstances, we mayreduceorwaiveafeeforaparticularfranchiseeforalimited period ofttme 

(2) ^Oross Revenues''means all revenues or receipts of any kind constituting the actu^ 

price, whetherwhollyorpartlyin cash, c ^ 
fromthe operation of the Restaurant,including all revenues or receipts from allgoods,war^^ 
merchandise(includingsalesoffood,heveragesandtangihleproperty of every km^ 
or otherwise) and services sold from the Restaurant premises, all catering husiness,spec^ 
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^enue derived fromt^^ 
u n d e r ^ e F ^ e ^ e A ^ ^ 
orders retaken or ^ e d ^ t h e R e ^ ^ Gross Revenues w ^ not be redueedhy^y^deduertons for 
easb shortages incurred in eonneefion with the transaction of b ^ 

company charges; o r ^ t b e f t that is reimbursed by insurance or is not reported to tbeap^^ 

authorities. 
"Gross Revenues" wiii not include: ^thesaleofitemstbrwhich cash has been refunded or, except 

as set forth above, not received or allowances made for merchandise if the saies of any of these items wii^ 
have been previously included in Gross Revenues;^the amount of any sales tax imposed by any federal, 
state,municipalor other governmentalauthoritydirectly on sales and intendedto be collec^^ 
customers, iftheamount is addedtothesellingpriceandactuallypaidbyyou to that government 
^ t h e sale of merchandise for whichagift certificate orastored value gift card is redeemed, i f t^^ 
sale of that gift certificate or stored value gift card has been previously includedinGross Revenues;^ 

saleofmeals to employees; and^one-timesalesof^ 
deemed received when the sale is made or product or service delivered to the customer, whichever occurs 
first Each charge or sale upon installment or credit will he treated asasale for the tull price in the month 
duringwhich that charge orsale is firstmade, regardless ofthe time when you receive payment (whetherfull 
or partial). 

(3) Oaring the term of the Franchise Agreement, at your expense, inaform and with insurers 
satisfactory to Houlihan's, you mustmaintain in effect any insurance as may be required b y ^ 
leaseormortgagecoveringtheRestaurantpremises You must also maintain: 

(a) Ffr^ extended coverage,vandalism and malicious mischief insurance for the full 
replacementvalueoftheRestaurantpremises, improvements and contents; 

(h) Gomprehensive general liability and automobile insurance with limits of at least 
$2,^,000 combined for bodily injury or death and property damage with umbrella h^ 
$10,000,000 naming Houlihan's, its affiliates and their respective of^^^ 
additional insureds This insurance must include coverage for dram shop(or similar) 
not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence and not less than $10,000,000 aggregate with dedicated 1^^^ 

location; and 

(e) Workers compensation or similar insurance in amounts required by law (including 

coverage tor yourtrainees when attending training). 

The insurance must be placed with an insurance company or companies with anAM Best Rating of 
"A"andanAM8est Glass Rating o f X i V Houlihan'smay increase the minimum policy limits forthese 
insurance policies or require you to obtain additional types of insurance i n d i c a t e d i n t h e ^ 

otherwise indicated writing. 

GontemporaneouslywiththeexecutionoftheFranchiseAgreement,duringthetermoftheFranch^ 
Agreementandatany timewhenyou make any change in the coverage required by theFranchise 
Agreement, you must Ornish Houlihan'sannually with certificates from the carriers naming H^ 
officers, directors and employees as additional insureds and evidencingthatthis insurance is i ^ 
efl^ect.This certificate must also provide that no policy required by the Franchise Agreement ma^ 
canceledorotherwiseterminatedbythecarrierexceptupon 30 days priorwrittennoticeto Houlihan's 

Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
10 FDD-01/14 



Ifyou do not obtain and maintain the insurance required by the Franchise Agreement, Houlihan's 
has the right to procure the insurance on your behalf (but will have no obligation to do so), and you must on 
demand pay Houlihan's for any and all costs or expenses associated with this payment. Houlihan's or its 
insurer will have the complete right to discuss with your carrier or any claimant all claims pertaining to the 
policies. 

Your obligation to obtain and maintain the insurance required by the Franchise Agreement will not 
be limited in any way by reason of any insurance that may be maintained by Houlihan's, nor will your 
performance of that obligation relieve you of liability under the indemnity provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement. The insurance coverage required by the Franchise Agreement will be primary to any policies 
maintained by Houlihan's or its affiliates and shall contain a specific waiver of subrogation. You must pay 
insurance costs directly to the insurer, except if Houlihan's provides insurance on your behalf, and in that 
case, you must reimburse Houlihan's for the costs of the insurance. 

At all times during the construction of each Restaurant to be developed under the Development 
Agreement, you must maintain insurance coverage protecting Houlihan's. This insurance must be in a form 
and with insurers satisfactory to Houlihan's. 

(4) If you engage Houlihan's to provide recruiting services for more than one manager in a 
Restaurant, the fee for the second manager will be $2,000, the fee for the third manager will be $1,500 and 
the fee for each additional manager will be $1,000. In addition, i f you do not ask Houlihan's to provide 
sourcing services, the fee for a manager position will be $1,500 (or, if applicable, the lower amount as 
described in the preceding sentence). 

ITEM 7 

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Except as otherwise described in the following notes, this chart provides an estimate of your initial 
investment for a single, new Restaurant and the costs necessary to begin operation of your Restaurant. All 
costs listed above are estimates only. Actual costs will vary for each franchisee and each location depending 
upon a number of factors. 

TYPE OF 
EXPENDITURE (1) 

AMOUNT 
(per Restaurant) 

LOW RANGE 

AMOUNT 
(per Restaurant) 

HIGH RANGE 

METHOD 
OF 

PAYMENT 

WHEN 
DUE 

TO WHOM 
PAYMENT IS 
TO BE MADE 

Development Fee (2) $10,000 $10,000 Lump sum 
Upon signing 
of Agreement 

Houlihan's 

Initial Franchise Fee (2) $40,000 $50,000 Lump sum 
Upon signing 
of Agreement 

Houlihan's 

Engineering and Other 
Development Costs 

$30,000 $100,000 As arranged As incurred 
Suppliers, 

Professionals 
Consultants 

Site Development Costs (3) $0 $500,000 As arranged As incurred 

Owner of 
Property, 

Contractors, 
Suppliers 
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TYPE OF 
EXPENDITURE (1) 

AMOUNT 
(per Restaurant) 

LOW RANGE 

AMOUNT 
(per Restaurant) 

HIGH RANGE 

METHOD 
OF 

PAYMENT 

WHEN 
DUE 

TO WHOM 
PAYMENT IS 
TO BE MADE 

Building Costs 
(e.g. purchase, construction, 

remodeling, etc.) (4) 
$700,000 $1,800,000 As arranged As incurred 

Owner of 
Property, 

Contractors, 
Suppliers 

Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment 
and Signage (5) 

$700,000 $900,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Smallwares {e.g., dishes, 
silverware, other utensils, etc.) 

(6) 
$40,000 $60,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Initial Inventory (7) $20,000 $30,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Utility Expenses (8) $8,000 $10,000 As arranged As incurred 
Utility and 
Telephone 
Companies 

Permits and Licenses (9) $2,000 $20,000 As arranged As incurred 
Governmental 

Authorities 

Insurance Expense (10) $75,000 $100,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Hiring and Training (11) $125,000 $175,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Initial Advertising 
Expenses(12) 

$10,000 $39,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Additional Funds - 3 months 
(13) 

$200,000 $400,000 N/A N/A N/A 

Real Estate (14) Varies Varies As arranged As incurred 
Owner of 
Property 

Liquor License (15) Varies Varies As arranged As incurred 
Governmental 

Authority 

TOTAL (16) $1,960,000 $4,194,000 
(Estimate does not include cost of real estate or 

liquor license.) 

NOTES 

(1) Costs paid to Houlihan's as described in this Item 7 are non-refundable. Whether any costs 
paid to third parties are refundable will vary based on the practice in the area where your Restaurant is 
located. 

(2) For more information regarding the Development Fee and the Initial Franchise Fee, see Item 
5. 

(3) Site development costs will vary widely, depending on the size and condition of the 
property; development-specific requirements for landscaping, lighting, irrigation and design aesthetics; the 
work performed or the share of site costs borne by you and/or the landlord; and other factors. Components 
of site costs may include, but are not limited to, survey, grading, testing backfill, asphalt paving curbs, 
sidewalks, lighting, landscaping and irrigation. Houlihan's restaurants are generally located at a pad site or 
high visibility end cap site in highly attractive retail locations with access to substantial convenient parking 
and architectural design standards that allow us to incorporate certain key design elements. 
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(4) The estimate for building costs includes purchases of building materials, construction, 
remodeling, site costs, grading, pavement, asphalt, basic utilities and storm retention. However, this estimate 
assumes that there are no unusual site conditions and that adequate utilities are available at or adjacent to the 
construction site. Finally, in certain jurisdictions, the building costs may be higher than described in the chart 
due to factors such as the local labor costs or zoning/code requirements associated with the location. 

(5) The estimate given covers the cost of the following items: (a) a kitchen and bar package; 
(b) equipment for exhaust and refrigeration systems; (c) exterior graphics; (d) door signage; (e) the decor 
package; (f) the point-of-sale system; and (g) furnishings and millwork. The lower figure assumes an in-line 
premises; the higher cost is for a freestanding prototype Restaurant with extensive signage and full patio. 

(6) The estimate includes restaurant smallwares, such as cooking, serving and other utensils for 
food preparation and service. 

(7) Houlihan's estimates that the range given will be sufficient to cover inventoiy needs for 
normal operations. Opening inventory reflects the costs of consumable inventory items such as food, liquor, 
cleaning supplies and paper goods necessary on opening day. These items must be replenished as consumed. 
At the time the Restaurant opens, you must stock and display the initial inventory of products, accessories, 
equipment and supplies required by Houlihan's in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. You must then stock 
and maintain all types of approved products in quantities sufficient to meet reasonably anticipated customer 
demand. 

(8) The estimate is for one month's utility costs plus deposits. These deposits and the method of 
payment will depend upon the location of the Restaurant and your creditworthiness. These deposits may be 
refundable to you at a later time. In most cases, you will have to pay electric, gas, water and other utilities 
directly to the provider of the services. Some landlords cover some utility charges through common area 
maintenance fees or operating fees. 

(9) This estimate includes the estimated cost of building and zoning permits and business 
operating licenses. This estimate excludes potential impact or tap fees and engineering soft costs, which will 
vary depending on the location. The total cost of obtaining these permits and licenses will vary according to 
local standards and regulations. You should consult your lawyer about the specific legal requirements for 
business licenses, building and zoning permits and related types of expenses in your local area or 
municipality. 

(10) During the term of the Franchise Agreement, at your expense, you must maintain the 
insurance required by the terms of any lease or mortgage covering the Premises. In any event, you must 
maintain the insurance designated in the Franchise Agreement and the Manuals. The costs ofinsurance will 
vary depending on the bidding process, the number of employees, the location of the Restaurant and the 
value of equipment and improvements. 

(11) Hiring expenses would include, among other things, costs such as classified advertising for 
employees, costs of interviewing activities and wages for your managers and hourly employees during pre-
opening training. The cost will depend on the distance the trainees must travel and the type of 
accommodations you choose. A description of required training appears in Items 6 and 11. Hiring expenses 
may also include recruiting services fees paid to Houlihan's if you purchase those services from Houlihan's, 
as described in Item 5. 

(12) The advertising you may need to purchase before opening the Restaurant includes time on 
local broadcast media and advertisements in local newspapers and magazines. You must advertise in the 
local yellow pages, online directories or their functional equivalent serving the geographic area in which the 
Restaurant is located. The figure also reflects Houlihan's estimate for one year of required telephone 
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dfr^o^adver t i sm^w^ 
a d v e r t i s e m e ^ w ^ b e ^ d ^ 
promofion Your advertising o b h g ^ n s u n d ^ ^ F ^ c ^ A ^ ^ 
11 

(13) The need for additional The figure stated in 
the ehart is the minimum amount of additional fiinds Houlihan's estimates will he neeê ^̂  
duringthe first three months of your Restaurant'soperation Houlihan'sestimates that you will need, ata 
minimum, $200,000 to $400,000 in additional eash to pay employees' salaries, vendors and other 
miscellaneous expenses and to eover potential negative 
The actual amount ofadditional funds you will need depends on factors such as the complexity of the lease 
negotiation, your ability to ohtain all necessary permits and licenses, the numherofpaidem^^ 
and their rate of pay, your own management and operational skill, economic conditions, and local 
competitiom 

(14) The estimate does not include the cost of realestate,whichwillvatyhaseduponthe 
geographiclocation and whether you purchase unimproved real property and construct theRestaurant, 
construct leasehold improvements for an in line location or lease an existing location. If you lease the 
property,you typically will pay 6% to 8% of the Restaurant'sGross Revenues per year for However, 
annual rentwill vary widely depending on factors such as size, location and condition of the leased p r e m ^ 
Typical freestanding Houlihan'sRestaurants will he located on sites that average 
building square footage will he approximately 5,600 to 5,800 square feet In a d d ^ ^ 
construction and remodeling costs for necessary leasehold improvements The costs associated with leasing 
space ranges from $24 per square foot to $36 per square foot (triple net) and varies by location, quality 
shopping center,location within the center and degree of finish ofthe space. 

(15) The amount necessary to obtainaliquor license varies greatly depending on the licensing 
authority involved and the procedure and requirements for obtainingaliquor license The typical range is 
from $2,500 to$150,000, although costs in some jurisdictions can greatly exceed $150,000 You must use 
your best efforts to obtain and maintain required state and/or local licenses permittm^ 

beverages at the Restaurant. 

(16) The figures in this chart refiect your estimated initial investment fbrasingle Restaurant 
Your actual investment willdependuponthefbllowingfactors: landandbuildingsize; locationand 
development needs;timefbrconversionorconstructionof the building; variationsin decor pac^^^ 
signage; liquor license requirements; number of employees hired and trained; and employee pay s t ^ 
Houlihan'shas relied on its experience in operating and in granting others the right to operate H o u l ^ 
Restaurants in compiling the estimates contained in this Item 7. Houlihan'scannot guarantee that you will 
not incur additional costs and expenditures in starting the business As noted in ttemlO,Houlihan'sdoe 
offer direct or indirect financing to franchisees for any items. 

I T E M ^ 

RESTRICTIONSONSOURCESOFPR^DUCTSANDSERYICES 

Except as described below, you have no obligation under the Agreements or pursuant to any other 
device or practice to purchase or lease any goods, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, m^^ 
estatefromHoulihan'soritsdesignees, from approved suppliers, in accordance with Houlihan'sstan^ 
inamannerapproved by Houlihan's Youmustatall times maintain the Restaurantinstrictconfo^ 
all requirements, instructions, directives and specificahons concerning the appearance of the p ^ 
furnishings, ingredients, packaging, promotional advertising, menus, menu format, recipes, smallwares, 
equipment, supplies, services and accounting and bookkeeping requirements, as Houlihan's may p 
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e^hsh and modify e i t ^ Every component of the Sy^om is 
important to Honiihan's. 

Yon mnstoffertbr sale and seii at the Restaurant aii products and services as expressfyan^^ 
Houiihan'sintheManuals or otherwise in writing You must operate the Restaur 
products sold at theRestaurant in strictcomphance with Houlihan's cooking methods, spec^^ 
(including product names), standards, business practices, policies and procedures now in effect or 
subsequently published for Houlihan'sfranchisees, and comply with all requirements of the ^ 
or subsequently set forth in the Manuals or otherwise, including any changes that Houlihan's may 
occasionally make You must begin selling any newly authorized menu items within7days after receipt of 
writtennoticeftomHoulihan'sandshall cease selling anypreviously authorized menu i t e m ^ 
authorized) as soon as current inventory is used up, but in any event, not more than 30 days after receipt of 
written notice from Houlihan's You can establish menu prices in your sole and absolute discretion Ifyou 
haveasuggestionforanew menu item or forachange to an authorized menu item or you desire to 
participate inatest market program, you must submitawritten application to Houlihan'sas set forth in the 
Manuals or otherwise by Houlihan's There are no limits on Houlihan'sability to add or delete menu items 
Houlihan'sdoesnotlimitthegueststowhomyou may sell goods orservices 

All products sold or offered for sale at the Restaurant, as well as equipment, supplies and materials 
used in the operation of the Restaurant, must meet Houlihan's then-current standards and speciftcat^^ 
established and provided to you in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. You must purchase all of these items 
solelyftom suppliers who demonstrate (to Houlihan'scontinuing reasonable satisfaction)^ 
Houlihan's standards and specifications,who possess adequate quality controls and capacity to supply your 
needs promptly and reliably, and who have been approved by Houlihan's in the Manuals or otherwise in 
writing t fy^des i r e to purchase these items ftom other than approved suppliers, you must submit to 
Houlihan'sawritten request to approve the proposed supplier, together with evidence of conformifywi^^ 
Houlihan'sspeciftcationsHoulihan'smay require that ourrepresentatives be permitted to i ^ ^ ^ 
facilities and thatsamplesftomthesupplierbedelivered for evaluationand testing e ^ 
independent testing facility designated by Houlihan's Houlihan's may charge youafee not to exceed the 
reasonable cost ofthe evaluation and testing^^ 
request and completion ofthe evaluation and testing, notify you in writing ofits decision Houlihan'swillnot 
umeasonably withhold its approval You must not sell or offer for sale, or use in the operation of the 
Restaurant,any ofthe itemsoftheproposedsupp^ 

As of the date of this disclosure document, Houlihan'sevaluates the suppliers in accordance with the 
following criteria: (l)demonstrated ability to produce ordered items onatimely basis; (2) accountability with 
respect to qualify and reliabilify of items; (^) competitive pricing; and (4) l^owl^^^ 
hospitality industry Houlihan's will inform ft^nchisees ofthe suppliers utilized by it and cooperate w i t h ^ 
franchisees in evaluating andassessingtheacceptabilifyofsupplierssuggestedbyftanchiseeso 
basis. Houlihan's may occasionally revoke its approval of particular items or suppliers when Houlihan's 
determines, in its sole discretion, that those items or suppliers no longer meet Houlihan's standar̂ ^̂  Upon 
receipt of written notice of revocation, you must cease to sell any disapproved products and cease to purchase 
ftom any disapproved supplier Decisions regarding acceptable specifications and standards are made by 
Houlihan's Vice-President of Purchasing based 
consultation with manufacturers and suppliers These standards and specifications are 
aud approved suppliers on request. 

Houlihan's requires you to purchase uniforms and attire for all Restaurant personnel and musî  
programming content only from Houlihan'sapprovedsupplier(s). 

You must utilize Houlihan's proprietary n S u ^ 
support Houlihan's Restaurants and you must sign Houlihan's Sof^are License and Support Agreement 
(Exhibit H) You also must purchase the point of sale system and the computer hardware and software 
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s ^ i f i e d m ^ S o f t w ^ License and Support Ag^ment Cu^enrty, the Positoneh point of sale system is 
approved for use in Honlihan'srestaurants Please see I teml l fbr additional information regarding required 
computer software and hardware components. As described in I temll ,you must purchase your computer 
hardware, software and related installation services ftomHoulihan'sdesigned supplier You must participate 
in all programs related to the acceptance ofdehit cards, credit cards, or othernon-cash systems as required hy 
Houlihan's. Youalsomustparticipate in ffoulihan'sapproved stored value gift card program and only use 
Houlihan'sapproved gift card vendors. If any hardware and̂ or software is required to participate in these 
programs,you must obtain and install it. Except as described in Itemll,currently,there are no payments to 
be made toHoulihan'sinconnectionwiththese items. Houlihan'srevenuesfromlicensefeespaidby 
ftanchiseesforthenSuiteSoftwarePackageintheftscalyearended September 29, 2013 were $13,00^ 
less thanl%ofitstotalrevenuesof$151,170,628 

You may be required to:^purchase or lease and use any software program, system documentation 
manuals and other materials that may be specified by Houlihan'sinconnection with the operation of the 
Restaurant; (2) input and maintain in your computer system that data and information as Houlihan's 
prescribes in the Manuals,software programs, documentation or otherwise; and^purchase or lease and uŝ  
any software programs, system documentation manuals and other materials when Houlihan'sadopts these 
new or upgraded programs, manuals and materials system-wide. 

You must participate in all programs related to the acceptance of debit cards, credit cards, or other 
non-cash systems that Houlihan'srequires. You also must participate in our approved stored value gift card 
programandonly use our approvedgiftcard vendors. Ifanyhardwareand/orsoftwareisrequiredto 
participate in theseprograms, youmust obtain and install it. There areno payments tobemade to 
Houlihan'sin connection with these items. 

Except as describedinthis Item 8,you do nothave to purchase or lease from any sources designated by 
Houlihan's. No officer ofHoulihan'sowns an interest in any suppliers to Houlihan'sRestaurants. Houlihan's 
estimates that your total purchases and leases from approved suppliers will represent approximately^^ 
29% of your overall purchases and leases in establishing your Restaurant, and 75% to 85% of your overall 
purchases and leases in operating your Restaurant. 

Houlihan'snegotiates purchase arrangements with some of itssuppliers (including prtce terms) tb^ 
benefit ofits franchisees, but it is under no obligation to do so. Under some ofthese arrangements, Houlihan's 
franchisees receive lower prices based on the individual franchisee'spurchases; Houlihan's does not receive 
lower prices or any other consideration based on the franchisees'purchases. These suppliers may offer you the 
same pricing terms tor these items as are available to Houlihan's, assuming you establish credit te^^ 
these suppliers that are equivalent or more advantageous than those provided by Houlihan's. IfHoulihan'sis 
requested to assistinthe negotiation of purchase arrangements with suppliers, including financing or credft 
terms, you may be requested to provide adequate assurance to Houlihan'sthat your payment obligation will be 
satisfied inatimely manner. There are currently no purchasing or distribution cooperatives in existence. 
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ITEM 9 

FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and 
Agreement. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in 
and in other items of this disclosure document. 

the Development 
these agreements 

Obligation 
Section in Franchise Agreement (FA) and 

Development Agreement (DA) 
Disclosure 

Document Item 

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease FA: Sections 3.10 & 3.11 

DA: Sections 5 & 6.1 

Items 6, 8 & 11 

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases FA: Sections 3.6, 3.10, 3.11, 6.1.5, 6.1.10 & 
6.1.11.1 

DA: Section 5.1 

Items 6, 7 & 8 

c. Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

FA: Section 3 

DA: Section 5 

Items 6, 7, 8 & 11 

d. Initial and ongoing training FA: Section 7 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 7 & 11 

e. Opening FA: Section 4 

DA: Not Applicable 

item 11 

f. Fees FA: Sections 9 & 10 

DA: Section 3 

Items 5, 6 & 7 

g. Compliance with standards and 
policies/Operating Manuals 

FA: Section 6 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 8 & 11 

h. Trademarks and proprietary information FA: Sections 6.1.12 & 12 

DA: Section 7.4 

Items 13 & 14 

i . Restrictions on products/services offered FA: Section 6 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 8 & 16 

j . Warranty and customer service 
requirements 

FA: Section 6.3.2 

DA: Not Applicable 

Item 11 

k. Territorial development and sales quotas FA: Section 1.2 

DA: Section 1 

Item 12 

1. Ongoing product/service purchases FA: Sections 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.1.5, 6.1.7 & 6.1.8 

DA: Not Applicable 

Item 8 

m. Maintenance, appearance and remodeling 
requirements 

FA: Section 6.1.9 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 6 & 11 

n. Insurance FA: Section 13 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 6 & 7 
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Obligation 
Section in Franchise Agreement (FA) and 

Development Agreement (DA) 
Disclosure 

Document Item 

o. Advertising FA: Section 10 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 6,7 & 11 

p. Indemnification FA: Section 23 

DA: Section 13 

Item 6 

q. Owner's participation/ management/ 
staffing 

FA: Sections 6.2.3, 6.2.5, 6.3.2 & 6.3.6 

DA: Sections 7.2, 7.3 & 7.4 

Items 11 & 15 

r. Records/reports FA: Sections 3.7 & 11 

DA: Not Applicable 

Item 6 

s. Inspections and audits FA: Sections 3.5, 6.2.4, 7.2.2 & 11.4 

DA: Not Applicable 

Items 6 & 11 

t. Transfer FA: Section 17 

DA: Section 9 

Item 17 

u. Renewal FA: Section 2 

DA: Not Applicable 

Item 17 

v. Post-termination obligations FA: Section 19 

DA: Section 11 

Item 17 

w. Non-competition covenants FA: Section 16 

DA: Section 8 

Item 17 

x. Dispute resolution FA: Section 29 

DA: Section 17 

Item 17 

ITEM 10 

FINANCING 

Financing is your sole responsibility. Occasionally, Houlihan's may make available to you names and 
addresses of financial institutions that may be interested in providing certain types of financing for qualified 
franchisees. These financial institutions are not affiliates or agents of Houlihan's. Houlihan's has no control 
over the terms of any financing arrangement between you and any of these financial institutions or over 
whether you will be considered eligible to obtain financing from any of these financial institutions. 

Under the Franchise Agreement, Houlihan's will obtain a priority security interest in: (1) all of your 
interests in the Franchise Agreement or any Houlihan's Development Agreement; and (2) all of your general 
intangibles (collectively the "Collateral"). You must authorize Houlihan's to file a financing statement to 
perfect the security interest in the Collateral and to appoint Houlihan's as your attorney-in-fact for purposes of 
attaining this perfection. 

Except as otherwise provided in this disclosure document, neither Houlihan's nor any affiliate of 
Houlihan's currently offers, either directly or indirectly, any financing arrangements to any franchisee. 
Houlihan's does not receive any fee for the placing of financing for any franchisee. Neither Houlihan's nor any 
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a f f i l e reives payment from^ Honhhan'sw^ 
not guarantee your note^ease or other obligations 

ITEM 11 

E^NCHISOR^ASSISTANCE^DVERTISIN^COM^^ 

Except as listed be lo^Houl ihan^^no t^ 

Houiihan^sOb^ationsBeforeOoenin^ 

Betbre the Restaurant opens, Houliban'swith 

1. Within 30 days after ourreeeiptofaltintbrmation that we may reasonably require,^ 
wehaveeonsentedtothesite (DevelopmentAgreement,Seetions511and^ 

2. Provide site selection counseling and assistance as we deem advisable (Development Agreement, 

Sectional) 

^ Determine whether to approve the lease tor the site (Franchise Agreement, Sections310a 
DevelopmentAgreement, Sections 

4. p^videlset of Houlihan'sdetailed plans, specifications and designs ft^raprototypeofaHo^ 
Restaurant, including exterior and interior design and layout, fixtures, ftirm^ (Development 
Agreement, Section6^FranchiseAgreement,Section3^ 

^ Determine whetherto consent to the useofyourregistered architect and^orregisteredengineerw 
retain to prepare your final construction plans forthe Restaurant ("Plans") ^ 
Agreement, Sections3Tand3^) 

6. Determine whether to consent to thecontractors who willconstructyourRestaurant. (Franchise 
Agreement, Sections.3) 

7. Inspect the premises to determine i f construction is proceeding according to the Plans. (Franchise 
Agreement, Section3.5) 

^ Following issuance ofacertificate of occupancy tbryour Restaurant, Houlihan'swill use its best e^^ 
to conductafinal inspection to detetrnine if you have complied with the Plans and the Agreements (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 3.9) 

9. Loan you one written or electronic set ofth^ 
will permit you to review the Manuals at our headquarters or as otherwise arranged betbre you pu^ 

franchise. 

10. Houlihan'swill provide on-site, construction pre-opening and opening supervision and assist 
deem advisable.(Franchise Agreement, Sections.5) 

1L Provideafive-day Owner Orientation Progmm to your Controlling Principal (as definedinltem 15)̂  

(Franchise Agreement, Sectional). 

12. Provide initial trainingtoyourOeneralManager(asdefinedinltem 15), kitchenmanagerand3a 
managers, and subject to availability,other managerial employees as you desire to have trained The details of 
the initial training aredescribedlaterin this Itemll (Franchise Agreement, Sections 
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13. Provide a pre-opening training team to you at the Restaurant. The details of the pre-opening training 
team are described later in this Item 11. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.4) 

Houlihan's Obligations After Opening 

After the Restaurant opens, Houlihan's will: 

1. Consult with you, occasionally, concerning the operations of the Restaurant. Houlihan's may also 
inspect the Restaurant and its operations, provide criticism, suggestions and assistance with respect thereto and 
require changes to bring the operation ofthe Restaurant into compliance with Houlihan's standards. (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 5.2) 

2. Provide you advice and written materials concerning techniques of managing and operating the 
Restaurant, including, but not limited to, required and suggested inventory and sales methods, new developments 
and improvements in the layout and design of Houlihan's Restaurants, and new developments in products and 
marketing techniques. (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.6) 

3. Provide ongoing training programs to new General Managers, kitchen managers or assistant managers. 
The ongoing training programs are described later in this Item 11. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.5) 

4. Provide additional training or refresher training. The additional training or refresher training is 
described in Item 11. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.6) 

5. Review and approve all local advertising materials submitted and proposed for use by you. (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 10.2.1) 

6. Collect, administer and spend marketing monies paid by franchisees into the Marketing Fund, while that 
Fund is in existence. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.2.2) 

Advertising 

You must make annual expenditures for local advertising and promotions and weekly contributions 
to the national marketing fund ("Fund") or a market cooperative totaling at least 1.7% of the Gross Revenues 
of the Restaurant. Houlihan's may reallocate and/or increase your required total annual expenditures for 
these local advertising and promotions and/or contributions to the Fund and/or a market cooperative up to an 
amount not exceeding 4.5% of Gross Revenues of the Restaurant. In addition, you must participate in 
marketing programs each calendar year that are mandated by Houlihan's. Expenditures made for 
participation in these programs will be credited to your local advertising obligations. 

National Marketing Fund. Currently, you must contribute 0.7% of your weekly Gross Revenues to 
the Fund. With the exception of certain franchisees who operate Houlihan's Restaurants under different 
agreements previously issued by Houlihan's and its predecessor, all franchisees of Houlihan's Restaurants must 
contribute to the Fund at the 0.7% rate. Contributions to the Fund will be credited against your local 
advertising requirements as specified below. 

Houlihan's, which administers the Fund, will direct all advertising programs with sole discretion to 
approve or disapprove the creative concepts, material and media used in these programs and the placement and 
allocation of monies in the Fund. The Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance and 
use of the System and Marks. Houlihan's has no obligation under the terms of the Franchise Agreement to 
make expenditures for you that are equivalent or proportionate to your contribution, or to ensure that you 
benefit directly or pro rata from expenditures from the Fund. Houlihan's utilizes the Fund for creative 
development ofthe brand. 
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The Fund may b e u ^ ^ a d ^ 
w e h a n d ^ e ^ ^ 
Houhhan^m-housema^edng^upmeoo^a^ 
regnal advertismg and m a k i n g firms The Fund, a^eon^hnttonsthere^ and earnmgs^^ 
nsed^saf i s fyanyanda^e^sofmam^ 
advertising markefin^pnhherelafionsand^or^mofional^ 
any other aefivifies^Honhhan'sheheveswiii enhance the imageofthe^^^ 
markefing research and surveys; the cost of preparing and eondnefing televise 
magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns; direct maii and outdoor hilihoardadvert^^ 
promotional materials and premiums used for merchandising purposes; puhhcre ia^ 
satisfaction activities; employing advertising agencies and/orpuhhcre^ 
purchasing promotional items; conducting and administering in-store p r o m o t e 
and otheradvertisingormarketingmaterialsandservices to the Restaurants. 

You must make contrihutions to the Fund, to Houlihan's or toahank account specified hy 
Houlihan's AllsumspaidhyyoutotheFundwillheseparatelyaccountedforhyHoulihan'sandwtllnothe 
usedtodefrayanyofHoulihan'sgeneraloperatingexpenses,exceptforthosereasonahleadmmtsfr^^^^ 
and overhead as Houlihan's may incur in activities reasonably related to the admims^^ 
implementation ofthe FundandadvertisingprogramsforfranchiseesandtheSys^ 
hutnot limited to costs ofpersonnel for creating and implementing advertismg,promo^^^ 
programs.The Fund is not, and shall not he, an asset ofHoulihan's 

Houlihan's, uponrequest, will provide you with an annual accounting ofreceipts and disbursements 
of the Fund it is anticipated that all contributions to and earnings of the Fund wtll be expended for 
advertisingand^orpromotionalpurposesdur^ 
however excessamountsremainintheFundattheendofthattaxableyear,allexpendtturesmthefol^^ 
taxable yearns) will be made first out of accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of earnmg 
the currentyear and finally from contributions Although Houlihan's intends^ 
duration Houlihan'smaintainsthertghttoterminatethe Fund TheFundshalln^ 
until all monies in the Fundhave been expended foradverti^ 
contributors on the basis of theirrespective contributions Amounts refiected in the account at the end of 
eachyearwillbeusedforthe following year 

Although company ownedHoulihan'sRestaurantsarenotcontractually obligated tocontribu^ 
Fund Houlihan'sindependently expends sums ofmoney on advertising andmarketing, which is mtended to 
enhancethegeneralpublicrecognitionandacceptanceofthe Marks inthemarketsservedby^^^ 
During Houlihan's last fiscal year, Houlihan's expended 59% of the monies on creative produce 
development 12% on research, 5% on public relations,16% on email and dtgttalmarketmg, 5% 
photography usage and licensiug and 3% on cause marketing The term "creative development" means the 
generationandproductionofmaterialstobeusedinadvertisingappeartnginthefol^^ 
television, email, search engine marketing, outdoor signs, poiut^^^^ 
special eventmarketing and guerrilla marketing. 

There are no local or regional advertising cooperatives Houlihan's is not required to spend any 
amountonadvertismgintheareawhereyou are generally located 

^ ^ ^ v ^ ^ Atyour sole cost and expense, you mustobtain bold type listings in the white 
pagesdirectoryofthelocalpublictelephoneutilityunderthename-Houlihan'sB 
andpayyourproratashareofthecostofyellowpagesadvertisingtobeplacedbyHouhhansonbehalfof 
allotherlocal Houlihan'sRestaurants All ofyour local advertising, unl^^^ 
by Houlihan's in writing, must utilize only the following: ^newspapers, magazines and other similar 
periodicals;^radio and television;^outdoor advertising b y ^ 
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^ ^ n s f t a d v e r t i s m ^ ^ ^ Ifyou d e ^ t o u ^ a f o r m of 
advertising medium uots^forthabovo, you must submf t a^ 
written approval You may not use any of your own advertising materials, except as described below You 
must obtain Houiiban'sapprovalofaii advertising and promotional plans and material betbre use iftbos 
andmateriaisbave not been prepared by Houliban'sorpreviousiy approved by Houliban'sduringtbepastyear 
If you wisb to deviate from tbe materials contained in tbe Manuals, you must submit in eacb instance tbe 
proposed advertising copy and materials to Houbban's tor approval in advance oftbe commitment by you to 
production or publication You must submit tbese unapproved plans and material to ftouliban's^by personal 
debvery,tbrougbtbe mail, return receipt requested, or email), and Houiiban'swiit approve o 
plans and materials witbin^days from tbe date of receipt by Houiiban's You must not use tbese plans or 
materials until tbeybave been approved by Houiiban's You must promptly discontinue use of any advertising 
orpromotionat plans or materials, wbetber or notpreviousiy approved, upon notice from Houtiban's. 

^ ^ C ^ ^ ^ Wemay designate any geographic area fbrtbe purposes of estabiisbingamarket 
advertising and promotional cooperative fund ("Market Cooperative") IfaMarket Cooperative is established 
tor an area that includes your Restaurant, then you must becomeamember of the Market Cooperative Any 
contributions toaMarket Cooperative wilt be credited against your local advertising expenditures You will 
submit your contributions to the Market Cooperative at the same time and in the same manner as the Royalty 
fee and Fund contributions Each Market Cooperative will be organized and the bylaws and organisational 
documents will be made available to you upon request. Every company owned and franchised restaurant in the 
market wilt have one vote in the Market Cooperative We may terminate any Market Cooperative once aii 
monies in the cooperative have been expended tor advertising and promotional purposes. 

ComputerSystems 

You must utilize Houhhan's proprietary nSuite^ Software Package and certain required co 
hardware components,inciuding point of sale systems, kitchen systems and backoffice administrative 
systems Houtihan'scompany-operated restaurants have used components of the nSuite Software Package 
since 2002 The principal auction of the nSuite Software Package is to support the Restauranfspoint-of 
sale system, collect sales and sates tax intbrmation and to operate the Restaurant Aft costs associated with 
the nSuite Software Package, computer system, point of sale system, hardware and software, and the delivery 
and installation cost of aft hardware and software, shaft be at your expenseHouhhan'swift have the a b ^ 
to retrieve data and information from your computer system, including electronically po 
menu mix and other data ofthe Restaurant. 

Youmust sign Houhhan'sSoftwareEicense and Support Agreement (Exhibitff)andpay to 
Houlihan's an annual $7,500 hcense fee for each Restaurant for the hcense to use the nSuite^So^^ 
Package The license fee is due upon execution ofthe Software EicenseandSupportAgreementand upon each 
anniversary of the execution date of that Agreement Under the Software License and Support Agreement, 
Houlihan's will also provide telephonic help desk support services tor your point of sale equipment and 
nSuite Software Package at no additional cost i f Houlihan's, in its reasonable discretion, elects to provide 
support services at your Restaurant, you must payHouhhan's regular hourly rate tor the services of its 
employees and you must reimburse Houiihan'sforaiiout-of pocket expenses that Houiihan'sincursin 
providing these services, including reasonablelodgmg,meaisandtransportationexpenses of Houlihan's 
employees or agents and the cost ofany service ormaintenance providers. 

You must purchase the computer hardware and software that is specified in the Software License and 
SupportAgreement from the designated suppherthatHouiihan'sspecifies in the Software License and Support 
Agreement Currently, we estimate thatyourtotai initial investment inhardware, software and ftainingwi^^ 
approximateiyS50,000 

Toensureftift operational efficiency and communication capability between Houlihan's computer 
system and the computer systems of aft Houlihan's Restaurants, you must keep your computer system in 
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good mam^ance and 
yourcompotor hardware s o ^ a ^ ^ o p h o n e a n d p o w o r h n ^ a n d o ^ c o m p n ^ ^ a ^ d ^ ^ 
d f t e ^ d b y H o n f t h a n ^ a n d o n ^ d a ^ a n d w i ^ n ^ o f i m ^ s ^ ^ In add-on, 
Honlihan^mayroqnfreyouto:^ 
addidonal, now or sn^i tn^ software to your original c o m ^ 
entire computer system wfthalarger system There is no limitation on the cost to upgrade or update the 
computer system. 

Site Selection 

Houhhan'sdoesnotseiectasiteforyou; you seiectthesiteforyour Restaurant, suhjecttoourconse^^^ 
The selection and development ofaRestaurant at any site must he approved hyHouhhan's Before acquî ^̂ ^ 
hy lease or purchase ofasitet^raRestaurant in the Territo^ designated in the Development Agree 
mustsuhmitasitesuhmissionpackagetoHouhhan's, in the ft^rm required hyHouhhan's, tor our 
The site submission package must include the tbftowing: a site description, market teasihihty study, 
demographic inft^rmation, site pians,aiefter of intent or other evidence satisfactorŷ  to 
your tavorahie prospects tbrohtainingthesite an 
reasonably require If the site is to be leased, the lease must include specific provisions as set tbrth in the 
Development Agreement and the Franchise Agreement. 

Within 30 days after receipt of the required documents and any additional intbtmation that we may 
reasonably require,wewiii advise you in writing whether we have approvedaparticuiar site. Nositewiftbe 
deemed approved unless Houhhan'shas expressly approved the site in writing Wehave no obhgafion 
aproposedsite tfaproposed site is not approved, nothing in the Franchise Agreement wihprohibityouftom 
proposing othersites, and Houfthan'swiftreviewtheseotherproposed sites asdiscussed above 

Houtihan'sapprovai of the use ofaprospective Restaurant site or rendering assistanceinthe selection 
ofasitetbraRestaurant does not constitutearepresentation, promise or guarantee by Houlihan's^ 
Restaurant operated at that site will be profitable or otherwise successful The extent and nature of assistance 
by Houfthan'smay vary periodically and wift be subject t o ^ 
will signtheFranchise Agreement for theRestaurant after Houlihan's approves the site but before you 

commence construction. 

Time Between Agreement Signing and Opening 

The typical length of time between the signing ofaFranchise Agreement or the first payment of 
consideration for that Restaurant and the opening ofthat Restaurant is approximately 18 months This time 
fi^mewift vary depending on when you finalize your site selection and begin construction Factors affecting 
approval ofasite and your start-up time include seiectingasite satisfactory to Houhhan's,obtain^^ 
necessary financing, completing the acquisition (or leasing) of the site, obtaining 
perrnits,sohciting bids and completing aft renovation, remodehng or new construction ofthe R e s ^ 
construction being the most time consuming afternative), complying with local ordinances'^ 
hquor licenses), purchasing and instahing fixtures and equipment, purchasing inventory, hi^^ 
personnel and attending Houhhan'spre-opening training programs. 

Training Programs 

Owner Orientation Program. Before you open your first Houlihan's Restaurant, your Controlling 
Principal shall aftend, and satisfactorily complete our Owner Orientation Program The Owner Orien^^ 
Program wift last five days and will be conducted at our corporate headquarters in Leawood, Kansas and̂ or 
at Restaurants operated by us or one of our affiliates in the greater metropolitan Kansas City area Wemay 
extend the length of the Owner Orientation Program Your owners may also choose to attend the Owner 
Orientation Program Wewiftbearaii administrative expenses forthe Owner Orientation Program, provided 
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th^you shaft p a y a f t f t a v ^ ^ 
Orientafton Program. 

InftialTramm^Houhhan'sw^ 
that number ofkftchen managers, assistant managers and otherpersonn^^ 
toavailahiiity of spaee in the training session and Honhhan'sprior written 
employees as you desire tohave trained in the operation of the Restaurant Before youopenanew 
Restaurant, at least5day-to-day managers (the General Manager, the kitehen manager, and^assistan^ 
managers^ofthe Restaurantmustsueeessfully complete the trainingprogram After openm^ 
youmusteontinuously employ at theRestaurant at least 1 GeneralManager, 1 kitchen manager and3 
assistant managers, each of whom has successfully completed the initial training program Pre-opening 
training will take place at Houlihan's Restaur 
thegreatermetropolitanKansasGityarea, or, in Houlihan'sdiscretion, at your Restaurant or the 1^^^ 
another existing Houlihan's Restaurant The training course will last approximately^weeks and must he 
completed no earlier than 50 days and no later than 28 days before the scheduled opening ofthe Restaurant 
The training will include actual performance by the trainees ofjobs performed in the operaft^^ 
Restaurant. There will be no tuition fee charged for this initial training program, however, you must pay all 
expenses incurred by your employees while attending the trainingprogram, such as all travel, living and 
costs (including, but not limited to, the cost o^ 
training program) You must reimburse Houlihan'sfor all out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Houlihan'sin 
presenting all orpart ofthe initial training program. 

The above-described initial training program includesin-store,task-orientedtra^^^^ 
seminars. ThecourseisconductedimmediatelybeforeeachRestaurantopens. Thetrainingcoversthe 
allowing ftinctions:seater/greeter,waiter/waitress,tbod rummer, bartender, admm^̂  
and management Each trainee's pertbrmance ofthe tasks listed above will be observed and evaluated and 
written tests covering the ftinctions described above will be administered to traineeson Houlihan 

In addition, your General Manager and those kitchen managers, assistant managers and other 
personnel whom we designate must attend and successfully complete food safety and responsible beverage 
serving courses approved by us and any other local or state required food safety and responsible b e v e ^ 
servingcourse(s) Wedo not currently ofterthese courses You mustpay all tuition or other^^ 
any third party instructor in connection with these courses and all travel, living and other expenses i ^ ^ ^ 
byyour employees while attending these courses You mustprovide us evidence thatyou have satisfied your 
fi^od safety and responsible beverage serving training obligation beft̂ re we will authorize the ope 

Restaurant. 

You must hire third party vendors approved by us to conduct periodic audits of the Restaurant to 
confirm that youroperationof theRestaurant meets the vendors' highest foodsafety, sanitationand 
responsible beverage standards You must pay all fees charged by the third party vendors in connection with 
these audits.Uponourreasonablerequestyoumustprovide,ordirectyourvendors to provide,acopyofth^ 
audit results to us. 

Poraperiod of approximately2weeks beginning at least8days before the opening of the Restaurant, 
Houlihan's will send to the Restaurantapre-opening training team to assist you in training the e m p ^ 
necessary tor the opening and the initial and continued operation of the Restaurant You must give Houlihan's 
at least 30 days'advance notice ofthe opening. Houlihan'swill not sendapre-opening training team to the 
Restaurant until: (1) you have installedaftilly operational and approved point-of-sale system at th^ 
(2) you have hired adequate staff to operate the Restaurant 
numberofRestaurantmanagers, as required by Houlihan's, have completedHoulihan'sinitialtram^^ 
and any required food safety and responsible beverage serving courses; and (4) the Restaurant has rece^ 
certificate of occupancy Houlihan's will provide the training team without payment oftuition or any other 
charge to you, but you must pay for all out-ofpocket expenses of the trainers, including all travel,^ 
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foodco^ A t H o u f i h ^ 
o f ^ e R ^ u r ^ o r ^ p e ^ ^ 
o ^ m g ^ m m g o f a n o ^ H ^ i h ^ R e ^ ^ Y o u m ^ p a y ^ ^ e ^ 
mcu^ed by your em^oyee while a t t ^ m g ^ p r ^ ^ 
(iueludiugtheeo^ofauym^ 

Houhhau^ will provide ongoing ftaiuiug program 
termination, disabili^iueapaoifyorde^h of e x i s ^ 
the new Restaurant business These programs will be made available to you, subject to availability of training 
facilities and other resources, on the same terms and conditions as the initial trainm^^ New managers must 
attend and successfully complete the first available ongoing training program offered by ^ You do 
not have to payatuition fee tor the training program tor these new managers, however, you must rei^^ 
Houlihan's tor any out-ofpocket expenses incurred by Houlihan's in providing this ongoing t̂ ^̂  You 
must pay all costs incurred by your employees who attend the training, such as all travel, living, food costs 
(including the cost of any meals served at the Houlihan'sRestaurant during the ongoing training) In addition, 
new managers must attend and successfully complete the food safety and responsible beverage serving 
courses approved by us and any other local or state required food safety and responsible beverage serving 
course(s) as described above You must pay all tuition or otherfees charged by any third party instructorin 
connection with these courses and all travel, living and other expenses incurred by your employees while 

attending these courses. 

in addition to the pre-opening training team, Houlihan'smay provide, at your expense, any other on-
site pre-opening and opening supervision and assistance as Houlihan'sdetermines is advisable You do not 
have to payafee or any other charge forthese additional services, but you must pay for all ofHoulihan'sout-
of^pocketexpenses incurred in theprovisionofthese additional services including, without l i ^ ^ ^ 
living and food costs. 

Occasionally, we may require that you and your employees complete refresher training to improve the 
operations and quality at the Restaurant or to learn new teclmiques for the operation of the Res 
preparation of menu items This trainiug will be required as we, in our sole discretion, determine necessary to 
maintain compliance with our standards and will be atalocation designated by us Wemaychargea 
reasonable tuition fee fbrthis training. 

TRAINING PROGRAMS 

Our training programs, as described above, include instruction on the days as outlined in the fbh^ 
charts. Each day will consist oflOhourofinstruction. 

OWNER ORIENTATIONPROGRAM 

SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 
CLASSROOM 

TRAINING 

HOURS OF 
ON THE 

JOB 
TRAINING 

TRAINING 
LOCATION 

Orientation, Culture, Service, Host 2 7 
Restaurant in Kansas City 

metropolitan area 

FOH Management, Bar, POS 2 7 
Restaurant in Kansas City 

metropolitan area 

Kitchen Management, Systems 0 9 
Restaurant in Kansas City 

metropolitan area 

BOH Line Functions, Line Check 0 9 
Restaurant in Kansas City 

metropolitan area 
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HOURS OF 
HOURS OF ON THE 

CLASSROOM JOB TRAINING 

SUBJECT TRAINING TRAINING LOCATION 

Daily Systems, IT Applicants 0 9 
Restaurant in Kansas City 

metropolitan area 

Totals 4 41 

INITIAL TRAINING SCHEDULE FOR RESTAURANT GENERAL MANAGER 

HOURS OF 
HOURS OF ON THE 

CLASSROOM JOB TRAINING 
SUBJECT TRAINING TRAINING LOCATION 
Orientation 6 N/A Restaurant Site 

Prepatory work 6 54 Restaurant Site 
Broiler 2 18 Restaurant Site 

Fry 2 18 Restaurant Site 
Saute 3 27 Restaurant Site 
Pantry 3 27 Restaurant Site 

Kitchen Management 5 45 Restaurant Site 
Server Training 12 18 Restaurant Site 

Bar Management 3 27 Restaurant Site 
Host (Seater/ Greeter) 2 18 Restaurant Site 

Front of House 6 36 Restaurant Site 
Management 

Restaurant Closing 6 36 Restaurant Site 
Restaurant Opening 2 18 Restaurant Site 

Totals 58 342 

Materials for this program include Culture & Brand collateral, MIT manual and workbook, recipe 
manuals, station manuals, server training manual, host manual, bar manual, cook manual and online resources. 

INITIAL TRAINING SCHEDULE FOR CHEF/SOUS CHEF 

HOURS OF 
HOURS OF ON THE 

CLASSROOM JOB TRAINING 

SUBJECT TRAINING TRAINING LOCATION 
Orientation 6 N/A Restaurant Site 

Prepatory work 9 90 Restaurant Site 

Broiler 4 36 Restaurant Site 

Fry 3 27 Restaurant Site 

Saute 5 45 Restaurant Site 

Pantry 5 45 Restaurant Site 
Kitchen Management 10 115 Restaurant Site 

Totals 42 358 

Materials for this program include the Culture & Brand collateral, MIT manual and workbook, 

recipe manuals, station manuals, cook manual and online resources. 
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INITIAL TRAINING SCHEDULE FOR RESTAURANT MANAGEMENT 

SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 
CLASSROOM 

TRAINING 

HOURS OF 
ON THE 

JOB 
TRAINING 

TRAINING 
LOCATION 

Orientation 6 N/A Restaurant Site 

Prepatory work 3 27 Restaurant Site 

Broiler 2 18 Restaurant Site 

Fry 2 18 Restaurant Site 

Saute 3 27 Restaurant Site 

Pantry 3 27 Restaurant Site 

Kitchen Management 5 20 Restaurant Site 

Server Training 15 20 Restaurant Site 

Bar Management 8 32 Restaurant Site 

Host (Seater/ Greeter) 6 14 Restaurant Site 

Front of House Management 20 80 Restaurant Site 

Restaurant Closing 4 18 Restaurant Site 

Restaurant Opening 4 18 Restaurant Site 

Totals 81 319 

Materials for this program include Culture & Brand collateral, MIT manual and workbook, recipe 
manuals, station manuals, server training manual, host manual, bar manual, cook manual and online 
resources. 

INITIAL TRAINING SCHEDULE FOR RESTAURANT STAFF 

SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 
CLASSROOM 

TRAINING 

HOURS OF 
ON THE 

JOB 
TRAINING 

TRAINING 
LOCATION 

Cooks/ Kitchen 5 40 Restaurant Site 

Server 20 25 Restaurant Site 

Host (Seater/Greeter) 20 20 Restaurant Site 

Bar 25 25 Restaurant Site 

Totals 70 110 

Materials for this program include Culture & Brand collateral, recipe manuals, station manuals, 
server training manual, host manual, bar manual, and cook manual. 

Amanda Stone supervises our training programs. Ms. Stone has been our Director of Training and 
Communications since March 2013. From 2000 to March 2013, she held other positions with us including Sr. 
Marketing Manager and various operations and marketing roles with our support center. Ms. Stone may act as 
an instructor at the training programs or may supervise and arrange for our other qualified personnel to act as 
instructors. 
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I T E M ^ 

TERRITORY 

Development Agreement 

tf you enter intoaOevelopmentAg^ 
conditions of the Development Agreement, development rights to establ^ 
Houlihan'sRestaurants at spec i f ied 
the Development Agreement and in aoeordaneewithadevelopment schedule set tbrth in the Development 
Agreement. Each Restaurant developed under the Development Agreement must he located in the geographic 
area described in the Development Agreement ("Territory"^ TheTerritory typically consists of one or more 
AreasofDominant Influence. The sizeoftheTerritory will he determined onacase-hy-case basis, and varies 
dependingona variety of factors, includinggeographiclocationandthe numberof Restaurants tobe 
developed Expressly excluded from theTerritoty^ are any areas contained withina3-mile radius of any 
existing Houlihan'sRestaumnts located within the Territory as of the date of the Development Agr^^ If 
one of these existing Houlihan's Restaurants ceases to operate asaHoulihan's Restaurant, the c o ^ 
excluded radius will remain in place and not thereby expire, terminate or become part of theTerritory. in 
addition,we may, in the exercise of our sole discretion, permit the Protected Area (as defined below^ 
Houlihan'sRestaurant located outside theTerritory to includeaportionoftheTerritory. 

The System, including the products sold under the Marks, has been developed, and is designed, to 
function effectively inawide variety of retail environments,many of which may not be available for d ^ ^ 
operationbyyou. Accordingly, Houlihan's reserves toitself the rights, among others,on any terms and 
conditions Houlihan'sdeems advisable, and without granting you any rights therein, to: (f)sell or d^^^ 
directly or indirectly, or license others to sell or distribute any products or services under any proprie^^^ 
marks (including the Marks) at locations other than Houlihan'sRestaurants (such as,but not l i m ^ 
supermarkets, groceries, gourmet shops, mail order, the Internet and electronic media) within or ou^^ 
Territory and without regard to proximity to any Houlihan's Restaurant established and operated under the 
Development Agreement; and (2) acquire, establish and/or operate, and license others to acquire establ̂ ^̂  
and/or operate Houlihan's Restaurants at airports, railroad stations, bus terminals, hi^^ 
hospitals, stadia,concert venues, sports arenas, amusement parks, sc 
facilities, business or industrial foodservice venues,venues in which foodservice is or may be provided bya 
master concessionaire or contract fbodserviceprovider,lndianreservations,casinos or anyother similar 
captive market location not reasonably available for direct operation by you within or outside theTerrito^ 
(notwithstanding the proximity to any Houlihan'sRestaurant established and operated hereunder). 

Except asdescribed in theprecedingparagraph, providedthatyouareincompliance with the 
Development Agreement, Houlihan'swill not establish or operate, nor license any other person to establish 
or operate,aHoulihan's Restaurant in theTerritory during the term of the Development Agreement. This 
does not prohibit Houlihan's from: (I) acquiring, establishing and/or operating, and licensing others to 
acquire, establish and̂ or operate, a Houlihan's Restaurant at any location outside the Territory; and 
(2) acquiring, establishing and̂ or operating, and licensing others to acquire, establish a n ^ 
business or restaurant of any kind that does not operate asaHoulihan'sRestaurant or use the Marks at any 
location within or outside theTerritory (notwithstanding itsproximity to any Houlihan's Restaurant 
established and operated hereunder). 

These restrictions do not apply to Houlihan'sRestaurants in operationintheTerritory as of the date 
of the Development Agreement Houlihan'sreservesallrightstouseandlicensethe System and Marks 
except as expressly granted to you pursuant to the Development Agreement. 

As statedinlteml,during the term of the Development Agreement, subject to the provisions of that 
Agreement, you may request that we allow you to develop one or more Houlihan's Restaurants within the 
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T ^ ^ m a d d i f i o n ^ W e w i ^ m o ^ ^ d i ^ e f i o ^ 
approve or approve your reque^ or squire a d d ^ 
our evaluation of your request You may not develop any additional Houlihan's Restaurants (other than 
those specified in the Development Sehedule)withoutourprior, written approval 

Franchise Agreement 

If you enter intoaFranehise Agreement, Houlihan's will grant to you, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Franchise Agreement and provided that you are in compliance with that Agreement, the 
limited exclusive righttooperateaHoulihan'sRestaurantinalimited geographic area 
size of the Protected Area will vary, based upon relevant factors such as population and household dens^^^ 
and will be bounded by designated streets, highways and geographic features, or will beadesignated radius 
fromtheRestaurantpremisesExceptas reserved to Houlihan's, during the term ofthe 
Houlihan'swill not establish or operate, nor license any other person to establish or operate,aHoulihan^ 
Restaurant in the Protected Area. 

The System, including the products sold under the Marks, has been developed, and is designed, to 
functionefloctivelyinawidevarietyofretail environments, many of which are not practical^^ 
you Accordingly, Houlihan's reserves toitself the rights, among others, on any terms and conditions 
Houlihan'sdeems advisable, and without grantingyou any rights therein, to: (1) sell or d ^ ^ 
indirectly,or license otherstosellor distribute any products or services under any proprietary mark^ 
(including the Marks) at locations other than Houlihan's Restaurants (such as, but not limited to, 
supermarkets, groceries and gourmet shops) within or outside the Protected Area and without r^^^ 
proximityto the Restaurant established and operatedhereunder; and (2) acquire, establish a n ^ 
license others to acquire establish and̂ or operate Houlihan's Restaurants at airports, r ^ 
terminals, highway travel plazas, hospitals, stadia, concert venues, sports arenas, amusement park̂ ^ 
colleges, universities, military facilities, business or industrial foodservice venues, venues in which 
tbodservice is or maybe provided byamaster concessionaire or contract fi^odservice provider, I n d ^ 
reservations, casinos or any other similar captive market location not reasonably available to you wh^ 
outsidetheProtected Area(notwithstanding the 
hereunder). 

This grant of limited exclusivity does not prohibit Houlihan's from: (1) acquiring, es^^ 
and/oroperating,and licensing others to acquire, establish and/oroperate,aHoulihan^ 
location outside the Protected Area; and (2) acquiring, establishing and̂ or operating, a 
acquire, establish and/or operate, any business orrestaurant of any kind that does not operate asaHouhhan'^ 
Restaurant or use the Marks at anylocationwithinor outside the Protected Area (notwithstanding i^^ 
proximity totheRestaurant established and operated hereunder) These restrictions donot apply to 
Houlihan's Restaurants in operation in the Protected Area as of the date of the Franchise Agreement 
Houlihan'sreserves all rights to use and licensethe System and Marks exceptas expressly granted to you 

pursuant to the Franchise Agreement. 

ifyou lose the right to occupy the Restaurant premises during the term ofthe Franchise Agreement or 
anyrenewal,otherthanasaresult of default byyou, then youmayapplyto Houlihan's fortherighttor^^^ 
theRestaurant You must notify Houlihan'sof the termination or non-renewal of your lease at least 30 days in 
advanceoftheRestaurant'sprojectedlastday ofbusiness in orderforyou to obtainHoulihan's 
relocation, atthetimeofthe request, you must: (l)be in compliancewiththetermsoftheFran^ 
andthetermsofanyrelatedorsuccessoragreement;(2)opentheRestaurantatalocationselectedandapp^^ 
in accordance with site selection criteria specified by Houlihan's within 270 days fiom the approval o f ^ 
relocation; and (^) pay Houlihan'sarelocation review feeof$2,500, which fee will ^ 
timeoftherequestfortheapproval ofthe new locationforthe Restaurant Ifyoufail to r̂ ^̂  
afierHoulihan'shas approved yourrelocation request, you will be in default ofthe Franchise Agreement 
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Although you must be open for business during specified hours set forth in the Manuals, if your 
Restaurant is totally or partially destroyed by casualty or the Premises is taken by condemnation, then you will 
be entitled to rebuild or restore the Restaurant or relocate the Premises, as the case might be, within 270 days 
after that casualty or condemnation at the Premises or another Houlihan's-approved location within the 
Protected Area. You must give Houlihan's prompt notice of casualty or condemnation. If you desire to 
relocate the Restaurant after occurrence of a casualty or condemnation, you must follow the relocation 
procedures set forth above. Failure to rebuild or restore the Restaurant or relocate the Premises will constitute a 
default under the Franchise Agreement. The term of the Franchise Agreement will not be extended as a 
consequence of that taking or destruction. 

* * * 

There are no circumstances under which the Territory or the Protected Area may be altered before the 
expiration or termination of the Development Agreement or the Franchise Agreement, respectively. 
Continuation of your territorial exclusivity does not depend upon achievement of a certain sales volume, market 
penetration, or other contingency. 

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from 
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. As 
disclosed in Item 1, Houlihan's has established and operates other restaurant businesses including Bristol 
Seafood Grill, Braxton Seafood Grill, Devon Seafood Grill and J. Gilbert's that sell food products and services 
that are similar to the products and services offered and sold at Houlihan's Restaurants. Those restaurants may 
solicit or accept orders within your Territory or Protected Area. Houlihan's reserves the right to establish 
additional franchised or company-owned restaurant businesses that provide similar products or services under a 
different trade name or trademark. Houlihan's operates these restaurant concepts from its corporate 
headquarters in Leawood, Kansas. 

ITEM 13 

TRADEMARKS 

You will be licensed by the Franchise Agreement to use the Marks at your Restaurant. You are 
prohibited from using the Marks as part of your corporate or other legal name. Houlihan's has registered the 
following principal trademarks on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office 
("USPTO"). 

MARK REGISTRATION NUMBER REGISTRATION DATE 

Houlihan's 1,835,780 05/10/94 

Houlihan's 2,018,664 11/26/96 

Houlihan's 2,899,555 11/02/04 

* 

3,040,743 1/10/06 

THE H LIST 3,127,861 08/08/06 

LIVE FULL 3,276,715 08/07/07 

HOULIHAN'S 
R E S T A U R A N T + BAR 

3,358,755 12/25/07 
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F o r ^ h o f ^ m ^ h ^ 

H o u h h ^ ^ ^ ^ 
been u s e d m m ^ ^ commie. 

There are no en^enfiyefreeftve materia determinate 
Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state or any eonrt^n^^ 
opposition or eaneellation proceeding, nor any pending material federal or state eonr th t i^ 
Marks that may he relevant to their nse in any state. There are no agreements currently in etfeet that 
significantly limit the rights ofHoulihan'stonseor license the use ofthe M a r k s ^ ^ 
or snperiorpriorrights actually known to Houlihan'sthat could materialman 

state. 

You must promptly notify Houlihan'sof any suspected unauthorized use ofthe Marks, any challenge 
to the validify of the Marks or any challenge to Houlihan's ownership of, Houlihan's rig^^ 
license others to use, oryourright to use, the Marks Houlihan'shas the sole rightto direct and ^^^^ 
administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Marks, including any setd^^ Houlihan's has the 
right, hut not the obligation, to take action against uses by others that may constitute infringem 
Marks Houlihan's will defend you against any third-patfy claim, suit or demand arising out of your 
authorized useofthe Marks. IfHoulihan's, in its solediscretion, determines thatyouha^^ 
accordance with the Franchise Agreement, the cost of this defense, including the cost of any judgment or 
settlement, will be borne by Houlihan's ifHoulihan's, in its solediscretion, determines that you have not 
used the Marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement, the cost of this defense, including the cost of 
any judgment or settlement, will be home by you i f any litigation arises that concerns your use of the 
Marks, you must sign all documents and do those acts as may,in the opinion ofHoulihan's, be necessary to 
carry out this defense or prosecution, including, but not limited to, becominganominal patty t^ 
action Except i f that this litigation is the result of your use of the Marks inamanner inconsistent with t^^ 
termsofthe Franchise Agreement, Houlihan'swill reimburse you forout-of-pocket costs in dom^ 

Houlihan'sreserves the rightto add to, modify and updatethe Marks, including thecolor,typef^^^ 
other appearance of the Marks, and all materials and signage bearing the Marks and to withdraw s p e c ^ 
Marks or substitute different proprietary marks for use in identifying the System and Houh 
(collectively, changes") Except forChanges ofthe Marks required as part ofaremodeling described in the 
Franchise Agreement, Houlihan's shall bear the costs of modifying your signs and advertising material 
conform to Houlihan'snew Marks, but shall otherwise have no obligafion or liabilifyto you asar̂ ^^^ 

ofthese Changes. 

YouarenotpermittedtohaveawebsiteoruseanyoftheMarks or any otherword, name, symbol or 
device that islikely to cause confi^sionwith^ 
technologicalavenue (^Electronic Presence'') without Houlihan'sprior written consent 
can withhold tor any or noreason inconnection withthisconsent,Houlihan'scanestablishthose 
requirements as it deems appropriate, including without limitation obtaining prior wrift^^ 
any Internet domain name and home page addresses; (2) the proposed form and content (including any 
visibleandnon-visiblecontentsuch as meta-tags)of any Electronic Fresencerelated to the 
website pages, materials and content; (4) use of all hyperlinks and other links; and ( ^ any m o d ^ 
Youmust abide by Houlihan's restrictions on the useof any materials (including text, videoclips, 
photographs, images and sound bites) in which any third party has any ownership right Houlihan'smay 

owns . . 
Electronic Presence or another Electronic Presence designated by Houlihan's. Houlihan's has no immediate 
plans to permit you to establish an Electronic Presence. 
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ITEM 14 

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Houlihan's does not own or have licenses for any registered patents that are material to the franchise. 
Houlihan's claims copyrights in original materials used in the System, including the Manuals and promotional 
materials. Houlihan's also owns the following copyrights: 

Copyright Registration No. Registration 
Date 

Duration Does Houlihan's 
Intend to Renew 
This Copyright? 

nLine (computer program 
for inventory management) 

TXu 1-065-174 11/20/2002 The shorter of 120 
years from date of 
creation (2002) or 
95 years from 
publication. As of 
this date, the work 
is unpublished. 

N/A 

Houlihan's Restaurant 
Building Prototype 

VA 1-369-463 03/21/2007 95 years from date 
of publication 
(2006) 

N/A 

theSink (computer program 
for personnel scheduling 
management) 
[*not currently licensed to 
franchisees] 

TXu 1-768-009 10/11/2011 The shorter of 120 
years from date of 
creation (2010) or 
95 years from 
publication. As of 
this date, the work 
is unpublished 

N/A 

There are no current determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress) or any court 
regarding these copyrights, and Houlihan's right to use the copyrights is not materially limited by any 
agreement or known infringing use. Houlihan's does not have any copyright licenses that are material to the 
franchise. 

Houlihan's will indemnify you against any claim that the nLine software infringes any U.S. copyright 
or patent provided that: (1) Houlihan's is given prompt notice of the claim; (2) Houlihan's is given immediate 
and complete control over the defense and/or settlement of the claim and you fully cooperate with Houlihan's 
in the defense and/or settlement; (3) you do not prejudice in any manner Houlihan's conduct of that claim; and 
(4) the alleged infringement is not based on use ofthe Software in a manner prohibited by the Software License 
and Support Agreement, in a manner for which the Software was not designed, or in a manner not in 
accordance with the published description of the Software. 

I f a final injunction is obtained against the use of any part of the Software by reason of infringement of 
a U.S. copyright or patent, Houlihan's shall have the right, at its option, either to: (1) procure for you the right 
to continue to use the Software; (2) modify the Software so that it becomes non-infringing; or (3) terminate the 
Software License and Support Agreement without penalty. 

Confidential Information 

Franchise Agreement. You and your principals, managers and other employees will receive valuable 
specialized training, trade secrets and confidential information, including information regarding the methods 
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and techniques ofHoulihan's and the System related to the arrangement and operation of the Restaurant that are 
beyond the present skills and experience possessed by you, your principals, managers and other employees 
(collectively, "Confidential Information"). You and your principals must acknowledge that the Confidential 
Information provides a competitive advantage and will be valuable to you in the development and operation of 
the Restaurant, and that gaining access to the Confidential Information described above is, therefore, a primary 
reason why you are entering into the Franchise Agreement. 

You must not, at any time during or after the term of the Franchise Agreement, communicate, 
divulge or use for the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, association, limited liability company 
or corporation any Confidential Information ofHoulihan's. You may divulge Confidential Information only 
to those of your employees as must have access to it in connection with their employment. All of this 
information, knowledge and know-how, including the Manuals and all drawings, materials, equipment, 
recipes, computer and point of sale programs and output from these programs, all financial information 
concerning Houlihan's and all other data that Houlihan's designates as confidential will be deemed 
confidential for purposes ofthe Franchise Agreement. You may not, at any time, without Houlihan's prior 
written approval, copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce any part of these materials or information or 
otherwise make them available to any unauthorized person. 

You must, before arranging any training or disclosing any Confidential Information, require your 
General Manager and those other supervisory or managerial employees as Houlihan's designates to sign 
covenants similar to those set forth in the Franchise Agreement (including covenants applicable upon the 
termination of a person's relationship with you). Every covenant required must be in a form satisfactory to 
Houlihan's, including specific identification ofHoulihan's as a third party beneficiary of these covenants with 
the independent right of enforcement. 

Development Agreement You and your principals, managers and other employees will receive 
valuable specialized training, trade secrets and confidential information, including, without limitation, 
information regarding the site selection and other methods and techniques ofHoulihan's and the System related 
to the development ofthe Restaurants that are beyond the present skills and experience possessed by you, your 
principals, managers and other employees (collectively "Confidential Development Information"). You must 
acknowledge that the Confidential Development Information provides a competitive advantage and will be 
valuable to them in the development ofthe Restaurants, and that gaining access to Confidential Development 
Information is, therefore, a primary reason why you are entering into the Development Agreement. 

You must not, at any time during or after the term of the Development Agreement, communicate, 
divulge or use for the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, association, limited liability company or 
corporation any Confidential Development Information of Houlihan's. You may divulge this Confidential 
Development Information only to those of your employees as must have access to it in connection with their 
employment. All of this information, knowledge and know-how, including all drawings, materials, equipment, 
recipes, computer and point of sale programs and output from these programs, all financial information 
concerning Houlihan's and all other data which Houlihan's designates as confidential will be deemed 
confidential for purposes ofthe Development Agreement. You may not, at any time, without Houlihan's pnor 
written approval, copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce any part of these materials or information or 
otherwise make them available to any unauthorized person. 

You must, before arranging any training or disclosing any Confidential Development Information, 
require your Representative (as defined in Item 15), Regional Manager (as defined in Item 15), if applicable, 
and those other of your supervisory or managerial employees as Houlihan's designates to sign covenants 
similar to those set forth in the Development Agreement (including covenants applicable upon the termination 
of a person's relationship with you). Every covenant required must be in a form satisfactory to Houlihan's, 
including, without limitation, specific identification of Houlihan's as a third party beneficiary of these 
covenants with the independent right of enforcement. 
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^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ You must mam^m^econfidenfiahfyof^Softw^ 
its user, system audmsta^tioudocumeutatiouaud the pubh^^ 
"Coutideutiai Software tuformatiou") You may uot, without Houhhau's prior written eouseut:^modity 
any Couftdeutial Software Information; (2) reverse engineer, decompile, decrypt, or disassemhie the 
Conftdentiaitnft^rmation or attempt to do so;^transfer, rent lease, lend or suhhcense any Conftdentiai 
tnft^rmation to anyone for any purpose; or^reveat or disclose any Conftdentiai Software tntbrmatio^ 
any purpose to any other person, firm,corporation or other entity,other than your employees withaneed to 
know this Conftdential Software Information to perform employment responsihihties consistent wit^ 
rights under the Software License and Support Agreement. You must safeguard and protect the Oonftdential 
SoftwareInft^rmationfromtheft,piracyor unauthorized accessinamanner at least consistent withthe 
protections you use to protect your own most conftdentialintbrmation. You must intbrm your employees of 
their obligations under the Software License and Support Agreement and shall take those steps as may he 
reasonable in the circumstances, or as may be reasonably requested by Houlihan's, to prevent any 
unauthorized disclosure, copying or use of the Gonftdential Software Information. You must notify 
Houlihan's immediately upon discovery of any prohibited use or disclosure of the Gonftdential Software 
Information, or any other breach of these confidentiality obligations, and shall fully cooperate with 
Houlihan'sto help Houlihan'sregain possession of the Gonftdential Software Information and prevent the 
further prohibited use or disclosure ofthe Confidential Software Information. 

Manuals 

You must at all times treat the Manuals and everything in them as confidential and must not disclose or 
permit the disclosure of the content of the Manuals, or any part of them, to any person or entity without 
Houlihan'swritten consent. Atalltimes, Houlihan'swill retain title to the Manuals and all of the recipes and 
materials contained in these Manuals. Houlihan's may provide amendments and supplements to the Manuals, 
new manuals or other writtenoperationaldirectivestoyou, and you must abide by and comply withthe 
requirements and procedures contained therein. 

Customer Data 

All data that you collect from customers and potential customers in connection with the Restaurant 
("Customer Data'') is deemed to be owned exclusively by Houlihan's, and you mustprovide the Custom 
to us at any time that we request it. You have the right to use Customer Data during the term ofthe Franchise 
Agreement or any renewal of that Agreement, but only in connection with operating the Restaurant and only in 
accordance with the policies that we establish ftom time to time. You may not sell, transfer, or share Customer 
Data without our prior express written authorization. However, if you transfer the Restaurant, as part of the 
transfer, you must also transferuse ofthe Customer Data to the buyer as part ofthe total purchase price p a i d ^ 
theRestaurant. 

I T E M I ^ 

OBLIGATION TOPARTICIPATE 
INTHEACTUAL OPERATION OFTHE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

Upon execution of the Development Agreement, you must designate an individual who (I) owns an 
equity interest in you; and (2) is f^IIy authorized to a c t ^ 
your obligations under the Development Agreement ("Representative"). Aqualifted Representative must be 
designated at all times during the term ofthe Development Agreement. If you enteraDevelopment Agreement 
to develop^or more Restaurants, you must designate an individual approved by Houlihan'sto supervise the 
Restaurants ("Regional Manager"). You mustnotifyHouIihan'softhe identity of the Regional Manager no 
laterthan 90 daysbefbretheopeningofthe 5th Restaurant. 
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U p o n e x ^ i o n o f ^ ^ 
^ p o n ^ i f y ^ o v ^ 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ n t o o p ^ ^ ^ f r ^ o h i ^ i s ^ m ^ ^ 
H ^ h ^ ^ m m ^ " o n ^ m i ^ 5 ^ ^ Y o u m ^ ^ e m ^ o y a k f t ^ 
m ^ ^ ^ e a ^ ^ m ^ g ^ ^ o ^ p e ^ ^ You must ^ u e ^ ^ 
Geue^ Mauser aud each of your emptors who se^e as mauag^sm 
residence withiuausual driving time of not morethan approximately onehour from the Restaurant 
Houhhan's reserves the right to require that, asaconditionofhis or her employment, the Gen^ 
successfully complete aninterview process andapsychologicalprofiletestinamanner satisfactory to 
Houlihan's TheGeneralManagermust have the right to earn at least 10% ofthe net operâ ^̂  
Restaurant or haveal0% interest in your equity and voting rights 

If you are owned hy more than one individual, you must designate one of your owners as your 
Controlling Principalwhowillhe the personwithwhomwe communicate regarding all financi^^^ 
operational matters and whom will have the authority to hind you with respectto all financial and opemft^^ 
decisions related to the Restaurant The Controlling Principal must at all times have at leasta20% equity 
ownership interestinyou The Controlling Principal may serve as the General Manager 
complete the Owner Orientation Program and any additional training that we requirê  You must designatea 
replacement within 30 days afrer your Controlling Principal ceases to qualify asaControllingPrinci^^^^ The 
Controlling Principalmustsignapersonal guaranty ofyourobligationsundertheFranchise Agre^ 

Except as described above, Houlihan'sdoes not have the rightto approve any ofthe managers Some 
managers must attend and complete Houlihan'straining program as described in I temll During the term of 
the Agreements, exceptasotherwiseapproved in writing by Houlihan's, youmustdevoterequisi^ 
and best efforts to meet your obligations under the Agreements, and must require your Ceneml Manager and 
Regional Manager to devote tull time, energy and best efforts to the management and operation of the 

Restaurant. 

As described in iteml4, you must, before arranging any training or disclosing any confidential 
information, require your principals, General Manager, Representative, Regional Manager 
supervisory or managerial employees as Houlihan^ 
covenants inatbrm satisfactory to Houlihan's. 

The success ofyour efforts to operateaRestaurantto maximize sales and profits rests solelywithy 
Houlihan'swillmakethoserecommendations as it deems appropriate to assist your efforts However, you 
alone will establish any requirements regarding^ 
and responsibilifies of employees;^the price charged for any product sold in or at the Restau^^^ 
individual or individuals to whom these products may be sold, provided that you may be required to co 
with the reasonable restrictions on the maximum prices of specific goods and services offered and sold by y^^ 
as Houlihan'smay reasonably require periodicallyinthe Manuals or otherwise in writing; and 
from which you obtainany item orserviceusedinorattheRestaurantforwhichHoulihan'shasnotestabh^ 
anapprovedsupplier You mustactivelyoperatetheRestaurantandkeep it openforbusiness as required 
Manuals and your lease, if any. 

To meet the financial standards required by Houlihan's, unless waived or modified in writing by 
Houlihan's, all owners ofalegal or beneficial interest in you must signaguaranfy assuming and agreeing to 
dischargeallofyourobligationstoHoulihan'sandagreeingtobeboundby the confidentiality and 
noncompetition restrictions described in Item 17 ("Guaranty") Houlihan's may require any guarantor to 
provide personal financial statements The form of Guaranty is attached to the Development Agreement 
(ExhibitD)and the Franchise Agreement (Exhibit E) 
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ITEM 16 

RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must not offer for sale any product or service, or install or use any equipment, material, 
furnishings, concept, ingredient, supply, vending machine, entertainment device, marketing plan or other 
component ofthe Restaurant unless and until the product itself, labeling, method of marketing and method of 
delivery have been approved in writing by Houlihan's, in its sole discretion, as being consistent with all 
applicable specifications and with the System. You must sell only goods and services Houlihan's specifies. 
You must use the Restaurant premises solely for the operation of the Restaurant, keep the Restaurant open and 
in normal operation for the minimum hours and days as Houlihan's may specify and refrain from using or 
permitting the use ofthe Restaurant for any other purpose or activity at any time without first obtaining the 
written consent ofHoulihan's. 

The System may be supplemented, improved and otherwise modified occasionally by Houlihan's. You 
must comply with all reasonable requirements of Houlihan's in that regard, including, without limitation, 
offering and selling new or different products or services as specified by Houlihan's. For a description of 
restrictions on purchases of certain goods and services, see Item 8 above. 

Except as described in this disclosure document, and except for other limitations imposed by applicable 
liquor laws or regulations, you are not restricted by the Franchise Agreement, or any other practice or custom of 
Houlihan's, with respect to the goods or services which you may offer or with respect to the customers whom 
you may solicit. 

ITEM 17 

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

The following tables list certain important provisions of the Development Agreement and the 
Franchise Agreement. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure 
document. 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Provision 

Section in 
Development 
Agreement Summary 

a. Term of the franchise 2 The term is from the date of execution to the earlier of the date the last 
Restaurant specified in the Development Schedule opens or is required 
to be opened. 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

Not Applicable 

c. Requirements for you to 
renew or extend 

Not Applicable 
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Provision 

Section in 
Deveiopment 
Agreement Summary 

d. Terminafionbyyou Not Applicable 

e Tennmationbyus 
without cause 

Not Applicable 

f Terminationhyuswith 
cause 

10 ^emay terminate upon default. 

g. ^Cause" defined^ 
defaults ^vhich can he 
cured 

103 You have lOdays to cure monetary defaults. You have 30 days to cure 
defaults other than those listed in h. 

h ^Cause" defined^ 
defaults which cannot he 
cured 

101andl02 Non curable defaults include: insolvency; petition in bankruptcy; 
receiver appointed; finaljudgment remains unsatisfied for 30 days; 
dissolution; execution is levied againstyou; suit in foreclosure; 
propertyisleviedandsold; failure to obtain consent toasite; failure to 
comply with the Development Schedule; commencement of 
construction before execution ofFranchise Agreement; unauthorised 
disclosure ofconfidential information; material violation ofthe 
confidentiality or non competition covenants; breach of any warranties, 
representations or covenants; unauthorised transfer; material 
misrepresentation; felony conviction that is likely to materially and 
adverselyaffectHoulihan's,youorthe System;yourterminationofthe 
Development Agreement; multiple defaults inal2month period; and 
defaults under other agreements withHoulihan's. 

i. Yourohligationson 
termination/non­
renewal 

11 Obligations include: payment ofmonies owed; termination of 
developmentrights;lossofexclusivity;fbrfeitureofdevelopment fee; 
cessation ofuseofand return confidential information and materials; 
and compliance with confidentiality and non competition covenants. 

^ Assignment of contract 
hy Houlihan's 

9 There are no restrictions on Houlihan'sri^ht to assign. 

k ^Trans^r"hyyou^ 
definition 

9 Includes any sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, gift, pledge, 
mortgage, or other encumbrance ofany interest in you, your business, 
orthe Development Agreement. 

1. Houlihan'sapprovalof 
transfer hy franchisee 

92 ^ehavethe right to consent to transfers. 

m.^onditionfor 
Houlihan'sapprovalof 
transfer 

822 Conditions include: monetary obligations satisfied; not in default; you 
signageneralrelease;transfereeassumes obligations in the 
Development Agreement and/or signsanew standard form of 
Development Agreement; transferee meets Houlihan'scriteriafornew 
developers; you remain liable for obligations incurred be^re the 
transfer; transferfeeof$5,000paid; and guarantees signed. 

n. Houlihan'sright of first 
refusal to acquire your 
business 

93 ^emay match any ofterforyour business 

o. Houlihan'soptionto 
purchase your business 

NotApplicable 

p. Your death or disahility 94 Upon death, transfertoathird party approved by Houlihan's^vithin 12 
months.Upon permanent disability,transferto third party approved by 
Houlihan'swithin 270 days. 
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Proven 

Sectionm 
Development 
Agreement Summary 

q. Non-compe^ion 
covenant during the 
term ofthe Development 
Agreement 

821 ^o diversion ofany husinessorcustomerto any competitor; no 
^mploymentorinducementtoleaveemploymentofanyperson 
employedhyHoulihan'soranytranchiseeordeveloper; no interest in 
any restaurant (t)offeringthe same orsuhstantiallysimilarsitdown, 
casual dining services as those offered in Houlihan'sRestaurants; or 
(2) anylood items that are the sameasorsuhstantiallysimilarto the 
menu items ofHoulihan's Restaurants, andwhichhusiness is oris 
intended to he located within theTerritory,aradiusoflOmiles of any 
Houlihan'sRestaurantintheTerritory,aradiusoflOmilesofany 
Houlihan'sRestaurant orthe United States. 

r. Non-eompetthon 
covenants alfer the 
Development 
Agreement is terminated 
or expires 

822 No activity described in q.fbrtwo years within theTerritory,aradius 
oflOmilesofanyHoulihan'sRestaurantintheTerritoryoraradiusof 
lOmiles of any Houlihan'sRestaurant. 

s Modification ofthls 
agreement 

16 No modification generally^vithoutsignedagreement^butHoulihan's 
canmodifythe System and the Manuals. 

t. Integratton/merger 
clauses 

16 The DevelopmentAgreementand the documents referred to thereinand 
theexhibitsconstitutetheentire, full and complete agreement between 
you and Houlihan's. Anyrepresentationsorpromisesoutsideofthe 
disclosure document and Development Agreement may not be 

enforceable. 

u Dispute resolution hy 
arbitration ormediation 

172 Except fbrclaimsrelated to thepaymentofmoniesandinjunctive 
relief, all claimsorcontroversiesarisingoutof,orrelating to, the 
Development Agreementmustbefirst submitted to mediation 
administered by IAMS. 

v Choice of forum 173 Any claim, controversy or dispute underthe Development Agreement 
must be brought inacourt in the judicial district in whichHoulihan's 
has its principal place ofbusiness. 

w.Choiceoflaw 171 Kansas law applies. 

x. Other^Liquidated 
Damages 

8212and 8 2 2 2 ifyou employ,seek to employ orinduce any employee to leave 
his/heremploymentwithHoulihan'sor any other franchisee or 
developer ofHoulihan's, youmust pay Houlihan'sorthe other 
developer or franchisee liquidated damages in an amount equal to the 
annualized compensation forthat employee forthe final 12monthsof 
their employment with their former employer. 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

Provision 

Section in 
Franchise 

Agreement Summary 

a. Term of the franchise 2.1 10 years from the date the Restaurant opens for business 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

2.2 you have the option to renew the Franchise Agreement for two 
successive terms of five years each. 

c. Requirements for you to 
renew or extend 

2.2 Requirements include: in compliance with the Franchise Agreement; 
satisfy requirements for new franchisees; sign a general release; give 
written notice of your desire to renew; and pay a renewal fee. 

We also may require you to sign our then-current form of Franchise 
Agreement, which may contain terms and conditions substantially 
different from your original Franchise Agreement, including, without 
limitation, a reduced Protected Area and higher royalty fees and/or 
advertising contributions. 

d. Termination by you Not Applicable 

e. Termination by 
Houlihan's without 
cause 

Not Applicable 

f. Termination by 
Houlihan's with cause 

18 Houlihan's may terminate upon default. 

g. "Cause" defined-
defaults which can be 
cured 

18.3 You have 10 days to cure monetary defaults. You have 30 days to cure 
defaults other than those discussed in h. 

h. "Cause" defined-
defaults which cannot be 
cured 

18.1 and 18.2 Non-curable defaults include: insolvency; petition in bankruptcy; 
receiver appointed; final judgment remains unsatisfied for 30 days; 
dissolution; execution is levied against you; suit in foreclosure; 
property is levied and sold; failure to open as required; failure to 
relocate; failure to obtain and maintain a liquor license; failure to 
continuously operate the Restaurant; misuse of any Mark; unauthorized 
use ofthe Manuals or any confidential information; material violation 
ofany ofthe confidentiality and non-competition covenants; material 
misrepresentation or omission; felony conviction that is likely to 
materially and adversely affect Houlihan's, you or the System; 
submission ofany reports that understate Gross Revenues or Royalty 
Fees by more than 2% for any period; unauthorized transfer; your 
termination ofthe Franchise Agreement without cause; failure to 
comply with other agreements with Houlihan's; or multiple defaults in 
any 12-month period. 

For hotel locations only, non-curable defaults also include: failure to 
provide notice of change in operating name or brand ofthe hotel or 
temporary or permanent cessation of hotel business, or hotel changes its 
name or ceases hotel business operations. 
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Provision 

Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement Summary 

i . Your obligations on 
termination/non-renewal 

19 Obligations include: payment of amounts owed; termination of limited 
exclusivity; cease use of confidential information and materials; return 
or destroy property belonging to Houlihan's; continued observance of 
covenants; cease use of any Internet advertising; cease operating the 
restaurant as a Houlihan's Restaurant; discontinue use of any Marks; 
cancel all fictitious or assumed names; de-identify restaurant premises; 
cancel or transfer telephone numbers; provide notice to Houlihan's 
within 30 days after termination or expiration that you have taken these 
actions. 

j . Assignment of contract 
by Houlihan's 

17.1 There are no restrictions on our right to transfer or assign. 

k. "Transfer" by you-
definition 

17.2 Includes any sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, gift, pledge, 
mortgage or other encumbrance of any interest in you, your business, 
the Restaurant, the Franchise Agreement or the assets used in the 
Restaurant. 

1. Houlihan's approval of 
transfer by you 

17.2 We have the right to approve all transfers. 

m. Conditions for 
Houlihan's approval of 
transfer 

17.2.2 Conditions include: all monetary obligations satisfied; not in default of 
any agreement; you sign a general release; transferee enters into a 
written agreement assuming obligations under the Franchise 
Agreement or signs a new standard form of franchise agreement; 
transferee meets criteria for new franchisees; you remain liable for all 
ofthe obligations to Houlihan's before the transfer; transfer fee paid; 
Restaurant refurbished; transferee completes all then-current training 
programs; you conduct a customer service audit. 

n. Houlihan's right of first 
refusal to acquire your 
business 

17.3 Houlihan's has the right to match any bona fide offer for your business. 

o. Houlihan's option to 
purchase your business 

20 We can purchase some or all of your assets upon termination or earlier 
expiration ofthe Franchise Agreement at a price agreed upon or set by 
appraisers. 

p. Your death or disability 17.4.1. Upon death, transfer to a third party approved by Houlihan's within 12 
months. Upon the permanent disability, transfer to third party 
approved by Houlihan's within 270 days. 
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Provision 

Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement Summary 

q. Non compefition 
covenants duringthe 
term ofthe franchise 

162 No diversion of any business or customerto any competitor; no 
employment or inducement to leave employment ofany person 
employedbyHouiihan'soranyfranchiseeordeveioper; no interest in 
anyrestaurant^offeringthesameorsubstantiahysimiiarsitdown, 
casual dining services asthoseoftered in Houlihan'sRestaurants; or 
(2) any food items that are the same as or substantiahysimiiarto the 
menu items ofHouhhan'sRestaurants,andwhichbusiness is oris 
intended to be located within the Protected Area,aradiusofiOmiies 
from the Restaurant^aradiusofiOmiies of any Houlihan'sRestaurant 
orthe United States. 

r. Non cctnpetihcn 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated 
or expires 

162 No activity described in q.tbrtwo years within the Protected Areata 
radius ofiOmiles ofthe Restaurant oraradiusofiOmiles of any 
Houlihan'sRestaurant. 

s. Modification ofthe 
agreement 

27 No modification generahywithout signed agreement, but Houlihan's 
can moditythe System and the Manuals. 

t Integration/merger 
clauses 

27 The Franchise Agreement and the documents re^rred to therein 
constitutetheentire agreement between you and Houlihan'sand 
supersede all prior agreements Any representations or promises 
outside ofthe disclosure document and franchise agreement may not be 
entbrceabie. 

n. Dispute resointionhy 
arbitration or 
mediation 

292 Except for injunctive rehefand claims forpayment, ah claims or 
controversies arising out of, orrelatingto, the Franchise Agreement 
must be first submitted to mediation administered by IAMS 

v. Choice of forum 293 Except tor claims submitted to mediation, any claim, controversy or 
dispute under the Franchise Agreement must be brought inacourt in 
the judicial district in which Houiihan'shas its principal place of 
business. 

wChoiceofiaw 29t Kansas law applies. 

x. Other^Liquidated 
Damages 

t62I2and 
16222 

i f you empioy,seek to empioy,or induce any employee to leave 
his/her employment with Houhhan'sor any other franchisee or 
developerofHouhhan's, you must pay Houlihan'sorthe other 
franchisee liquidated damages in an amount equal to the annualized 
compensation forthat employee for the final i2months of their 
employment with their former employer. 

ITEM 18 

PUBLIC FIGURES 

Houlihan's does not use any public figure to promote its franchise. 
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ITEM 19 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential 
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the 
information, and i f the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance 
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the 
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the 
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a 
particular location or under particular circumstances. 

We do not make any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or 
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing 
Houlihan's Restaurant, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that restaurant. Ifyou receive 
any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to our 
management by contacting our General Counsel, Cynthia Parres, at (913) 901 2500, the Federal Trade 
Commission and the appropriate state regulatory agencies. 

ITEM 20 

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

Table No. 1 
Systemwide Restaurant Summary 

For Years 2011 to 2013(I) 

Restaurant Type Year 
Restaurants at 

Start ofthe Year 
Restaurants at 
End ofthe Year Net Change 

Franchised 

2011 61 52 -9 

Franchised 2012 52 47 -5 
Franchised 

2013 47 47 0 

Company Owned 

2011 33 33 0 

Company Owned 2012 33 35 +2 
Company Owned 

2013 35 35 0 

Total Outlets 

2011 94 85 -9 

Total Outlets 2012 85 82 -3 
Total Outlets 

2013 82 82 0 
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Table No. 2 
Transfers of Restaurants from Franchisees to New Owners 

(Other than Houlihan's) 
For Years 2011 to 2013 (1) 

Outlet Type Year 

Number of 
Transfers 

Total 2011 0 Total 

2012 0 

Total 

2013 0 

Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Restaurants For Years 2011 to 2013(1) 

State Year Restaurants 
At Start of 

Year 

Restaurants 
Opened 

Terminations Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Houlihan's 

Ceased 
Operations 

- Other 
Reason 

Rests, 
at End 
ofthe 
Year(2> 

California 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2012 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Delaware 2011 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 

2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Florida 2011 5 0 0 0 0 1 4 

2012 4 0 0 0 0 1 3 

2013 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Georgia 2011 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

2012 5 0 0 0 0 2 3 

2013 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Illinois 2011 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2012 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2013 3 0 1 0 0 0 2 

Indiana 2011 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2012 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2013 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Iowa 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2012 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year Restaurants 
At Start of 

Year 

Restaurants 
Opened 

Terminations Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Houlihan's 

Ceased 
Operations 

- Other 
Reason 

Rests, 
at End 
ofthe 
Yeart2> 

Kansas 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2012 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Maryland 2011 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 

2012 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

Minnesota 2011 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

2012 5 0 0 0 0 1 4 

2013 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 

Missouri 2011 4 0 0 0 0 1 3 

2012 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2013 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

New Jersey 2011 14 1 0 0 0 0 15 

2012 15 0 0 0 0 0 15 

2013 15 0 0 0 0 0 15 

New York 2011 5 0 0 0 0 2 3 

2012 3 0 0 0 0 1 2 

2013 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Ohio 2011 4 0 0 0 0 1 3 

2012 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2013 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Pennsylvania 2011 3 0 0 0 0 1 2 

2012 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2013 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Virginia 2011 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2012 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2013 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Wisconsin 2011 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 

2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 2011 61 1 0 0 0 10 52 

2012 52 0 0 0 0 5 47 

2013 47 1 1 0 0 0 47 
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Table No. 4 
Status of Company-Owned Restaurants 

For Years 2011 to 2013(,) 

State Year 
Restaurants 
at Start of 

Year 

Restaurants 
Opened 

Restaurants 
Reacquired 

from 
Franchisees 

Restaurants 
Closed 

Restaurants 
Sold to 

Franchisees 

Rests, at 
End of 
Year 

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Arkansas 2012 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2011 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Georgia 2012 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2013 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2011 9 0 0 0 0 9 

Illinois 2012 9 0 0 1 0 8 

2013 8 0 0 0 0 8 

2011 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Indiana 2012 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2013 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2011 4 0 0 0 0 4 

Kansas 2012 4 0 0 0 0 4 

2013 4 1 0 1 0 4 

2011 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Maryland 2012 1 0 0 0 0 1 
Maryland 

2013 1 0 0 1 0 0 

2011 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Michigan 2012 1 1 0 0 0 2 

2013 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2011 6 0 0 1 0 5 

Missouri 2012 5 0 0 0 0 5 

2013 5 0 0 0 0 5 

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ohio 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2013 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2011 5 0 0 0 0 5 

Pennsylvania 2012 5 0 0 0 0 5 
Pennsylvania 

2013 5 0 0 0 0 5 
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State Year 
Restaurants 
at Start of 

Year 

Restaurants 
Opened 

Restaurants 
Reacquired 

from 
Franchisees 

Restaurants 
Closed 

Restaurants 
Sold to 

Franchisees 

Rests, at 
End of 
Year 

2011 5 0 0 0 0 5 

Texas 2012 5 1 0 0 0 6 

2013 6 0 0 0 0 6 

2011 34 0 0 1 0 33 

Total 2012 33 3 0 1 0 35 

2013 3 2 0 2 0 35 

NOTES 

(1) The numbers for 2011-2013 are as of fiscal year end September 25, 201 land September 30, 
2012, and September 29, 2013 respectively. I f multiple events occurred that affected an outlet, this table shows 
the event that occurred last in time. 

(2) Attached as Exhibit I is a list our developers and the franchised Houlihan's Restaurant 
locations including the name of the franchisee, address of the Restaurant and a telephone number for the 
Restaurant as of September 29, 2013. Exhibit I also contains a list of every franchisee that had a franchise 
agreement for a Houlihan's Restaurant terminated, canceled or not renewed, or who otherwise voluntarily or 
involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during our last fiscal year or who has not 
communicated with Houlihan's within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this disclosure document. 

If you buy a Houlihan's franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when 
you leave the franchise system. 

Table No. 5 
Projected Openings as of September 29,2013 

FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENTS SIGNED AS 

OF SEPTEMBER 29,2013 PROJECTED NEW 

BUT OUTLET NOT FRANCHISED PROJECTED COMPANY 

OPENED AS OF T H A T RESTAURANTS IN OWNED RESTAURANTS 

STATE DATE FISCAL YEAR 2014 IN FISCAL YEAR 2014 

NJ 0 1 0 

TOTALS 0 1 0 

* * * * * 
During our last three fiscal years, we have not signed any confidentiality clauses with current or 

former franchisees which would restrict their ability to speak openly with you about their experience with us. 
We are not aware of any trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the System and no 
independent franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this disclosure document. 
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ITEM 21 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached as Exhibit C are the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for our parent company, HRI 
Holding Corp. ("HHC"), for the fiscal years ended September 29, 2013, September 30, 2012, and September 25, 
2011. You have not been provided with financial statements for Houlihan's. Therefore you do not have knowledge 
of how this specific company has performed. However, HHC has agreed absolutely and unconditionally to 
guarantee to assume the duties and obligations of Houlihan's under the franchise agreements entered into by 
Houlihan's, should Houlihan's become unable to perform its duties and obligations. A copy of Houlihan's 
guarantee is included with Exhibit C. 

ITEM 22 

CONTRACTS 

The following agreements related to a franchised Houlihan's Restaurant are attached as exhibits to this 
disclosure document: 

Exhibit D Development Agreement 

Exhibit E Franchise Agreement 
Exhibit F Addendum to Franchise Agreement for Hotel Locations 

Exhibit G Recruiting Services Agreement 

Exhibit H Software License and Support Agreement 

ITEM 23 

RECEIPTS 

The last two pages of this disclosure document are detachable receipt pages. You should sign and date 
both copies ofthe receipt as ofthe date vou received this disclosure document. Keep one copy for your records and 
return the other signed copy to us. 
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EXHIBIT A 

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS 
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LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS 

CALIFORNIA 
California Commissioner of Business Oversight 
Department of Business Oversight 
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344 
(213) 876-7500 
Toll Free: (866) 275-2677 

H A W A I I 
Commissioner of Securities ofthe State of Hawaii 
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
(808)586-2722 

ILLINOIS 
Illinois Office ofthe Attorney General 
Franchise Bureau 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 

INDIANA 
Secretary of State 
Franchise Section 
302 West Washington, Room E-l 11 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

NEW YORK 
Bureau of Investor Protection and Securities 
New York State Department of Law 
120 Broadway, 23rd Floor 
New York, New York 10271 
(212)416-8211 

NORTH DAKOTA 
North Dakota Securities Department 
600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol 
Fifth Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510 
(701) 328-4712 

RHODE ISLAND 
Department of Business Regulation 
Securities Division 
Bldg. 69, First Floor 
John O. Pastore Center 
1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 
(401)462-9527 

SOUTH DAKOTA 
Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Securities 
445 E. Capitol Avenue 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501 
(605) 773-4823 

MARYLAND 
Office of the Attorney General 
Securities Division 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

MICHIGAN 
Department of Attorney General - Consumer Protection 
Division 
G. Mennen Williams Building 
525 W. Ottawa St. P.O. Box 30212 
Lansing, M I 48933 Lansing, M I 48909 
(517)373-7117 

MINNESOTA 
Commissioner of Commerce 
Department of Commerce 
85 7 t h Place East, Suite 500 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 
(651)296-4026 

VIRGINIA 
State Corporation Commission 
Division ofSecurities and Retail Franchising 
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804)371-9051 

WASHINGTON 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division - 3 r d Floor 
150 Israel Road, S.W. 
Tumwater, Washington 98501 
(360) 902-8760 

WISCONSIN 
Office of the Commissioner of Securities 
201 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 300 
Madison, Wisconsin 53703 
(608) 261-9555 

UTAH 
State of Utah, Division of Consumer Protection 
160 East Three Hundred South 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-0804 
(801) 530-6601 
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EXHIBIT B 

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
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I 1ST OF AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

If a state is not listed, Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. has not appointed an agent for service of 
process in that state in connection with the requirements of franchise laws. There may be states in 
addition to those listed above in which Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. has appointed an agent for service of 
process. There may also be additional agents appointed in some ofthe states listed. 

Florida 

Corporation Service Company 
1201 Hays Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Illinois 

Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 

Indiana 

Secretary of State 
Franchise Section 
302 West Washington, Room E-l 11 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

Maryland 

Maryland Securities Commissioner 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

Michigan 

Michigan Attorney General's Office 
Consumer Protection Div., Franchise Section 
525 West Ottawa Street 
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
Lansing, Michigan 48913 
(517) 373-7117 

New York 

New York Secretary of State 
New York State Department of State 
Division of Corporations 
One Commerce Plaza 
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor 
Albany, NY 12231 
(518) 473-2492 

Texas 

CSC - Lawyers Incorporating Service 
211 E 7th Street 
Suite 620 

Austin, Texas 78701-3218 

Virginia 
Clerk ofthe State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804)371-9733 

Wisconsin 

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 
201 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 300 
Madison, Wisconsin 53703 
(608) 261-9555 

Minnesota 

Commissioner of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 500 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 
(651)296-4026 

HRI List of Agent for Service of Process 
01/14 
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MHM 
Mayer Hoffman McCann RC. 
An Independent CPA Firm 

11440 Tomahawk Creek Parkway 
Leawood, Kansas 66211 
913-234-1900 ph 
913-234-1100 fx 
www.mhmcpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 

HRI HOLDING CORP. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HRI Holding Corp. and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 29, 2013 and 
September 30, 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of HRI Holding Corp. and its subsidiaries as of September 29, 2013 
and September 30, 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Leawood, Kansas 
December 23,2013 

/??. P- c 

Member ofKreston international - a global network of independent accounting firms 
1 



H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
September 29, 2013 AND September 30, 2012 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net 
Inventories 
Deferred income tax benefit 
Other current assets, net 

Total current assets 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLDS, Net 
DEFERRED INCOME TAX BENEFIT 
OTHER ASSETS, Net 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current portion - long term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

LONG TERM DEBT, less current portion 
OTHER LIABILITIES 

Total liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Common stock - par value $.01 per share; 3,000,000 authorized; 

2,296,366 issued and outstanding 
Additional paid-in capital 
Additional paid-in capital - stock appreciation rights 
Treasury stock - 115,674 shares 
Accumulated deficit, net of distributions 

Total stockholders' equity 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

September 29, 2013 September 30, 2012 

$ 1,403 $ 1,113 
3,333 3,079 
2,028 1,837 
' 428 475 
2,077 1,506 
9,269 8,010 

51,624 49,244 
10,503 10,615 
1,497 1,512 

$ 72,893 $ 69,381 

$ 1,875 $ 1,875 
4,449 4,946 

338 18 
9,673 9,715 

16,335 16,554 

27,925 25,800 
13,170 12,169 
57,430 54,523 

24 24 

29,746 29,746 
2,043 2,054 

(2J18) (2,318) 
(14,032) (14,648) 
15,463 14,858 

$ 72,893 $ 69,381 



H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 29, 2013 AND September 30, 2012 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Revenues: 
Company restaurant sales 
Royalty income and franchise revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Cost of Company restaurant sales: 
Food and beverage costs 
Labor costs 
Operating expenses 

Total cost of Company restaurant sales 

Gross profit 

General and administrative expenses 
Pre-opening expenses 
Depreciation expense 
Interest expense 
Transaction costs 
Compensation cost - SARs 
Loss on disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 
Other income, net 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense, current 
Income tax expense, deferred 

Total income tax expense 

Net income 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

September 29, 2013 September 30,2012 

$ 145,295 $ 137,261 
5,875 6,308 

151,170 143,569 

48,802 44,661 
46,474 43,188 
34,029 31,636 

129,305 119,485 

21,865 24,084 

(9,811) (9,995) 

026% 0,991) 
(8J57) (7,668) 
(1,560) (986) 

8 (459) 
(24) (33) 
(98) (268) 

1,011 880 

1,166 3,564 

(391) (526) 
(159) (876) 
(550) (1,402) 

$ 616 $ 2,162 



H R I H O L D I N G CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 29,2013 AND September 30, 2012 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Additional 
Additional 

Paid-in Capital - Total 

Common Stock 
Shares Amount 

Paid-in 
Capital 

Stock Appreciation 
Rights 

Treasury 
Stock 

Accumulated 
Deficit 

Stockholders' 
Equity 

Balance, September 25, 2011 2,297,366 3 J 24 $ 29,746 $ 2,021 $ (2,293) $ (16,810) $ 12,688 

Purchase of treasury stock (1,000) - - - (25) - (25) 

Stock appreciation rights vested - - - 33 - - 33' 

Net income _ . _ _ 2,162 2,162 

Balance, September 30,2012 2,296,366 ! B 24 $ 29,746 $ 2,054 $ (2,318) $ (14,648) $ 14,858 

Purchase of treasury stock - - - - - - -

Stock appreciation rights vested - - - 50 - - 50 

Stock appreciation rights redeemed - - - (61) - - (61) 

Net income . _ . 616 616 

Balance, September 29, 2013 2,296,366 $ 24 $ 29,746 $ 2,043 $ (2,318) $ (14,032) $ 15,463 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 29, 2013 AND September 30, 2012 
(Dollars in thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Loss on disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 
Deferred income taxes 
Amortization of deferred costs 
Stock appreciation rights compensation cost 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net 
Inventories . 
Other current assets, net 
Other assets, net 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditures 

Net proceeds from disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of treasury stock 
Proceeds from long term debt 
Payments on long term debt 
Stock appreciation rights redeemed 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of period 

September 29, 2013 September 30, 2012 

$ 616 $ 2,162 

8,957 7,668 
98 268 
159 876 
81 147 
24 33 

(254) (487) 
(191) (238) 
(571) 492 
(118) (294) 
(497) 390 
320 (52) 
(42) (848) 

1,001 827 

9,583 10,944 

(11,595) (14,122) 
212 259 

(11,383) (13,863) 

(25) 
13,639 13,881 
(11,514) (10,906) 

(35) -

2,090 2,950 

290 31 
1,113 1,082 

$ 1,403 $ 1,113 



HRI HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 29, 2013 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION 

HRI Holding Corp. ("HHC") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Company") own and 
operate full service restaurants in 15 states. At September 29, 2013, the Company operated 
51 restaurants, including 36 Houlihan's, nine wholly-owned seafood restaurants and one 
joint-venture seafood restaurant, and five J. Gilbert's steakhouses. At September 29, 2013 
the Company also franchised 47 Houlihan's and licensed one Devon seafood restaurant in 
15 states. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Fiscal Year - The Company reports fiscal year results of operations based on 52 or 53-week 
periods ending on the Sunday closest to September 30th. The fiscal year ended September 
29, 2013 was comprised of 52 weeks and the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 was 
comprised of 53 weeks. References to years are to the fiscal years then ended. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant 
estimates included in the consolidated financial statements include workers' compensation, 
medical, general liability reserves, stock appreciation rights and the calculation of deferred 
taxes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Income Taxes - Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary 
differences between the financial accounting and tax basis of the Company's assets and 
liabilities. The Company periodically assesses the realization of deferred income taxes. This 
evaluation is primarily based upon current operating results and expectations of future 
taxable income. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the 
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all ofthe deferred tax 
assets will not be realized. 

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal and various state jurisdictions. 
The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by tax 
authorities for years before 2008. 

The Company's policy is to evaluate uncertain tax positions under guidance as prescribed by 
ASC 740, Income Taxes. As of September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012, the Company 
has not identified any uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the consolidated 
financial statements. In addition, there has been no interest or penalties recognized in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 



2. SUMMARY OFSIGN^CAN^ 

C ^ ^ C ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ C a s h and cash equiv^n^ 
a p ^ o x i m a ^ y ^ ^ ^ a n d ^ ^ O O a t S e p ^ ^ 
respecfive^ At times the Company maintains depo^^ 
tederafiy insmed limits, management monitors the soundness of the institutions and 
hehevestheCompany'sriskisneghgihle. Temporary eash investments are carried at eost, 
which approximates fair market̂ Baiue. 

B^cc^^^c^^^^TheCompanygrants credit to ah quahtted customers. Accounts 
receivahie are carried at cost, less aiiowance tor douhttul accounts. Cnaperiodichasis,the 
Company evaluates accounts receivahie and establishes an allowance for douhttul accounts, 
based on age, history of past write offs and collections and current credit conditions. An 
account is written off when it is determined that all collection efforts have been exhausted. 
The allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately ^000 as of September 29, 2013 
and September 30, 2012 

^ ^ ^ ^ c ^ ^ ^ ^ R o y a l t i e s due from franchisees are carried at cos t ,^ 
doubtful accounts. Cn a periodic basis, the Company evaluates franchise royalties 
receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, based on age, history of past 
write-offs and collections and current credit conditions. An account is written off when it is 
determined that allcollection efforts have been exhausted. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was approximately ^113,000 and ^122,000 as of September 29, 2013 and 
September 30, 2012, respectively 

^^^^^^Inventories consist primarily of food and liquor and are stated at cost.Costs 
are determined using the average cost method. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ Property andeqnipmentaredepreciatedona 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (software, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment-lto 20 years, and prototype costs^3to5years). Leaseholds are amortized ona 
straight̂ line basis over the shorter oftheir estimated useful lives orterms ofthe leases. 

Losses on disposition ofproperties in the normal course ofbusiness are recognized when the 
assets are disposed.Cains on disposition ofproperties in the normal course ofbusiness are 
recognized atthe date of sale. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ C ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
lived assets for impairment usingadiscountedcash flowsmethod wheneverevents or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. The Company analyzes potential impairments of assets onarestaurant-hy-
restaurant basis. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ T h e Company has invested approximately ^624,000 of eqm^ 
capital as of September 29, 2013 f b r a 3 0 ^ interest in tbelimited liability company, 
Winghaven Restaurant Partners, LLC. The investment is recorded using the equity method. 
The carryingamountofthein^estmentwasaliability of approximately ^427,000 and 
^356,000 as ofSeptember 29,2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively,and is included in 
otherliabilitiesontheconsolidatedbalance sheet. TheCompanyhasalsorecordeda 
liabilityofapproximately^ll0,000 asofSeptember29,2013 and September 30, 2012, for 
its pro-rata share of an unsecured guarantee of debt financing,which is subject toacap of 
approximately^0,000 asofSeptember 29,2013 andSeptember 30,2012 



2. SUMMARY O F S I G N ^ C ^ 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ T ^ s ^ ^ e f i q u o r f i c e n s e s ^ ^ ^ 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ T h e Company r e c o ^ a f i a b ^ 
card is issued and proceeds are receive As gifi cards are redeemed, or when the iikeiihood 
ofredemption becomes remote, this iiahiiity is reduced and revenue is recognized. During 
the years ended Septemher^^3 and September 30, 20i2, the Company recognized 
approximately ^290,000 and ^82,000, respectively, in gitt card income due t o ^ 
likelihood ofredemption by the customer. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ - C e r t a i n of the Company'slease agreements contain tenant improvement 
allowances, rent holidays, and̂ or rent escalation clauses. The Company recognizes these 
expenses onastraight-line basis overthetertns ofthe leases. Tor tenant improvement 
allowances, the Company recordsadeferred rent liability in either accrued l i a b i l ^ 
other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and amo îzes the deferred 
rent over theterms of theleasesasreductionstooccupancycostsinthe consolidated 
statement of operations. 

^^^^^^^^^TheCompanyexpensescer ta incostsas incurred inconnection 
with the opening of new or converted restaurat̂ ts (principally rent, smallwares and the cost 
associated with training managers and staff). 

C ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S a l e s f r o m C o m p a n y o p e r a t e d restaurants are recogn^ 
when food and beverages are sold. Company restaurant sales are reported net of sales taxes 
collected. Sales taxes are remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ D Revenues in the form of development andfranchise fees are 
recognized upon opening of the restaurants to which they relate. In addition, upon 
termination ofadevelopment agreement, any remaining deferred revenue relating to such 
agreement is recognized. Tranchiserevenuesstatedintheaccompanyingconsolidated 
statement ofoperations include franchise and development fees of approximately ̂ 157,000 
and ̂ Ofortl^e years ended September 29,2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively 

^ ^ ^ ^ C ^ ^ The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. 
Advertisingexpensesfbrtheyearsended September 29,2013 and September 30, 2012 were 
approximately^95,000and^29,000, respectively. 

^ ^ c ^ C ^ ^ T h e Company expensed approximately ̂ 459,000 in trat̂ sacfî ^ 
for theyear ended September 30, 2012. Thesecosts were incurredasthe Company 
evaluatedapotential ownership change. 

C ^ ^ ^ ^ c ^ ^ ^ T h e Company paid approximately $1,161,000 and ^89^^ 
interest and approximately ̂ 755,000 and $292,000 in income taxes during the years ended 
September 29,2013 andSeptember 30,2012,respectively The Company received 
approximately $2,000 and $19,000 in refunds during the years ended September 29, 2013 
and September 30, 2012, respectively,fbr tax overpayments related to tax years 2010and 

2011 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ - T h e C o m p a n y h a s elected to self-insure certain costs of employee medical 
programs and workers'compensation and general liability insurance The reserves recorded 
at September 29,2013 and September 30, 2012reflecttheCompany'sestimatedliability 

^ ^ ^ ^ c ^ ^ A s of September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012, the Company held 
115,674 shares of common stock 
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3. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 29, 

2013 

September 30, 

2012 

Customer and credit cards 
Royalties receivable 
Tenant improvement allowances receivable 
Other 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 

$ 

2,022 
830 
489 
114 

(122) 

3,333 

1,715 
954 
141 
400 

(131) 

3,079 

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 29, 

2013 

Prepaid occupancy 
Prepaid insurance 
Income tax receivable 
Other 

1,031 
224 
495 
327 

2,077 

September 30, 

2012 

$ 995 
191 
132 
188_ 

$ 1,506 

5. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLDS 

Property, equipment and leaseholds are comprised ofthe following (in thousands): 

Leasehold and land improvements 
Software, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Prototype costs 

Assets not in service as of year end 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

September 29, 

2013 

September 30, 

2012 

$ 73,552 $ 65,817 
40,178 35,907 
1,654 1,589 
280 3,463 

115,664 106,776 
64,040 57,532 

$ 51,624 $ 49,244 



6. OTHER ASSETS 

Other assets are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 29, September 30, 

2013 2012 

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets 
Liquor licenses 
Deferred debt issuance costs 
Other 

7. LONG TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES 

$ 858 $ 902 
476 528 
110 29 
53 53 

$ 1,497 $ 1,512 

The Company has a credit agreement with Wells Fargo Capital Finance, Inc. that provides 
for a term loan of $15,000,000 and a revolving credit facility of up to $25,000,000. In 
March 2013, the credit agreement was amended; extending the maturity date from May 2014 
to May 2016, adjusting the financial covenant thresholds through the maturity date, and 
updating the applicable multiples and applicable margins to reflect current market rates. The 
term loan and any borrowings against the revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate 
equal to Wells Fargo's base rate or the LIBOR rate, plus the greater of an applicable margin 
or a specified minimum margin. The applicable margin will depend on the Company's 
senior leverage ratio at the end of each calendar quarter. The Company elected the base rate 
as the interest option and their leverage ratio qualified for a 3.25% applicable margin, as of 
September 29, 2013. For the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company qualified for a 
2.50% applicable margin. Effective interest rates were 6.5% and 2.9% at September 29, 
2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively. The term loan is set to mature in May 2016. 
Monthly amortization of principal began in May 2012. The credit agreement also provides 
for certain mandatory prepayments of the term loan and any borrowings against the 
revolving credit facility from the proceeds of asset sales, extraordinary receipts, and 
proceeds from stock or indebtedness issuance. The credit agreement includes financial and 
non-financial covenants, with which the Company was in compliance as of September 29, 
2013 and September 30, 2012. The amended credit facility also provides for up to 
$2,000,000 in letters of credit to be used by the Company, with any amounts outstanding 
reducing the availability under the revolving credit facility. 

As of September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012, approximately $1,035,000 and 
$810,000, respectively, in letters of credit were outstanding in connection with workman's 
compensation and surety bonds. Substantially all of the Company's assets are pledged as 
collateral under the credit agreement. 
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7. LONG TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES - Continued 

Long term debt is comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 29, September 30, 

Term note payable 
Revolver borrowing 

Less current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

2013 2012 

$ 12,344 $ 14,219 
17,456 13,456 

29,800 27,675 

1,875 1,875 

$ 27,925 $ 25,800 

Contractual Maturities of Long-Term Debt - Contractual maturities of long-term debt as of 
September 29, 2013, for each of the following fiscal years (in thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2014 $ 1 , 8 7 5 

2015 1 » 8 7 5 

2016 26,050 

Total S 29,800 

8. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION 

The Company maintains an incentive compensation plan under which stock options and 
stock appreciation rights (SARs) may be granted to employees, officers, consultants or 
independent contractors. The Company has 363,000 SARs outstanding as of September 29, 
2013. The exercise price is equal to the fair value of the underlying common stock on the 
date of grant. The Company expects the SARs to be settled in stock. The SARs are 
accounted for as equity awards under the provisions of ASC 718. There are two tranches of 
SARs, 283,000 ofthe outstanding awards vest ratably over four years on the anniversary of 
the grant date, or automatically in the event of a change of control (as defined in the plan). 
Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period. The remaining 80,000 
outstanding awards vest solely upon and are subject to a change of control/sale of the 
company. As these awards are contingent upon a future event, there is no compensation 
expense recorded. All SARs expire ten years from the date of grant. During the year ended 
September 29, 2013, 7,000 fully-vested SARs were satisfied and 20,000 non-vested SARs 
were forfeited upon employment termination of two former officers. 

For the 283,000 SARs which vest ratably, the Black-Scholes option pricing model was used 
to determine fair value as of the respective grant dates, using the following assumptions: 
risk-free interest rate ranging between 1.53% - 4.49%, obtained from the US Daily Treasury 
Yield Curve Rate derived for the expected term of 5 years, price volatility rate between 
23.2% - 77.0%, based on the historical volatility of a peer-group of public companies over 
the expected term, and no expected dividend yield. The Company recognizes compensation 
costs over the vesting period. Expenses for these SARs included in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of operations for the years ended September 29, 2013 and September 
30, 2012 were $24,000 and $33,000, respectively. As of September 29, 2013 and September 
30* 2012, there was $52,000 and $101,000, respectively, of unrecognized compensation 
expense related to non-vested SARs granted under the plan. That cost is expected to be 
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8. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - Continued 

recognized over a weighted average period of 1.45 years as of September 29, 2013 and 2.45 
years as of September 30, 2012. 

SARs transactions for the year ending September 29, 2013 are summarized below: 

Outstanding at beginning of period 
Granted 
Exercised 
Adjustments 
Redeemed 

Outstanding at end of period 

Exercisable at end of period 

SARs Contingent Awards: 

Outstanding at beginning of period 
Granted 
Exercised 
Adjustments 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at end of period 

Stock 
Appreciation 

Rights 

290,000 $ 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
13.52 

Weighted 
Average Fair 

Value 

$ 7.41 

(7,000) 15.00 8.77 
283,000 $ 13.49 $ 7.37 

277,000 $ 13.33 $ 7.28 

Stock Weighted 

Appreciation Average 
Rights Exercise Price 

100,000 $ 28.00 

(20,000) 28.00 
80,000 $ 28.00 

9. LEASES 

The operating leases generally provide for payment of minimum annual rent, real estate 
taxes, insurance and maintenance and, in some cases, contingent rent (calculated as a 
percentage of sales) in excess of minimum rent. Most leases contain renewal options. 

Total rental expense for all operating leases is composed ofthe following (in thousands): 

Year Ended 

September 29, 

2013 

Minimum rent 
Contingent rent 

Year Ended 

September 30, 

2012 

$ 9,483 $ 8,675 
273 324 

$ 9,756 $ 8,999 

12 



9. LEASES - Continued 

The aggregate value of future minimum lease payments on non-cancelable operating leases 
as of September 29, 2013, for each ofthe following five fiscal years are (in thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2014 $ 10,948 
2015 10,280 
2016 9,293 
2017 8,245 
2018 6,925 
Thereafter 29,592 

10. ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accrued liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

$ 75,283 

September 29, 

2013 

September 30, 

2012 

Employee compensation, taxes, medical, and benefits 
Gift cards and certificates 
Sales and property taxes 
Occupancy 
Workers' compensation and general 

liability reserves - current 
Other 

$ 

3,594 
1,350 
1,200 
1,393 

908 
1,228 

9,673 

3,879 
1,363 
1,371 
1,075 

787 
1,240 

9,715 

11. OTHER LIABILITIES 

Other liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 29, 

2013 

September 30, 

2012 

Deferred rent 
Workers' compensation and general 

liability reserves - long term 
Non-qualified deferred compensation plan liabilities 
Investment in Winghaven 
Deferred franchise development fee income and other 
Winghaven unsecured guarantee 

10,441 $ 

1,058 
927 
427 
207 
110 

9,632 

894 
960 
356 
217 
110 

$ 13,170 J_ 12,169 
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12. INCOME TAXES 

The Company provides deferred income taxes to reflect the impact of temporary differences 
between the recorded amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
such amounts as measured by tax laws and regulations. 

Income tax expense was computed as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ended 

September 29, 

2013 

Year Ended 

September 30, 

2012 

Current income taxes 
Federal 
State and local 
Prior year over/(under) accrual 

Total current income tax expense 
Deferred income taxes 
Temporary differences 
Tax credit carryforward 
Net operating loss carryforward 
Change in deferred tax valuation allowance 
Total deferred income tax expense 

Total income tax expense 

$ (133) $ (351) 
(157) (172) 
(101) (3) 
090 (526) 

398 210 
(435) (1,069) 
(122) 6 
- (23) 

059) (876) 
$ (550) $ (1.402) 

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the 
Company's effective income tax rate is as follows (in thousands): 

Year ended 

September 29, 

2013 

Year ended 

September 30, 

2012 

Expected tax expense at statutory tax rates 
Change in valuation allowances 
Permanent differences 
Other 
Total income tax expense 

(455) $ 

(33) 
(62) _ 

(UM) 
(23) 
(31) 
42 

(550) $ (1,402) 
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12. INCOME TAXES - Continued 

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial statement 
and tax basis ofthe Company's assets and liabilities. The source of the differences and their 
cumulative tax effects are as follows (in thousands): 

September 29, September 30, 

2013 2012 

Current: 
Assets: 
Accruals and reserves 

Liabilities: 
Prepaid expenses 

Noncurrent: 
Assets: 
General business credit carryforwards 
Insurance reserves 
Accrued straight-line rent 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Development fees 
Tenant improvements 
Other 
Less: Valuation allowance 

Liabilities: 
Excess tax depreciation 
Other 

$ 607 $ 621 

(179) (146) 
$ 428 $ 475 

$ 4,645 $ 5,080 
691 642 

1,354 1,292 
415 537 
85 91 

3,227 2,820 
796 804 
(119) (119) 

(510) (411) 
(81) (121) 

$ 10,503 $ 10,615 

The Company has total general business credit carryforwards of approximately $4,645,000 
as of September 29, 2013. The tax credit carryforwards will expire from 2024 through 
2028. The availability of such business credit carryforwards is subject to statutory 
limitations. To the extent general business credits are not utilized in a year, the unused 
limitation increases the subsequent year limitation amount. 

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards with various state taxing authorities of 
approximately $6,009,000 which expire from 2021 through 2032. 
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13. 

The Company maintamsmcenfive compensation and 
the Company. Under the plans, participants^ 
hased on the Company's pertbrmance. Total expenses tor theseplans inclndedin the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the years ended September 29,2013 
andSeptember30,2012wereapproximately$l,052,000and$l,697,000,respecti^^ 

Substantially all ofthe Company's salaried employees are eligible to participate in eithera 
defined contribution plan authorized under Section 401^oftbe Internal Revenue Code ora 
non-qualified deterred compensation plan. The non-qualified deferred compensation plan is 
in place fi^r highly compensated employees who are not eligible to participate in the 401^) 
plan. Plan assets under the non-qualified deterred compensation plan totaled approximately 
^8,000 and$902,000 at September 29,2013 and September 30, 2012, respectivelŷ  and is 
included in other assets. Tlanassets are invested in various mutual funds held byathird-
party custodian. Amounts payable underthe nonqualified deferred compensationplan 
totaled approximately $927,000 and $960,000 at September 29, 2013 and September 30, 
2012, respectively^ and is included in other liabilities. The Company'sexpenses relating to 
these plans included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the years 
ended September 29,2013 and September 30,2012 wereapproximately$62,000 

14. CONT1NCENC1ESANDCOMMITMENTS 

^^^^^TheCompanyiscurrentlyinvolvedinvarious claims and pending legal actions 
arising in the normal course ofbusiness. Some ofthese lawsuits purport to be class actions 
and̂ or seek substantial damages. In the opinion of management, these matters are 
adequately covered by insurance,or if not so covered, are without merit or are of sucha 
nature or involve amounts that would not haveamaterial adverse impact on the business or 
consolidated financial position. 

C^^c^^TheCompanyisaparty to executive employment agreements with its chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer. Each agreement provides for severance 
payments equal to one year's base salary to the executive in the event ofthe termination of 
employment by the Company without "just cause" (as defined in the agreements) or 
terminationoftheofficersfbr"justgrounds" (as defined inthe agreements). Thebase 
salaries of such executives at the end of fiscal 2013 and 2012 aggregated approximately 
$880,000. 

The Comply isaparty to employment agreements with seven of its current employees and 
onefbrtneremployee,ot^er than the two officersidentifiedabove,pursuanttowhich the 
Company has agreed to make severance payments equal to six months'base salary to such 
employeesinthe eventof the termination ofemployment by the Company without "just 
cause" (as defined in the agreements)or termination of the employees for "just grounds" (as 
defined in the agreements). The base salaries of such employees at the end of fiscal 2013 
and2012aggregatedapproximately$l,522,000and$l,599,000,respectively. 

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A limited liability company controlled by the Company's management owns common stock 
ofthe Company representing approximately 17% of the outstanding common stock ofthe 
Company as of September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012. 

16 



16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2013, which is the 
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

There have been no subsequent events that occurred during such period that would require 
disclosure in these consolidated financial statements or would be required to be recognized in 
the consolidated financial statements as of or for the year ended September 29, 2013. 

17 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the B oard of Directors 

HRI HOLDING CORP. 

We have audited the accompanying consdlidated balance sheets of HRI Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries as of 
September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011, and the related consolidated-statements of operations, 
stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated fmahcia) statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that, we plan and perform the. audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements: An audit, also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well, as evaluating 
the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refeited to abpve present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of HRI Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2012 and 
September 25, 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Leawood, Kansas 
January 11,2013 "tf^ 

/ c * 

Member o/ Kreston /ntemationaf - B gtnbal network of independent accounting firms 
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H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
September 30, 2012 AND September 25,2011 
QPollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

September25,2011 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net 
Inventories 
Deferred income tax benefit 
Other current assets, net 

Total current assets 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLDS, Net 
DEFERRED .INCOME TAX BENEFIT 
OTHER ASSETS, Net: 
TOTAL ASSETS 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Common stock - par value $,01 per share; 3,000,000 authorized; 

2,297,3.66 issued and outstanding 
Additional paid-in capital 
Additional paid-in capital - stock appreciation rights 
Treasury stock - 115,674 and 114;674 shares, respectively 
Accmmilated deficit, net of distributions. 

Total stockholders' equity 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

See accompanying "notes to consolidated financial statements. 

IJABiLTiTES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
! 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: • _ t 
Current portion - long term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accmed interest 
Accrued liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

LONG TERM DEBT, less current portion 
OTHER LIABILITIES 

Total liabilities 

$ .1,113 $ 1,082 
3,079 2,592 
1,837 1,5?9 

475 533 
1,506 1,998 
8,010 7,804 

49,244 43,116 
10,615 11,433 
1,512 1,566 

$ . 69,381 $ . . 63,919 

$ 1,875 •$ 781 
4,946 4,556 

18 70 
9,715 10,563 

16,554 15,970 

25,800 •23,919 
12,169. 11,342 
54,523 .51,231 

24 24 

29,746 29,746 
2,054 2,021 

.(2,318) &293) 
..(14,648) (16,810) 

. 14,858 12,688 
$ 69,381 $ 63,919 



H R I HOLDING GORE. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATEP STATEMENrS OP OPERATIONS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 30,2012 AND September 25,2011 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Revenues: 
Company restaurant sales 
Royalty income, and franchise revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Cost of Company restaiirant.sales: 
Food and beverage costs 
Labor costs 
Operating expenses 

Total cost of Company restaurant sales 

Gross profit 

General and administrative expenses 
Pre-opening expenses 
Depreciation expense 
Interest expense 
Transaction costs 
Compensation cost - SARs 
Gain (loss) on disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 
Other incdine, net 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense, current 
Income, tax expense, deferred 

Total income.tax expense 

Net income 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements; 

September 30, 2012 September 25, 2011 

$ 137,261 $ 136,196 
6,308 6;783 

143,569 142,979 

44,661 42,905 
.43,188 43,977 
•31,636 .32,837 

119,485 119,719 

=24,084 23,260 

(9,*5) (9,069) 

(1,991) (307) 
(7/%8) (7,964) 

(986) (1,143) 
(#9) -
(33) (403) 

(2%) (%%) 
880 244 

3,564 4,365 

- (526) (487) 
(876) (679) 

(1,402) (1,166) 

$ . 2,162 $ 3,199. 



H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 30, 2012 AKD September 25,2011 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance, September 26, 2010 

Distributions 

Stock appreciation rights 

Net income 

Balance, September 25, 2011 

Purchase of treasury stock 

Stock .appreciation rights 

Net income, 

Balance, September 30,2012 

Common Stock 
Shares Amount 

2-297,366 24 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

Additional 
Paid-in Capital-

Stock Appreciation Treasury Accumulated 

2,297,366 $ 24 S 29,746 

29,746 

Rights 

2,297,366' $ 24 $ 29,746 S 

1,618 

403 

2,021 

33 

Stock Deficit 

$ (2,293;) $ (13,117) 

06,892) 

.- . 3,199 

(2,293) 

(25) 

(16,810) 

2-162 

Total 
Stoclcholders' 

Equity 

$ 15,978 

(6^892) 

403 

3,199 

12,688 

p5) 

33 

2,162 

.2,054 $• (2,318): $ (14,648). .$ 14,858 

See-accompanying notes to'consolidated financial statements. 



H R I HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIKS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED September 30,2012 AND September 25,2011 
(DpHars ih thpusag^s) . • -

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Loss oh disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 
Deferred income taxes 
Amortization of Referred costs 
Stock appreciation rights 
Changes in operating.assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net • 
Inventories 
Other current assets, net 
Other assets,-net 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditures 

Net proceeds from'disposition of property, equipment and leaseholds 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of treasury stock 
Proceeds from long term debt 
Payments on long term debt 
Payment of distributions 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
GASH AINTD CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of period 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

September 30,2012 September 25,2011 

$ 2,162 $ 3,199 

7,668 7,964 
268 253 
876 679 
14-7 201 • 
33 403 

(487) 38 
(238) 11 
492 (137) 

(294) 29 
390 521 
# (26) 

(1,431). 
827 m3) 

.10,944 11,361 1 

(14,122) (3,112) 
25? .27 

(13,863) (3,085) 

Ĉ ) 
13,881 11,950 

(10,906) (14,050) 
- (6,892l 

2,950 %P92) 

31 (716) 
1,082 1,798 

$ 1,113 $ 1,082 



HRI HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAI. STATKMKNTS 
FISCAL WARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AKD SEPTEMBER 25,2011 

1. ORGANIZATION 

HRI lloWhw. Corp. ("HHC")' and its subsidiaries (together, the "Company") own and 
o ^ m L ^ r e s t a u n m b ih U s W a . At 86pWqW 30, 2012, # Cqmpw' qp%a# 
48 ^stmnWs, mcWimg 34 H o u l i W , , ^ # p U y - b v m = d W 
ibrnt-venAre seafood r^mraat, and Gve J. Gilbert's steakhbu^. At 8#ember 30, 2012 

the Company also franchisee! 47 Houlihan's: and licensed one Devon seafood restaurant in 

15 states. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated fmancia] statements include th^ accounts of 
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Fiscal Year - The Company reports fiscal year results of operations based on 52 or 53-week 
paiods endmg on the Sunday West to # t e m W 30&. I % ^ ^ = « d e d 8 q ' t e # c r 
30 2012 was comprised of 53 weeks and the fiscal year ended September .25, 2011 was 
comprised of 52 weeks. References to years are to toe fiscal years then ended. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the. consolidated financial statements in conformity 
Willi U S. eenwally accepted accounting principles requires nKinagement to make eslima-.es 
and assumptions that affect Hie reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date, of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and . expenses during the reporting . period. Significant 
estimates included inthe consolidated financial statements include wooers compe^tion 
medical, general liability reserves, stock appreciation rights and the. calculation of deferred 
taxes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Income Taxes - Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary 
differences between tlie financial accounting and tax basis of the Company ^assets m i 
liabilities. The Company periodically assesses the realization of deferred mcome taxes. This 
evaluation is primarily based upon current operating results and expectations of fiiture 
taxable income: Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, m the 
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or.all ofthe deferred tax 
assets will hot be realized. 

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal and various state jurisdictions. 
The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal and state income fax examinations by tax 
authorities for years before 2007. 

The Company's policy is to evaluate uncertain tax positions under guidance as prescribed by 
ASC 740 Income Taxes. As of September 30,2012 and September 25, 2011, the Company 
has not identified any uncertain tax positions requiring-; recognition in the consolidated 
financial statements. In addition, there has been no interest or penalties recognized in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include bank checking account?, 
and certificates of deposit of appiroxknately S1,1.13,000 and $1,082,000 at September 3p, 
2012 and. September "25, 2011,. respectively. At times the Company maintains deposits in 
financial institutions in .excess of federally insured limits. Management monitors the. 
soundness ofthe institutions and believes the Company's risk is negligible: Temporary cash 
investments are carried at cost, wftich approximates fair market value. 

Accounts Receivable - The Company grants credit to all qualified customers. Accounts 
receivable are carried at cost, less .allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the 
Company evaluates accounts receivable and. establishes an allowance for ,doubtful accounts, 
based on age, history of .past write-offe and collections and current credit conditions. An 
account is written-off when it is detemimed that all collection efforts have been exhausted. 
The allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $9,000 and $10,000 as of 
September 30, 2012 and September 25; 2011, respectively. 

Royalties Receivable Royalties due from franchisees are carried at cost less allowance for 
doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates franchise royalties 
receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, based on age, history of past 
write-rofife and collectibris and current credit conditions. An account iswritteh off when it.is. 
determined that all collection efforts have been exhausted. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was approximately $122,000' and $156,000 as of September 30, 2012 and 
September 25; 2011, respectively. ' 

Inventories - Inventories consist primarily of food and liquor and are stated at cost. Costs 
are determined using the average cost method 

Property, Equipment and Leaseholds - Property and equipment are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (software, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment - 1 to 20 years, and prototype costs - 3 to 5 years). Leaseholds are.amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or terms ofthe leases. 

Losses on disposition of properties, m the normal course of business are recognized when the 
assets are disposed Gains on disposition of properties in the normal course of business are 
recognized atthe date of sale. 

Long-lived Assets and Certain Ideniifiabte Intangibles - The Company evaluates long-
lived assets for impairment using a discounted cash flows method whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. The Company analyzes potential impairments of assets on a restaurant-by-
restaurant basis. 

Investment in Winghaven - The Company has invested approximately $621,000 of equity 
capital as of September 30; 2012 for a 30% interest in the limited liability company, 
Winghaven Restaurant Partners, LLC. The investment is recorded using % equity method. 
The carrying amount of the investment was a liability of approximately $356,000 and 
$304,000 as of September 30,2012 and September 25,2011, respectively, and is included in 
other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company has recorded a liability of 
approximately $110,000 and $108,000 as of September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011, 
respectively, for its pro-rata share of an unsecured guarantee of debt financing, which is 
subject to a cap of approximately $65.0,000 as of September 30, 2012 and September 25, 
2011. 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES r Continued 

Liquor Licenses - Transferiable liquor licenses are recorded and carried at cost. 

Gift Cards and Certificates - The Company records a.iiahility in the period in which a gift 
card is issued and proceeds, are received As gift cards are redeemed, or when the likelihood 
of redemption becomes remotê  this liability is reduced and revenue is recognized. During 
the years ended September 30, 2012 and September 25,; 2011, the Company recognized 
approximately $182,660 and $202,0.66, respectively, in gift card income due to the remote 
likblihpod of redemption by the customer; 

Operating Leases f Certain'of the Company's lease agreements: contain tenant improvement 
allowances, rent holidays, and/or rent escalation clauses. The Company recognizes these 
expenses on a straight-line basis oyer tile, terms of the leases. For tenant improvement 
allowances, the Company records, a deferred rent liability jn either accrued liabilities or 
other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and amortizes the deferred 

' rent over the terms of the leases as reductions, to occupancy costs in the consolidated 
statement of operations. 

Pre-opening Expenses - The Company expenses certain costs as incurred :m. connection 
with the opening of new or converted restaurants (principally rent, smallwares and the cost 
associated with training managers and staff). 

Company Restaurant Sales - Sales froia Company operated restaurants are recognized 
When food and beverages are sold Company restaurant sales are reported net of sales taxes 
collected. Sales taxes are remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities. 

Franchise Revenues * Revenues in the form of development-and franchise fees are 
recognized upon opening, of the restaurants to which they relate. In addition, upon 
termination of a development agreement, any remaining deferred revenue relating to such 
agreement is recognized. Franchise revenues stated in the acbompanying consolidated 
Statement , of operations include franchise and development fees of approximately $0 and 
$173,000 for the years ended September 30,2012 and September 25,2011, respectively. 

Advertising Costs - The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred 
Advertising expenses for the years ended September 30,2012 and September,25, 2011 were 
approximately $729,000 and $432,000, respectively. 

Transaction Costs r The Company expensed approximately $459̂ 000 in transaction costs 
for the year ended September 30, .2012. These costs were incurred as the Company 
evaluated a potential ownership, change. 

Cash Flow Bisclosures - The Company paid approximately $892,000 and $968,000 in 
interest and approximately $292^000 and $761,000 in income taxes during fhe years ended 
September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011, respectively. The Company receivfed 
approximately $ 19,000 and,$176,6o6 in refunds during the years ended September 30, 2012 
and September 25, 2011, respectively, for tax overpayments related to tax years 2009 and 
2010. 

Self-insurance - The Company , has elected to self-insure certain costs of employee medical 
programs and workers' compensation and general liability insurance. The reserves recorded 
at September 30,2012 and September 25,2011 reflect the Company's estimated liability. 

Treasury Stock - As of September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011, the.Company held 
115,674 and 114,674 shares of common stock, respectively. 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Reclassifications - Certain items from the 2011 consolidated financial statements have been 
reclassified to conform to the. 2012 presentation. 

3. RECEIVABLES 
Receivables are comprised ofthe following (in thousands): 

September 30, 
2012 

September 25, 
2011 

Customer and credit cards 
Royalties receivable 

Tenant improvement allowances receivable 

Other 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 

uns 
954 
141 
400 

(131) 
3,079 _ $ 

1*475 
1,049 

132 
101 

w 
^ 5 % 

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 30, 
2012 

Prepaid occupancy 
Prepaid insurance 
Income tax receivable 
Other 

September 25, 
2011 

•$ 
995. . $ 940 
191 156 
132 384 
188 518 

$. 1,506 $ 1,998 

5. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLDS 

Property, equipment and leaseholds are comprised ofthe following (in thousands): 

Leasehold and land improvements 
Software, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Assets not in service as of year end 
Prototype costs 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

September 30, 
2012 

September 25; 
2011 

$ 65,817 $ 6.0,611 
35,907 3i:977 
3,463 822 
1,589 1,416 

106,776 94,826 
57,532 5.1,710 

$ 49,244 $ 43,116 



6. OTHER ASSETS 

Other assets are comprised of the following (in thousands) ! 

September 30, September 25, 

Non-qualified deferred compensation asset 
Liquor licenses 
Deferred debt issuance costs 
Other 

7. LONG TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES 

2012 , . 2011 

$ 902. $ 743 
528 694 
29 76 
53 53 

$: 1,512 $ 1,566 

The Company has a credit agreement with Wells Fargo Capital Finance, Inc. that provides 
for a term loan of $15#0,()00 and a revolving credit facility of up to $25,000,000. The 
term loan and any borrowings against the revolving credit facility b^ar interest at a rate 
equal to Wells Fargo's base rate of the LIBOR rate, plus an. applicable margin. The 
applicable margin will depend oh the Company's senior leverage ratio at the end of each 
calendar quarter. The Company elected the LIBOR rate as the interest option and their 
leverage ratio qualifies for a 2;5% applicable margin, as of September 30, 2012. For the 
year ended September 25,2011, the Company qualified for a 2.75% applicable margin. The 
term loan, is set to mature in May 20.14 with monthly amortization of principal beginning in 
May 2012. The credit agreement also provides for certain mandatory prepayments ofthe 
term loan and any borrowings against the revolving credit facility from the proceeds, of asset 
sales, extraordinary receipts, and proceeds from stock or indebtedness issuance. The credit 
agreement includes financial and non-financial covenants, with which the Company was in 
compliance as of September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011. The credit facility also 
provides for up to $5,000,000 in letters, of credit to be used by the. Company, with any 
amounts outstanding^ reducing the availability under the, revolving credit facihfy. 

As of September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011, approximately $810,000 and $863,000, 
respectively, in letters of credit were outstanding in connection with; workman's 
compensation and surety bonds. Substantially all of the Company's assets are pledged as 
collateral undeif the credit agreement'. 

10 



1, LONG TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES - Continued 

Long.tenn debt is comprised ofthe following (in thousands): 

September 30, 

Term note payable 
Revolver borrowing 

Less current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

September 25, 
2012 2011 . 

$ 14,219 $ 15,000 
13,456. 4/700 

27,675 •24,700 

1,875 781 

$ 25,800 $ 23,919 

Contractual Maturities of Long-term Debt- Contractual maturities of long-tenndebtas of 
September 30,2012, for each of the following fiscal years (in thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2013. 
2014 

Total 

1,875 
25,800 

.27,675 

8. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION 

The Company inaintams an incentive compensation plan under which stock options and 
stock appreciation rights may be granted,to employees, officers, consultants or independent 
contractors. Exercise price is equal to the fair value, of the underlying common stock on the 
date of grant The Company expects the SARs to be settled in stock. The SARs are 
accounted for as equity awards under the provisions of ASC 718. SARs issued prior to 
September ;25, 2011 vest ratably over four years On the anniversary of the grW date, or 
automatically in the event of a Change of control (as defined in the plan). The SARs expire 
ten years from the date of grant. 

SARs transactions for year ending September 30, 2012 are summarized below: 

Outstanding at beginning of period 
Granted 
Exercised 
Adjustments 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at end of period 

Exercisable at end of period 

Number of 
Shares 

290,000 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
$ 13.52 

281,000 $ 

Weighted 
Average Fair 

Value 
$ 7.41 

290,000 $ 13.52 _$_ 7.41 

13.29 $ 7.26 

11 



8. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - Continued 

The Black-Scholes. option pricing model was used to determine fair value as of the grant 
date, using the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate ranging between 1.53% -
4A9%,' obtained from the US Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rate derived for the ;expected 
term of 5 years, price volatility rate between 23,2% - 77.0%, based on the historical 
yoiatility of a peer-group of public companies, over the expected, term, and no expected 
dividend yield. 

In December 2010, the Board of Directors authorized a distribution, of $3 per outstanding 
Share of common stock The incentive compensation plan allows for an adjustment to the 
exercise price for the SARs and as a. result of tiie distribution, the exercise price for the 
SARs was adjusted by $3. 

The Company recognizes compensation costs over the vesting period. Expenses for these 
SARs included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the years 
ended September 30, 2012 arid September 25, 2011 were $33,066 and $403,000, 
respectively. As. of September 30, 2012. arid September 25, 2011, there was $101;000 and 
$134,0,00, respectively, of unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested SARs 
granted under the plan. That • cost is expected to be recognized .over a weighted average 
period o f 2.45 years as of September 30, 2012 and 3.34 years as of September 25, 2011. 

On September 14, 2012, the Company granted 100,000 SARs at a price of $28.00 each 
under the Company's stock incentive plan that vest solely upon arid subject to a change of 
control/sale of the. company. The, SARs expire ten years from the date of grant. As the 
awards are contingent; there is no compensation expense recorded for these grants. 

9. .LEASES 

The operating leases generally provide for. payment of minimum annual rent, real estate 
taxes, insurance and maintenance and, in some cases, contingent rent (calculated as a 
percentage of sales) in excess of minimum rent. Most leases con^in renewal options. 

Total rental expense for all operating leases is composed of the following (in thousands): 

Year Ended Year Ended 
September 30, September 25, 

2012 20U 

Minimum rent 
Contingent rent 

$ 8,675 $ 8,706 
324 . 641 

$ 8,999 .$' . . 9,347 

12 



9. LEASES - Continued 

The aggregate value of future, minimum lease payments on non-cancelable, operating; leases 
as of September 30, 2012, for each of the following five fiscal years are (m thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

$' 

$ 

10,452 
10,025 
9;522 
8,585 
7,536 

34,459 

80,579 

10. ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accrued liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands): 

September 30, 

Employee compensation, taxes, medical, and benefits 
Gift cards and certificates 
Sales and property taxes 
Occupancy 
Workers' compensation and general 

liability reserves - current 
Other 

September 25, 
2012 2011 

$ 3,879 $ 4,804 
1,363 1,333 

1,371 1,569 
1,075 940 

787 748 
1,240 1,169 

$ 9,715 . $ . 10,563 

11. OTHER LIABILITIES 
Oiher liabilities are comprised ofthe following (in thousands): 

September 30, 

.Deferred rent 
Non-qualified deferred compensation liability' 
Workers' compensation and general 

liability reserves - long term 
Deferred franchise development fee income and other 
Investment in Winghaven 
Winghaven unsecured guarantee 

September 25, 
2012 2011 

$ 9,632 $ .9,262 

960 789 

894 662 
217 217 
356 304 

110 108 

$ 12,169 $ 11*342 
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12. INCOME TAXES 
The Company provides deferred income taxes to reflect the. impact of temporary differences 
between the recorded amounts of assets and liabilities for'financial reporting purposes and 
such amounts as measured by tax laws and regulations. 

Income tax expense was computed as follows (in thousands): 

Current income taxes 
Federal 
State and local 
Prior year over/(imder) accrual 
Total current income tax expense 

Deferred rhcome taxes 
Temporary differences 
Tax credit carryforward 
Net operating loss carryforward 
Change in deferred tax.valuation allowance 
Total deferred income tax expense 

Total income tax expense 

Year Ended Year Ended 

September 30, September 25, 

2012 ... . 2011 

$ (3.40 $ (302) 
(172) (isO 
m 1 

, : NT) 

2-10 (182) 
(1,069) (932). 

6 21 
(%) 414, 

(879. (679) 
S (1.402) .$ (1,166) 

The .reconciKation of income tax computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the 
Company's effective income tax rate is as follows (in thousands): 

Year ended 
September 30, 

2012 

Expected tax expense at statutoiy tax rates 
Change in valuation allowances 
"Permanent differences. 
Other 
total income tax expense 

Year ended 
September 25, 

2011 

$ (1,390) $ (1 ,#) 
(#) 414 
(31) (31) 
42 153 

$ , . ,(1,402) .$ -(1,166) 

14 



12. INCOME TAXES - Ccmtmued 

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial statement 
and tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities. The source of the differences and their 
cumiilative tax effects are as follows [in thousands): 

September 30, September 25, 

2012 
2011 

Current: 
Assets: 
Accruals and reserves 

Liabilities: 
Prepaid expenses 

Noncurrent: • 
Assets-
General business credit carryforwards 
Insurance reserves 
Accrued straight-line rent 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Development fees 
Tenant improvements 
Other 
Less; Valuation allowance 

Liabilities: 
Excess tax depreciation 
Other 

$ 621 $ 749 

(146) (216) 

':$"' 475 .$ 533 

$ 5,080 $ 6,149 
642 531 

1,292 1,149 
537 531 
91 91 

2,820 2,762 
804 830 
(119) (96) 

(411) (354) 

• (121) (160) 
$ 10,615 $ 11,433 

The Company has total general business 
as of September 30, 2012. The tax credit carryforwards will expire from 2023 through 
2027 The availability of such business credit carryforwards is subject to statutory 
limitations, t o the extent general business credits are not utilized in a year, the unused 
limitation increases the subsequent year limitation amount 

The Company has fiet operating loss carryforwards with various , state taxing authorities of 
approximately $7,096,000 which expire from 2021 through 2032. 
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13. BENEFIT PLANS 

the Company maintains mcentive compensation and related plans for certain employees of 
the Company. Under the plans, participants generally'are eligible to receive cash bonuses 
based on, tie Company's performance, total expenses for these plans included in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the years ended.September 30, 2012 
and September 25, 2011 were approximately $1,697,000 and,$2,544,000, respectively. 

Substantially all ofthe Company's salaried employees .are eligible to participate in either a 
defined contribution plaji. authorized under Section 401(k) ofthe Internal Revenue Code or a 
npn-qualjfied deferred compensation plan. The non-qualified.deferred compensationplan is 
in plac^ for highly compensated employees who are hot eligible to participate in the 40 l(k) 
plan. Amounts payable under the non-qualified deferred compensation plan totaled 
approximately $960,000 and $789,000 at September 30, 2012 and September .25, 2011, 
respectively; and is included in.other Habilities. The Company's expenses relating to these 
plans included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for tiie years ended 
September 30, 2012 and September 25, 2011 were approximately $62,000 and $31,000, 
respectively. 

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Litigation - The Company is currently involved ih various claims, and pending legal actions 
arising in the normal course of business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class actions 
and/or seek substantial damages, hi the opinion of management, these matters are 
adequately coyered by insurance, or i f not so covered, are without merit or are of such a 
hahire or involve, amounts that would not have a material adyepse. impact on the business of 
consolidated firiahcial position. 

Contracts - The Company is a party to executive employment agreements with its chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer. Each agreement provides for severance 
payments equal to one year's base salary to the executive in the event ofthe termination of 
employment by the Company without "just cause" (as defined in the agreements) or 
termination of the officers for "just grounds" (as defined in the agreements). The base 
salaries of such executives at the end of fiscal 2012 and 2011 aggregated approximately 
$880,000. 

The Company is a party to employment agreements with nine ofits employees, other than 
the two officers identified above, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to make 
severance payments equal to six months' base salary to such employees in the event of the 
termination of employmeht by the Company without '-just cause" (as defined in the 
agreements) or termination of the employees for "just, grotinds" (as defined in the 
agreements), The base salaries of such employees at the end of fiscal 2012 and 2011 
aggregated approximately $1,599,000 and $1,594,000, respectively. 

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A limited liability company controlled by the Company's management owns common stock 
of the Company representing approximately 17% ofthe outstanding common stock of the 
Company as of September 30,2012 and September 25,2011. 
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events , through December 31, 2012, which is the 
date the consolidated financial statemehts were available to be issued The company opened 
one Houlihan's restaurant subsequent to year end; 

There have been no other subsequent events that occurred during such period that Would 
require disclosure in these consolidated, financial statements or would be required to be 
recognized in the.consoHdated financial statements £s of or for the year ended.September 30, 
2012. 
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DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made as of the day of 
by and between ("Developer") 

and Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor"). 

RECITALS 

A. Franchisor, through skill, effort and resources, has developed, and continues to develop, a 
distinctive system ("System") relating to the establishment and operation of full-service restaurants 
operating under the name "Houlihan's" ("System Restaurant(s)"). The distinguishing characteristics of 
the System include the exterior and interior design, decor, color scheme and furnishings; special recipes 
and menu items; standards, specifications and procedures for inventory and management control; training 
and assistance; advertising and promotional programs; and financial control concepts, all of which may be 
changed, improved and further developed by Franchisor from time to time. 

B. Franchisor continues to develop, use and control the use of its trade names, service 
marks, trademarks, trade dress, emblems and indicia of origin, now existing and hereafter developed 
("Marks"), to identify for the public the source of services and products marketed under the System and to 
represent the System's high standards of quality, appearance and service. 

C. The value of the System and the Marks is based on, among other things: (1) the 
maintenance of high quality standards in the preparation and sale of food and beverage products; (2) the 
high standards of appearance ofthe individual System Restaurants; (3) the use of distinctive trademarks, 
service marks, building designs and advertising signs representing high quality products and services; 
(4) the assumption by Franchisor and its franchisees of the obligation to maintain and enhance the 
goodwill and public acceptance ofthe System and the Marks by strict adherence to the high standards of 
Franchisor; (5) the processes and procedures designed to obtain and maintain a strong customer base; and 
(6) the training and management of all personnel. 

D. Developer desires to obtain the right to develop System Restaurants within a certain 
territory pursuant to the terms and conditions herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Franchisor granting to Developer the exclusive right 
to develop System Restaurants in accordance with the terms hereof, and in consideration of the mutual 
obligations, representations and conditions set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 

1.1 Grant: Territory. Subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement, 
Franchisor grants to Developer the right, and Developer hereby accepts the obligation, to establish and 
operate System Restaurants within the territory described in Exhibit B ("Territory"). 

1.2 Exclusion from Territory. In connection with each existing System Restaurant 
in the Territory (which are listed in Exhibit B), the Territory does not include that area listed in Exhibit B 
("Excluded Radius"). I f any System Restaurant listed in Exhibit B ceases to operate as a System 
Restaurant, the corresponding Excluded Radius shall remain in place and shall not thereby expire, 
terminate, or otherwise become part of Territory. In addition, Franchisor may, in the exercise of its sole 
discretion, permit the Protected Area (as defined in Section 1.3.1) for a System Restaurant located outside 
the Territory to include a portion of the Territory. 
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1^ T e ^ o r ^ P r o t ^ o ^ The System, meludmg theproduets sounder the 
Ma^hasheendeve^ped, and isdesigned, to fimetioneffeet^ely m a wide variety of retail 
envhonments,many of whieh may not reasonably he availahiefordheetoperationh 
Aeeordingly, Franchisor reserves to itself therights, among others, on any terms and conditions 
Franchisor deems advisable, and without granting Developer any rights therein, to: (a) sell or distribute, 
directly or indirectly,or license others to sell or distribute, any products or services under any 
marks (including the Marks) at locations other than System Restaurants (such as but not 1 ^ 
supermarkets, groceries, gourmet shops, mail order, the Internet and electronic media) w i ^ 
theTerritory and without regard to proximity to any System Restaurantestablishedandoperated 
hereunder; and (h) acquire, establish and̂ or operate, and license others to acquire establish an^^^ 
System Restaurants at airports, railroad stations, bus terminals, highway travel pla^^^ 
concert venues, sports arenas, amusement parks, schools, colleges, universities, military facilities, 
business or industrial foodservice venues,venues in which foodservice is or may be provided byamaster 
concessionaire or contract foodservice provider, Indian reservations, casinos or any other s imi^ 
market location not reasonably available to Developer for direct operation by Developerwithin or oû  
the Territory (notwithstanding the proximity to any System Restaurant established and operated 
hereunder). 

Except as reserved in Section 1.2 and the preceding paragraph, Franchisor shall not establish or 
operate, nor license any other person to establish or operate,aSystem Restaurant in theTerritory duri^^ 
the DevelopmentTerm (as defined in Section 2) This Sectionl3does not prohibit Franchisor from: 
(1) acquiring, establishing and̂ or operating, and licensing others to acquire, establish a n ^ 
System Restaurant at any location outside the Territory; and (2) acquiring, establishing and^ 
and licensing others to acquire, establish and̂ or operate, any business or restaurant of any kind that doê  
not operate asaSystem Restaurant or use the Marks at any location within or outside theTerritory 
(notwithstanding itsproximity to any SystemRestaurantestablishedandoperated hereunder). The 
restrictions contained in this Sectionl^do not apply to System Restaurants in operation in the T e ^ 
asofthedateofthisAgreementas identified in Exhibits. 

Frotecte^ AreaforSvstemRestaurants. ^ i t h respect to each 
System Restaurant that Developer develops pursuant to this Agreement, Developer will receivealimited 
geographic area around the System Restaurant ("Protected Area") in which Franchisor will not estab̂  
or operate, nor license any other person to establish or operate, another System Restaurant, without 
EranchisoBspriorwrittenconsent,theFrotectedAreaforany System Restaurant developed pursuant to 
this Agreement may not extend beyond the boundary of theTerritory. 

L4 Limitations. This Agreement is notaFranchise Agreement and does not grant 
toDeveloper any right to use the Marks or the System Developer shall have no right under this 
Agreement to license to others the right to use the Marks ortheSystem. 

LS Affi^ate As used in this Agreement, an "affiliate" shall mean any legal entity 
controlling, controlled by,orunder common control with, another legal entity. 

2. DEVFLDFMENTTERM 

The termof this Agreement shallcommenceonthedatehereofand,unless sooner 
terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, shall expire on the date the last System 
Restaurant specified in the Development Schedule: (a) opens for business or (h) is required under the 
Development Schedule to open for business, whichever occurs first. 
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3. DEVELOPMENTFEE 

Dev^opersh^paytoFmnch^ 
^ amount ^ ^ d m E x h i b h B ^ D ^ o p m ^ ^ 
pursuant t o t ^ D ^ o p m e n t S o ^ u ^ ^ ^ n ^ m ^ t ^ D^opershaf ia lsopayto 
Erauchisor an additional O^opmeut Fee for each a ^ 
Territory, payable at the time Developer gives notice of an intent to open any such addh^̂  
Restaurant Under no circumstances shall Developer he entitled to any refund of any portion of the 
DevelopmentFee. 

4. SCHEDUUEANDMANNERFOREXFRC^NGDEVELDFMFNT 

4.1 Franchise Agreement Execntmn. Developer shall exercise each development 
right granted herein only hy Franchisors execution with Developer or an affiliate of Developer o fa 
Franchise Agreement for each System Restaurant atasite located in theTerritory and approved by 
Franchisor The Franchise Agreement for each development right exercised hereunder shall be in the 
form of the Franchise Agreement generally offered to prospective franchisees at the time the Franchise 
Agreement isexecuted Unless waivedinwritingbyFranchisor,Franchisor will notexecutethe 
Franchise Agreement ioraSystem Restaurant until Franchisor has receivedaGuaranty executed by all 

owners o f a l ega l orbeneficial interest in Developer who shall jointly andseverally guarantee 
Developer'spaymentandperformanceunderthatFranchiseAgreementandalso shall hold themselves to 
the terms ofthat Franchise Agreement. 

4.2 Develonment Schedule. Developer or its affiliates shall have open and maintain 
in theTerritory the number of System Restaurants specified in the development schedule set forth in 
FxhibitD^Development Scheduled each of which shall be opened for business by the applicable date 
set forth in the Development Schedule. Developer has independently determined that theTerritory will 
support the number ofSystem Restaurants specified in the Development Schedule and acknowledges that 
FranchisorhasprovidednoassurancethattheTerritory will support any given number of System 
Restaurants. For each Restaurant to be developed during the DevelopmentTerm, Developer shall have 
obtained FranchisoBswritten consent to the site by the date listed in the Development Schedule, which 
shall beatleastsix^months before thedate the System Restaurantis required to beopened 

^ Annroval of Additional Restaurants During the DevelopmentTerm, subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement, Developer may request that Franchisor allow Developer to develop 
one(l)ormore System Restaurants within theTerritory in addition to those provided in the Devel^^ 
Schedule. Franchisor shall, in its sole discretion, approve or disapprove Developer's request, or require 
additional information, as Franchisor deems appropriate, to assist with Franchisor's evaluation of 
Developer'srequest Developer shall not develop any additional System Restaurant without Franchisor's 
prior, written approval. 

4.4 Sale ofSvstemRestanrant.lf during the DevelopmentTerm, Developer sellsa 
System Restaurant that was developed pursuant to this Agreement, that System Restaurant will continue 
to be counted for the purpose of meeting Developer's obligations under the Development Schedule, 
provided thatthe sale has been consented to by Franchisorand only so long as thatrestaurantcontinuesto 

be operated asaSystem Restaurant. 

4.^ FallnretoTimelvOnenSvstemRestanrants. Strictcompliance withthe 
DevelopmentScheduleisessentialtothis Agreement Any failure by Developer in fulfilling its 
obligations to develop and open any System Restaurant when required by the Development Schedule or 
to obtain Franchisor'sconsenttoasite by thedate specified in the Development Schedule shall constitute 
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am^ri^noncumble breach^ 
Ag^ment by giving w r i ^ e n ^ T imeisof tbe^en^ 

4.6 C o m ^ a n c e w ^ F r a n c h ^ A ^ e m e n t Oeveiopersb^i obtain aii nectary 
iicense^ permits and insurance and construct eacb System Restaurant in accordance witb tbe 
corresponding Francbise Agreement. 

^ SITE SELECTION 

^.1 SlteSelectionCosts:P^or A^rovaL Developer assumes aiicost^iiabiiity, 
expense and responsibility for locating, obtaining and developing sites for System Restaura 
constructing and equippingSystem Restaurants at sucbsites^ Tbe development ofaSystem Restaurant at 
any site must be approved byFrancbisor in accordance witb tbe following procedures and sucbotber 
procedures defined below: 

^ . L l Site Informatlon^Eranchisor Review. Prior to acquisition by lease 
orpurcbaseofasiteforaSystemRestaurant, Developer sball submit to Prancbisorfbr its approval, i n ^ 
form prescribed by Prancbisor,asite description andasite market feasibility study,wbic^ 
without limitation tbe following: dem 
satisfactory toPrancbisor confirming Developer's favorable prospects for obtaining tbe site, a 
other information or materials as Franchisor may reasonably require. Franchisor shall not be required to 
reviewaproposed site until Developer has submitted all required site, market, and other i n f o r m a l 
materialsrequired by Franchisor. ^ithinthirty(3^daysafler receipt of these documents and any 
additional informationthatFranchisormay reasonably require, Franchisor shalladviseFranchisee in 
writing whether Franchisor has approvedaparticularsitefbraSystem Restaurant. No site shall be 
deemed approved unless it has beenexpressly approved in writing by Franchisor. Franchisor has no 
obligation to visit any proposed site. Ifaproposedsite is not approved, nothing herein shall prohibit 
Developer from proposing other sites and Franchisor shall review such other proposed sites as discussed 
above. 

No Franchisor Representations, ^ranchisor'sapprovaloftheuse 
ofaprospective System Restaurant site or the rendering of assistance in the selection ofas i t e fora 
SystemRestaurantdoesnotconstitutearepresentation,promiseorguaranteeby Franchisor that the 
proposed site is fit for its intended use or complies with applicable rules,laws or regulations, or thata 
System Restaurant operated at that site would be profitable or otherwise successful. The extent and 
nature of assistance by Franchisor may vary from time to time and shall be subject to the availability of 
Franchisor'sreal estate staff. 

.̂1.3 Commencement of Constrnetmn: Exeentmn of Franchise 
Agreement. Developer shall not commence construction ofaSystem Restaurant until Franchisor has 
approved the site for the System Restaurant and Franchisee has executedaFranchise Agreement for the 
System Restaurant and its location has been recorded in the Franchise Agreement. 

.̂2 Lease Frovlsmns. i f Developer will occupy the premises of any System 
Restaurantunderalease, Developer shall furnish to Franchisoracopy of the proposed lease at least five 
(^business days prior to execution as well asacopy ofthe executed lease no later than ten (10) business 
daysafferexecutionandbeforeconstructionorrenovationbegins. Thelease shall notcontain any 
provision that might prevent Developer from performing its obligations under this Agreement. Unless 
waived in writing by Franchisor, the lease shall contain provisions that satisfy the following 

Houlihan's Development Agreement 4 ^ * ^ 



5.2.1 Restricting Use to a System Restaurant. That the premises shall 
be used only for the operation ofthe System Restaurant; 

5.2.2 Approval of Marks: Copies of All Notices. That the lessor 
(a) approves the use of such Marks and signage as Franchisor may prescribe for the System Restaurant; 
and (b) agrees to furnish Franchisor with copies of any and all letters and notices sent to Developer 
pertaining to the lease and the premises at the same time that such letters and notices are sent to 
Developer; 

5.2.3 No Sublease Without Franchisor Approval. That Developer may 
not sublease or assign all or any part of its occupancy rights, or extend the term of or renew the lease 
without Franchisor's prior written approval; 

5.2.4 Franchisor's Right to Enter Premises to Protect Marks or Cure 
Defaults. That Franchisor shall have the right to enter the premises to make any modification necessary 
to protect the Marks or to cure any default under the lease, this Agreement or the Franchise Agreement; 

5.2.5 Consent for Assignment to Franchisor: Franchisor Mav Sublet. 
That the lessor agrees that Developer may assign the lease to Franchisor; that the lessor will approve such 
assignment and may not impose any assignment fee or similar charge on Franchisor in connection with 
such assignment; and that Franchisor may sublease the premises for all or any part ofthe remaining term 
of the lease; 

5.2.6 Franchisor's Right to Assume Developer's Rights on Default. 
That Franchisor (or Franchisor's designee) shall have the option, upon default of the Franchise 
Agreement or the lease and upon notice to the lessor to assume all of Developer's rights under the lease, 
including the right to assign or sublease; 

5.2.7 No Material Lease Amendment Without Franchisor's Consent. 
That the lessor and Developer shall not amend or otherwise modify the lease in any manner that would 
materially affect any ofthe foregoing terms and conditions without Franchisor's prior written approval; 

5.2.8 Estoppel Certificate. That, upon request following assignment to 
Franchisor or sublease by Franchisor, lessor shall provide an estoppel certificate, in a form satisfactory to 
Franchisor, identifying any claims lessor may have under the lease; and 

5.2.9 Co-Extensive Term. That the lease term (including any renewal 
options) shall not expire before the expiration date ofthe initial franchise term specified in the Franchise 
Agreement. 

5.3 No Territorial Restrictions. Developer covenants and agrees that Developer 
will not, without Franchisor's prior written consent, enter into any agreement with any lessor regarding 
the premises of any System Restaurant the terms of which restrict, or purport to restrict, in any manner, 
Developer or Franchisor from developing System Restaurants in any geographic area around the 
premises, including, but not limited to, the Territory. 
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^ DUT^SOFERANCH^OR 

^mnchisor furnish to D e v ^ o p e r ^ ^ f i o w ^ 

^ 1 ^ S ^ ^ o n C o u u ^ m g a u d A ^ t a u ^ Such she a c t i o n counting and 
assistance as franchisor may deem advisahie Developer agrees that Franchisor wiiiincurnohahihty to 
Developer for any site selection assistance provided hy Franchisor 

^2 On-SiteFvaluation. Such on-site evaluation as Franchisor may deem advisable 
in response to Developer'srequests for site approval. 

^3 Construction Flans and Suecifications Cne(l)setofFranchisoBsdetailed 
plans, specifications and designs for one (1) prototype ofaSystem Restaurant, includm^ 
interior design and layout, fixtures, furnishings, and signs. 

7. RFFRFSENTAFIONS^WARRANTIFSANDCOVFNANTSOFD 

Developer makes the following representations, warranties and covenants and accepts the 
following obligations: 

7.1 Developer ComnfianeewithTerms and Conditions Developer shall comply 
with all terms and conditions set forth herein. 

7.2 Developer's Designated Representative. Upon execution of this Agreement, 
Developer shall designate an individual who (a) owns 
authorised to act on behalf of Developer in all transactions with Franchisor concerning Developer's 
obligations under this Agreement ("Representatives Aqualified Representative shall be designated at 
all times by Developer during the DevelopmentFerm. 

7.3 Developer's Regional Manager If this Agreement provides for the 
development of five (5) or more System Restaurants, Developer shall be required to designate an 
individual approved by Franchisor to supervise the System Restaurants ("Regional Managers m 
accordance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement Developer shall notify Franchisor of the 
identity of the Regional Manager no later than nin^ 
System Restaurant. 

7.4 Confidential Information Developer covenants and agrees that it shall not, 
during the term ofthis Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge or use forthe benefit ofany other 
person,persons,partnership,limitedliability company,associationorcorporationanyco 
informationofFranchisor, including confidential information, knowledge or know 
methods ofdevelopment and operation ofSystem Restaurants which may be communicated to Developer 
or of which Developer may be apprised by virtue of Developer's operation under the terms of this 
Agreement Developer shall divulge suchconfidential informationonly to suchof Developers 
employees as must have access to it in connection with their employment. All such information, 
knowledge and know-how,including the manuals, all drawings, materials, equipment, recî ^^^ 
andpoint-of-saleprograms andoutput fromsuchprograms, allfinancial information concerning 
Houlihan'sandallotherdatawhichFranchisordesignatesas confidential shall bedeemed confidential^ 
purposes ofthisAgreementDevelopershallnotatany time, withoutFranchisor'spriorwri^ 
copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce such materials or information, in whole orm 
otherwise make the same available to any unauthorised person. 
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^5 D ^ o p ^ O h f i g ^ o n ^ ^ 
F ^ n ^ ^ W ^ ^ C o m p e n ^ m n ^ D ^ o ^ d ^ o ^ ^ n e w ^ o ^ o r i m p ^ e m ^ 
d ^ o p m ^ o p ^ i o n ^ ^ m o t i o n o f S y s ^ m ^ ^ 
F ^ m ^ o r and provide Franchisor with aii necessary information concerning same, without 
compensation Deveioperacknowiedg 
of Franchisor and Franchisor may ntih^e or disclose such information to other deve^^ 
franchisees nndertheSystem, and to others. 

7^ Com^ianee With Laws^Rules and Regulations Oeveioper shall co 
all requirements offederal, state and local laws, rules and regulations 

7.7 Organisation and Authority Developer represents and warrants that: (a) if it 
isacorporationoralimitedliahili^ 
standingunderthelawsofthestateofits incorporation;^) if it isapartnership, it would he p^^^^ 
recognised as such under the laws of the state of its formation;^) Developer is duly qualified and^ 
authorised to do business and is in good standing in any jurisdiction where Developer conducts or 
proposesto conduct husiness;(d) Developers corporate charter,operatingagreement,or written 
partnership agreement shall at all times provide that the activities ofDeveloper are confined exclus^^ 
to thedevelopmentand operation ofSystemRestaurants;(e)theexecutionanddeliveryofthis 
and the performance of all obligations contemplated hereunder have heen duly authorised and are withm 
the power ofDeveloper;(f) all financial statements presented to Franchisorin connection with review by 
Franchisor ofthe application ofFranehisee are true, correct and complete as ofthe date when render 
and there have been no material changes since the date when rendered; (g) the execution hereof and 
performanceof obligations hereunder do not confiictwithDevelopeBsArticlesoflncorporafi^^^ 
Articles ofOrgani^ation, operating agreement, partnership agreement orotheragreement of assocî ^̂ ^ 
formation, or any agreement to which Developer isaparty or by which it or any of its assets may be 
bound; and (h) Developer shall do everything necessary to preserve and keep accurate and complete all 
warranties and representations made hereunder. 

7.8 Governing Documents Developer shall promptly provide to Franchisor, on 
request, copies of Developer's organisational and governing documents and any amendments thereto, 
including any documents authorising orapproving entry into and performance ofthis Agreement. 

7.9 List of Owners. Developer shall maintain and provide to Franchisor,without 
request,acurrentlistofallowners,members,shareholders,orpartnersofrecordandallbenefi 
ofany classofvotingsecuritiesofDeveloper and promptly notify Franchisorofany changes to such hst 
Developer represents,warrants and covenants that the owners, members, shareholders, or partners of 
record, and all beneficial owners of any class of voting security of Developer as of the date hereof is 

described on FxhibitD,attached hereto 

7.10 Guaranty Unless waived inwritingby franchisor, all owners ofalegal or 
beneficial interest in Developer shall jointly and severally guaranteeDeveloper's payment and 
performanceunderthis Agreementandalsoshallhold themselves to thetermsofthisAgreementpursua 
totheOuarantyofDevelopmentAgreementattachedheretoasFxhibitA Franchisorreservesthe^ 
require any guarantorto provide personal financial statements to Franchisorfrom time to time 

7.11 StonTransferlnstruetions i f Developer isacorporation, Developer shall 
maintain stop t̂ransfer instructions against the transfer on its records of any s 
certificate of the corporation shall have conspicuously endorsed upon its faceastatementinaform 
satisfactory to Franchisorthat it is held subject to and that further assignment ortransfer is subject to â  
restrictions imposed upon assignments by this Agreement; provided; however, that the require^^ 
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^ S e o f i o n 7 l l sh^l not apply toapub^y^dcorpo^om If Develops isalimited liability 
company^its written article of organisation or o p e ^ 
membership interest in tbe limited liability company is b ^ 
transfer is subject to all restrictions imposed npon assignments by tbis Agreement If Developer is a 
partnership, its written partnership agreement shall provide tbat ownership of an interest i ^ 
is held subject to and that further assignment or transfer is subject to all restrictions imposed up 
assignments by this Agreement. 

Terrorist Acts. Developer acknowledges that under applicable U S. law, 
including, without limitation, ExecutiveOrder 13^4, signedonSeptember23, 2001 ("Orders, 
Franchisor is prohibited from engaging in any transaction with any person engaged in, or withaperson 
aiding any person engaged in, acts of terrorism, as defined in the Order Accordingly, Developer 
represents and warrants to Franchisor that as of the date of this Agreement, neither Developer nor any 
person holding any ownership interest in Developer, controlled by Developer, orunder common control 
with Developer is designated under the Order asaperson with whom business may not be transacted by 
Franchisor, and that Developer^does not, and hereafter shall not, engage in anyterrorist active 
not affiliated with and does not support any individual or entity engaged in, contemplating, or suppo^ 
terroristaetivity; a n d ^ i s not acquiring the rights granted under this Development Agreem 
intentto generate funds to channel to any individual or entity engaged in, contemplating, or supporting 
terrorist activity,orto otherwise support or further any terrorist activity. 

^presentations^ WarrantiesandCovenantsareContinuingOhiigat^ 
Developer acl^owledges and agrees that the representations, warranties and covenants set forth herein a 
continuing obligations ofDeveloper and that any failure to comply with such representation^^ 
and covenants shall constituteadefaultunderthis Agreement 

8. COVENANTS 

8.1 Best Efforts Developer covenants that during the term of this Agreement, 
except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Developer shall devote requisite time, ene 
best efforts to meetits obligations underthisAgreement and shall require its Representative and R̂ ^̂  
Manager, i f applicable, to devote full time, energy and best efforts to the management, operate 

supervision of theSystem Restaurants. 

8.2 Receipt of Confidential Information: Agreement Not to Divert Business 
Developerspeeificallyacl^owledges that Developer and DevelopeBsRepresentative, Regional M 
principals, managers and other employees will receive valuable specialised training,^ 
confidential information, including, without limitation, information regâ ^̂ ^ 
methods and techniques ofFranchisor and the System related to the development ofSystem Restaurâ ^ 
whicharebeyondthepresentskills and experience possessed byDeveloper, and its Representative, 
Regional Manager,principals, managers and other employees Developer acknowledges that such 
training,trade secrets and confidential information provideacompetitive advantage and wd^ 
to them in the development of the System Restaurants and that gaining access to such training, trade 
secrets and confidential information are, t h e ^ 

Agreement, in consideration for such training, trade secrets and confidential information, Developer 

covenants as follows: 

8.2.1 Restrietions on Activities of Developer During the Development 
T^rm. curing the DevelopmentTerm,Developershall not, without Franchisor'sprior written consent, 
either directly orindirectly,foritself,orthrough, on behalf of, orin conjunction wh^ 
partnership, limited liability company, or corporation: 
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8 ^ L I Divert or a^empttodive^ any business or customer of any 
SystomRestouranttoany competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or d^ 
directly or indireetiy,any other act injurious or prejudicial to tbe goodwiii associated with ^ 
Marks and the System; 

8^L2 Employ or seekto employ any person who is at that time or 
has within one (I) year been employed by Franchisor or by any other developer or franchisee of 
Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly to induce such person to leave his or her employment (for 
each breach of this covenant and due tothe difficulty of establishing the precise amount of damages, 
Developer agrees topaytoFranchisor or other developer or franchisee of Franchisor as appropriate, 
liquidated damages in an amount equal to the annualized rateofcompensationofsuch person in the final 
twelve(l2) months of employment with such former employer); 

8^L3 Own, maintain, advise,be employed by,consult for, make 
loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership interest (including any right toshareinrevenues or 
profits) inanyrestaurantoffering(a) the same, or substantially similar sit-down, casual dining servi^^ 
those offered inSystem Restaurants, or (h)anyf^od items that are the same as,or substantially s i m ^ 
the menu items ofSystem Restaurants; and which restaurant is, or is intended to be, located withim 

^ L ^ I theFerritory; 

8 ^ L 3 ^ a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 
Restaurant located within theTerritory; 

8 ^ L 3 ^ a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 
Restaurant; or 

8 ^ L ^ the United States 

8^.2 Restrictions on Activities of Developer after Expiration or 
Termination. Foracontinuousuninterruptedperiodcommencing upon the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement, and for two (2) years thereafter, Developer sh^ 
consent, either directly or indirectly,for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any 
persons, partnership, limited liability company, or corporation: 

8^2^ Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the 
System Restaurants to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, 
directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with Franchisorŝ  
Marks and theSystem; 

8^^2 Employ or seekto employ any person who is at that time or 
has within one (I) year been employed by Franchisor or by any other developer or franchisee of 
Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly to induce such person to leave his or her employment (for 
each breach of this covenant and due to the difficulty of establishing the precise amount of damages, 
Developer agrees topaytoFranchisororotherdeveloperorfranchiseeof^ranchisorasappropriate, 
liquidated damages in an amount equal tothe annualized rate ofcompensation of such person in the final 
twelve(l2) months of employment with such former employer); 

8^2^ Own, maintain, advise,be employed by,consultfor,make 
loans to,operate,engage in or have an ownership interest (including any right toshare in revenues or 
profits) in any restaurant offering (a) the same, or substantially similar sit-down, casual dining services â  
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those offered in System Restaurants, or (b) any food items that are the same as, or substantially similar to, 
the menu items ofSystem Restaurants; and which restaurant is, or is intended to be, located within: 

Restaurant located within the Territory; or 

Restaurant. 

8.2.2.3.1 the Territory; 

8.2.2.3.2 a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 

8.2.2.3.3 a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 

8.2.3 Ownership of Less than 5% of Publicly-Held Company. Sections 
8.2.1.3 and 8.2.2.3 shall not apply to an ownership interest of less than five percent (5%) of the 
outstanding securities ofany publicly-held company if such interest is owned for investment only and not 
owned by an officer, director, employee or consultant of such publicly-held company. 

8.3 Independent Covenant. The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants 
shall be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any 
portion of a covenant in this Section 8 is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having 
valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision to which Franchisor is a party, Developer expressly 
agrees to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such covenant that imposes the 
maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were separately stated in and made a part of 
this Section 8. 

8.4 Reduction of Scope. Developer understands and acknowledges that Franchisor 
shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in this Agreement, 
or any portion thereof, without consent, effective immediately upon written notice to Developer. 
Developer agrees that it shall comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which shall be fully 
enforceable notwithstanding the provisions of hereof. 

8.5 Offset/Counterclaim Limitation. Developer expressly agrees that the existence 
of any claims it may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not 
constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants in this Section 8. 

8.6 Execution of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreements b% 
Supervisors and Managers. Developer shall, prior to arranging any training or disclosing any 
confidential information, require its Representative, Regional Manager (if applicable), and such other 
supervisory or managerial employees of Developer as Franchisor shall designate to execute covenants 
similar to those set forth herein (including covenants applicable upon the termination of a person's 
relationship with Developer). Every covenant required shall be in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, 
including, without limitation, specific identification of Franchisor as a third-party beneficiary of such 
covenants with the independent right of enforcement. Such covenants shall be in a form substantially 
similar to the Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

8.7 Injunctive Relief. Developer acknowledges and agrees: (a) that any failure to 
comply with the covenants in this Agreement, including any failure by Developer to obtain execution of 
the covenants in Section 8.6 herein, shall constitute a default hereunder; (b) that a violation of the 
requirements of this Agreement, including this Section 8, would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor 
for which no adequate remedy at law may be available; and (c) therefore, Franchisor shall be entitled, in 
addition to any other remedies which it may have hereunder, at law or in equity, to obtain specific 
performance of, or an injunction against violation of, the requirements of this Agreement, without the 
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neoes^ of showing a e t o a l ^ 
secnri^ 

9. TRANSFER 

9.1 Transfer hv Franchisor Franchisor shaii have the right to fransfcr or assign 
this Agreement and alt or any part ofits rights or ohtigations herein to any person or legaienti^ 

9.2 Transfer hv Developer 

9.^1 Transfers without Franchisor's Consent are Nnil and Void and 
Constitute Defanitnnder this Agreement Deveiopernnderstands and acknowledges thattheri 
dutiesset forth inthis Agreement areuniquetoDeveloper^andthat Franchisor hasgranted the 
development rightsinrelianceonthehusinessskill,tinancialcapacityandpersonalcharacter of 
Developer and Developer's principals Accordingly, neither Developer nor any initial or subsequent 
successor or assignee to any part ofDeveloper's interest in the development rights, nor any individual, 
partnership, limited liability company,corporation or other entity which directly orm^^ 
any interest in Developer, in Developer'sbusiness,orthis Agreement shall sell, assign, transfer, conv 
give away,pledge,mortgage or otherwise encumber any direct or indirect interest in Developer, 
Developer'sbusiness, orthisAgreementwithoutthepriorwritten approval ofFranchisorAnypurp^^^ 
assignment or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, not having the prior written approval of 
Franchisorrequiredshallbenullandvoidandshall constituteadefaultunderthis Agreement 

9.2.2 Conditions for Franchisor Annrovai Franchisor may,in its sole 
discretion,requireanyorallofthefollowing as conditions ofits approval: 

9.2.2.1 That all ofDevelopeBsaccrued monetary obligations and all 
other outstanding obligations to Franchisor,its subsidiaries and its affiliates be satisfied; 

9.2.2.2 That neither Developer nor any of its affiliates is in default of 
any provision of this Agreement, any amendment hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement 
betweenDeveloperoranyofits affiliates andFranchisororits subsidiaries and affiliates; 

9.2.2.3 That the transferor execute on behalf of transferor, its 
affiliates, and their successors and assigns,ageneral release, inaform satisfactory to Franchisor 
and all claims or causes ofaction against Franchisor, its affiliates and theirrespective officers, d ^ ^ 
employees and agents, known orunknown,existingpriorto the date of such transfer; 

9.2.2.4 That thetransferee enter intoawrittenagreement inform 
satisfactory to Franchisor, assuming fiill, unconditional, joint and several liabili^ 
perform fromthe date of the transfer, allobligations,covenants and agreements contained in 

Agreement; 

9.2.2.̂  That the transferee demonstrate to Franchisor's satisfaction 
thefollowing: that transferee meets the criteria Franchisor considers when reviewing^ 
developer'sapplicationfordevelopmentrightsincluding Franchisor's educational, managerialand 
business standards; thattransfereepossessesagoodmoral character, businessreputationandc^^ 
that transferee has the aptitude and ability to develop and operate the System Restaurants (as may b^ 
evidenced bypriorrelated business experieneeorotherwise); and thattransferee has reasons 
financial resources and capital to develop and operate theSystem Restaurants; 
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T ^ ^ s ^ e ^ ^ 
^ e ^ m t o ^ d ^ ^ t o ^ o ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
o ^ d t o ^ w d ^ o ^ ^ o ^ ^ i ^ a ^ 
o ^ ^ t o m R e ^ ^ w ^ ^ e m ^ ^ 
m ^ ^ ^ ^ d ^ t o ^ 
h o w e ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ f i ^ b e ^ ^ 

That D ^ o p e r remain fi^^^of^obhga^^ 
Tranehi^rmeonneetion with this Agreement i n ^ ^ 
exeenteanyanda^mstrnme^ 

That Developer payatransfer fee ofFiveThonsand Dollars 
( ^ O ^ o r s n e h greater amount as is necessary to reimburse franchisor for its 
expenses associated with reviewing the application to transfer, m^̂ ^ 
accounting fees; and 

tf transferee isacorporation, partnership, or limited liability 
company, that transferee shall make and be bound by any or all ofthe representations, w a ^ ^ 
covenants set forth at Section7as Franchisor requests and shall provide to Franchisor evi^^^^ 
satisfactoryto FranchisorthatthetermsofSection7have been satisfied andare 

date of the transfer. 

9 Each Condifiou is Re^onahle and Necessary Developer 
acknowledges and agrees that each condition that must be met by the transferee is reasonable and 
necessarytoassuresuchtransferee'stullperformanceoftheobligations hereunder 

9 2.4 Transfers Soieiv for Convenience of Ownership In the event the 
proposed transfer is toacorporation or limited liability company formed so le ly^ 
ownership Franchisor'sconsentmaybeconditioneduponanyoftherequirementssetforthheremandthe 
percentageofinterestownedinthetransfereeshallbethesameasthatpreviouslyownedm 

except as may be required by law. 

9.3 Franchisor's Right ofFirst Refusal 

9.3^ Franchisor's Right to Match Bona Fide Offers Any person or 
entity holding any direct or indirect interest in Developer, Developer's busine^ 
desires to accept any bona fide offer fromathird party to purchase such interest shall promptly notify 
Franchisorin writing of eachsuehoffer,andshallprovidesuchinformationanddocumenta^ 
theofferasFranchisormayrequireFranchisorshall have the rightand option, exercisable 
^daysafterreceipt of such written notification and documentation, to send writ tenno^ 
that Franchisor intends to purchase the seller's interest on the same terms and conditions 
third party (except that Franchisor shall not be obligated to pay any finder's or broker's fees^ In 
acceptingthe offer. Franchisor shall be entitled to set off anymonies owed by Developerto Franchisor 
in the event Franchisor elects to purchase seller's interest, no material change in any ofî er a 
offer by any third party for such interest shall be considered thereafter by the seller in the event 
Franchisor has not elected to pu rchased 
priortoclosingshalleonstituteanewoffersubjeettothesamerightsoffirstrefiis^^ 
the ease of an initial offer Failure ofFranchisor to exercise the right offirst refusal afforded by this 
5ection93shall not constituteawaiver of any other provision of this Agreement, meludmga^^ 
requirements ofSection92withrespecttoaproposed transfer 

^ 
H o u h h ^ O ^ o p m ^ A g ^ m e ^ t ^ 



N o n C a s h O ^ s ^ ^ e v ^ ^ o ^ f r o m ^ ^ f r d p ^ y 
p ^ v i d ^ ^ p a y m ^ of considemfion other than 
may elect to pnrohase the interest proposed to he sold torthe reason If the parties 
eannot agree withinareasonahle time on the reasonable equivalent in cash of the non^^ 
offer, an independent appraiser shall he designated hyFranehisor to determine sneh amount and his 
dete^nination shall he final and binding i f Franehisor elects to exercise the right of first refusal 
describedabove, it shall have the right to set off the cost of the appraisal, if any,against any payment 
made hereunder. 

9.4 InvoluntarvTransfer. 

9.4.1 Transfer Upon Death Uponthe death ofany personwith an 
interest in this Agreement or in Developer ("Deceaseds, the executor, administrator 
representative of the Deceased shall transfer such interest toathird party approved by Franchisors 
twelve(i^monthsafier the death i fno personal representative is designated or appointed orno probate 
proceedings are instituted with respect to the estate of the Deceased, then the distributees of su^^ 
must,withintwelve(i^monthsafier the date of the death of the Deceased, either (a) be approved by 
Franchisorasatransferee,or(h)transfersuehinteresttoathird party approved by Franc 

9.4.2 Transfer toUnonFermanentDisahilitv Uponthe permanent 
disability of any person with an interest in this Agreement or in Developer, Franchisor may, in its sole 
discretion, require such interest to be transferred toathird party approved by Franchisor w ^ ^ 
hundred seventy (27^ days afier notice to Developer "Permanent disability" shall mean any physical, 
emotional or mental injury, illness or incapacity which would preventapersonfiom performing the 
obligations set forth in this Agreement for at least ninety (90) days from the date of de te rm^ 
disability Permanent disability shall be determined byalicensed practicing physician selected by 
Franchisor upon examination of the person; or if the person refuses to submit to an examination, then 
such person shall be automatically deemed permanently disabled as of the date of such refusal for the 
purpose ofthisSeetion94 The costs of any examination required by this Section shall be paid by 

Franchisor. 

9.4.3 NotieeoL and Conditions for^ Transfer unon Death or Disahihtv 
Upon the death or claim ofpermanent disability ofany person with an interest in Developer, Developer's 
business, orthis Agreement, Developer orarepresentativeofDevelopermustpromptly notify Franchisor 
ofsuch death or claim ofpermanent disability. Any transferupon death orpermanent disability shah 
subject to the same terms and conditions set forth in Seetion92of this Agreement i f an interest is not 
transferred upondeathor permanent disability in accordance withthe terms and conditions of this 
Section, such failure shall constituteadefaultforwhichFranchisormay terminate this Ag 

9.5 AnnrovalofTransfer Is Not Waiver of Claims Franchisor's approval toa 
transfer of any interest in Developer or this Agreement shall not constituteawaiver of any claims it may 
have against the transferring party,nor shall it be deemedawaiverofFranchisor'sright to demand exact 
compliance with any ofthe terms ofthis Agreement by the transferee 

9.6 Annrovai for Offers to Puhiie Securities, membership interests, orpartnership 
interests in Developermay be offered to the public, by private offering (if applicable)oro 
with the prior written approval of Franchisor (whether or not Franchisor's approval is required 
hereunder) Developer, at its expense, shall deliverto Franchisor all materials required for such offering 
by federal, state or other applicable law and such other materials as Franchisor may reasonably request 
These materials and opinions shall be submitted to Franchisor prior to being filed with any government 
agency,offieial or authority; and any materials to be used in any offering fbrwhich offering m 
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not prescribed by applicable law shall be submitted to Franchisor prior to their use. No Developer 
offering shall imply (by use ofthe Marks or otherwise) that Franchisor is participating in an underwriting, 
issuance or offering of Developer's securities. Franchisor may, at its option, require Developer's offering 
materials to contain a written statement prescribed by Franchisor concerning these limitations. 

10. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

10.1 Automatic Termination on Default. Developer shall be deemed to be in 
default under this Agreement and all rights granted to Developer herein shall automatically terminate 
without notice to Developer, if: (a) Developer shall become insolvent or make a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors; (b) a petition in bankruptcy is filed under any chapter of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code by Developer or such a petition is filed against and not opposed by Developer; 
(c) Developer is adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; (d) a bill in equity or other proceeding for the 
appointment of a receiver of Developer or other custodian for Developer's business or assets is filed and 
consented to by Developer; (e) a receiver or other custodian (permanent or temporary) of Developer's 
assets or property, or any part thereof, is appointed by any court of competent jurisdiction; (f) a 
proceeding for a composition with creditors under any state or federal law should be instituted by or 
against Developer; (g) a final judgment remains unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or longer 
(unless supersedeas bond is filed); (h) Developer is dissolved or execution is levied against Developer's 
business or property; (i) suit to .foreclose any lien or mortgage against the premises or equipment of any 
System Restaurant developed hereunder is instituted against Developer and not dismissed within thirty 
(30) days; or (j) the real or personal property ofany System Restaurant developed hereunder shall be sold 
after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal or constable. 

10.2 Termination on Notice of Default Without Opportunity to Cure. Upon the 
occurrence of any of the following events of default, Franchisor may, at its option, terminate this 
Agreement and all rights granted hereunder, without affording Developer any opportunity to cure the 
default, effective immediately upon Developer's receipt of notice (as provided in Section 12.1 hereof): 

10.2.1 Failure to Obtain Franchisor's Consent to a Site. Developer fails 
to obtain Franchisor's written consent to a site by the applicable date listed in the Development Schedule; 

10.2.2 Failure to Comply with Development Schedule. At any time 
during the Development Term, Developer fails to have open and operating the number of System 
Restaurants required by the Development Schedule; 

10.2.3 Commencement of Construction Prior to Execution of Franchise 
Agreement. Developer begins construction of a Franchised Restaurant at a site before Developer has 
executed the Franchise Agreement; 

10.2.4 Unauthorized Use. Disclosure or Duplication of Confidential 
Information. Developer, or Developer's Representative, Regional Manager, or any of Developer's 
principals or supervisory or managerial employees, fails to materially comply with any restriction on the 
unauthorized use, disclosure or duplication of confidential information provided to Developer by 
Franchisor; 

10.2.5 Material Violation of Confidentiality and Non-Competition 
Covenants. Developer materially violates any of the covenants relating to confidentiality and 
non-competition or fails to obtain execution of the covenants from the persons designated in this 
Agreement; 
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10^6 M a ^ a l Breach of W a r r a n t 
D ^ o ^ m a t o r i ^ h ^ c h ^ ^ o f ^ w ^ ^ ^ 
Agreement 

10^7 TransferViolafio^Refusal to Asanas Reared Dev^oper 
^ t o m ^ t o ^ ^ ^ m t o ^ m v i o ^ i o n o ^ ^ ^ ^ 
required herein; 

Material Misrepresentation or Omh^ion in Appiieation 
Developer has made any materia misrepresent^ion or omiss^ 

rights; 

Offenses Materiaiiv Affecting Reputation of Franchisor. 
Deveioperoranyofitsowners, shareholders, memhers, partners, officersordirectors 
plead no contesttoafelonyorothercrime or offense thatislikelyto adversely and mato^̂ ^ 
reputation ofDeveloper, Franchisor ortheSystem; 

lO^fO Developer Fermination Without Cause Developer takes any 
action seeking to terminate this Agreement without cause; 

l ^ . t l Unauthorised Transfer. Any transfer that requires Franchisor's 
priorwritten approval occurs withoutDeveloper having obtained thatpriorwritten approval;^ 

l ^ f 2 Failure to Comply with Agreements with Franchisor. Developer 
oranyaffiliateofDeveloperremains in default heyondtheapplicahlecureperiod ofany o t h e r s 
conditions ofthis Agreement, ortheterms ofany DevelopmentAgreement, Franchise Agreement o ^ ^ 
otheragreementhetweenDeveloperoranyofitsaffiliatesandFranchisororanyofitsaffihate^ 
that, ifthedefaultisnothyDeveloper, Developer is given written notice of the default andathirty(^^^ 

day period to cure the default). 

10^.f3 Action Upon any default identified in Section 102 of this 
Agreement, inlieuofterminatingthisAg^^ 
its discretion, may do any one or more ofthe following: 

10.2.t3.t Provide Opportunity to Cure. Provide Developer a 
reasonable period of time, notto exceed thirty (30) days afternotice from Franchisor,^ 

that is susceptible to cure; 

^2.t3.2 Reduce the Number ofRestaurants Reduce the number of 
System Restaurants Developer may establish under this Agreement; 

10.2.^3 Reduce Territory Reduce the Territory granted Developer 

herein; or 

t0.2.t3Bt Remove Territorial Protection Remove the territorial 
protection granted in Section!.3 hereof. 

10.3 Termination onNoticeofDefaultWitbQpportunityto Cure. 

10.3.1 Non Monetarv Defaults Except as otherwise provided in Sections 
10iandl02ofthisAgreement,Developershallhavethirty(30)daysafterwrittennoticeo^^ 

^ 
H o u h h ^ s D ^ o p m ^ A ^ e m ^ 1^ 



Franchisor within which to remedy the default and provide evidence of that remedy to Franchisor. If any 

exceed ninety (90) days) provided that Developer begins taking the actions necessary to correct the 

^ S E E S m S E S S S S 
otherwise in writing, or to carry out the terms of this Agreement in good faith. 

10 3 2 Monetary Defaults. Notwithstanding the provisions of preceding 

S ^ L ^ - ^ ^ S ^ ^ p ^ ^ ^ 
written notice of default, then this Agieement will terminate effective immediately upon expiration of that 
time, unless Franchisor notifies Developer otherwise in writing. 

10 3 3 Repeated Defaults. I f Developer has received three (3) or more 

^ i ^ ^ x ^ v ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
providing Developer an opportunity to remedy the default. 

10 4 Statntorv Limitations. If any valid, applicable law or regulation of a competent 

! ^ & ? ^ ^ % Z ^ X X Z & ^ 
to the minimum notice or cure period required by the applicable law or regulation. 

11. EFFECT OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION 

H . l nevelooer's OMipatinns Uoon Termination. Upon termination or expiration 

of this Agreement: 
1111 Payment of Amounts Owed. Developer shall pay to Franchisor or 

its affiliates within ten (10) days after the effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, or 
such later date that the amounts due to Franchisor are determined, such amounts owed to Franchisor and 
its affiliates which are then unpaid, and interest due Franchisor on any of the past due amounts; 

1112 Termination of Development Rights. Developer shall have no 

a - H S S - ^ H ^ f r l l 
Developer's right to continue to operate System Restaurants that were open and operating as ofthe date 
this Agreement terminated or expired; 

1113 Rjpht to License Others in Territory. The limited exclusive rights 
granted Developer in the Territory shall terminate and Franchisor shall be entitled to estabhsh and to 
license others to establish System Restaurants in the Territory except as may be otherwise provided under 
any other agreement then in effect between Franchisor and Developer; 

11.1.4 Development Fee. Franchisor shall retain the Development Fee; 
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Cease to Use and Return Conf ident Informafion and 
Materials Dev^ope r^ l prompt 
toF^uohiso^m^udingb^ 
progmm^ and destroy or retornafiother materia s ^ 
forms, invoiees,video tapes and other materials that bear any 
relate to Franchisor, hut not melnding any materials and information fn^^ 
Restaurant which is then open and operating 

I L t ^ Comnliance with Contidentiahtv and NonComnetition 
Covenants. Developer, itsprincipals, Representative, Regional Manager or other supervisory or 
managerial employees of Developer who have executed covenants shall continue to abide by the 
restrictions contained in Sect^ 
restrictions. 

tL2 Default Under Develonment Agreement Does Not Constitute Default Under 
AnvFranehise Agreement No default under this Agreement shallconstituteadetault under any 
FranchiseAgreementbetweenthepartieshereto,unlessDevelopeBsacts or omissions also violate the 
terms and conditions ofsuch Franchise Agreement. 

Survival of Obligations All obligations of Franchisor and Franchisee which 
expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or termination ofthis Agreement shall continue 
i^rceandeffect subsequent to and notwithstandingitsexpirationor termination and unfi^ 
satisfied in full or by their nature expire. 

ttBt Rights Not Exclusive. No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
Franchisor is exclusive of any right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted; but each 
shall be cumulative ofeveryotherright or remedy given hereunder. 

No Bar to Franchisor's Injunctive or Fuuitable Relief. Nothing herein 
contained shall bar or impair FranchisoBsright to obtain injunctive or other equitable r e l ^ 

t ^ NOTICES ANDFAVMENFS 

1^1 Notices All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall 
be sent by personal delivery, by next-day delivery service, by electronic means, or by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to tbe respective parties i f directed to Franchisor, the notice shall be addressed 
to Houlihan'sRestaurants, lne,at tentionV^ 
Ueawood, Kansas ^ 2 ^ , withacopy to: General Counsels 
Kansas i f directed toDeveloper,the notice shall be addressed to Developer, at the address 
identified on Exhibit B. 

Any notices sent by personal delivery,next-day delivery service or by electronic means 
shall be deemed given on the next business day affer transmittal Any notices sent by certified mail shall 
be deemed given on the third business day after the date of mailing Any change in the foregoing 
addresses shall beeffected by giving f i f t e e n s 

Franchisor may provide Developer with routine information, invoices,updates to the 
manuals, System standards and other System requirements and programs, including any modifications 
thereto, by regularmailorby e-mail, facsimile, orby making such information available to Deve^^ 
the internet, an extranet, or other electronic means. 
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Payment U n ^ o ^ r w ^ s ^ i f i ^ ^ p a y m e ^ ^ u h e d t o ^ 
D e v e t o ^ t o ^ n ^ o r u n d ^ ^ A g ^ m ^ ^ d u e ^ 
^ ^ o f ^ ^ m g ^ ^ ^ s ^ b e ^ ^ 
^ ^ o m c m e ^ o r b y m a ^ 

13. INDEPENDENT CONT^CTORANPINDEMN^CATION 

13.1 Independent Contrador Status It is understood and agreedtoby the parties 
that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship hetwccn them, that Developer is an 
independent contractor, and that nothing in this Agreement is intendedto constitute either party an 
legal representative, suhsidiary,joint venturer, partner, employee, employer,jointemp^^ 
servant of the other for any purpose whatsoever. Developer shall hold itself out to the puhlic to he an 
independent contractor operating pursuant to this Agreement Developer agrees to take such actions as 
shall he necessary or reasonably requested hy Franchisor tothat end. 

13.2 No Agency Developer understands and agrees that nothing in this Agreement 
authorizesDeveloper tomake any eontract,agreement,warranty,orrepresentationon Franchisor's 
hehalf,ortoincuranydehtorotherohligationinFranchisor'sname; and that Franchisor shall inno event 
assume liability lor or he deemed liable hereunder lor any such action; nor shall Franchisor he deemed 
liable by reason of any act or omission of Developer in the conduct of its business pursuant to this 
Agreement, or for any claim orjudgment arising therefrom. 

13.3 Indemnification. Nothing in this Agreement authorizes Developer tomake any 
contract, agreement,warranty, or representation on Franchisor's behalf, ortoincur any debt or other 
obligation in Franchisor'sname; and Franchisorwill in no event assume liability fi^r, or be deemed liable 
asaresult of, any such action; norwillFranchisor be liable by reason of any act or omission ofDeveloper 
in its operation ofDeveloper's business or for any related claim or judgment Developer shall defend, 
indemnify, andholdFranchisor,its affiliates, andtheir respective officers,directors,agents, and 
employees harmless against any and all claims, liabilities, damages, and "losses and expenses''(as sû  
term is defined in this Section 133), including any environmental claims, liabilities,^ 
and expenses'',arising directly or indirectly fi 
operationof Developer'sbusiness; or(h)anyacts,errors,omissions,or negligence of Developer, 
Developer's affiliates, the partners, members, managers, officers, shareholders, directors, agents, 
representatives, independent contractors, and employees of Developer and its affiliates and any other 
parties and without regard to the cause or causes thereof As used in this Section 13 3, the phrase "losses 
and expenses" includes all losses, compensatory, exemplary, or punitive damages, fines, charges, lost 
profits, reasonable attorneys'lees, court costs, settlement amounts,judgments, compensation fi^rdama 
toFranchisor'sreputationand goodwill, and any other costs and expenses of any kind whatsoever 

14. AFFROVALS^WAIVERS AND REMEDIES 

14.1 ReuuestsandAnnrovaisMusthein Writing whenever this Agreement 
requires the approvalor consent of Franchisor, Developer shall makeatimely written requestto 
Franchisor for such approval or consent Franchisor's approval or consent must be in writing to be 
effective. 

14.2 Consent NotaWarranty Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon 
which Developermay rely and assumes no liability or obligationto Developer or any third partyto which 
it would not otherwise be subject, by providing any waiver, approval, advice, consent, or servicesto 
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Developer in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial ofany request 
therefor. 

14.3 Failure to Exercise Rights Does Not Constitute Waiver or Estoppel. No 
failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it by this Agreement, or to insist upon strict 
compliance by Developer with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom or practice of the 
parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver or estoppel of Franchisor's right to 
demand exact compliance with any of the terms herein and Developer warrants and undertakes that it 
shall not rely on such failure, custom or practice. Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default under 
this Agreement shall not affect or impair Franchisor's rights with respect to any subsequent default ofthe 
same, similar or different nature, nor shall delay, forbearance, or omission of Franchisor to exercise any 
power or right arising out of any breach or default by its other developers or by Developer of any of the 
terms, provisions, or covenants hereof, affect or impair Franchisor's right to exercise the same, nor shall 
such constitute a waiver by Franchisor of any right hereunder, or the right to declare any subsequent 
breach or default and to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of its term or to exercise any of 
its other rights or remedies under this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any payments 
due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding breach by 
Developer ofany terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement. 

15. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION 

15.1 Striking Unenforceable Terms. Except as expressly provided to the contrary 
herein, each portion, section, part, term and/or provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable; 
and if, for any reason, any portion, section, part, term and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid 
and contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation by a court or agency having 
valid jurisdiction, such shall not impair the operation of or have any other affect upon such other portions, 
sections, parts, terms and/or provisions of this Agreement as may remain intelligible, and the latter will 
continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid portions, sections, 
parts, terms and/or provisions shall be deemed as amended to conform with the law, rule or regulation 
otherwise violated, while following the original intent of the parties as nearly as possible. 

15.2 Construction After Striking Unenforceable Terms. Developer expressly 
agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is 
subsumed within the terms ofany provision hereof, as though it were separately articulated in and made a 
part of this Agreement, that may result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or 
portions which a court may hold to be unreasonable and unenforceable in a final decision to which 
Franchisor is a party, or from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to 
comply with such a court order or to the extent which Franchisor in its sole discretion may otherwise 
determine. 

15.3 Captions. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the 
convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any 
provision hereof. 

15.4 Gender: Plurals. All references herein to the masculine, neuter, or singular 
shall be construed to include the masculine, feminine, neuter, or plural, where applicable; and all 
acknowledgments, promises, covenants, agreements and obligations herein made or undertaken by 
Developer shall be deemed jointly and severally undertaken by all those executing this Agreement on 
behalf of Developer. 

Houlihan's Development Agreement 19 0 3 / 1 3 



15^ C o u n ^ p a ^ This Ag^ment may be exeoutodmsev^ parts, and each co^ 
so executed shaft be deemed an eriginal 

ThneisoftheEssenee. Time is of the essence of this agreement for each 
provision in which time isafactor. 

NoThird Party Rights Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, 
nothinginthisAgreementis intended, norshaftbedeemed, to confcrnpon anyperson or entity othertha^ 
Developer, Franchisor, Franchisor's officers, directors, agents and employees, and such ofD^^ 
and Franchisor's respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated (and, as toDeveloper, 
permitted) by Section^hereof, any rights orremedies under or by reason ofthis Agreement 

15.8 Execution of Agreement. Eyprovidingacopy of this Agreement to Developer, 
Franchisor is making an offer to sell certain franchise development rights in theFcrrttory to D^^^^ 
Franchisor may withdraw that offer at any time prior to executing this Agreement. This Agreement will 
become effective only upon executionof this Agreement by the President oraVice President of 

Franchisor. 

t ^ FNFIREAGREFMENF 

This Agreement, tbe documents referred to herein, and the Exhibits hereto constitute the 
entire, full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Developer concerning the subject matter 
hereof and shall supersede all prior agreements There are no other representations, inducements, 
promises, agreements, arrangements, orundertakings, oral orwrttten, between the p a r t i e s ^ 
matters covered by this Agreement other than those set forth in this Agreement and in the attachments to 
this Agreement Nothing in this or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations 
made by Franchisor in its Franchise Disclosure Document There are no warranties, express or implied, or 
otherwise, made by Franchisor other than those expressly set forth in this Agreement Except those 
permitted to be made unilaterally by Franchisor hereunder, no amendment, change or variance from this 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in 

writing. 

17. ENFORCEMENT 

FB.t tnternretation. Developer acknowledges that Franchisor may grant numerous 
development rights throughout the United States on terms and conditions similar to or d ^ 
those set forth in this Agreement, and that it is of mutual benefit to Developer and to Franchisor that 
these terms and conditions be interpreted inaconsistent and uniform mannerTherefbr^ 
that to the extent that the law of the State of Kansas does not conflict with local franchise investment 
statutes, rules and regulations, Kansas law shall apply to the interpretation and cons 
Agreement and shall govern all questions which arise with reference hereto. 

t7.2 Submission to Mediation Except as provided in Section 177and except for 
claims by either party forpayments owed by one party to the other, any controversy or claim arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement or the making, interpretation, or performance hereof, sĥ  
submitted to mediation within thirty (30) days after notice by the complaining party to tbe o ^ 
The controversy or claim shall be submitted to mediation administered by 1AMS in accordance with its 
then-current procedures or rules. The mediation shall be held in the city in which Franchisor has, at the 
time of the commencement of the mediation, its principal place of business Developer agrees and 
acknowledges that Franchisor may,through the manuals, or otherwise in writing, designate: (â  
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administrative entity, in lieu of JAMS, to administer any mediation required to be brought under this 
Section 17.2; and (b) different procedures or rules for any such mediation. 

17.3 Acceptance of Venue and Jurisdiction. Except as described in Sections 17.2 
and 17.7 hereof, the parties agree that any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the making, interpretation or performance hereof which cannot be amicably settled, shall be 
resolved by a legal proceeding in a court in the judicial district in which Franchisor has, at the time ofthe 
commencement of such legal proceeding, its principal place of business, and Developer irrevocably 
accepts the venue and jurisdiction of the courts of the state, and federal courts located in the judicial 
district, in which Franchisor has, at the time ofthe commencement of such legal proceeding, its principal 
place ofbusiness for such claims, controversies or disputes; provided, however, with respect to any legal 
proceeding which includes injunctive relief. Franchisor may bring such legal proceeding in any state 
which has jurisdiction. 

17.4 Claims Barred After One Year. Any and all claims, controversies or disputes 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the performance of Franchisor hereunder, shall be 
commenced by Developer against Franchisor within one (1) year from the occurrence first giving rise to 
such claim, controversy or dispute, or such claim, controversy or dispute shall be barred. 

17.5 Prohibition Against Punitive Damages and Class Actions. Jury Trials. 
FRANCHISOR AND DEVELOPER, FOR THEMSELVES AND THEIR SUCCESSORS AND 
ASSIGNS, HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY 
RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER 
AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM EACH SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY THEM. 
DEVELOPER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT DEVELOPER SHALL NOT INITIATE 
OR PARTICIPATE IN LITIGATION AS A MEMBER OR REPRESENTATIVE OF, OR ON 
BEHALF OF, ANY CLASS OF PERSONS OR ENTITIES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
ENTITY ANY DISPUTE, CONTROVERSY, OR CLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, OR ANY BREACH HEREOF. THE PARTIES ALSO WAIVE, TO THE 
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY 

17.6 Service of Process. The parties agree that service of process in any proceeding 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the performance thereof may be made as to Developer by 
serving a person of suitable age and discretion (such as the person in charge of the office) at the notice 
address of Developer specified in Exhibit B and as to Franchisor, by serving the President or a Vice 
President of Franchisor at the notice address of Franchisor or by serving Franchisor's registered agent. 

17.7 Extraordinary Relief. Nothing herein contained shall bar Franchisor's or 
Developer's respective rights to obtain injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will cause it loss 
or damage, under the usual equity rules, including the applicable rules for obtaining specific performance, 
restraining orders, and preliminary injunctions. 

17.8 Franchisor's Cost to Enforce. Developer shall pay to Franchisor all damages, 
costs and expenses, including all court costs and reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by Franchisor in 
successfully enforcing any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to the obtaining of 
injunctive relief. 
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18. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

18.1 Independent Developer Investigation: Warranty Disclaimer. Developer 
acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this 
Agreement, and recognizes that it involves business risks and that the success of the venture is largely 
dependent upon the business abilities of Developer. Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of, and 
Developer acknowledges that it has not received or relied upon, any warranty or guaranty express or 
implied, as to the potential volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated by this 
Agreement. 

18.2 No Developer Misrepresentations. Developer represents to Franchisor, as an 
inducement to its entry into this Agreement, that Developer has made no misrepresentations in obtaining 
the development rights granted herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first above written. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

Bv: By: 

Name:__ Name:. 

Title: ™e:__ 

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER: 

Bv: By:. 

Name: . . Name:. 

Title: ™ e : _ 
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EXHIBIT A 

GUARANTY. INDEMNIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

In consideration of and as an inducement to, the execution of the Houlihan's Restaurants 
Development Agreement dated as of ("Agreement") by Houlihan's 
Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") entered into with ("Developer"), the undersigned 
("Guarantors)"), jointly and severally, hereby unconditionally (1) guarantee to Franchisor and its 
successors and assigns for the Development Term and thereafter as provided in the Agreement that 
Developer shall punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set 
forth in the Agreement and any other agreement with Franchisor that is related to Developers 
development ofthe System Restaurants; (2) agree personally to be bound by each and every provision in 
the Agreement, including, without limitation, the provisions of Sections 8 and 13.3 and (3) agree 
personally to be liable for the breach of each and every provision in the Agreement, including, without 
limitation, Section 8. 

Each of the undersigned waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the 
foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any 
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the 
indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he may have to 
require that an action be brought against Developer or any other person as a condition of liability; (5) all 
rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which any of the undersigned may have 
against Developer arising as a result of the execution of and performance under this Guaranty by the 
undersigned; (6) any law or statute which requires that Franchisor make demand upon, assert claims 
against or collect from Developer or any others, foreclose any security interest, sell collateral, exhaust any 
remedies or take any other action against Developer or any others prior to making any demand upon, 
collecting from or taking any action against the undersigned with respect to this Guaranty; (7) any and all 
other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be entitled; and (8) any and all right to have 
any legal action under this Guaranty decided by a jury. 

Each ofthe undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) his direct and immediate liability under this 
Guaranty shall be joint and several; (2) he shall render any payment or performance required under the 
Agreement upon demand if Developer fails or refuses punctually to do so; (3) such liability shall not be 
contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of any remedies against Developer or any other 
person- (4) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any amendment ofthe 
Agreement, any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may from time to time 
grant to Developer or to any other person including, without limitation, the acceptance of any partial 
payment or performance or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any way 
modify or amend this Guaranty, which shall be continuing and irrevocable during the term of the 
Agreement and for so long thereafter as there are monies or obligations owing from Developer to 
Franchisor or its affiliates under the Agreement; and (5) monies received from any source by Franchisor 
for application toward payment ofthe obligations under the Agreement and under this Guaranty may be 
applied in any manner or order deemed appropriate by Franchisor. 

If any of the following events occur, a default ("Default") under this Guaranty shall exist: 
(1) failure of timely payment or performance of the obligations under this Guaranty; (2) breach of any 
agreement or representation contained or referred to in this Guaranty; (3) appointment of a guardian for, 
dissolution of, termination of existence of, loss of good standing status by, appointment of a receiver for, 
assignment for the benefit of creditors of, or the commencement of any insolvency or bankruptcy 
proceeding by or against, any of the undersigned; and/or (4) the entry of any monetary judgment or the 
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assessment against, the filing of any tax lien against, or the issuance of any writ of garnishment or 
attachment against any property of or debts due any of the undersigned. I f a Default occurs, any 
monetary obligations owed to Franchisor by any ofthe undersigned shall be due immediately and payable 

without notice. 

Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be bound by this 
Guaranty, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the obligations 
ofthe other guarantors will continue in full force and effect. 

Franchisor's interests in and rights under this Guaranty are freely assignable, in whole or in part, 
by Franchisor. Any assignment shall not release the undersigned from this Guaranty. 

Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guaranty shall have the same meaning 
as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with Section 15 of the 
Agreement. Sections 17.1 through 17.8 of the Agreement are incorporated by reference into this 
Guaranty. 

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Guaranty shall be in writing, and shall be 
delivered by any means which affords the sender evidence of delivery or of attempted delivery, to the 
respective parties at the following addresses, unless and until a different address has been designated by 
written notice to the other party: 

Notices to Franchisor: Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
Attention: Vice-President/Development 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, Kansas 66206 

with a copy to: General Counsel 
Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, Kansas 66206 

Notices to Guarantors: 

Notices shall be deemed to have been given at the date and time of delivery or of attempted delivery. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each ofthe undersigned has signed this Guaranty as ofthe date ofthe 
Agreement. 

WITNESS: 

By: 

Name: 

GUARANTORS: 

Name: 

By: 

Name: Name: 

By: 

Name: Name: 

Guaranty 
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EXHIBIT B 

TERRITORY AND DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 

L Development Fee. The Development Fee paid by Developer shall be equal to $ for each 

System Restaurant developed under this Development Agreement for a total Development Fee of 
$ 

2. 

4. 

Territory. Each System Restaurant developed under this Development Agreement shall be 
located in the following area: 

Developer's rights in the Territory shall be subject to the limitations described in Section 
1.3. Any political boundaries contained in the description of the Territory shall be 
considered fixed as of the date of this Agreement and shall not change notwithstanding a 
political reorganization or a change in those boundaries. Unless otherwise specified, all 
street boundaries shall be deemed to end at the center street line. Without Franchisor's 
prior written consent, the Protected Area for any System Restaurant developed pursuant to 
this Agreement may not extend beyond the boundary of the Territory. 

3. System Restaurants and Excluded Radius.. 

Development Schedule. Recognizing that time is of the essence, Developer shall develop and 
continue to operate System Restaurants in the Territory in accordance with the following 
schedule (which excludes System Restaurants operated by Developer in the Development 
Territory as of the date of the Development Agreement and System Restaurants acquired from 
Franchisor or its affiliates): 

System 
Restaurant 

Site Application 
and Franchise 

Agreement 
Execution Date 

Date By Which 
Developer Must Obtain 

Franchisor's Consent To 
The Site 

Opening 
Date 

Cumulative Number 
of System Restaurants 

To Be Open And 
Operating On The 

Opening Date 

1 

2 

3 

5. Developer's Notice Address and Facsimile Number. 
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E X H ^ T C 

CONFIDENTIALITY AND N ^ 

(for persons holding posifions with developers 

In considerafion of my position aŝ  of ("Developed 
and One D o i i ^ ( ^ receipt ofwhich is a^owiedged^h^ehyac^ 

t Honhhan'sRestanrants, Ine ("Tranehisor^thronghski^effortandresoureeshas 
developed, and continues to develop^adistinetive system ("Systems 
operation of fntt service restaurants o p e ^ 
"System Restaurants The distinguishing chamcteristics of the System include the exterior and inters 
design, decor, color scheme and furnishings; special recipes and menu items; standards, specifica^^ 
procedures for inventory and management control; training and assistance; advertising â ^ 
programs; and financial control concepts. 

^ ^ ofOeveloper,iwill receive valuahle confidential information, 
disclosure of which would he detrimental to Franchisor and Developer, such as information r e ^ 
purchasing techniques;promotion and advertising;pricing,sales,office and personn^ 
procedures; trainingprograms; operation procedures orprogramsofFranchisorand the System related^ 
the estahlishmentand operation ofSystem Restaurants which are heyond the presentskills and experi^^ 
possessed hymeThis list of confidential matters is illustrative only,and does not include â^ 
considered confidential hy Franchisor and Developer. 

3 I^ill^oldinstrictconfidence all information designated hy Franchisor or Developer as 
confidential UnlessFranchisorotherwiseagrees in writing,iwill disclose and̂ or use the confidents 
information onlyin connection withmy duties as ofDeveloper Myundertaking 
notto disclose confidential information isaconditionofmy position with Developer, and conri^^ 
aftericeaseto he in that position. 

4 ^hile in myposition with Developer,lwill not do anything whichmay injure Developer 
or Franchisor, such as (^divert or attempt to divert any actual or prospective husiness or customer of 
DevelopeBshusiness to any competitor, hy direct inducement or otherwise; (h) do or perform any aĉ  
directly or indirectly,injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with Franc 
System; or(c) employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time or has within one (l)year heen 
employed hy Franchisor or any Developer ofFranchisor (including Developer), or otherwise d i ^ 
indirectly induce such person to leave his or her employment. 

5 ^ i l ^ in my position with Developer,iwill not own, maintain, advise, he employed hy, 
consult for, make loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership interest (including any right to sĥ ^̂  
in revenues or profits) in any restaurant offering (a) the same, or suhstantially similar 
dining services as those offered in System Restaurants, or (h) any food items that are the same as or 
substantially similar to, the menu items ofSystem Restaurants; and which business is, or is m^^^ 
be, located withim (I) the Territory,the boundaries of whichlacknowledge have been described to me; 
(2)aradiusoften(10) miles of any System Restaurant located within theTerritory;^ 
(10) miles of any System Restaurant; or (4) the United States This restriction does not apply to my 
ownership interest ofless than fivepercent(^)oftheoutstanding equity secur^^ 
company, i f l o w n such interest for investment only andlam not an officer, director, employee or 
consultant ofsuch publicly-held company. 
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6. For two (2) years after I cease to have any ownership interest in Developer, I will not 
own, maintain, advise, be employed by, consult for, make loans to, operate, engage in or have an 
ownership interest (including any right to share in revenues or profits) in any restaurant offering (a) the 
same, or substantially similar sit-down, casual dining services as those offered in System Restaurants, or 
(b) any food items that are the same as or substantially similar to the menu items of System Restaurants; 
and which business is, or is intended to be, located within: (1) the Territory; (2) a radius often (10) miles 
of any System Restaurant located within the Territory; or (3) a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 
Restaurant. This restriction does not apply to my ownership interest of less than five percent (5%) ofthe 
outstanding equity securities ofany publicly-held company, if I own such interest for investment only and 
I am not an officer, director, employee or consultant of such publicly-held company. 

7. Franchisor is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement and may enforce it, solely 
and/or jointly with Developer. I am aware that my violation of this Agreement will cause Franchisor and 
Developer irreparable harm; therefore, I acknowledge and agree that Franchisor and/or- Developer may 
apply for the issuance of an injunction preventing me from violating this Agreement in addition to any 
other remedies it may have hereunder, at law or in equity; and I agree to pay Franchisor and Developer all 
the costs it/they incur/s, including without limitation attorneys' fees, if this Agreement is enforced against 
me. Due to the importance of this Agreement to Franchisor and Developer, any claim I have against 
Franchisor or Developer is a separate matter and does not entitle me to violate, or justify any violation of, 
this Agreement. If any part of this Agreement is held invalid by a court or agency having valid 
jurisdiction, the rest ofthe Agreement is still enforceable and the part held invalid is enforceable to the 
extent found reasonable by the court or agency. I agree that all the words and phrases used in this 
Agreement will have the same meaning as used in the Development Agreement, and that such meaning 
has been explained to me. 

8. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in this 
Agreement, without my consent, effective immediately upon my receipt of written notice thereof; and I 
agree to comply with any covenant as so modified. 

9. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State in which Developer's 
principal place ofbusiness is located. The only way this Agreement can be changed is in a writing signed 
by both Developer and me. 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY DEVELOPER: 

By: Signature:. 

Name: Name: 

Title: Address:. 

Title: 

Date: 
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EXHIBIT D 

OWNERS: PARTNERS: LLC MEMBERS: SHAREHOLDERS 

NAME AND 
ADDRESS 

TITLE NATURE OF INTEREST 
(i.e., limited partner, general 

partner, member, or 
shareholder) 

PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL 

OWNERSHIP 
INTEREST 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
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HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

(Franchisee) 

(Location) 

(Date) 
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FRANCH^EAGREEMENT 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ( " A ^ m ^ is made as of this day of 
^ hy and between ^anehisee") and 

Hontihan'sRestalrants^^ 
the location described in ExhibitB^Fremises^ 

RECITALS 

A Eranchisorthronghski^effortandresonrces has developed, and continued 
distinctive system ("Systems relating to the establishment and 
oneratingnnderthename^onlihan^^SystemRestan^^^^^^ 
the System include the exteriorand interior design, decor, colorscheme and f n r n ^ ^ 

andmenn items; standards,specifica^ 
andassistance;advertisingandpromotionalprograms;andfinancialcontrolconcep^ 
changed, improvedandfhrtherdevelopedby Franchisorfrom time to time 

8 Franchisor continues to develop, use and control the use of its trade names, service 
marks trademarks, trade dress, emblems and indicia of origin, now existing and h^ 
("Marks") to identifyforthepnblicthesonrceofservicesandprodnctsma^^ 
representtheSystem'shighstandards of qnality,appearanceand service 

C. The value of the System and the Marks is based on, among other things (I) the 
maintenanceofhighquality standards in the preparation andsaleoffood and beverageproduct̂ ^ 
highstandardsofappearanceofthe individual SystemRestaurants,^theuseof^^^^ 
servicemarks, building designsandadvertisingsignsrepresentinghigh^^ 
theassumption by Franchisorand its franchisees ofthe obligation to mamtam and enhance the goodwill 
and public acceptance of the System and the Marks by strict adherence to the high standards of 
Franchisor,^theprocessesandprocedu^ 
(6) the training and management of all personnel 

D. Franchiseedesirestouse the System in connection with the operation ofaSystem 
Restaurant atthe Premises in accordance with the terms and conditionsofthis Agreement 

NCW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, representations and cond̂  

set forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 

L FRANCHISECRANT 

L I Grant Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee the right, and Franchisee hereby 

undertakestheobligation,uponthe^^ 
operateaSystemRestaurant("Restaurant") atthe Premises, andtousetheMarksandt^^ 
inconnectiontherewith The grant ofthisfranchisedoesnotimplythe grant ofrightspert^^ 
other location or electronic media, including, but not limited to, the ^ 
applications. 

1^ Protected Area: Reservation ofRights Except as reserved below,during the 
termofthisAgreement,Franchisorshallnotestablishoroperate,norlicenseanyo^^ 
or operate,aSystem Restaurant in the limited 
("ProtectedArea") TheSystem,includingtheproductssoldundertheMarks,has^^^^ 
designed, to unction effectively inawide variety of retail environments, ^^^^ 
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practically available to Franchisee. Accordingly, Franchisor reserves to itself the rights, among others, on 
any terms and conditions Franchisor deems advisable, and without granting Franchisee any rights therein, 
to: (a) sell or distribute, directly or indirectly, or license others to sell or distribute, any products or 
services under any proprietary marks (including the Marks) at locations other than System Restaurants 
(such as but not limited to, supermarkets, groceries, gourmet shops, mail order, the Internet and electronic 
media) within or outside the Protected Area and without regard to proximity to the Restaurant established 
and operated hereunder; and (b) acquire, establish and/or operate, and license others to acquire establish 
and/or operate System Restaurants at airports, railroad stations, bus terminals, highway travel plazas, 
hospitals, stadia, concert venues, sports arenas, amusement parks, schools, colleges, universities, military 
facilities, business or industrial foodservice venues, venues in which foodservice is or may be provided by 
a master concessionaire or contract foodservice provider, Indian reservations, casinos or any other similar 
captive market location not reasonably available to Franchisee within or outside the Protected Area 
(notwithstanding the proximity to the Restaurant established and operated hereunder). 

This Section 1.2 does not prohibit Franchisor from: (1) acquiring, establishing and/or operating, 
and licensing others to acquire, establish and/or operate, a System Restaurant at any location outside the 
Protected Area; and (2) acquiring, establishing and/or operating, and licensing others to acquire, establish 
and/or operate, any business or restaurant ofany kind that does not operate as a System Restaurant or use 
the Marks at any location within or outside the Protected Area (notwithstanding its proximity to the 
Restaurant established and operated hereunder). The restrictions contained in this Section 1.2 do not 
apply to System Restaurants in operation in the Protected Area as of the date of this Agreement as 
identified in Exhibit B. 

2. TERM AND RENEWAL 

2.1 Initial Term. This Agreement is effective on the date signed. The Initial Term 
ofthe franchise shall expire at midnight on the day preceding the tenth (10th) anniversary ofthe date the 
Restaurant first opened for business unless this Agreement is terminated at an earlier date pursuant to 
Section 18. If Franchisee does not open the Restaurant within two hundred seventy (270) days after 
execution of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate pursuant to Section 18 below, and in such 
event Franchisor shall retain the full Initial Franchise Fee as defined in Section 9.1.1. 

2.2 Renewal. At the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement may be renewed 
for two (2) successive renewal terms of five (5) years each (unless the Agreement is sooner terminated in 
accordance with its provisions), provided that: (a) Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement; 
(b) Franchisee satisfies the requirements that Franchisor then imposes on its new franchisees; 
(c) Franchisee executes the form of Franchise Agreement that new or renewing franchisees are then being 
required to execute (which may contain terms and conditions substantially different from this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, a reduced Protected Area, and higher Royalty Fees and/or advertising 
contributions); (d) Franchisee remodels the Restaurant to conform to the building design, trade dress, 
decor, color schemes, furnishings and equipment and presentation of the Marks consistent with the image 
for new franchised and company-operated system Restaurants at the time of renewal; (e) Franchisee 
executes, on behalf of Franchisee, its affiliates and their successors and assigns a general release, in a 
form prescribed by Franchisor, ofany and all claims against Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, known or unknown, existing prior to the date of such renewal; 
and (f) Franchisee gives Franchisor not more than twelve (12) months nor less than seven (7) months 
prior written notice of Franchisee's desire to renew. 

2.3 Renewal Requires Franchisor Consent. In addition to compliance with 
Section 2.2(a) through (f) above, Franchisor's consent to renewal may be conditioned upon Franchisee's 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 2 01/14 



finan^^^^ App^v^ 
sh^bemFmnchiso^so^dis^iom 

2.4 Renews Fee I f F ^ n ^ ^ r e q u e ^ ^ a 
Fmnchisee shaft pay F^^orarenew^feemtheamo 

3. CONSTRUCTION AND LEASE PROVISIONS 

3.1 Arehitee^Engineer FriortosuhmissionofFlanstoTmncftisorasreqm^dhy 
Seo^32,Franchise^ if^questodhy Tmnchiso^sf ta f t^ ishFranch^ 
restored archfte^a^orthe revered engmeer^ 
along wfth addftional informafton and detail eoneeming their training, experience and financial 
responsihility as Franchisor may request Franchisor shall not consent to Franchisee'snse of the Flans, 
and construction shall not commence, until Franchisor has consented in writing to Franchisee'snseof 
registeredarchitectand^ortheregisteredengineerwho will prepare the Flans 

3.2 Fiaus Franchisor has developed, over time, several different prototype designs 
foraSystem Restaurant Franchisor will provide Franchisee, at no additional charge, detailed plans, 
specifications and designs ft^raprototypical System 
layout, fixtures, furnishings, and signs On or hefore the date specified in FxhihitB, Franchisee shall 
suhmit proposed plans, specifications, and drawings forthe Restaurant, including its proposed equi^^ 
furnishings, facilities and signs in such details 
(collectively "Flans") Construction shall nothegin unlessanduntil Franchisorhas consentedto 
Franchisee's Flans Thereafter, no suhstantial change shall he made in the Flans without the advance 
written consent of Franchisor Franchisee shall cause the Restaurant to he constructed in suhstantial 
compliance with the Flans consented to hy Franchisor All construction must comply in all respects with 
applicable laws, ordinances and local rules and regulations. 

3.3 Contractors. Frior to the commencement of construction, if requested hy 
Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit toFranchisoraresumeandfinancialstatementofthegeneral 
contractor and any mâ or subcontractors for the construction, along with additional information 
concerningtheirexperienceandfinancialresponsibility as Franchisormay request Construction sha 
commence until Franchisor has consented in writing to Franchisee'suse ofthe contractors, which shall be 

conditioned on bonding ofthe contractors. 

3.4 Commencement and Completion of Construction. Construction shall 
commence on or before the date specified in FxhibitB Frior to the commencement of construction, 
Franchisee shall provide Franchisoracopy of th^ 
owns the Premises, proof ofFranchisee'sownership interest As used in this Agreement, construction 
shall have commenced only after Franchisee has obtained all required permits and: (a) with respect toa 
free-standing Restaurant, Franchisee has begun the installation of building footings 
maintain continuous construction thereafter; or (h)with respect toanonftee-standingResta^^ 
Restaurantbeingconvertedfromaprioruse, Franchisee has begun the installation of sub-ftoorp^^^ 
with the intent to maintain continuous construction thereafter.Once construction has commenced, it sh^ 
continue uninterrupted(except for interruption by reason of events constituting F o r c e d 
in Section 28) until completed Except for delays caused by events constituting Force Majeure, 
construction shall be completed and the Restaurant shall be fiirnished, equipped and shall o t h e ^ 
ready to open for business in accordance with this Agreement not later than the date specified in 

ExhibitE("OpeningOate") 
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3.5 Inspection; Cooperation. During the course of construction, Franchisee shall 
(and shall cause Franchisee's architect, engineer, contractors, and subcontractors to) cooperate fully with 
Franchisor and its designees for the purpose of permitting Franchisor to inspect the Premises and the 
course of construction of the Restaurant in order to determine whether construction is proceeding 
according to the Plans. Without limiting the generality ofthe foregoing, Franchisee, and Franchisee's 
architect engineer, contractors and subcontractors shall: (a) supply Franchisor or its designees with 
samples of construction materials, test borings, corings, due diligence environmental studies, supplies 
equipment and other material and reports as Franchisor or its designees may request; and (b) afford 
Franchisor's representatives and its designees access to the Premises and to the construction work in order 
to permit Franchisor and its designees to carry out its inspections. 

3.6 Acquisition of Necessary Equipment. Furnishings, and Supplies; Staff. 
Franchisee shall order, purchase, and/or lease and install all fixtures, equipment, furnishings, furniture, 
signs and related equipment, supplies and other items required by the Plans, the System and this 
Agreement and such other equipment, furnishings and supplies as may be required by Franchisor in order 
to prepare the Restaurant for opening as a System Restaurant, all at such times and in accordance with 
such schedules as shall be set by Franchisor in order to ensure that the Restaurant shall timely be opened 
for business. 

In accordance the terms of this Agreement and those other instructions furnished by Franchisor to 
Franchisee Franchisee shall cause to be hired a staff to operate the Restaurant, including that number of 
General Managers (as defined in Section 6.2.3), kitchen managers, assistant managers and other personnel 
as are required by Franchisor (which shall in no event include less than one (1) General Manager, one (1) 
kitchen manager and three (3) assistant managers). All such personnel shall be trained as required by 
Section 7 to operate the Restaurant prior to the opening of the Restaurant. All costs and expenses 
incurred directly or indirectly in hiring and training such staff shall be borne by Franchisee, except as 
otherwise expressly agreed to by Franchisor. 

3.7 Reports. If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, on 
or before the first day of each month (or more frequently if Franchisor requests), a report with 
photographs showing progress made in connection with the construction and equipping ofthe Restaurant. 

3 § Limitation of Franchisor's Liability. Notwithstanding the right of Franchisor 
to consent to Franchisee's use of the Plans, the registered architect, the registered engineer and certain 
contractors and to inspect the construction work and the Restaurant, Franchisor shall have no liability or 
obligation with respect to the design or construction ofthe Restaurant; Franchisor's rights being exercised 
solely for the purpose of ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

3.9 Final Inspection and Opening Date. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in 
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the date Franchisee expects construction to be completed and a 
certificate of occupancy issued. The certificate of occupancy, or a conditional certificate of occupancy, 
must be obtained at least two (2) days prior to the arrival of Franchisor's Pre-Opening Training Team as 
described in Section 7.3. Franchisor shall use its best efforts to conduct a final inspection of the 
Restaurant and the Premises to determine if Franchisee has complied with this Agreement. Franchisor 
shall not be liable for delays or losses occasioned by Franchisor's inability to complete its investigation 
and to make such determination within this period. Franchisee shall not open the Restaurant for business 
without Franchisor's express written authorization, which will not be granted unless Franchisee has 
satisfied the conditions contained in this Section 3. 

3 io Required Lease Provisions. If Franchisee will occupy the Premises under a 
lease. Franchisee shall furnish to Franchisor a copy ofthe proposed lease at least five (5) business days 
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prior to execution as well as a copy of the executed lease no later than ten (10) business days after 
execution and before construction or renovation begins. The lease shall not contain any provision that 
might prevent Franchisee from performing its obligations under this Agreement. Unless waived in 
writing by Franchisor, the lease shall contain provisions that satisfy the following requirements: 

3.10.1 Restricting Use to Restaurant. That the Premises shall be used 
only for the operation of the Restaurant; 

3.10.2 Approval of Marks: Conies of All Notices. That the lessor 
(a) approves the use of such Marks and signage as Franchisor may prescribe for the Restaurant; and 
(b) agrees to furnish Franchisor with copies ofany and all letters and notices sent to Franchisee pertaining 
to the lease and the Premises at the same time that such letters and notices are sent to Franchisee; 

3.10.3 No Sublease Without Franchisor Approval. That Franchisee may 
not sublease or assign all or any part of its occupancy rights, or extend the term of or renew the lease 
without Franchisor's prior written approval; 

3.10.4 Franchisor's Right to Enter Premises to Protect Marks or Cure 
Defaults. That Franchisor shall have the right to enter the Premises to make any modification necessary 
to protect the Marks or to cure any default under the lease or this Agreement; 

3.10.5 Consent for Assignment to Franchisor: Franchisor Mav Sublet. 
That the lessor agrees that Franchisee may assign the lease to Franchisor; that the lessor will approve such 
assignment and may not impose any assignment fee or similar charge on Franchisor in connection with 
such assignment; and that Franchisor may sublease the Premises for all or any part ofthe remaining term 
of the lease; 

3.10.6 Franchisor's Right to Assume Franchisee's Rights on Default. 
That Franchisor (or Franchisor's designee) shall have the option, upon default of the Franchise 
Agreement or the lease, and upon notice to the lessor, to assume all of Franchisee's rights under the lease, 
including the right to assign or sublease; 

3.10.7 No Material Lease Amendment Without Franchisor's Consent. 
That the lessor and Franchisee shall not amend or otherwise modify the lease in any manner that would 
materially affect any ofthe foregoing terms and conditions without Franchisor's prior written approval; 

3.10.8 Estoppel Certificate. That, upon request following assignment to 
Franchisor or sublease by Franchisor, lessor, shall provide an estoppel certificate, in a form satisfactory to 
Franchisor, identifying any claims lessor may have under the lease; and 

3.10.9 Co-Extensive Term. That the lease term (including any renewal 
options) shall not expire before the expiration date ofthe Initial Term. 

3.11 No Territorial Restrictions on Development of System Restaurants. 
Franchisee covenants and agrees that Franchisee will not, without Franchisor's prior written consent, 
enter into any agreement with any lessor regarding the premises of any System Restaurant the terms of 
which restrict, or purport to restrict, in any manner, Franchisee or Franchisor from developing System 
Restaurants in any geographic area around the premises, including, but not limited to, the Protected Area. 
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4. RIGHT TO OPEN THE RESTAURANT P ^ h ^ ^ b e p e r m f t t o d t o o ^ ^ 
R^ur^whenaf t^e^owmgcond i f ionshaveb^ 

4.1 Gomphance with Agreement franchisee is not in defanh nndcr this 
Agreement or any other agreements with 
heyond the apptieahieenre period nnder any reai estate lease, equipment tease or ^ 
relating to the Restaurant, Franchisee is not in default heyond the appheahte cure p e ^ 
or supplierto the Restaurant, and, forthe last six^months, Franchisee has not heen in default 
theapplicahle cure period under any agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates 

4.2 No Monetary Defauhs Franchisee is current on all monetary obligations due 

Franchisor and its affiliates. 

4.3 Architect Ocrtitication Franchisee's registered architect has certified to 
Franchisor in writing that the Restaurant was constructed substantially in a c c o ^ 
consented to by Franchisor. 

4.4 Lease lftheFremisesareleased,Franchisorhasreceiyedacopyofthe 

fully-executed lease. 

4.5 Eiuuor License Franchiseehasobtainedaliquor license authorizing the sale of 

alcoholic beverages at the Restaurant. 

4.6 Certificates Franchisee has obtainedacertificate of occupancy and any other 
required health, safety orfire department certificates 

4.7 Franchisor Annrovai of Restaurant and Staffing Franchisor has determined 
that the Restaurant has been constructed, equipped and staffed substantially in accordance wft^ 

requirements ofthis Agreement 

4.8 Training. Franchisee has complied with the pre-opening training requirements 
set forth in Sections71,7.2 and73ofthis Agreement 

4.9 Insurance Foiicies Franchisor has been furnished with copies of all insurance 
policies required by Section i3 of this Agreement or such other evidence of insurance coverage and 

payment ofpremiums as Franchisor may request. 

5. DUTIES OF FRANCHISOR 

5.1 Manuals At the time ofFranchisee^sinitial training. Franchisor shall deliver or 

provide electronic access to Franch^^ 
System Restaurant operations (As used in this Agreement, the term "Manuals" includes publications, 
materials, drawings, memoranda,videotapes, audio tapes, compact disks and electronic ^^^^ 
Franchisor from time to time may provide to Franchisee ) The Manuals may be supplemented or 
amended from time to time by letter, electronic mail, bulletin, videotapes, audio 
disks,softwareorothercommunicationsconcerningtheSystemtorefiectchangesintheimage, 
specifications and standards relating to developing,equipping, furnishing and oper̂ ^̂ ^ 
Restaurant Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Manuals described herein shall mclude all 
copies of the Manuals, and any supplements or amendments thereto The terms and provisions of the 
Manuals shall becomeapart ofthis Agreementandareherebyincorporatedbyreference 
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5.2 C o n s u ^ m ^ ^ p ^ ^ Fmnchisor shaft consul ^ 
toftme^^g^^aft^s^tfteR^ma^ ^ a n o f t ^ m a y ^ m s ^ ^ ^ m i s e s a n f t 

^ a f t o n s f t o m f t m e t o f t ^ 
^ f t e c f t a ^ s m o ^ t o h ^ ^ o ^ a f t o n ^ ^ 
i m p ^ h y ^ a ^ f t i s ^ ^ s^ f tonsmayhedm^ 

5.3 Framing Franchisor shaftprovidefta^ 

Agreement 

5.4 Fians and Specifications Franchisor shaft provide drafted plans, specificafions 

anddcsignsforaprotofypicaiSysto^ 

5.5 On SitcSnncrvision Franchisor shaft provide, at Franchisee's expense, snch 
on-sftc,constrncfion,prc-opcningandopcningsnpcrvisionandassistanccasFranchisordcc^^ 

5.6 Advice and Written Materials Franchisor shaft provide to Franchisee fiom 
time to time, as Franchisor deems appropriate, advice and written materials con^ 
managing and operating the Restaurant, inclnding,hnt not limited to, retired and 
and sales methods, new developments and improvements in System Restaurant layout and design, and 
new developments in products and marketing techniques 

5.7 Fcrformancchv Designee Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any duty 
orohligationimposcdonFranchisorhythisAgrccmcntmayhcpcrformcdhy any designee, employee, or 

agent ofFranchisor,as Franchisormay direct 

6. DUTtFSDFFRANCHtSEF 

6.t Standards and Comniiancc with System. 

6.Lt Franchisee Comniiancc Franchisee will at alltimcsmaintainthc 
Restaurant instrictconformanccwithallrcquircmcnts,instructions,dircct^ 
concerning the appearance of the Premises as well as the design, fiirnishings, ingredients,^ 
promotional advertising, menus, menu format, recipes, smallwares, equipment, supply 
accountingandhookkccpingrcquircmcnts,asFranchisormayfiomtimctotimccstahhshormodifymthc 
Manuals or otherwise in writing Franchisee acknowledges that every component of the System is 
important to Franchisor Franchisor may provide amendments and supplements to the Manuals, new 
manuals or other written operational directives to Franchisee and Franchisee shaft also ahid^ 
comply with these requirements and procedures Franchisee shall at all times treat the Manuals and 
everything therein as confidential and shall not disclose or permit the disclosure of the c o n ^ 
Manuals, or any part thereof, to any person or entity without the written consent ofFranchisor At aft 
times, FranchisorshallrctaintitlctothcManualsandallofthcrccipcsandmatc^^ 

6.t.2 Products and Services. Franchisee shall operate the Restaurant and 
prepare and sell all products and services sold at the Restaurant in strict compliance with the c o o ^ 
methods, specifications (including product names), standards, business practices, pol^^^ 
of Franchisor now in effect or subsequently published for its franchisees, and comply wfth all 
requirements of the System as now or subsequently set forth in the Manuals or othcrwisemwrftmg, 
including any changes thatmaybemade from time to time FhcsalcbyFranchisccofanyunauthor^cd 

product orscrvicc at the Restaurant shall constitute a default of this Agreement pursuant to 
ScctionlS31 (By way of example and not asalimitation, Franchisee agrees to serve only the menu 
items specified or otherwise consented to by Franchisor, to foftow all specifications and recipes 
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F ^ c h i ^ ^ t o m ^ d ^ 
i t o m o r o ^ m ^ h a n d ^ Fmnchi^ shaft 
hegmseftmganynewfya^horizeftp^d^ors^i^wft^^ 
ftom Franchisor and shaft cease sefting any previous^ au tho r 
soon as current inventory is nsedn^hnt in an 
written notice ftom Franchisor Franchisee shaft purchase any additional equipment and smaftwares as 
Franchisor deems reasonably necessary in connection with new or changed product or service. Ifthere 
remains any excess inventory of food, heverageand^ormerchandiseitemsutilized inmarketing or 
promotional events after the scheduled conclusion of that event. Franchisee may continue to sell those 
items until the inventory is depleted. 

All food, beverage and merchandise items and services authorized for sale at or ftom the 
Restaurant, shall be offered tor sale under the specific name designated by Franchisor Franchisee shall 
establish menu prices in its sole and absolute discretion. ifFranchiseehasasuggestionforanewmenu 
itemortorachangeto an authorized menu item or Franchisee desires to participate inatest market 
program, Franchisee must submitawritten application toFranchisor as set forth in the Manuals or 
otherwise by Franchisor (Any suggestion foranew menu item or forachange to an authorized menu 
item shall become the sole property ofFranchisor for the use with the System) Franchisee must obtain 
FranchisoBspriorwritten consent, which may be granted orwithheldinFranchisoBssole discretions 
to implementation FranchisoBsconsent to the sale ofanew menu item or any change to an authorized 
menuitem does not constitutearepresentation or guarantee by Franchisor as to the quality ofthe new or 
revised menu item Franchisee shall reimburseFranchisorthecosts it incurs in evaluatinganew menu 
item orachange to an authorized menu item. Franchisor reserves the right to withdraw its consent to any 
new menu item or any change to an authorized menu item requestedby Franchiseeif Franchisor 
determines, in its sole discretion, that such withdrawal is in the best interest of theSystem ^ i th respect 
to any test program to which Franchisor has consented, Franchisor shall determine, in its sole disc^^ 
the length of the test and whether to permit Franchisee to continue to sell the test product(s) after the 

conclusion ofthe test. 

Franchisee shall immediatelyclose theRestaurant and terminate operationsin the event that: 
(a)any product orservicesold at the Restaurant evidences adulteration ordeviation from the standards set 
for productsbyFranchisor;(h) any product or service sold at theRestaurant fails to comply with 
applicable laws or regulations; or (c) Franchisee fails to maintain the products, Premises, e q u ^ 
personnel, or operation of the Restaurant in accordance with any applicable law or regulation In the 
event of such closing, Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor in writing and Franchisee shaft 
destroy immediately in accordance with procedures set forth in the Manuals, or otherwise in writm^ 
Franchisor, all products which it knows, or should l^ow through the exercise of reasonable care, to be 
adulterated, tainted, contaminated, spoiled, unsafe, orotherwiseunfit fbrhumanconsumptionand 
eliminatethesourcethereof,andremedy any unsanitary,unsafe, or other condition or other violation of 
the applicable law or regulation Franchisee shall not reopen the Restaurant until after Franchisor has 
inspected the Premises, and Franchisor has determined that Franchisee has corrected the condition and 
that all products sold at the Restaurant comply with FranchisoBsstandards. 

Franchisor Approvah Franchisee shall not offer for sale any product or 
service, or install or use any equipment, material, furnishings, concept, ingredient,^ 
machine, entertainment device, marketing plan or other component ofthe Restaurant unless and until the 
product itself, labeling, method ofmarketing and method ofdelivery have been approved in w r ^ ^ 
Franchisor, in its sole discretion, as being consistent with all applicable specifications and withthe 

System. 
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6.1.4 Suppliers. All products sold or offered for sale at the Restaurant as well 
as equipment, supplies and materials used in the operation of the Restaurant shall meet Franchisor's 
then-current standards and specifications, as established in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. 
Franchisee shall purchase all such items solely from suppliers who demonstrate to Franchisor s 
continuing reasonable satisfaction the ability to meet Franchisor's standards and specifications, who 
possess adequate quality controls and capacity to supply Franchisee's needs promptly and reliably, and 
who have been approved by Franchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. Franchisee recognizes that 
Franchisor shall have the right to appoint only one manufacturer, distributor, reseller, and/or other vendor 
for any particular item, and that Franchisor may so designate itself or its affiliate. If Franchisee desires to 
purchase such items from other than approved suppliers, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor a written 
request to approve the proposed supplier, together with such evidence of conformity with Franchisor s 
specifications as Franchisor may reasonably require. Franchisor shall have the right to require that it be 
permitted to inspect the supplier's facilities and that samples from the supplier be delivered for evaluation 
and testing either to Franchisor or to an independent testing facility designated by Franchisor. A charge 
not to exceed the reasonable cost ofthe evaluation and testing shall be paid by Franchisee. Franchisor 
shall within thirty (30) days after its receipt ofsuch completed request and completion ofsuch evaluation 
and testing (if required by Franchisor), notify Franchisee in writing of its decision. Approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Franchisee shall not sell or offer for sale, or use in the operation ofthe Restaurant 
any ofthe above-described items ofthe proposed supplier until Franchisor's written approval is received. 
Franchisor may from time to time revoke its approval of particular items or suppliers when Franchisor 
determines, in its sole discretion, that such items or suppliers no longer meet Franchisor's standards. 
Upon receipt of written notice of such revocation. Franchisee shall cease to sell any disapproved products 
and cease to purchase from any disapproved supplier. Franchisor's failure to timely provide a written 
decision in response to any inquiry shaft not constitute default or be deemed an approval. 

6.1.5 Inventory. At the time the Restaurant opens, Franchisee shall stock and 
display the initial inventory of products, accessories, equipment, and supplies prescribed by Franchisor in 
the Manuals or otherwise in writing. Thereafter, Franchisee shall stock and maintain all types of 
approved products in quantities sufficient to meet reasonably anticipated customer demand. 

6.1.6 Use of Premises. Franchisee shall use the Premises solely for the 
operation ofthe Restaurant; shall keep the Restaurant open and in normal operation for such minimum 
hours and days as Franchisor may specify; and shaft refrain from using or permitting the use of the 
Premises for any other purpose or activity at any time without first obtaining the written consent ot 
Franchisor. 

6.1.7 Uniforms. Franchisor shall prescribe standard uniforms and attire for all 
System Restaurant personnel. Franchisee shall purchase approved uniforms and attire for the 
Restaurant's personnel only from Franchisor's approved suppliers). 

6.1.8 Music Programming. Franchisor shall prescribe music programming 
content and vendor(s) for all System Restaurants. Franchisee shall purchase approved music 
programming content for the Restaurant only from Franchisor's approved vendor(s). 

6.1.9 Refurbishing. Remodeling and Upgrading. Franchisee shall maintain 
the Restaurant (including all adjacent public areas) in a clean, safe, lawful and orderly condition and in 
excellent repair; and, in connection therewith. Franchisee shall, at its expense, refurbish, remodel, and 
upgrade the Restaurant, and make such additions, alterations, repairs, and replacements thereto (but no 
others without Franchisor's prior written consent) as may be required for that purpose, including, without 
limitation, modifications to existing improvements, such periodic repainting or replacement of obsolete 
signs, furnishings, equipment, and decor as Franchisor may reasonably direct. At Franchisor's request, 
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b ^ ^ m ^ o f t e n ^ o ^ ^ ^ 
Fmnchi^e shaft r e f i l l 
cu^^image^newSystomR^aura^s (which may in^^ 
dress, color schema and prc^af ton of the Marks (sec S c ^ ^ 
Franchisorrcscrvcsthcright,mftssolcdiscrcfton,torcqnftcftiatF^^ 
the term hereof, new cqnipmcn^^ 
System Restaurants Franchisee shaft ohtain Franchisor's prior,writtcn approval of aft ŝ ^̂  
nndcrthisScction^l^ 

^LIO System Changes Fmnchlsor,mfts sole discretion, shall he entitled 
from time to time to changcormodifythcSystcm,mclndmgmodiftcations to the Manuals,^ 
mennformats, thcrcqnircdcqnipmcnt, thcsignagc,thchnildingandprcmiscsofth^ 
(including the trade dress, decor and color schemes), the presentation of the Marks, the adopft^^ 
administrative forms and methods of reporting and of payment of any monies owed to Franchisor 
(including electronic means of reporting and payment) and the adoption and use of new or modified 
Marks or copyrighted materials Franchisee shall accept and use or display in the Restaurant any such 
changes ormodifications in the System as i f they wcrcapart of the System at the time this Agreement 
was executed, and Franchisee will, subject to the limitations ofScction619,makc such expen 
thcchangcsormodifications in the System may require Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in writing of 
any change, amendment, or improvement in the System which Franchisee proposes to make, and shall 

provide to Franchisor such information as Franchisor requests regarding the proposed change, 
amendment, orimprovement Franchisee acknowledges and agrees thatFranchisor shall have the rightto 
incorporate the proposed change, amendment, or improvement into the System and shall thereupon ohtam 
all right, title, and interest therein without compensation toFranchiscc. 

^ L t t Computer and Foint of-Satc Systems. 

^ L t L l Hardware Franchisee must utilize and maintain an 
operations computer andapoint-of-salc system including fiont^housc and hack-of-housc system 
specified hyFranchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing Friorto opening, Franchisee must 
establish, execute all agreements for, purchase aft necessary computer hardware, required dedicated 
telephone and power lines, high speed internet connections, modems, printers and other computc^^ 
accessory or peripheral equipment as Franchisor specifics in the Manuals or otherwise All of the 
foregoing must be able toprovidc Franchisor that information, in that format^mcdium, as Fr^^^ 

reasonably may specify ftom time totimc. 

^ L t t ^ Connectivity to Franchisor's Computer System 
Franchisee shall provide all assistance required by Franchisor tobring Franchiscc'scomputcr system on̂  
line with the computer system designated by Franchisor and maintained by Franchisor or its affiliates 
the earliest possible time. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor shall have the free and unfettered right to 
retrieve any dataandinformationfromF 
appropriate, with the telephonic cost of the retrieval to be borne by Franchisor, including 
polling the daily sales, menu mix and other data of the Restaurant. All of the hardware and software 
specified to be installed orpurchascd, or activities Franchisee is toaccomplish, and thcdclivcry cost of all 
hardware and software, shaft be atFranchiscc'scxpcnsc. 

^ L t t ^ Software Franchisee shalh (a) purchase or lease and use any 
software program, system documentation manuals and other materials that may be specified by 
Franchisor in connection with the operation ofthe Restaurant; (h)input and maintain in Franch^^ 
computer suchdata and informationasFranchisorprcscribcsinthcManuals,softwarc programs, 
documentation or otherwise; and (c)purchasc or lease and use any new orupgraded software programs, 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 10 01/14 



system documentation manuals and other materials when Franchisor adopts such new or upgraded 
programs, manuals and materials system-wide. 

6.1.11.4 Necessary Upgrades and Replacements. To ensure full 
operational efficiency and communication capability between Franchisor's computers and those of all 
System Restaurants, Franchisee agrees, at its expense, to keep its computer system in good maintenance 
and repair and to make additions, changes, modifications, substitutions and replacements to its computer 
hardware, software, telephone and power lines and other computer-related facilities as directed by 
Franchisor, and on the dates and within the times specified by Franchisor in its sole discretion. 
Franchisee acknowledges that computer systems are designed to accommodate a finite amount of data and 
terminals, and that, as these limits are reached, or as technology or software is developed in the future, 
Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, mandate that Franchisee: (a) add memory, ports and other 
accessories or peripheral equipment or additional, new or substitute software to the original computer 
system purchased by Franchisee; and (b) replace or upgrade the entire computer system with a larger 
system capable of assuming and discharging the computer-related tasks and functions specified by 
Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges that computer designs and functions change periodically and that 
Franchisor may desire to make substantial modifications to its computer specifications or to require 
installation of entirely different systems during the term of this Agreement or upon renewal of this 
Agreement. 

6.1.11.5 Non-Cash Payment Systems. Franchisee shall accept debit 
cards, credit cards, stored value gift cards or other non-cash systems existing or developed in the future to 
enable customers to purchase authorized products via such procedure, as specified by Franchisor, and 
shall obtain all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with these non-cash systems. 
Franchisee shall participate in Franchisor's approved stored value gift card program and shall only use 
Franchisor's approved gift card vendor(s). 

6.1.11.6 Incentive Programs. Franchisee shall offer for sale, and will 
honor for purchases by customers, any incentive or convenience programs which Franchisor may institute 
from time to time, and Franchisee shall do so in compliance with Franchisor's standards and procedures 
for such programs. 

6.1.12 Use of Marks. Franchisee shall ensure that all advertising and 
promotional materials, signs, paper goods, trade dress features, decorations, and other items specified by 
Franchisor bear the Marks in the form, color, location, and manner prescribed by Franchisor. 

6.1.13 Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement and 
thereafter, Franchisee covenants and agrees that it shall not communicate, divulge or use for the benefit of 
any other person, persons, partnership, limited liability company, association or corporation any 
confidential information of Franchisor, including any confidential information, knowledge or know-how 
concerning the methods of operation ofthe Restaurant which may be communicated to Franchisee or of 
which Franchisee may be apprised by virtue of Franchisee's operation under the terms ofthis Agreement. 
Franchisee shall divulge such confidential information only to such of Franchisee's employees, as must 
have access to it in connection with their employment. All such information, knowledge, and know-how, 
including the Manuals and all drawings, materials, equipment, recipes, computer and point-of-sale 
programs and output from such programs, all financial information concerning Franchisor and all other 
data which Franchisor designates as confidential shall be deemed confidential for purposes of this 
Agreement. Franchisee shall not at any time, without Franchisor's prior written approval, copy, 
duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce such materials or information, in whole or in part, or otherwise 
make the same available to any unauthorized person. 
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^L14 Franchise Obfigafion to Sur^nder New P ^ e ^ s or 
improvements to F r a n ^ o ^ W i t h o u t C o m p e n ^ t ^ ^ F ^ h ^ d ^ o p s ^ n e w process or 
improveme^m^edevelopment, operation or promofion of System 
promptly notifyFranebisor and provideFranehisor with aii necessary m ^ 
without compensation Franchisee acl^owiedgesthatanysnch process orimprov^^ 
property ofFranchisor and Franchisor may utilize or disclose such information to ot̂ ^^ 
developers under theSystem,and to others. 

^ L t 5 Customer Satisfaction In order to (among other things) maintain and 
enhance the goodwill associated with the Marks, the System and each System Restaurant, Franchî ^^ 
agrees to participate in such programs for verifying customer satisfaction and̂ or Franchisee comph^ 
with all operational and other aspects of the System, including (hut not limited to)an^numhe4 
customer satisfaction surveys, secret shoppers or other programs as Franchisor may require Franchisor 
will share the results of such programs, as theypertain to the Restaurant, with Franchisee Franchisee ŵ ^̂  
reimhurseFranchisorfor all costs associated with any and all such programs 

^ L t 6 CustomerData Franchisee agrees that all data that it collects from 
customers and potential customers in connection with the Restaurant ("Customer Data") is deemed 
owned exclusively hyFranchisor,and Franchisee also agrees to provide theCustomer Data to Franchisor 
atanytimethatFranchisorrequests Franchisee has the rightto useCustomer Data while this Agreement 
orarenewal Franchise Agreement is in effect, hut only in connection with operating the Restaurant and 
only in accordance with the policies that Franchisor establishes from time to time Franchisee may not 
sell, transferor share CustomerDatawithoutpriorexpress written authorizationfromFranchisor 
However, ifFranchisee transfers the Restaurant(as provided in Sectionl^helow), as pa 
Franchisee must also transfer use of the Customer Data to the buyer as part of the total purchase price 

paid for the Restaurant. 

6.2 Duality Controis and Supervision 

6.2.t General Franchisee acknowledges that the Premises and everything 
located at the Premises shall be maintained in first class condition and repair and shall be kept neat, clean 
and sanitary Any maintenance or repairs requested by Franchisor shall be promptly performed All 
employees ofFranchisee shall at all times be courteous, clean andneat in appearance 

6.2.2 Regulatory Compliance Franchisee shall take all steps necessary to 
avoid any unsatisfactory or equivalent rating from any agency or entify or from Franchisor r e g a ^ 
safety or sanitation at the Premises Franchisee promptly shall correct any deficiencies found to exist, 
except that Franchiseemay,withprior written approvalofFranchisor,contestingood faith any 
deficiencies found to exist by any agency or entity acting under authority of any state or local agency. 
Franchisee shallpromptlysendFranchisoracopy of any notice Franchisee receives of regulatory 

noncompliance, violation orpenalty. 

6.2.3 Manager Designation: Residence: Testing Reuuirements Franchisee 
shall designate an individual who will have fiilLtimeresponsibilify for overall management 
day operations of the Restaurant and who will devote best efforts and constant personal attention to 
operations ("General Manager") Franchisee shall require that the General Manager and each of 
Franchisee's employees who serve as Restaurant managers to maintain his or her principal personal 
residence withinausual driving time of not more that approximately one (1) hour from tbe Restau^^ 
Franchisor reserves the right torequire that, asacondition of his or her employment,the General 
Managersuccessfully complete an interview process andapsychological profile test inamanner that 
satisfies Franchisor The General Manager must have the right to earn at leastlO^of the net operating 
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profit o f ^ R ^ u ^ n ^ ^ d u r i n g ^ 
tormof^Ag^men4^e^mgGen^ Manage 
no l o n ^ ^ i f i ^ t o ^ ^ ^ G e n ^ Manage 
d ^ n a t o a ^ ^ m e n t G e n ^ Manage wfthin^^ 
c e ^ t o ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
Fmnohiseewift provide for intorim management o f ^ 
this Agreement, nntd the replacement General Manager is designated and t r a ^ After opening the 
Restanrant,Franehiseeshall employ and eontinne to employ,at least one (1) Generals 
kitchen manager, and three^assistantm 
trainingprogramprovidedhy Franchisor, described in 5eetion7^ IfFranchisee or its affiliates operate 
more than fonr^System Restaurants, Franchisee shall he required to designate an m^̂  
hyFranchisortosupervisethe System Restaurants ("Regional Managers Franchisee shall notify 
Franchisor of the identity of the Regional Manager no later than ninety (9^ days before t^^ 
the fourth(^System Restaurant 

Insuectious Franchisee shall cooperate with Franchisor during all 
inspections of the Premises by Franchisor and shall promptly correct any deficiencies found to exist. 

Following each inspection. Franchisor wift 
Premises evaluation and identifying those conditions at the Restaurant that must be reĉ ^ 
shall take all necessary steps to immediately correct any deficiencies detected during these inspec^^ 
(regardless ofFranchisee'sinventory), including, without limitation, ceasing fu^ 
menu items and ceasing further use of any equipment, advertising materials or supplies that do not 
conform with the standards and requirements promulgated by Franchisor from time to time Franchisee 
acknowledges that Franchisor may reinspect tbe Premises to determine whether Franchisee has corrected 
any such deficiencies, but Franchisor is not required to do so Any failure by Franchisee to rectify any 
deficiency inavisit report will constituteadefault of this Agreement Recognizing that the failure of 
Franchisee to meet the FranchisoBsstandards required in the System may endanger tbe reputation and 
operations of other System Restaurants as well as potentially endangerthe general public, France 
Franchisor agree that in the event that operations at the Restaurant fall below FranchisoBss^ 
the System, Franchisor may,in its sole discretion, in addition to and not in lieu of its right to t e ^ ^ 
this Agreement, have tbe right to require that Franchisee discontinue all operations at the Restam 
close theRestaurant tothepublicuntilFranchiseeis able to establishtoFranchisor's reasonable 
satisfaction that operations atthe Restaurantmeetorexceed the Franchisor'sstandardsfor^ 

Franchisee Coutrof Fhe success of Franchisee's efforts to operatea 
System Restaurant so as to maximize sales and profits rests solely with Franchisee Franchisor shall 
make such recommendations as it deems appropriate to assist Franchisee'sefforts However, Franchisee 
alone shall establish any requirementsregarding (a) employment policies,wages, hours of labor, 
assignments and responsibilities of employees; (h) the price charged for any product sold in or at 
Premises, or the individual or individuals to whom such products may be sold; provided, however, thâ  
Franchiseemayberequiredtocomply with such reasonable restrictions on the maximum prices of 
specific goods and services offeredandsoldhereunder as Franchisormayreasonablyrequire from time to 
time in tbe Manuals or otherwise in writing; and(c)the source from which Franchiseeobtains a 
serviceusedinoratthePremisesforwhichFrancbisorhasnotestablishedanapprovedsupplier 

6.3 Misceiianeous Duties. During tbe term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall at 

all times: 

6.3^ Licenses Obtain and maintain all business, occupational, health, liquor 
control and other licenses necessary for lawful operation ofthe Restaurant; 
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Trained and Coupons Staff Mam^nacompe to^con^nf io^ 
earned staff ^acb of whom shaft have been ftamedm 
are necessary to ensme that fts emcees reserve good enstomerrela^^ 
eonrteons, and knowledgeable service; meet s ^ 
time to time in the Manuals; and handle all customer complaints, refunds, re^^ 
inamannerthatwillnotdetractftom tbe name and goodwill ofFrancbisor; 

Promote Business Diligently promote, advertise and make every effort 
to increase tbe business and Gross Revenues, defined below; 

UseofMarks Use the Marks only in such manner and on such items as 
shall bespecificallysetforth in the Manuals orotherwiseapprovedin writing by Franchisor; 

Comnfiance with Laws Comply fully with all laws, regulations and 
rulings applicable to tbe operationsofthe Restaurant; 

ActiveivOperateRestaurant ActivelyoperatetheRestaurantand 
open the Restaurantforbusiness as required in the Manuals andFranchisee'slease; and 

Lease or SuhieaseComniiance Comply with all terms ofits lease and 
all other agreements affecting the operation of the Restaurant; undertake best efforts to m ^ ^ ^ 
and positive working relationship with its landlord and̂ or lessor; and refrain from any a c t ^ 
jeopardize Franchisee's right to remain in possession of, or to renew the lease or sublease for, the 

Premises. 

7. TRAtNtNC 

^ t Owner Orientation Program. Before Franchisee opens its first System 
Restaurant, Franchisee'sControlling Principal (as defined in Section 15^shallafte^^ 
Franchisor'ssatisfaction,theOwnerOrientationProgramFheOwnerOrientationP^ 
(5) days and will be conducted at Franchisor's corporate headquartersinLeawood, Kansas and̂ or at 
System Restaurants operated by Franchisor (or an affiliate of Francbisor^inthe greater metropolit^^ 
Kansas City area Franchisor may extend the length of tbe Owner Orientation Program in its sole 
discretion. Francbisee'sownersmay also choose to attend the Owner Orientation Program. Franchisor 
shallbearall administrative expenses fortheOwnerOrientation Program, provided thatFr^^^ 
pay all travel, living and other expenses incurred by Franchisee's owners while attending the Owner 

Orientation Program 

7.2 tnitiai Training Prior to the opening of the Restaurant, Franchisor shall train 
the Restaurant's General Manager and that number ofkitchen managers, assistant managers and other 
personnel as are required by Franchisor and, subject to availability of space in the training session 
Franchisor'spriorapproval,suchothermanagerialemployees as Franchisee shall desire to have trained 
theoperationoftheRestaurant At least five(^day-to^daymanagers(theCeneral Manager, t^^ 
manager, and tlû ee (3) assistant managers) of the Restaurant shall attend and successfiillycomp^ 
training programprovidedby Franchisor Suchpre-openingtrainingsballtakeplaceat System 
Restaurants operated by Franchisor(oranafftlia^^ 
area, or, inFranchisor'sdiscretion, at Franchisee'sRestaurant, orthe location of anot̂ ^̂  
Restaurant The training program shaft last approximately eight (8) weeks and shall be completed no 
earlierthanfifty(^)daysandnolatertbantwenty-eight(^)dayspriortothescheduledop^^^^ 
Restaurant Thetrainingshall consist of actual performance by the trainees of jobs performedmthe 
operation of the Restaurant There shall be no tuition fee charged for such initial training program, 
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however Franchisee will be required to pay all expenses incurred by Franchisee's employees while 
attending the training program such as all travel, living and food costs (including, but not limited to, the 
cost of any meals served at the System Restaurant during the training program). All out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by Franchisor in presenting all or part of this program shall be reimbursed by 
Franchisee. 

7.3 Food Safety and Responsible Beverage Serving Training. 

7.3.1 Franchisee's General Manager and those kitchen managers, assistant 
managers and other personnel designated by Franchisor must attend and successfully complete food 
safety and responsible beverage serving courses approved by Franchisor and any other local or state 
required food safety and responsible beverage serving course(s). Franchisor does not currently offer such 
courses Franchisee will be required to pay all tuition or other fees charged by any third party instructor 
in connection with these courses and all travel, living and other expenses incurred by Franchisee's 
employees while attending these courses. Franchisee must provide Franchisor evidence of Franchisee's 
compliance with this Section 7.3.1 before Franchisor will authorize the opening ofthe Restaurant. 

7.3.2 Franchisee must hire third party vendors approved by Franchisor to 
conduct periodic (as defined from time to time by Franchisor in its sole discretion) audits of the 
Restaurant to confirm that Franchisee's operation of the Restaurant meets the vendors' highest food 
safety, sanitation and responsible beverage standards. Franchisee will be responsible for paying all fees 
charged by the third party vendor in connection with these audits. Upon reasonable request by 
Franchisor, Franchisee shall provide, or direct its vendors to provide, a copy of the audit results to 
Franchisor. 

7.4 Pre-Oneninr Training Team. For a period of approximately two (2) weeks 
beginning approximately eight (8) days prior to the opening of the Restaurant, Franchisor shall send to the 
Restaurant a pre-opening training team to assist Franchisee in training the employees necessary for the 
opening and the initial and continued operation of the Restaurant. Franchisee must give Franchisor at 
least thirty (30) days' advance notice of the opening. Franchisor will not send a pre-opening training 
team to the Restaurant until: (a) Franchisee has installed a fully operational and approved point-of-sale 
system at the Restaurant; (b) Franchisee has hired adequate staff to operate the Restaurant as determined by 
Franchisor; (c) the minimum number of Restaurant managers, as required by Franchisor, have completed 
Franchisor's initial training program and any required food safety and responsible beverage serving courses; 
and (d) the Restaurant has received a certificate of occupancy. Franchisor may delay the scheduled arrival 
ofits employees if it determines, in its sole discretion, that the Restaurant building is not safe or not ready 
to begin training. Franchisor will provide the training team without tuition or charge to Franchisee, but 
Franchisee will be responsible for the out-of-pocket expenses of the trainers, including without limitation, 
all travel, living and food costs. (In the event Franchisor provides point-of-sale installation and training. 
Franchisee will be responsible for a service fee as well as Franchisor's out-of-pocket expenses incurred m 
the provision of such services.) At Franchisor's request, prior to the arrival of the pre-opening training 
team, the General Manager ofthe Restaurant, or the person to whom the General Manager reports, may 
be required to attend the pre-opening training of another System Restaurant for a period of up to three (3) 
days Franchisee will be required to pay all expenses incurred by Franchisee's employee while attending 
this pre-opening training such as all travel, living and food costs (including, but not limited to, the costs of 
any meals served at the System Restaurant during the pre-opening training). 

7.5 Ongoing Training. Franchisor shall provide ongoing training programs for new 
general, kitchen, or assistant managers in the event ofthe resignation, termination, disability, incapacity 
or death of existing managers and, at the option of Franchisor, in the event of the expansion of new 
Restaurant business. Such programs shall be made available to Franchisee, subject to availability of 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 15 0 1 / 1 4 



^ m m g ^ f t f t ^ ^ 
d^ribedmSecfton^above New manage must aftend and ^ c ^ ^ f y c o m p ^ t o ^ ^ 
ongoing imtial naming p^gram offered by F r a ^ There sbail be no fee charged by Franebisor to 
Franchisee for sneh training, but a n y o n e 
ongoing training sbatibereimbnrsedby Franchisee tnaddition,newmanagersnrnst attendand 
snccessfntty compete the food safety and responsible beverage serving courses appr̂ ^^ 
and any other local or state required food safety and responsible beverage serving course(s) as des 
in Sections Franchisee will be required to pay all tuition or other fees charged by any third party 
instructorin connection with these courses and all travel, living andotber expenses incurredby 
Francbisee'semployees while attending these courses. 

7.6 Additional Training. From time to time, Franchisor may require that 
Franchisee and its employees complete refresher training to improve the operations and quality at the 
Restaurant or to learn new techniques for the operation of the Restaurant or the preparation of menu 
items Such training will be required as Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines is necessa^ 
maintaincompliancewith Franchisor's standards and will be atalocation designated by Franch^ 
Franchisorreserves the right to chargeareasonable tuition fee for such programs in addition to the two 
(^week training program described in Section74, Franchisor may provide, at Franchisee's expense, 
such other on-site pre-opening and opening supervision and assistance as Franchisor deems advisable. 
There shall be no fee or other charge fr^r these additional services, but Franchisee shall be responsible 
all ofFranchisor'sout-of-pocketexpenses incurred in the provision of such additional services m^̂  
without limitation, all travel, living and food costs. 

7.7 Training Costs All travel, living, food costs (including the cost of any meals 
served atthe SystemRestaurant while attending the training) andassociatedcosts incurredby 
Franchisee'semployees in training, including the salary,taxes or other compensation of the trainee 
payments with respectthereto, shall bethe sole responsibility ofFranchisee 

8. LtQUORLtCFNSE 

Failure to Obtain Licenses The right to operateaSystem Restaurant pursuant 
to this Agreement is conditioned upon the ability of Franchisee to obtain and maintain required state 
and̂ or local licenses permitting the sale of alcoholic beverages at the Restaurant Franchisee agrees to 
use its best efforts to obtain such licenses and maintain same in good standing during tbe term of this 
Agreement lf^ despite the good faith efforts ofFranchisee, Franchisee is unable to obtain the license(s) 
necessary for the sale of alcoholic beverages and the operation of the Restaurant in accordance with the 
terms ofthis Agreement bythe time the Restaurant is otherwise readyfor opening, Franchisormay^ 
sole option of Franchisor, terminate this Agreement effective immediately on receipt by Fra^^ 
written notice to such effect. In such event, tbe non-competition provisions hereof shall not apply,butthe 
nondisclosure provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

8.2 Repeated Violations In tbe event that Franchisee is prohibited by a 
governmental authority from offering alcoholic beverages at the Restaurant on more than two 
(2) occasions (other than routine occasions on which Franchisee is prohibited by applicable law f r^^ 
offeringalcoholicbeverages for sale from the Restaurant, such asalocal prohibition on tbe sale of 
alcoholicbeveragesonSunday) during any continuous twelve(12) month period, including because o 
violations offederal, state or local liquor laws, then, at the option ofFranchisor, this 
immediately terminateduponreceiptbyFrancbiseeofwrittennotice from Francbisorto such effect 
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9. F R A N C H I S E E S 

9.1 Ini^EranchiseEeeand Royaft^ Aspart i^considemftonof^ehce^ 
rights and franchise g^ todh^m,Fr8ncb i^ shaft 

9.1.1 InifialEranchiscEee. An iniftai franchise tee in the amount set forth in 
ExhihitB^ftf t t iaiFmnehise^ 
Franchisor for administrative and other expenses incurred hyFranchisor and 
deferred asaresuft of the rightsgranted herein FhelnitiatFranchiseFeeisdueandpayahieto 
Franchisor^infuft,at the time of the execution of this Agreement; and 

9.1^ Rov^vFce Acontinuing weekly royalty fee throughout the term 
hereofin an amount equal to fourpercent^^oftheCross Revenues ofthe Restaurant 

9.2 Cross Revenue Inclusions Fhe term "Cross Revenues" means all revenues or 
receipts of any kind constituting the actuals 
charge account, harter, exchange or otherwise, derived from the operation of the Restaurant, including 
withoutlimitation,allrevenues or receipts from all goods,wares and merchandise (including sales of 
food, heverages and tangible property of every kind and nature, promotional or otherwise) and s e r v ^ 
sold from the Fremises, all catering business, special events or other revenue derived from the utilization 
oftheMarksand^orconftdentialorproprietaryinft^rmation licensed underthis Agreement, w h e ^ 
the food is prepared at the Fremises and whether or not the orders are taken or tilled at tbe Premises 
Cross Revenues shall not be reduced by any(a)deductions for cash shortages incurred in connection with 
the transaction ofbusiness with customers,^ 
by insurance or is not reported to the appropriate authorities. 

9.3 CrossRevenueExciusions Fheterm"CrossRevenues"sball not include: 
(a) the sale of items for which cash has been refunded or, except as set forth above, not received, or 
allowances made for merchandise, i f the sales of any such items shall have been previously included in 
Cross Revenues, (h) the amount of any sales tax imposed by any federal, state, municipal or other 
governmental authority directly on sales and intended to be collected from customers, provided that th^ 
amount thereof is added to the selling price and actually paid by Franchisee to such governmental 
authority,(c) the sale of merchandise for whichagift certificate or stored value gift card is redeemed, 
provided that the initial sale of such gift certificate or stored value gift card shall have been prev^^ 
included in Cross Revenues, (d) the sale of meals to employees, and (e) one-time sales of furniture, 

fixtures and equipment. 

9.4 Cross Revenue Receipt. Cross Revenues are deemed received when the sale is 
made or product or service delivered to the customer, whichever first occurs. Each charge or sale upon 
installment or credit shall be treated asasale for the full price in the week during which such charge or 
sale shall be first made, irrespective of the time when Franchisee receives payment (whether full or 

partial). 

9.5 Weekly Reports: FavmentofEees No later than Tuesday at^OOFM Central 
Time of each week (Monday through Sunday), Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor (by fax, e-mail^o 
other electronic transmission or by other means reasonably specified by Francbisor)areport disclosing 
the amount ofCross Revenues from the Restaurant during tbe preceding calendarweek Franchisee shall 
pay toFranchisor (by electronic funds transfer or by such other form or method as Franchisor may 
designate)theRoyalty Fees and advertisingcontributions applicable totheCrossRevenuesof the 
Restaurant for tbe preceding week and any other amounts owed under this Agreement on or before 5^0 
FM Central Time on Wednesday of each week based upon the Cross Revenues for the preceding week 
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(Monday to Sunday) At berime the w ^ y tees repaid, Franehiseeshaft alsoprovide sneh 
doenmentation of the Cross Revenues and expenses and reports on the operate 
sneh forms as Franchisor shaft from time to time require. 

9.6 ElcetrouicFuuds Transfer 

9.6.1 Franchisee shaft participate inan eiectronic ftmds transfer program 
estahftshed hyFranchisor that authorizes Franc 
Royalty Fees and advertising contrihutionscaicuiated on the hasisofCross Revenues and other amounts 
owed under this Agreement must he received hyFranchisor or credited toFranchisor'saccounthy pre-
authorized hank dehithefore^OpmCentralFime of each Wednesday ("Due Oate'^ 
Date, Franchisor wift transfer from the Restaurant'scommerciat hank operating account ("Accounts 
amountreported to Franchisorin Franchisee's remittance report or determined hy Franchisor h y ^ 
recordscontainedinthepoint-of-sale^computer terminals of theRestaurant tfFranchiseehasnot 
reported Cross Revenues to Franchisor for any fiscal period, Franchisormay transferfrom the Account an 
amount calculated in accordance with its estimate of the Cross Revenues during the fiscal period if, at 
any time, Franchisor determines that Franchisee has underreported the Cross Revenues ofthe Restaurant, 
or underpaid the Royalty Fee or other amounts due to Franchisor under this Agreement, or any other 
agreement, Franchisor may initiate an immediate transfer from the Account in the appropriate amount in 
accordance with the foregoing procedure Any overpayment wift he credited to the Account effective as 
ofthe first reporting date after Franchisor and Franchisee determine that such credit is due. 

9.6.2 in connection with payment ofthe Royalty Fee, advertising contrihutions 
and other amounts owed under this Agreement hy electronic funds transfer, Franchisee shall: (a) comply 
with procedures specified hyFranchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing; (h) perform 
and sign and deliver those documents as may he necessary to accomplish payment hy electronic funds 
transfer as described in this Section96;(c)give Franchisor an authorization in the form d e s ^ 
Franchisortoinitiate debit entries and̂ or credit correction entries tothe Account for payments of the 
Royalty Fee and other amounts payable under this Agreement; and(d) make sufficient funds available in 
the Account for withdrawal by electronic funds transfer no later than tbe Due Date for payments 
FailurebyFranchiseetohave sufficient funds in the Account shaft constituteadefault ofthis Agreement 

9.6.3 Notwithstanding tbe provisions of this Section96, Franchisor reserves 
the right to modify,by giving noticeto Franchisee, the method by which Franchisee pays tbe Royalty 
Fees, advertisingcontributions and other amounts owed underthis Agreement 

9.7 Interest. i f any payment is overdue. Franchisee shaft pay Franchisor 
immediateiy upon demand, in addition to the overdue amount, interest on such amount from the date it 
was due until paid, at the rate ofeighteen percent ( t ^ ) per annum, or tbe maximum rate permitted by 
law, whichever is less Fntitiement to such interest shaft be in addition toany other remedies Franchisor 
may have. 

9.8 Right to Offset All amounts, if any, owed by Franchisor, or its affiliates, to 
Franchisee may be offset by Franchisor in whole or in part against any amounts owed by Franchiseeto 
Franchisor or its affiliates, and in the event of such offset, Franchisor shall notify Franchisee of the ft 
and the amount of such offset Franchisee shall not be entitled toset off any payments required to be 
made underthis Agreement againstany monetary claim it may have against Franchisor 
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10. MARKETING AND MARKETING FUND 

10.1 Genera F ^ c b i ^ a ^ o w ^ ^ a n d u n ^ ^ s ^ m ^ ^ 
^ ^ e g ^ w t h and name r e c ^ Franchisee recognizes the valne of 
marketing and the importance of the standardization of marketing p rog^^ 
goodwill and pnhhc image of the System Franchisor shall from time to time assist Franchisee in 
developing materials and activities de 

administer marketing and sales promotion programs designed to promote and enhance the collective 

success of all SystemRestanrants^ 
decisions shall he final and binding in all phases of marketing and promotion, inclndingw 
limitation, type, quantity, placement and choice of media, market areas and advertisingagencies 
Franchisee shall have therightto participate actively in all snchmarketing and sales promotion pr̂ ^^ 
hut only in frill and complete accordance with such terms and conditions as may he established hy 
Franchisor for each such program In addition, Franchisee must participate in marketing programs each 
calendar year that are mandated by Franchisor. Expenditures made for participation in such programs 
underthis SectionlOlshall be credited to Franchisee'slocal advertising obligations desc 
lO^lbelow 

10.2 Required Marketing Expenditures Franchisee shall make annual expenditures 
for local advertising and promotions (as described in Section 10 21) and weekly contribute 
Fund (as described in Section 1022) and^oraMarket Cooperative (as described in 1 0 2 3 ) ^ ^ 
least one and seven tenths ofapercent( l^)ofCross Revenues ofthe Restaurant Franchî ^^ 
the right, from time-to-time, in its sole discretion and upon written notice to Franchiŝ ^̂  
and^orincreaseFranchisee'srequiredtotal annual expenditures for such local advertising 
and̂ or contributions to the Fund oraMarket Cooperative, up to an amount not exceeding four and one-
halfpercent(4^)ofCross Revenues ofthe Restaurant, commencingthe week afrerFranchisorprov^ 

written notice to Franchisee. 

10.2.1 Uocai Advertising. 

10.2.1.1 Listings Francbisee,at its solecostandexpense, shall 
obtain listings in bold type in the white pages directory of the local public telephoned 
underthe name "Houliban'sBFranchisee shall also participate in and pay its pro rata share ofthe coŝ  
yellow pages advertising to be placed by Franchisor on behalf of all other local System Restaurants 
operated by other franchisees and̂ or Franchisor i f no other System Restaurants are located within 
Restaurant'sarea of dominant infiuence, Franchisee, at its option and sole cost and expense, may obtam 
display type advertisements in the yellow pages directory of the local public telephone u t ^ 
Franchiseealso shall obtain any on-linedirectory listings that Franchisorspecifiesi^ 

10.2.1.2 Annroved Media Without Franchisor's prior written 
approval, whichmay be withheld forany reason, Franchisee shall restrict its other local adv^̂ ^̂  
following: (a) newspapers, magazines and other such periodicals; (h) radio and television; (c) outdoor 
advertising by signs displayed on billboards or buildings; (d) transit advertising; (e)l^^^ 
electronic mail; and (f)directmail Franchisee will be solely responsible for compliance with any laws 
pertaining to sending electronic mail including, but not limited to, the Controlling^^ 
Solicited Pornography and Proprietary Marketing Act of 2003 (known as the "CAN-SFAM Act of 

2003") 

10.2.1.3 Records of Expenditures Franchisor shall have the right at 
all times to review Franchisee'sbooks and records, and to require Franchisee to produce evidence o f i ^ 
local advertising expenditures to ensure Franchisee'scompliance with this Agreement 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 19 0 1 / 1 4 



10.2.1.4 Conformance with Standards. All advertising and other 
materials employed by Franchisee in local promotional activities shall be in strict accordance and 
conformity with the standards, formats and specimens contained in the Manuals and shall be subject to 
prior approval ofFranchisor. In no event shall Franchisee's advertising contain any statement or material 
which may be considered (a) in bad taste or offensive to the public or to any group of persons, 
(b) defamatory of any person, (c) to infringe upon tbe use without permission of any other person's trade 
name, trade mark, service mark or identification, or (d) inconsistent with the public image of Franchisor 
or of the System. 

10.2.1.5 Approval Requirements. Franchisee shall obtain 
Franchisor's approval of all advertising and promotional plans and material prior to use if such plans and 
materials have not been prepared by Franchisor or previously approved by Franchisor during the past 
year. In the event Franchisee wishes to deviate from the materials contained in the Manuals, Franchisee 
shall submit in each instance the proposed advertising copy and materials to Franchisor for approval in 
advance of any commitment by Franchisee to production or publication. Franchisee shall submit such 
unapproved plans and material to Franchisor (by personal delivery, through the mail, return receipt 
requested, or email), and Franchisor shall approve or disapprove such plans and materials within twenty 
(20) days from the date of receipt thereof by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not use such plans or materials 
until they have been approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall promptly discontinue use of any 
advertising or promotional plans or materials, whether or not previously approved, upon notice from 
Franchisor. 

10.2.2 Marketing Fund. 

10.2.2.1 Establishment of Fund. Franchisor has established a 
marketing fund to which Franchisor has the right to require Franchisee to contribute as described in this 
Section 10.2.2 ("Fund"). Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the Fund is intended to maximize 
general public recognition and acceptance of the System and Marks. Monies paid to the Fund shall be 
required marketing expenditures provided in Section 10.2 and allocated to a separate "marketing account" 
established by Franchisor. 

10.2.2.2 Contribution. Currently, Franchisee must contribute seven 
tenths of one percent (0.7%) of Gross Revenues to the Fund. From time to time, Franchisor shall advise 
Franchisee in writing of the amount of Franchisee's required contribution to the Fund. Contributions to 
the Fund shall be made by Franchisee on a weekly basis at the same time and in the same manner as the 
Royalty Fee. 

10.2.2.3 Use of Fund. Franchisee agrees that the Fund shall be 
maintained and administered by Franchisor as follows: 

10.2.2.3.1 Franchisor shall direct all advertising programs 
with sole discretion to approve or disapprove the creative concepts, material and media used in such 
programs and the placement and allocation thereof. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the Fund is 
intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance, and use of the System and Marks, and that 
Franchisor is not obligated, in administering the Fund, to make expenditures for Franchisee which are 
equivalent or proportionate to its contribution, or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly 
or pro rata from expenditures by the Fund. Franchisor utilizes the Fund for creative development of the 
Houlihan's brand. 

10.2.2.3.2 Franchisee agrees that the Fund, all 
contributions thereto, and any earnings thereon, shall be used to meet any and all costs of maintaining, 
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administering, directing, conducting, and preparing advertising, marketing, public relations and/or 
promotional programs and materials, retail support programs, and any other activities which Franchisor 
believes will enhance the image of the System and Marks, including, without limitation, marketing 
research and surveys, the cost of preparing and conducting television, radio, email, digital web, magazine 
and newspaper advertising campaigns; direct mail and outdoor billboard advertising; point-of-sale 
promotional materials and premiums used for merchandising purposes; public relations activities; 
customer satisfaction activities; employing advertising agencies and/or public relations agencies to assist 
therein; purchasing promotional items, conducting and administering in-store promotions; and providing 
promotional and other advertising or marketing materials and services to the System Restaurants. 

10.2.2.3.3 All sums paid by Franchisee to the Fund shall be 
separately accounted for by Franchisor and shall not be used to defray any of Franchisor's general 
operating expenses, except for such reasonable administrative costs and overhead as Franchisor may incur 
in activities reasonably related to the administration, direction, and implementation of the Fund and 
advertising programs for franchisees and the System and Marks, including, but not limited to, costs of 
personnel for creating and implementing advertising, promotional, and marketing programs. The Fund is 
not and shall not be an asset of Franchisor. 

10.2.2.3.4 Franchisor, upon request, shall provide 
Franchisee with an annual accounting of receipts and disbursements of the Fund. Franchisee 
acknowledges and agrees that the Fund is not a trust fund; that Franchisee has no third party beneficiary 
rights with respect to the Fund; that Franchisor is not a fiduciary of monies in the Fund; and that 
Franchisor has no fiduciary obligations to Franchisee with respect to the Fund. 

10.2.2.3.5 It is anticipated that all contributions to, and 
earnings of, the Fund shall be expended for advertising and/or promotional purposes during the taxable 
year within which the contributions are made. If, however, excess amounts remain in the Fund at the end 
of such taxable year, all expenditures in the following taxable year(s) shall be made first out of 
accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of earnings in the current year, and finally from 
contributions. 

10.2.2.3.6 Although Franchisor intends the Fund to be of 
perpetual duration, Franchisor maintains the right to terminate the Fund. The Fund shall not be 
terminated, however, until all monies in the Fund have been expended for advertising and/or promotional 
purposes or returned to contributors on the basis of their respective contributions. 

10.2.3 Market Cooperative. Franchisor shall have the right to designate any 
geographical area for purposes of establishing a market advertising and promotional cooperative fund 
("Market Cooperative"). I f a Market Cooperative for the geographic area in which the Restaurant is 
located has been established at the time Franchisee opens the Restaurant, Franchisee shall immediately 
become a member of such Market Cooperative, unless otherwise permitted by Franchisor. If a Market 
Cooperative for the geographic area in which the Restaurant is located is established during the term of 
this Agreement, Franchisee shall become a member of such Market Cooperative within thirty (30) days 
after the date on which the Market Cooperative is formed, unless otherwise permitted by Franchisor. In 
no event shall Franchisee be required to be a member of more than one (1) Market Cooperative. Any 
contributions to a Market Cooperative will be credited against Franchisee's local advertising 
expenditures. The following provisions shall apply to each such Market Cooperative: 

10.2.3.1 Each Market Cooperative shall be organized (including but 
not limited to bylaws and other organizational documents) and governed in a form and manner, and shall 
commence operations on a date, approved in advance by Franchisor in writing. Unless otherwise 
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L i f t e d by F m n c b ^ 
m^orifyvotoofftsmemb^ A n y R ^ a u ^ ^ ^ ^ n c b ^ o p ^ t o s m t b e ^ ^ 
voting rigb^astbose owned b y ^ f r a n c b i s ^ EaebRestanrant owner sbaft be entitled to cast one^) 
vote tor eaeb Restaurant owned. 

1 0 ^ 2 EaebMarketCooperativesbail be organized fortbeexeinsive 
purpose ofadministering regional advertising programs and developing, snbĵ ^^ 
standardized promotional materials fornse by tbe members in local advertising and promotion 

1 0 ^ ^ No advertising orpromotional plans or materials may be used 
byaMarket Cooperative or fnrnisbed to its members witbont tbe prior approval ofFrancbisor,^ 
tbe procedures and terms as set fortb in Section 10^15above and all advertising sballadb^ 
standards set fortb in SectionlO.2.1.4. 

10^4 Francbisee sball submit its required contribution to tbe Market 
Cooperative at tbe same time and in tbe same manner as tbe Royalty Fee and Fund contributions, together 
witbsucb statements or reports as may be required by Franchisor or by tbe Market Cooperative witb 
FranebisoBspriorwritten approval i f so requested by Franchisor in writing, Franchisee shall submit its 
payments and reports to tbe Market Cooperative directly to Franchisor for distribution to th^ 

Cooperative. 

10^5 Although once established, each Market Cooperative is intended to be of 
perpetual duration, Franchisor maintains the right to terminate any Market Coopera^ AMarket 
Cooperative shall not be terminated, however, until all monies in that Market Cooperative have been 
expended foradvertisingand^orpromotional purposes. 

FiectrouicFreseuce. 

10^1 Auurovai Rcuuircmcuts. Francbiseeacknowledges and agrees that 
Franchisee sball not be permitted to baveawebsite or use any of tbe Marks or any other word, name, 
symbol or device which is likely to cause confusion with any of the Marks through any Electronic 
Presence without FrancbisoBspriorwritten consent, which Franchisormay witl^old for any ornor^^^ 
"Electronic Presence" means any presence on the internet or any other online, mobile, or electrom 
network, including but not limited to any URE, domain name, website, meta-tag, download,^ 
posting, social networking profile, directory listing, blog,vlog, email accounts 
texting identity, user generated content, or other electronic identifier In connection with any such 
consent, Franchisormay establish such requirements as it deems appropriate, includingwitboutli^^^ 
obtainingprior written approval of ( ^ anylntemetdomainname,URE,website, social networking 
profile,blog,email account, text address, or other electronic identifier^h)the proposed f^ 
(including anyvisibleandnon-visiblecontentsucbasmeta-tags)ofany Electronic 
Restaurant; (c) all website pages, materials, and content used in any Electronic Presence; (d) use of â̂ ^ 
hyperlinks and other links; and(e) any modified 
restrictions on tbe use of anymaterials (including text, video clips, photographs,̂  
in which any third party has any ownership interest Franchisor may designate the form and content of 
Franchisee's Electronic Presence and^orrequire that any sucbElectronic Presencebehostedby 
Franchisor orathird party designated by Franchisor, using an Electronic Presence that Francb^ 
and̂ or controls In addition, Franchisor may require Franchisee to establish hyperlinks to Franchisor's 
ElectronicPresenceoranotberElectronicPresencedesignatedbyFranchisor Franchisor hasno 
immediate plans to permit Franchisee to establish an Electronic Presence 
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Copyright F m n o h i ^ h ^ y a c k n o w ^ ^ a n d ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ a n 
e x p ^ c o n d f t i o n ^ a ^ o ^ o f F ^ ^ ^ ^ 
b ^ f ^ F ^ n ^ ^ a n y a n d a f t o w n ^ b i p m ^ ^ 
^ h E ^ r o m c P ^ e n c e s ^ F^ncb i^ 
further ag^estoexecuto and deftver any further document as m^ 
effeefnafe the assignment of sneh interest 

10^3 Changes tuTeehnuh^A Because changes to teehnoiogy are dynamic 
and not predictahie,durtngtheinitiaiTerm, and inorder to provide for inevitah^ 
changes to technoiogicai needs and opportunities, Franchisee agrees: (a) that Franchisor witi have the 
right to estahiish, in writing, reasonahie new standards to address new technologies, and to implement 
thosechangesintechnotogyintothe System; and(h)toahidehyFranchisor'sreasonahle new standards 
as ifthis Section 10.3 were periodically revised forthat purpose. 

I L REPORTS AND RECORDS 

I L f Ceneraf Franchisee shall maintain financial records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied ("CAAF") If permissihle under law,such 
records shallhe maintained hased uponafifty-two^fty-three ^ 5 3 ) week fiscalyear AllCross 
Revenues shall at all times he recorded on point of sale systems approved or prescribed hyFranchisor 
with non-resettahle totals. Inamannerandonforms approved hyFranchisor, Franchisee shall prepare on 
acurrent basis, and preserve for not less than three (3) years,complete and accurate records concerning 
Cross Revenues and all financial, operating, marketing and other aspects ofthe business conducted under 
this Agreement. Franchisee sball maintain an accounting system approved by Franchisor that fully and 
accurately reflects all aspects of such business and is compatible and consistent with Franchisor'ssystem. 
included among the records that Franchisee is required to maintain shall be books of account, tax returns, 
daily receipts and reports, statements of Cross Revenues, profit and loss statements and balance sheets 
Franchisee sball also submit to Franchisor such other financial and non-financial reports and information 
as Franchisor may reasonably request. 

Financial Renorfing. Within thirty (30) days afier the close of each calendar 
quarter and within one hundred twenty (120) days after tbe close ofeach fiscal year ofFranchisee during 
thetermhereof,Francbisee sballprovide toFrancbisoraCrossRevenuesReport,profitandloss 
statements and, for tbe annual statement,abalance sheet, on such forms as Franchisor may reasonably 
require, prepared in accordance with CAAF Such statements need not be audited, but must be verified 
bytbeFreasurerorCbiefFinancial Officer of Franchisee; provided, however, that if Franchisee has 
caused audited statements for any of such calendar quarters, or as to any fiscal year,to be prepared, 
Franchisee will furnish complete copies of such audit to Franchisor within ten (10) days of receipt by 
Franchisee, i f Franchisee fails to provide such information in strict compliance with this Sectionll, 
Franchisor may audit Francbisee'soperations to obtain such information in accordance with Sectionll.4 

below. 

Financial Records Franchisee shall keep at its principal place ofbusiness all 
records requiredbereby and shall atFranchisor'srequestmake such records available, together with any 
other records necessary or appropriate to enable Franchisor to verify compliance by Franchisee with tbe 
terms hereof Failuretomaintainsuchrecords or to make them available to Franchisor shall constitutea 
default underthis Agreement. 

Audit Rights From time to time during the term hereof and at any time within 
three (3) years afier tbe end of tbe term hereof or any renewal term. Franchisor or its authorized agents 
may inspect and audit, at all reasonable times, any or all ofthe records pertaining to the operation ofthe 
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R ^ u r ^ or which F r a ^ ^ 
ptoses of this Sccfion^^^xrctorns ofFranchisee^ 
and iocai sates tax reports for Franchisee, and federal state and iocal income tax r c^^ 
arc incinded among the documents Franchisor or its authorized agents arc authorized to inspects 
uponcxccutionofaconfidcntiahty and non-disciosurc agreements hyFranchisor and any authorized 
agents, and oniy for the limited purpose of verifying reported revenues and expenses Such inspection 
shall he conducted during business hours. In the event the inspection or audit discloses that amounts due 
hcrcundcr,whcthcr for Royalfy Fees, advertising contributions, purchases of c q u ^ 
otherwise, have been understated, Franchisee sball immediately pay to Franchisor all such undcrs^^ 
amountsplusintcrcst Further, i f such understated amount exceeds two percent (2%) of t b c ^ 
due forthc audited period, or ifthc audit is required because Franchisee has not strictly complied 
provisions of this Scctionli,Franchisee sball immediately pay Franchisor, in addition to all amount 
due, the reasonable cost of the audit and inspection Additionally, i f the audit discloses any 
undcrstatcmcntofGrossRcvcnucsorany amountsducFranchisor, Franchisor may rcquirctbat the 
documents which Franchisee is required to prepare and dclivcrto Franchisor be examined andrcportcd on 
(inaformsatisfactory toFrancbisor)by anindcpcndcntCcrtificd Public Accountant approved b^ 
Franchisor Fbccostof such examination sball be home in such instance by Franchisee 

f ^ MAR^S 

Right to Use. Franchisor represents that it has the right to use, and to license 
others to use, the Marks. 

12.2 UhuitatiousaudUsc. With respect to Francbiscc'susc of the Marks, Franchisee 

agrees: 

t ^ . t Authorised Marks Fbat it sball use only the Marks then designated by 
Francbisorforuscby System Restaurants, and sballuscthcmonlyinthc manner authorized and 
permitted by Franchisor Franchisee sball not engage in any business or market any service or product 
undcranamcormarkthat,inFrancbisor'srcasonablcbusincssjudgmcnt, is confusingly similar to the 

Marks; 

12^2 For Qpcratiou ofRestaurant Fhat it sball use the Marks only for the 
operation ofthe Restaurant and only at the Premises, or in advertising fbrthc Restaurant, co^^^ 
from the Restaurant; 

12^3 Not tncornoratcdinFranchiscc Name Unless otherwise authorized or 
requiredby Franchisor, that itshall opcratcand advertise theRestaurant only under thename 
"Houliban'sB and shall use all Marks without prefix or suffix. Franchisee shall not use any Mark ora 
variation ofany Mark as part ofits corporate or other legal name; 

t ^ B t tndenendent Owner Designation Fbat it sball identify itself as the 
independent owner of the Restaurant (in the manner required by Franchisor) in conjunction with any use 
ofthe Marks, including, but not limited to, on invoices, order forms, receipts, and bu^ 
well as at such conspicuous and prominent locations at tbe premises ofthe Restaurant as Franchisormay 

designate in writing. 

Authorized Uses Fhat its right to use tbe Marks is limited to such uses 
as are authorized underthis Agreement, and any unauthorized use tbereofshall constitute an infringement 

ofrigbts ofFranchisor; 
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12.2.6 Prohibition Against Registration. That it shall not attempt to register 
or otherwise obtain any interest in any Electronic Presence containing the "Houlihan's" name or any of 
the Marks or any other word, name, symbol or device which is likely to cause confusion with the 
"Houlihan's" name or any of the Marks. 

12.2.7 No Rights to Incur Obligations or Liability for Franchisor. That it 
shall not use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of Franchisor; 

12 2 8 Execution of Document. That it shall execute any documents deemed 
necessary by Franchisor to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain their continued validity and 
enforceability; and 

12.2.9 Notification of Challenges. That it shall promptly notify Franchisor of 
any suspected unauthorized use ofthe Marks, any challenge to the validity of the Marks, or any challenge 
to Franchisor's ownership of, Franchisor's right to use and to license others to use, or Franchisee s right 
to use the Marks Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has the sole right to direct and control any 
administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Marks, including any settlement thereof. Franchisor 
has the right, but not the obligation, to take action against uses by others that may constitute infringement 
of the Marks Franchisor shall defend Franchisee against any third-party claim, suit, or demand arising 
out of Franchisee's authorized use of the Marks. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines that 
Franchisee has used the Marks in accordance with this Agreement, the cost of such defense, including the 
cost of any judgment or settlement, shall be borne by Franchisor. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion 
determines that Franchisee has not used the Marks in accordance with this Agreement, the cost of such 
defense, including the cost of any judgment or settlement, shall be borne by Franchisee. In the event ot 
any litigation relating to Franchisee's use ofthe Marks, Franchisee shall execute any and all documents 
and do such acts as may, in the opinion of Franchisor, be necessary to carry out such defense or 
prosecution, including, but not limited to, becoming a nominal party to any legal action. Except to the 
extent that such litigation is the result of Franchisee's use ofthe Marks in a manner inconsistent with the 
terms ofthis Agreement, Franchisor will reimburse Franchisee for its out-of-pocket costs in doing such 
acts. 

12.3 Franchisee Acknowledgments. Franchisee expressly understands and 

acknowledges: 

12.3.1 Franchisor Ownership. That Franchisor is the owner of all right, title, 
and interest in and to the Marks and the goodwill associated with and symbolized by them; 

12.3.2 Validity and Identification of System. That the Marks are valid and 
serve to identify the System and those who are authorized to operate under the System; 

12.3.3 Franchisee Acknowledgements Concerning the Marks. During the 
term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination, that it shall not directly or indirectly contest 
the validity of, or Franchisor's ownership of, or right to use and to license others to use, the Marks or the 
System; 

12.3.4 No Franchisee Ownership Interest in Mark. That Franchisee's use of 
the Marks does not give Franchisee any ownership interest or other interest in or to the Marks; 

12.3.5 Goodwill in Marks. That any and all goodwill arising from 
Franchisee's use of the Marks shall inure solely and exclusively to the benefit of Franchisor; and upon 
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expiration or termination ofthis Agreement, no monetary amount shall be assigned as attributable to any 
goodwill associated with Franchisee's use ofthe System or the Marks; and 

12.3.6 Non-Exclusive License in Marks. Except as specified in Section 1.2, 
that the license ofthe Marks granted hereunder to Franchisee is non-exclusive, and Franchisor, subject to 
the terms ofthis Agreement, thus has and retains the rights, at any location, among others: (a) to use the 
Marks itself in connection with selling products and services; (b) to grant other licenses for the Marks; 
and (c) to develop and establish other systems using the Marks, similar proprietary marks, or any other 
proprietary marks, and to grant licenses thereto without providing any rights therein to Franchisee. 

12.3.7 Right to Change Marks. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that 
Franchisor reserves the rights in Franchisor's sole discretion, from time to time, to add to, modify and 
update the Marks, including, without limitation, the color, typeface, and other appearance of the Marks, 
and all materials and signage bearing the Marks and to withdraw specified Marks or substitute different 
proprietary marks for use in identifying the System and the System Restaurants (collectively, "changes"). 
Except for changes of the Marks made as part of a seven-year renovation, pursuant to Section 6.1.9 
(which shall be at Franchisee's expense), such Franchisor-mandated changes to the Marks shall be at 
Franchisor's sole cost and expense. Franchisor shall have no other obligation or liability to Franchisee as 
a result of any such changes. 

13. INSURANCE 

13.1 Insurance Coverage. During the term hereof (including during the construction 
of the Restaurant), Franchisee shall be responsible for all loss or damage arising from or related to 
Franchisee's development and operation ofthe Restaurant, and for all demands or claims with respect to 
any loss, liability, personal injury, death, property damage, or expense whatsoever occurring upon the 
premises of, or in connection with the development or operation of, the Restaurant. Franchisee shall 
obtain and maintain, at Franchisee's expense, in form and with insurers satisfactory to Franchisor and its 
designated insurance broker, in full force and effect throughout the term ofthis Agreement that insurance 
which Franchisee determines is necessary or appropriate for liabilities caused by or occurring in 
connection with the development or operation of the Restaurant which shall include, at a minimum, such 
insurance as may be required by the terms of any lease or mortgage covering the Premises and such 
insurance policies ofthe kinds, and in the amounts, as required by this Section 13 and the Manuals. At a 
minimum, Franchisee shall maintain: 

13.1.1 Fire and Extended Coverage. Fire, extended coverage, vandalism and 
malicious mischief insurance for the full replacement value of the Premises, improvements and contents; 

13.1.2 General Liability and Automobile Insurance. Comprehensive general 
liability and automobile insurance, with limits of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
combined for bodily injury or death and property damage with umbrella liability coverage of Ten Million 
Dollars ($10,000,000) naming Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, 
and agents as additional insureds. The insurance required hereby shall include coverage for dram shop 
(or similar) liability with limits of not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and not 
less than a Ten Million Dollar ($10,000,000) aggregate with dedicated limits per location; and 

13.1.3 Workers Compensation. Workers Compensation or similar insurance 
in amounts required by law (including, without limitation, coverage for Franchisee's trainees when 
attending training under Section 7 hereof). 
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durance Standards Tbe m ^ ^ e ^ u f t e d t o b e m a i m e d by F ran^^ 
u n d e r t b ^ S e ^ n ^ s b a f t b e ^ e d w f t b a n m s u ^ e e e o ^ 
" A " a n d a n A M B e ^ C ^ R ^ m g o f X I V F^nebisor reserves tbe rigb^uponwriftennofteeto 
Fmnebisee^mtbeMan^sorotberwise, to require tbatFra^^ 
and to increase tbe minimum pobey limits fortbeiusuraneedeser^^ 

Insurance Certificates Contemporaneously witb tbe execution of tbis 
Agreement, annually during tbe term oftbis Agreement and at any time wben any cbange in tbe coverage 
required bereby is made by Francbisee,Francbisee sball furnisb Franchisor witbcert^^ 
carriers naming Franchisor, its officers, directors and employees as additional insureds 
that the insurance required hereby is in full force and effect Such certificate sball also provide that no 
policy required hereunder may be canceled or otherwise terminated by tbe carrier exceptnpon thirty 

days prior written notice to Franchisor. 

FaiinretoMaintain^Rightoftnuniry If Franchisee does not obtain and 
maintain tbe insurance required hereby, Franchisor may procure such insurance on Franchisee's behalf 
(but shall have no obligation to do so)and Franchisee sball on demand pay Francbisorall cost or expense 
associated therewith Franchisor or its insurer shall have tbe complete rigbtto discuss with Franchisee's 
carrier or any claimant any and all claims pertaining to the policies. 

13.5 Franchisor's Insurance. Franchisee's obligationto obtainandmaintaintbe 
insurance required by this Agreement shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance which 
may be maintained by Franchisor, nor shall Franchisee's performance of that obligation rê ^̂  
liability under the indemnity provisions set forth hereunder The insurance coverage required by tbis 
Agreement shall be primary to any policies maintained by Franchisor or its affiliates and shall containa 

specific waiverof subrogation. 

14. RFLOCATION, CONDEMNATION ANDCASUALFY 

14.1 Reiocation IfFrancbisee loses tbe right to occupy tbe Premises during the term 
of tbis Agreement or any renewal term hereof, other than asaresult of default byFrancbisee, then 
Franchisee may apply to Franchisor for the right to transfertbe Restaurant to another locate 
Protected Area Franchisee shall notify Franchisor ofthe termination or non-renewal ofits lease at least 
thirty (30) days in advance of Franchisee's projected last day ofbusiness in order for Franchisee to 
obtainFranchisor'sapprovalofatransfer,at tbe time of the request, Franchisee must: (a )bc in 
compliance with tbe terms of tbis Agreement and the terms of any related or successor agreement; 
(h) open tbe Restaurant atalocation selected and approved in accordance with site selection criteria 
specified by Franchisor within two hundred seventy (270) days from the approval of tbe transfer;^ 
(c)payFrancbisoranon-refundable relocation review fee ofTwoThousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($2,500),wbich fee sball be due and payable at the time of the request for the approval of the new 
location for the Restaurant Franchisor's decision as to whether to consent to Franchisee's relocation 
request may be based, among other things, upon Franchisor's conclusion of tbe effect relocation may 
have on other System Restaurants (whether in operation, under construction or in negotiations)m 
general area ofthe proposed new site Failure to relocate tbe Restaurant as provided in tbis Section afier 
Franchisor has approved the relocation request shall constituteadefault under this Agreement subĵ ^^ 
the remedies set forth in Sections The term of this Agreement shall not be extended asaconsequence 

ofsuch relocation. 

14.2 Casualty Notwithstanding the requirement that Franchisee be open for business 
during specified hours set forth in tbe Manuals, in the event of total or partial destruction of t^^ 
Restaurant by casualty or taking by condemnation of the Premises, then Franchisee sball be e n t i ^ 
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^ u f t d o r ^ t o r e ^ R e ^ 
another Francbiso^appro^^ 
after sneheasnahy or condemnation Franchisee shaft giveFranehisor prompt notice ofany sncft 
occurrence, tf Franchisee desires to relocate the Premises after such an occurrence, Franchisee must 
foftow the relocation procedures set forth in Section 141 Failure to rehuftd or restore the Restaurant or 
relocate the Premises as provided in this Section shall constituteadefault underthis Agreemê ^ 
the remedies set forth in Section 18 Fhe term of this Agreement shall not he extended asaconsequence 
of such taking or destruction. 

f ^ ORGAN^AFIO^AUFHORIFY AND FINANCIAL CONDIFfON OF 
FRANCHISFF 

15.1 Orgauizatiouaud Authority Franchisee represents and warrants that: (a) i f i t 
isacorporationoralimitedliahilitycompany,it has heen duly formed and is validly existing andm 
standing under the laws of the state of its incorpo^ 
recognized as such under the laws of the state of its formation; (c) Franchisee is duly qualified and is 
authorized to do husiness and is in good standing in any jurisdiction where Franchisee conducts or 
proposes to conduct husiness; (d) Franchisee's corporate charter, operating agreement, or written 
partnership agreement shall at all times provide that the activities ofFranchisee are confined e x c ^ 
to theestahlishment of theRestaurant; (e) the executionanddelivery ofthis Agreement andthe 
performance of all ohligations contemplated hereunder have heen duly authorized and are within the 
power of Franchisee; (f) aft financial statements presented to Franchisor in connection with review hy 
Franchisor ofthe application ofFranchisee are true, correct and complete as ofthe date when rendered 
and there have heen no material changes since the date when rendered; (g) the execution hereof and 
performance of ohligations hereunder do not conftictwithF 
ArticlesofOrganization, operating agreement, partnership agreement or otheragreement of associa^ 
formation, or any agreement to which Franchisee isaparty or hy which it or any of its assets may he 
hound; and (h) Franchisee shall do everything necessary to preserve and keep accurate and complete all 
warranties and representations made hereunder. 

15.2 Coveruiug Documents Franchisee shall promptly provide to Franchisor, on 
request, copies of Franchisee's organizational and governing documents and any amendments thereto, 
including any documents authorizing or approving entry into and performance ofthis Agreement. 

15.3 List of Owners Franchisee shall maintain and provide to Franchisor, without 
request,acurrent list of all owners, memhers, shareholders, orpartnersofrecord and all heneficial owners 
ofany class ofvoting securities ofFranchisee and promptly notify Franchisor ofany changes to such list 
Franchisee represents,warrants and covenants that the owners, memhers, shareholders, or partners of 
record, and all heneficial owners of any class of voting security of Franchisee as of the date hereof is 

described in FxhihitC. 

15.4 Ouarantv. Unless waived in writing hyFranchisor, allowners ofalegal or 
heneficial interest in Franchisee shaft jointly and severally guaranteeFranchisee's payment and 
performance underthis Agreementandalsoshallhold themselves to the terms ofthis Agreementpursuant 
to the Guaranty ofFranchise Agreement attached as Fxhihit A. Franchisor reserves the right to require 
any guarantor to provide personal financial statements to Franchisor ftom time to time. 

15.5 ControftingFrincinah If Franchisee is owned hy more than one individual, 
Franchisee shall designateandretain an individual to serve as Franchisee'sControllingPrinci^^^^ Fhe 
Controlling Principal wift he the person with whom Franchisor will communicate as to all ftnancial and 
operations matters and must have the authority to hind Franchisee with respect to all financial and 
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opemfion^ decisions reding to the RestanmnL The Conftoiiing Prineipai as ofthe date ofthis 
Agreementis identified in ExhihitG Unless waived in writing hyFranchisor the ControiiingPrineipai 
shall meet alt ofthe following qualifications: 

15^ f TheControllingPrincipal^atall times, shall have at leastatwenty 
percent (20%)eqnity ownership interest inFranchisee. 

The Controlling Principal shall, during the entire period he or she serves 
as such, meet the following qualifications:^devotesufftcient efforts to the supervision and condu 
theRestaurant; (h)meetFranchisoBseducational, experience, financial and such otherreasonahl^ 
for such individual, as set forth in the Manua 
as the General Manager or, designate another individual (the Controlling Principe 
the General Manager ofthe Restaurant Any individual designated hyaControlling Principal to serve as 
the General Manager also may,suhject to Pranchisor'sconsent, perform the duties and ohligations of the 
Controlling Principal; provided, that Controlling Principal shall take all necessa^ 
such designee conducts and fulfills all ofsuch ohligations in accordance with the terms ofthis Agreement 
and that Controlling Principal shall remain thlly responsible tor such performance. 

15^3 The Controlling Principal shall successfully complete the Owner 
Orientation Program and any additional training required hyFranchisor Franchisor shall have approved 
the Controlling Principal, and not have later withdrawn that approval. 

15^4 i f the Controlling Principal no longer qualifies as such, Franchisee shall 
designate another qualified person to act as Controlling Principal witlun thirty (3^ 
prior Controlling Principal ceases to he qualified Franchisee shall provide for interim management of 
Franchisee'shusiness inaccordance with this Agreement until such replacement is sodesignated 
Following FranchisoBsapprovalofanew Controlling Principal, that person shall execute the attached 
form ofGuaranty unless waived hyFranchisor in its sole discretion, and successfully complete the Owner 
Orientation Program. 

Stou-Trausfcrlustructious. i f Franchiseeisacorporation, Franchisee shall 
maintain stop-transfer instructions against the transfer on its records of any secure 
certificate of the corporation shall have conspicuously endorsedupon its faceastatementinaform 
satisfactory to Franchisor that it is held subject to and that further assignment or transfer is s 
restrictions imposed upon assignments by tbis Agreement; provided; however, that tbe requirements of 
tbis Section I t s h a l l not apply toapublicly-beld corporation i f Franchisee isalimited liability 
company,its written articles of organization or operating agreement sball provide that ownership of any 
membership interest in the limited liability company is held subject toand that further assignment or 
transfer is subject to all restrictions imposed upon assignments by this Agreement i f Franchisee isa 
partnership, its written partnership agreement sball provide that ownership ofan interest in tbe 
is held subject to and that further assignment or transfer is subject to all restrictions imposed upon 
assignments by tbis Agreement. 

15.7 Terrorist Acts. Franchisee acknowledges that under applicable U.S. law, 
including, without limitation, Executive Order 13224, signed on September 23, 2001 ("Orders, 
Franchisor is prohibited from engaging in any transaction with any person engaged in, or witbaperson 
aiding any personengagedin, acts of terrorism, as defined intbe Order. Accordingly, Franchisee 
represents and warrants to Franchisor that as of tbe date of tbis Agreement, neither Franchisee nor any 
person holding any ownership interest in Franchisee, controlled by Franchisee, or under common control 
with Franchisee is designated under the Order asaperson with whom business may not be transacted by 
Franchisor,and that Franchisee ( ^ does not, and hereafter shall not, engage in any terrorist activity; (h )^ 
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^affif tatodwftb and does not^ 
to^ori^acfivi^and 
intonttogeneratofnndstocbann^toany individual or ^ 
torrori^a^ivi^ortootherwise support or further any torro^ 

Renresentafion^ W a r r a n t 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the representations,warranri^^ 
are continuing ohligations of Franchisee and that any failure to comply with such rep^^ 
warranties and covenants shall constituteadefault under this Agreement. 

16. COVENANTS 

16.1 Best Efforts Franchisee covenants that during the term of this Agreement, 
except as otherwise approved in writing hyFranchisor, Franchisee shall devote requisite time, ene^ 
hest efforts to meet its ohligations under this Agreement and shall require its General Manager to devote 
fnll time, energy and hest efforts to the management, operation and supervision ofthe Restaurant 

16.2 Recent of Confidential Information: Agreement Not to Compete or Divert 
Business Franchisee specifically acknowledges that Franchisee and Franchisee's principals,Ceneral 
Manager and other employees will receive valuable specialized training, trade secrets and confidential 
information, including, without limitation, information regarding the methods and techniques of 
Franchisor and the System related to the arrangement and operation of the Restaurant which are heyond 
the present skills and experience possessed hy Franchisee, its principals, General Manager and other 
employees Franchisee acknowledges that such training,trade secrets and confidential information 
provideacompetitive advantage and will he valuable to them in the development of the Restaurant and 
that gaining access to such training, trade secrets and confidential information is, t b e ^ 
reason why they are entering into tbis Agreement in consideration for such training, trade secrets and 
confidential information, Franchisee covenants as follows: 

16.2.1 Restrictionson ActivitiesofFranchiseeDuringtheFermofthis 
Agreement During the term ofthis Agreement, Franchisee shall not, without Franchisor'spriorwritto^ 
consent, eitherdirectlyorindi^ 
persons, partnership, limited liability company,or corporation: 

16.2.1.1 Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of any 
System Restaurant to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, 
directly or indirectly,any other act injurious or prejudicial to tbe goodwill associated wft^ 

Marks and theSystem; 

16.2.1.2 Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time or 
has within one (1) year been employed hyFranchisor or by any other franchisee or developer of 
Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly to induce such person to leave his or her employment 
thereat (for each breach of tbis covenant and due to tbe difficulty of establishing tbe precise amount 
damages, Franchisee agreestopay toFranchisor or other franchisee or developer of Franchisor as 
appropriate, liquidated damages in an amount equal to the annualized rateof compensation of such person 
inthefinaltwelve(12) months of employment with such former employers 

16.2.1.3 Own, maintain, advise, be employed by, consult for, make 
loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership interest (including any right to share in revenues or 
profits) in any restaurant offering (a) tbe same or substantially similarsit-down, casual d ^ 
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those offered in System Restaurants; or (b) any food items that are the same as, or substantially similar to, 
the menu items of System Restaurants; and which restaurant is, or is intended to be, located within: 

16.2.1.3.1 the Protected Area; 

16.2.1.3.2 a radius often (10) miles from the Premises; 

16.2.1.3.3 a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 

Restaurant; or 

16.2.1.3.4 the United States. 

16.2.2 Restrictions on Activities of Franchisee after Expiration or 
Termination. For a continuous uninterrupted period commencing upon the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement and for two (2) years thereafter, Franchisee shall not, without Franchisor's pnor written 
consent, either directly or indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, 
persons, partnership, limited liability company, or corporation: 

16.2.2.1 Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the 
System Restaurants to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, 
directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with Franchisor's 
Marks and the System; 

16.2.2.2 Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time or 
has within one (1) year been employed by Franchisor or by any other franchisee or developer of 
Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly to induce such person to leave his or her employment 
thereat (for each breach of this covenant and due to the difficulty of establishing the precise amount of 
damages, Franchisee agrees to pay to Franchisor or other franchisee or developer of Franchisor as 
appropriate, liquidated damages in an amount equal to the annualized rate of compensation ofsuch person 
in the final twelve (12) months of employment with such former employer); 

16.2.2.3 Own, maintain, advise, be employed by, consult for, make 
loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership interest (including any right to share in revenues or 
profits) in any restaurant offering (a) the same or substantially similar sit-down, casual dining services as 
those offered in System Restaurants; or (b) any food items that are the same as, or substantially similar to, 
the menu items ofSystem Restaurants; and which restaurant is, or is intended to be, located within: 

16.2.2.3.1 the Protected Area; or 

16.2.2.3.2 a radius often (10) miles from the Premises; or 

16.2.2.3.3 a radius of ten (10) miles of any System 

Restaurant. 

16.2.3 Ownership of Less than 5% of Puhliclv-Held Company. Sections 
16.2.1.3 and 16.2.2.3 shall not apply to an ownership interest of less than five percent (5%) of the 
outstanding securities ofany publicly-held company if such interest is owned for investment only and not 
owned by an officer, director, employee or consultant of such publicly-held company. 

16.3 Independent Covenant. The parties agree that each ofthe foregoing covenants 
shall be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any 
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portion of a covenant in this Section 16 is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having 
valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision to which Franchisor is a party. Franchisee expressly 
agrees to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such covenant that imposes the 
maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were separately stated in and made a part of 
this Section 16. 

16.4 Reduction of Scope. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor 
shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to reduce the scope ofany covenant set forth in this Agreement, 
or any portion thereof, without Franchisee's consent, effective immediately upon written notice to 
Franchisee. Franchisee shall comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which shall be fully 
enforceable notwithstanding the provisions hereof. 

16.5 Offset/Counterclaim Limitation. Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence 
of any claims it may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not 
constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor ofthe covenants in this Section 16. 

16.6 Injunctive Relief. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees: (a) that any failure to 
comply with the covenants in this Agreement, including any failure to obtain execution ofthe covenants 
in Section 16.7 herein, shall constitute a default hereunder; (b) that a violation of the requirements ofthis 
Agreement, including this Section 16, would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no 
adequate remedy at law may be available; and (c) therefore, Franchisor shall be entitled, in addition to 
any other remedies which it may have hereunder, at law, or in equity, to obtain specific performance of or 
an injunction against the violation of the requirements of this Agreement, without the necessity of 
showing actual or threatened damage and without being required to furnish a bond or other security. 

16.7 Execution of Confidentiality and Noncompetition Agreements by 
Supervisors and Managers. Franchisee shall, prior to arranging any training or disclosing any 
confidential information, require its General Manager, Regional Manager (if applicable) and such other 
supervisory or managerial employees of Franchisee as Franchisor shall designate to execute covenants 
similar to those set forth herein (including covenants applicable upon the termination of a person's 
relationship with Franchisee). Every covenant required shall be in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, 
including, without limitation, specific identification of Franchisor as a third-party beneficiary of such 
covenants with the independent right of enforcement. Such covenants shall be in a form substantially 
similar to the Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

17. TRANSFER 

17.1 Transfer bv Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign 
this Agreement and all or any part of its rights or obligations herein to any person or legal entity. 

17.2 Transfers bv Franchisee. 

17.2.1 Transfers without Franchisor Consent Are Null and Void and 
Constitute Default Under this Agreement. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the rights 
and duties set forth in this Agreement are unique to Franchisee, and that Franchisor has granted this 
franchise in reliance on the business skill, financial capacity, and personal character of Franchisee and 
Franchisee's principals. Accordingly, neither Franchisee nor any initial or subsequent successor or 
assignee to any part of Franchisee's interest in the franchise rights, nor any individual, partnership, 
limited liability company, corporation or other entity which directly or indirectly has or owns any interest 
in this Agreement or in Franchisee shall sell, assign, transfer, convey, give away, pledge, mortgage or 
otherwise encumber any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee, in Franchisee's business, the Restaurant, 
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this Agreement or all or substantially all ofthe assets ofthe Restaurant without the prior written approval 
of Franchisor. Any purported assignment or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, not having the 
prior written approval of Franchisor required by this Section shall be null and void and shall constitute a 
default under this Agreement. 

17.2.2 Conditions for Franchisor Approval. Franchisor may, in its sole 
discretion, require any or all of the following as conditions ofits approval: 

17.2.2.1 That all of Franchisee's accrued monetary obligations and all 
other outstanding obligations to Franchisor, its subsidiaries and its affiliates be satisfied; 

17.2.2.2 That Franchisee and its affiliates are not in default of any 
provision ofthis Agreement, any amendment hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement between 
Franchisee or its affiliates and Franchisor or its subsidiaries and affiliates; 

17.2.2.3 That the transferor execute, on behalf of transferor, its 
affiliates and their successors and assigns, a general release, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, ofany 
and all claims or causes of action against Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, known or unknown, existing prior to the date of such transfer; 

17.2.2.4 That the transferee enter into a written agreement in a form 
satisfactory to Franchisor, assuming full, unconditional, joint and several liability for and agreeing to 
perform from the date of the transfer, all obligations, covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement; 

17.2.2.5 That the transferee demonstrate to Franchisor's satisfaction 
the following: that transferee meets the criteria Franchisor considers when reviewing a prospective 
franchisee's application for franchise rights including Franchisor's educational, managerial and business 
standards; that transferee possesses a good moral character, business reputation and credit rating; that 
transferee' has the aptitude and ability to operate the Restaurant (as may be evidenced by pnor related 
business experience or otherwise); and that transferee has reasonably adequate financial resources and 
capital to develop and operate the Restaurant; 

17.2.2.6 That transferee execute (and/or, upon Franchisor's request, 
cause all interested parties to execute), the standard form of franchise agreement then being offered to 
new franchisees and other ancillary agreements as Franchisor may require for System Restaurants, which 
agreements shall supersede this Agreement and its ancillary documents in all respects and the terms of 
which agreements may differ from the terms ofthis Agreement, including, without limitation, a reduced 
Protected Area, and higher Royalty Fees or advertising contributions; provided, however, that the 
transferee shall not be required to pay any initial franchise fee; 

17.2.2.7 That Franchisee remains liable for all of the obligations to 
Franchisor in connection with this Agreement incuned prior to the effective date of the transfer and 
execute any and all instruments reasonably requested by Franchisor to evidence such liability; 

17.2.2.8 That Franchisee pay a transfer fee of Seven Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($7,500), or such greater amount as is necessary to reimburse Franchisor for its 
reasonable costs and expenses associated with reviewing the application to transfer, including, without 
limitation, legal and accounting fees; 
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17.2.2.9 That the transferee, at its expense, refurbish the Premises to 
conform to Franchisor's then-current standards and specifications, and complete the refurbishing and 
other requirements within the time specified by Franchisor; 

17.2.2.10 That the transferee (or, if the transferee is a corporation, 
limited liability company, or partnership, a principal of the transferee acceptable to Franchisor), and such 
of transferee's employees as Franchisor shall designate, at the transferee's expense, complete any training 
programs then in effect for franchisees and employees upon such terms and conditions as Franchisor may 
reasonably require; 

17.2.2.11 That Franchisee shall have conducted, at Franchisee's 
expense, a customer service audit, in the form and manner specified by Franchisor; and 

17.2.2.12 If transferee is a corporation, limited liability company, or a 
partnership, that transferee shall make and be bound by any or all of the representations, warranties and 
covenants set forth at Section 16 as Franchisor requests and shall provide to Franchisor evidence 
satisfactory to Franchisor that the terms of Section 16 have been satisfied and are true and correct on the 
date of the transfer. 

17.2.3 Each Condition is Reasonable and Necessary. Franchisee 
acknowledges and agrees that each condition that must be met by the transferee is reasonable and 
necessary to assure such transferee's full performance of the obligations hereunder. 

17.2.4 Transfers Solely for Convenience of Ownership. In the event the 
proposed transfer is to a corporation or limited liability company formed solely for the convenience of 
ownership. Franchisor's consent may be conditioned upon any of the requirements set forth herein and the 
percentage of interest owned in the transferee shall be the same as that previously owned in the transferor, 
except as may be required by law. 

17.3 Franchisor's Right of First Refusal. 

17.3.1 Franchisor's Right to Match Bona Fide Offers. Any person or entity 
holding any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee, Franchisee's business, the Restaurant, this 
Agreement, or all or substantially all ofthe assets ofthe Restaurant who desires to accept any bona fide 
offer from a third party to purchase such interest shall promptly notify Franchisor in writing of each such 
offer, and shall provide such information and documentation relating to the offer as Franchisor may 
require. Franchisor shall have the right and option, exercisable within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
such written notification and documentation, to send written notice to the seller that Franchisor intends to 
purchase the seller's interest on the same terms and conditions offered by the third party, except that 
Franchisor shall not be obligated to pay any finder's or broker's fees. (In accepting the offer, Franchisor 
shall be entitled to set off any monies owed by Franchisee to Franchisor.) In the event Franchisor elects 
to purchase seller's interest, no material change in any offer and no other offer by any third party for such 
interest shall be considered thereafter by the seller. In the event Franchisor has not elected to purchase 
seller's interest, any material change in the terms ofany offer prior to closing shall constitute a new offer 
subject to the same rights of first refusal by Franchisor as in the case of an initial offer. Failure of 
Franchisor to exercise the right of first refusal afforded by this Section 17.3 shall not constitute a waiver 
ofany other provision ofthis Agreement, including all ofthe requirements of Section 17.2 with respect to 
a proposed transfer. 

17.3.2 Non-Cash Offers. In the event the offer from the third party provides 
for payment of consideration other than cash or involves certain intangible benefits, Franchisor may elect 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 34 0 1 / 1 4 



^purchase the mtore^ propose If the parties oannot 
agree withinareasonahie time on the rea^^ 
independent appraiser shaft he designated hyFranchisor to determine sneh amount 
shaft he ftnal and binding tf Franchisor eieets to exercise the right of ftrstrethsai described ahove, it 
shaft have tbe rightto set off the cost ofthe appraisal if any,againstanypaymentmade hereunder 

17.4 Involuntary Transfer. 

t 7 ^ t Transfer Unon Death Upon the death ofany person with an interest in 
this Agreement or in Franchisee ("Deceaseds tbe executor, administrator or other personal 
representative of the Deceased shaft transfer such interest toatbftd party approved by Franchisors 
twetve(t^months after tbe death, f fno personal representative is designated orappointedorno probate 
proceedings are instituted with respect to the estate ofthe Deceased, then tbe distributees ofsuch m^̂  
must, within twelve(l^months after the date of tbe death of tbe Deceased, either (a) be approved by 
Franchisor asatransferee or (h)transfer such interest toathird party approved by Franchisor. 

t7Bt^ Transfer UnonFermanentDlsahftitv. Upon the permanent disability 
ofanypersonwitbaninterestinthisAgreementorinFrancbisee, Franchisor may,mits solediscretion, 
require such interest to be transferred toatbird party approved by Franchisor within two hundred se 
(270) daysafter noticeto Franchisee. "Fermanentdisability^shallmean any physical, emotionalor 
mental injury,illness or incapacity which would preventaperson ftom performing the obligations 
fortbinthis Agreement for at least ninety (90)daysftomtbe date ofdeterminationofdisability 
Fermanent disability shall be determined byalicensed practicing physician selected by Franchisor upo^ 
examination ofthe person; or iftbe person refuses to submit to an examination, then such person sball be 
automatically deemed permanently disabled as of tbe date of such refusal for tbe purpose of this Secft^^ 
17.4. The costs ofany examination required by this Section shaft be paid by Franchisor. 

t7Bt^ Notice oL and Condftionsfor^Transferunon Death or Disahftitv 
Upontbedeathor claim of permanent disability of any person withan interest in Franchisee, the 
Restaurant, tbis Agreement, or all or substantially all of tbe assets of tbe Restaurant, Franchisees^ 
representative ofFranchisee must promptly notify Franchisorofsucbdeatborclaim of permanent 
disability. Any transfer upondeathor permanentdisability shallbe subject totbesametermsand 
conditions set forth in Sectionl7.2 of tbis Agreement, i f an interest is not transferred upon death or 
permanent disability,in accordance with tbe terms and conditions of this Section hereof, such failure sball 
constituteadefault f^rwbichFrancbisormay terminate this Agreement. 

17.5 AnnrovaiofTransfer is Not Waiver of Claims Franchisor's approval toa 
transfer of any interest in Franchisee or this Agreement sball not constituteawaiver of any claims it may 
have against the transferring party,nor shall it be deemedawaiverofFranchisor'srigbt to demand exact 
compliance with any ofthe terms ofthis Agreement by tbe transferee. 

t 7 ^ Annroval for Offers to Fuhlic Securities, membership interests, orpartnersbip 
interests in Franchisee may be offered to tbe public, by private offering (if applicable)oro^ 
with tbe prior written approval ofFranchisor (whether or not Franchisor's approval is required 
hereunder). Franchisee, at its expense, sball deliver to Franchisor all materials required for such offering 
by federal, state or other applicable law and such other materials as Franchisor may reasonably request. 
These materials sball be submitted to Francbisorprior to being filed with any government agency,offtcial 
or authority; and any materials to be used in any offering for which offering materials are not prescribed 
by applicable law shall be submitted to Franchisor prior to their use No Franchisee offering shall imply 
(by use of the Marks or otberwise)tbat Franchisor is participating in an underwriting, issuance 
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o f ^ n ^ ^ ^ u r i ^ F ^ n ^ o r m ^ ^ ^ o ^ 
contamawriften^tom^ prescribed by Franch^ 

18. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

18.1 AulomafieTermmaliononDelauft. Fmnebiseesbaftbedeemedtobem 
delauft under tbis Agreement andaftrigbtsgra^edtoFrancb^ 
witboutnorieetoFranebisee,ift^Franebiseesbaii become insolvent 
tbe benefit of creditors; (b)aperirion in b ^ 
Bankruptcy Code byFrancbisee or sncbapetitionisfiied against and not opposed byFrancb^ 
(c) Franchisee is adjudicatedabankrupt or insolent; (d)abi i i in equity or otber proceed 
appointmentofareceiverofFrancbiseeorotbercustodianforFranebisee'sbusinessorassetsisfiiedand 
consented to by Francbisee;^areceiver or other custodian (permanent or temporary) ofFrancb^ 
assetsorproperty,or any part thereof, isappointedbyanycourtofcompetent jurisdiction; ( l ) a 
proceeding foracomposition with creditors under any state or federal law should be instituted by or 
against Franchisee; (g)afinal judgment remains unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or longer 
(unless supersedeas bond is filed); (h) Franchisee i 
business or property; (j) suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against the Premises or equipment of tbe 
Restaurant is instituted against Franchisee and 

personalproperty of theRestaurant shallbe soldafierlevytbereuponbyanysberitf,marsbal,or 

constable. 
18.2 Termination on Notice of D c f a u i t W ^ 

occurrence of any of tbefollowingeventsofdefault,Franchisormay,at its option, terminatetbis 
Agreement and all rights granted bereunder,witbout affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure the 
default, effective immediatelyuponFrancbisee'sreceiptofnotice(as provided in Sect̂ ^̂  

18.2.1 Faiiure to Ouen or Reiocute Restaurant, or Ohtain and Maintain 
Eiuuor License Franchisee fails to open tbe Restaurantwithin two hundred seventy (270) days afierthe 
execution of tbis Agreement as required herein, fails to relocate, rebuild or restore the F ^ 
two hundred seventy (270) days as required by Section 14 hereof, or fails to obtain and maintain the 
liquor license as required by SectionShereof; 

18.2.2 Faiiure to Continuously Onerate the Restaurant. Franchisee ceases to 
continuously operate tbe Restaurant fi^raperiod in excess offive(5) consecutive days, unless tbe closing 
is due to an act of Cod, fire or other natural disaster or is approved in writing in advance by Franchisor 
(e.g.,pursuant to an approved remodel ofthe Restaurant); 

18.2.3 Unauthorized Use of Marks Franchisee misuses or makes an 
unauthorized use of any Mark or commits any act which could reasonably be expected to materially 
impair tbe goodwill associated with any Mark; 

18.2.4 Unauthorized Usê  Disclosure or Dunfication of Confidential 
Information Franchisee or Franchisee'sControlling Principal, Ceneral Manager or any ofFranchisee's 
supervisory or managerial employees fails to materially comply with any restriction on tbe unauthorized 
use,disclosureorduplicationofanyportionoftbeManuals,any trade secretor any confidential 

information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor; 

18.2.5 Material Violation of Confidentiality and Non Comnetition 
Covenants Franchisee violates any of the covenants relating to confidentiality and non competition or 
fails to obtain execution ofthe covenants from tbe persons designated in tbis Agreement; 
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18^6 Materia M i s r e p ^ e n t a f i o n o r O m i ^ 
hasmadeanymatori^mi^p^en^fionorom^^ 

18^7 O ^ n ^ M a ^ i a f t v A ^ c f i n g R e p u t a f i o n o f F r a n c h ^ Fmncbisee 
or any of its owners s b ^ b o l d ^ ^ 
contosttoa^ony or other crime or offen^^atisbkefytoa 
Franchisor or the Restaurant; 

18^8 Undc^atemcntMorethanTwoPcrcentNotDeemedlnadvertcnt 
Error. Franchisee snhmits to Franchisor any reports or other data, infonnation or supporting 
understate hy more than two percent (2%) the Gross Revenues ofthe Restaurant or Royalty Fees fb^ 
period, and Franchisee is unahie to demonstrate to Franchisor's reasonable satisfaction that such 
understatements resulted from inadvertent error; 

18^9 FrauchisccFermmafiou Without Cause Franchisee terminates this 
Agreement without cause; 

t^tOUuauthor^edFrausfer. Any transfer that requires Franchisor's prior 
written approval occurs without Franchisee having obtained that priorwritten approval; or 

t ^ . t t F a f t u r e to Comply with Other Agreements with Franchisor. 
Franchisee or any affiliate of Franchisee remains in default beyond tbe applicable cure period of any 
terms andconditions of any development agreement, francbiseagreement or any other agreement 
between Franchisee or any of its affiliates and Franchisor or any of its affiliates (provided that, if tbe 
default is not by Franchisee, Franchisee is given written notice ofthe default andatbirty (30) day perio 
to cure the default). 

t^3 Fermination on Notice ofDefauit With Onuortunity to Cure 

t 8 ^ t Non-Monetary Defaults. Except as otherwise provided in Sections 
18.1 and 182of tbis Agreement, Franchisee sball have thirty (30) days after written notice of default 
from Franchisorwithin which to remedy the default and provide evidence oftbat remedy to Franchisor. If 
any such default is not cured within that time, tbis Agreement sball terminate without further notice 
Franchiseeeffectiveimmediatelyuponexpirationoftbattime,unlessFrancbisornotifiesFrancbisee 
otherwise in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, i f tbe default cannot be corrected w 
days, Franchisee shall have such additional time to correct tbe default as reasonably required (not to 
exceed ninety (90) days) provided that Franchisee begins taking tbe actions necessary to correct th^ 
default during tbe thirty (30) day cure period and diligently and in good faith pursues those actions 
completion. Franchisee will be in default under tbis Section 18.3.1. for any failure to materially comply 
with any ofthe requirements imposed by this Agreement, tbe Manuals or otherwise in writing, or to carry 
out tbe terms of tbis Agreement in good faith. 

f8.3.2 Monetary Defaults. Notwithstanding the provisions of preceding 
Section 18.31, if Franchisee defaults in the payment of any monies owed to Franchisor when such 
monies become due and payable and Franchisee fails to pay such monies within ten (10) days after 
receiving written notice of default, then tbis Agreement will terminate effective immediately upon 
expiration oftbat time, unless Franchisor notifies Franchisee otherwise in writing. 

t8.3.3 Repeated Defaults.lfFranchisee has received three (3)ormore notices 
of default within tbe previous twelve(12) months,Franchisor sball be entitled to send Francbiseeano^ 
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o f t o r m m a f t o n u ^ F ^ ^ 
Franchisee an opportumfytoremedy^ede^L 

S^utoryFimftafions. Ifanyvah^apphcahleiaworregnlafionofacompetont 

governmental anthorifyw^ 
terminafion longer than set forth in this Seetionl^thisAgreem 
to the minimnm notice or enre period required hy the applieahle law or regnlatiom 

19. FFFFCFOFTFRMINATIONORFXFIRAFION 

19.1 Franchisee OhhgationsUponFermination. Upon termination or expiration of 

this Agreement: 

19.1.1 Favment of Amounts Owed. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor or its 
affiliates within ten (10) days after the effective date of termination or expira^ 
such later datethat the amounts dnetoFranchisor are determined^snch RoyaltyFees^advertising 
contrihutions, amounts owed for purchases ftom Franchisor and its affiliates, interest due Francĥ  
any of the foregoing and aft otheramounts owed to Franchisor and its affiliates which are then unpaid; 

19.t.2 Fermination of Limited Fxciusivitv. Fhelimitedexclusiverights 
granted Franchisee hy this Agreement in the Protected Area immediately shall terminate and Franchis^^ 
shall have the right to operate or license others to operate System Restaurants anywhere in the Fr̂ ^̂  
Area except as may he otherwise provided under any other agreement then in effect hetween Franchisor 

and Franchisee; 

19.1.3 Cease to Use and Return Confidentiaitnformation and Materials 
Franchisee shall cease using any confidential information ofFranchisor in any business or o t h e ^ 
promptlyreturnto Franchisor, at Franchisee'sexpense, all property belonging to Franchisor, including 
but not limited to, all Manuals, menus, advertising materials and computer software programs, and sball 
destroy or return all other materials, signs, sign faces, catalogs, advertising mate^^ 
video tapes, DVOs, and othermaterials that bear any Marks or otherwise are identifted with orrel^^^ 

System Restaurant; 

19.1.4 Comnftance with Confidentiafttv and Non Comuetition Covenants 
Franchisee and its owners, Controlling Principal, Ceneral Manager or other supervisory or managed 
employees who have executed covenants sball continue to abide by tbe restrictions contained in Section 
16and shall not, directly orindirectly,take any action tbatviolates those restrictions 

19.1.5 CeaseUsingFiectronic Presence. Franchisee sball cease using any 
Flectronic Presence containing any of the Marks or referring to tbe Restaurant orSystem Restaurants,̂  
any past orpresentrelationship to Franchisor ortheSystem; 

19.1.6 Discontinue Using and Remove Marks Franchisee shall immediately 
cease operating tbe Restaurant asaSystem Restaurant and, except as may be otherwise permitted 
any other thencurrently effective agreementbetweenFrancbisorandFrancbisee, Franchisee sball 
discontinue using and shaft remove any Marks, any colorable imitation thereof or other indicia of tbe 
Restaurant in any manner or for any purpose, and discontinue use for any purpose of any name, trade 
dressorservicemarktbat suggestsor indicatesacurrentor prior connectionor association with 

Franchisor or its afftliates and ftancbisees; 
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1 9 x 7 Cancel Fictitio"* nr Assumed Name. Franchisee shall promptly take 
such acdon as may be required to cancel all ficdtious or assumed name or e q u ^ 

to Franchisee's use of any Mark; 

1918 Mndifications to the Premises. Franchisee immediately shall 

^ ^ ^ t ^ a ^ ^ ^ ^ : 
and also make those speciGc additional changes as Franchisor may request for that punx,se, 

19 19 Transfer of Pho™ Numbers: Notifiration of Telephone Directory 

wm 
transfer; and 

19 1 10 Fvidence o f C o m r " — i R ' ^ t to Remove. Franchisee shall furnish to 

l i i l l i t S i f 
modifications, with the cost thereof charged against Franchisee's account. 

19 2 Crv iv , , nf Ohligations. All obligations of Franchisor and Franchisee which ^ i r ; ; " ^ ^ satisfied in full or by their nature expire. 19 3 Riohts Not Exclusive. No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor is exclu'sive of any right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted; but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder. 19 4 N . Bar to FrancHUnr'. Ininnctive "r Fnnitahle Relief. Nothing herein contained shall bar or impair Franchisor's right to obtain injunctive or other equitable relief. 20. OPTION TO PURCHASE 20.1 Qptinn f» Purchase Assets. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any ^ason, Franchisor shall give written notice to Franchisee, withm thirty (30) days after 3 Q 01/14 Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 



the e^crive date of tormina^ 
ftomFmnehiseesomeoraftofth^ As usedinthis Sections 
^Assets" shaft mean and ineftide, without ftmitation, leasehold improvements, equipment, vehicles, 
furnishings, fixtures, signs and inventory^ 
Restaurant, any liquor licenses and any other licenses necessary to operate the Premises, and the real 
estate fee simple or the lease for the Premises Franchisor shall have the unrestricted right to assign this 
option to purchase the Assets Franchisor or its assignee shall he entitled to all customary representations 
and warranties that the Assets are ftee and clear (or, if not, accurate and complete disclosure) as to: 
(a) ownership, condition and title; (h) liens and encumhrances; (c)environmental and hazardous 
substances; and (d)validityof contracts and liahilities inuring toFranchisor or affectm^ 
whether contingent or otherwise. 

2^2 Purchase Price The purchase price for the Assets (̂ Purchase Price") shall he 
their fairmarketvalue,(or, for leased assets, the fairmarket value ofFranchisee'slease)det^ 
the effective date of purchase inamanner that accounts for reasonable depreciation and condition of the 
Assets;provided,bowever, that thePurcbasePricesballtakeintoaccounttbeterminationof this 
Agreement. Further, the Purchase Price for the Assets shall not contain any factor or increment for any 
trademark,servicemarkor other commercial symbolused in connectionwitbtheoperationof the 
Restaurant nor any goodwill or agoing concern" value for the Restaurant Franchisor may exclude ftom 
the Assets purchased in accordance with tbis Section any equipment, vehicles, furnishings, fixtur^^^ 
and inventory that are not approved as meeting then-current standards fbraSystem Restaurant or for 
which Franchisee cannot deliveraEillofSaleinaform satisfactory to Franchisor. 

20.3 Auuruisers ifFrancbisor and Franchisee are unable to agree on the fair market 
value ofthe Assets within thirty (30) days after F r a n ^ 
exercise itsoption to purchase tbe Assets, thefair market value sballbedeterminedby two (2) 
professionafty certified appraisers, Franchisee selecting one (l)and Franchisor selecting o n e ^ If tbe 
valuations set bytbe two (2)appraisersdifferbymore than ten percent(10%), the t w o ^ 
selectathird professionally certified appraiser who also shall appraise tbe fair market value of 
Fbeaveragevaluesetbytheappraisers(wbethertwo (2) or three (3) appraisers as tbe case may be)shall 
be conclusive and sball be tbe Purchase Price. 

20.^ Access to Resfauruut^ Premises and 8ooks and Records. The appraisers shall 
be given full access to tbe Restaurant, the Premises and Franchisee'sbooks and records during customary 
business hours to conduct the appraisal and shall value the leasehold improvements, equipment, 
fumisbings,fixtures,signs and inventory inaccordancewitb tbe standardsoftbisSection20. The 
appraiserŝ  fees and costs sball be home equally by Franchisor and Franchisee. 

20.5 Franchisors Purchase Notice Within ten (10) days after tbe Purchase Price 
has been determined, Franchisormay exercise its option to purchase the Assets by so notifying Franchisee 
in writing (^FranchisoBsPurcbase Notice") The Purchase Price sball be paid in cash or cash equivalents 
at tbe closing of tbe purchase (closing"), which sball take place no later than sixty(60)d 
date ofFrancbisor'sPurchase Notice. From the date ofFrancbisor'sPurchase Notice until Closing: 

20.5.t Franchisee shall operate the Restaurant and maintain the Assets in the 
usual and ordinary course ofbusiness and maintain in full force all insurance policies required unde 

Agreement; and 

20.5.2 Franchisorshall havetherigbttoappointamanager, at Franchisor's 
expense,tocontroltbe day-to-day operations of the Restaurant and Franchisee sballcooperate, and 
instruct its employees to cooperate, with tbe manager appointed by Franchisor. Altematively,Francbisor 
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m a y ^ q u f t e F ^ n ^ ^ ^ 
fromtheR^um^ 

DueDiftgence Period Poraperiodof thirty ^ d a y s a f t e r t h e d a t o o f 
PranchisoBsP^h^ Notice ^DueDi i igen^P^^^ 
investigationsasit deems necessary and appropriate to dete^ 
ofthe Assets;^) iiens and enenmhranees on the Assets;^) environme^^ 
npon the Premises; and (d) the validity of e o n ^ 
Assets, whether contingent or otherwise Pranchiseewiii afford Pranchisorand its representatives access 
to the Restaurant and the Premises at ail reasonable times for the purpose of conducting inspec 
Assets; provided that such access does not unreasonably interfere with Franchisee's operation of the 

Restaurant. 

20.7 Title and Lien Searcheŝ  Surveys^ Environmental Assessments and 
Inspections. During the Due Diligence Period, at its sole option and expense, Franchisor may (a) cause 
tbe title to the Assets that consist of real estate interests ^Real Estate Assets") to b^ 
nationally recognized title company and conduct lien searches as to tbe other Assets; (h) procure 
8UlET"surveys of theReal Estate Assets;(c) procure environmental assessments and testing with 
respect to the Real Estate Assets; and^or(d) inspect tbe Assets that consist of leasehold improvements, 
equipment, vehicles, furnishings, fixtures, signs and inventory ^EixedA^^^^^ 
Assets are in satisfactory working condition Prior to the end of tbe Due Diligence Period, Franchisor 
shall notify Franchisee in writing of any objections that Franchisor has to any finding diŝ ^^ 
title or lien search, survey,environmental assessment or inspection IfFranchisee cannot or elects not to 
correct any such title defect, environmental objection or defect in tbe working condition of t^^ 
Assets, Franchisorwill have theoption to eitheracceptthe condition ofthe Assets as they exist orres^^ 

its option to purchase on or before the Closing. 

20.8 ComniiancewithEegatReuuirements Prior to tbe Closing, Franchisee and 
Franchisor sball comply with all applicable legal requirements, including tbe bulk sales provis^^ 
Uniform Commercial Code ofthe state in which the Restaurantis located and the bulksales p rov i so 
any applicable tax laws and regulations Franchisee sball, prior to or simultaneously with tbe Closing, 
pay all tax liabilities incurred in connection with the operation of the Restaurant prio^ 
Franchisor shall have the right to set off against and reduce tbe Purchase Price by any and all amounts 
owed by Franchisee to Franchisor,and the amount of any encumbrances or liens against tbe Assets or any 

obligations assumed by Franchisor. 

20.9 EeaseofPremises. 

20.9.t Iftbe Premises are leased, Franchisor agrees to use reasonable efforts to 
effectatermination of the existing lease for the Premises If tbe lease for the Premises is assigned to 
Franchisor or Franchisor subleases tbe Premises from Franchisee, Franchisor will indemnify and hol^ 
Franchisee harmless from anyongoing liability under thelease from tbe dateFrancbisor assumes 
possession of tbe Premises, and Franchisee will indemnify and bold Franchisor harmless from any 
liability under tbe lease prior to and including that date. 

20.9.2 IfFrancbiseeownsthe Premises, Franchisor, at its option,will either 
purchase the fee simple interest or, upon purchase of the other Assets, enter intoastandard lease w i ^ 
Franchisee on terms comparable to those for which similar con^ercial properties in the area are 
being leased The initial term of this lease with Franchisee sball be at least ten (10) years with two 
(2)options to renew of five ^ ) years each and tbe rent sball be the fair market rental value ofthe 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 41 01/14 



Premises. If Franchisee and Franchisor cannot agree on the fair market rental value of the Premises, then 
appraisers (selected in the manner described in Section 20.3.) shall determine the rental value. 

20.10 Closing. At the Closing, Franchisee shall deliver instruments transferring to 
Franchisor or its assignee: (a) good and merchantable title to the Assets purchased, free and clear of all 
liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests acceptable to Franchisor or its assignee), 
with all sales and other transfer taxes paid by Franchisee; (b) all licenses and permits for the Restaurant 
that may be assigned or transferred, with appropriate consents, if required; and (c) the lease or sublease 
for the Premises, with appropriate consents, i f required. If Franchisee cannot deliver clear title to all of 
the purchased Assets as indicated in this Section, or if Franchisee is otherwise not able to comply with the 
requirements set forth in this Section, then the Closing shall be accomplished through an escrow. 

21. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS 

21.1 Notices. All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall 
be sent by personal delivery, by next-day delivery service, by electronic means, or by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the respective parties. If directed to Franchisor, the notice sball be addressed 
to Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., attention: Vice-President/Development, 8700 State Line Road, Suite 
100, Leawood, Kansas 66206, with a copy to: General Counsel, 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, 
Leawood, Kansas 66206. If directed to Franchisee, the notice shall be addressed to Franchisee, at the 
address identified on Exhibit B. 

Any notices sent by personal delivery, next-day delivery service or by electronic means 
shall be deemed given on the next business day after transmittal. Any notices sent by certified mail shall 
be deemed given on the third business day after the date of mailing. Any change in the foregoing 
addresses shall be effected by giving fifteen (15) days written notice of such change to the other party. 

Franchisor may provide Franchisee with routine information, invoices, updates to the 
Manuals, System standards and other System requirements and programs, including any modifications 
thereto, by regular mail or by e-mail, facsimile, or by making such information available to Franchisee on 
the Internet, an extranet, or other electronic means. 

21.2 Payments. Unless otherwise specified, all payments required to be made by 
Franchisee to Franchisor under this Agreement are due and payable immediately upon demand and/or 
receipt of any billing therefor and shall be sent by personal delivery, by next-day delivery service, by 
electronic means, or by mail, postage prepaid, and directed to Franchisor as shown above. 

22. TAXES AND INDEBTEDNESS 

22.1 Payment of Taxes. Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or 
assessed, including, without limitation, unemployment and sales taxes, and all accounts and other 
indebtedness of every kind incurred by Franchisee in the operation of the Restaurant. Franchisee shall 
pay to Franchisor an amount equal to any sales tax, gross receipts tax, or similar tax (other than income 
tax) imposed on Franchisor with respect to any payments to Franchisor required under this Agreement, 
unless the tax is credited against income tax otherwise payable by Franchisor. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary contained herein, if any state, local or municipal taxes, fees or assessments are imposed on 
Franchisor resulting solely from licensing the Marks under this Agreement or the payment of royalties 
hereunder, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor the amount of such taxes, fees or assessments within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from Franchisor. 
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Con^fing Tax Changes In the event of any hona fide dispute as to 
Franehisee'siiahihty fortaxes assessed or other indebtedness, Franchisee 
amount ofthe tax orindehtedness in aeeordanee with procedures ofthe taxing authority 
hut in no event shaft Franchisee permitatax sate or seizure hyievy or execution or similar writ or 
warrant, orattachmenthyacreditor, to occuragainstthe Premises, oranyimprovements thereon 

Notice of Procccdiugs Franchisee shaft immediately notityFranchisor in 
writing of the commencement of any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ, 
injunction, award, or decree of any court, agen^ 
adversely affect the operation or financial condition ofthe Restaurant. 

23 tNDEPENDENTCONTt^CTORANDtNDEMNtFtC^^ 

23.t tudeueudeut Contractor Status ftis understood and agreed to hy the parties 
that this Agreement doesnotcreateafiduciaryrelationshiphetweenthem,thatFranchiseeis an 
independentcontractor, and thatnothing in this Agreementis intended toconstituteeitherpar^ 
legal representative, suhsidiary,joint venturer, partner, employee, employer,join^ 
servant of the other for any purpose whatsoever Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public to he an 
independent contractor operating pursuant to tbis Agreement Franchisee agrees to take such actions as 
sball be necessary or reasonably requested by F r a n ^ ^ 
complying with tbe requirements ofSection 12.2.4. 

23.2 No Agency Franchisee understands and agrees that nothing in this Agreement 
authorizes Franchisee to make any contract, agreement,warranty, or representation on Franch^ 
behalf, ortoincurany debt or other obligation in FrancbisoBsname; and that Franchisorshall inno 
assume liability for or be deemed liable hereunder for any such action; nor sball Franchisor be deemed 
liable by reason of any act or omission of Franchisee in tbe conduct of its business pursuant to this 
Agreement, or forany claim orjudgment arising therefrom. 

23.3 Indemnification Nothing in tbis Agreement authorizes Franchisee to make any 
contract, agreement,warranty, or representation on Franchisor's behalf, or to incur any debt or other 
obligation inFranchisor'sname;andFrancbisorwillinnoeventassume liability for, orbedeemedl^^ 
asaresult of, any such action; nor will Franchisor be liable by reason of any act or omission of 
Franchisee in its operation of Franchisee's business or for any related claim or judgment Franchisee 
shaftdefend,indemnify,andholdFrancbisor, its affiliates, and theirrespective o ^ 
and employees harmless against any and all claims, liabilities, damages and flosses and expenses" 
such term is defined in this Section 23 3), including any environmental claims, liabilities^ 
flosses and expenses,''arising directly or indirectly from this Agreement, including a s a ^ ^ 
connectionwith(a)Francbisee'soperationoftbefranchisedbusiness;or(h) any acts, errors, omissi^^^ 
or negligence ofFranchisee, Franchisee's affiliates, the partners, members, managers, officers, 
shareholders, directors, agents, representatives, independent contractors, and employee 
its affiliates and any other parties and without regard to tbe cause or causes thereof As used in this 
Section 23.3, tbe phrase flosses and expenses" in^^ 
damages,fines,cbarges,lostprofits,reasonable attorneys' fees,court costs, settlement amounts, 
judgments, compensation for damages toFranchisor'sreputationand goodwill, and any other costs and 

expenses of any kind whatsoever. 

24. AFFRO^ALS,WAt^FRSANDRFMFDtFS 

2^.1 Reuuests and Annrovais Must he inWri t ing Whenever this Agreement 
requires the approval or consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall makeatimely written request to 
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Fmncbisor^suchapprov^or consent Franchisor approv^or consent must bemwriftngtobe 
effective. 

24.2 Consent NotaWarranty. Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon 
which Franchisee may refy and assumes noiiahihty or obligation toFranchisee or any third party to 
which it would not otherwise he subject, hy providing any waiver, approval, advice, consent, or serv^^ 
to Franchisee in connection with tbis Agreement,or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of any 
request therefor. 

24.3 Failure toFxercise Rights Does Not ConstituteWaiver or Fstonnel No 
failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it by this Agreement, or to insist upon strict 
compliance by Franchisee with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom or practice of tbe 
parties at variance with tbe terms hereof, shall constituteawaiver or estoppel of Franchisor's r ^ ^ 
demand exact compliance with any of the terms herein and Franchisee warrants and undertakes that it 
sball not rely on such failure, custom or practice Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default under 
tbisAgreementsball not affect or impair Francbisor'srigbts with respect to any subsequent default of tbe 
same, similar or different nature, nor sball delay,forbearance, or omission of Franchisor to exercise any 
power or right arising out ofany breach or default by its other franchisees or by Franchisee ofany ofthe 
terms, provisions, or covenants hereof, affect or impair Francbisor'sright to exercise the same, nor sball 
such constituteawaiver hyFranchisor of any right hereunder, or tbe right to declare any subsequent 
breach or default and to terminate this Agreement prior to tbe expiration ofits term or to exercise any of 
its other rights or remedies under this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any payments 
duetoitbereundersballnotbedeemedtobea waiver by Franchisor ofany precedingbreacbby 
Franchisee ofany terms, covenants or conditions ofthis Agreement. 

25. CRANTOFSFCURtFYtNTFRFSF 

As security for tbe payment of all amounts from time to time owing by Franchisee to Franchisor 
under this Agreement and all other agreements between the parties, and performance ofall obligations to 
be performed by Franchisee, Franchisee hereby grants to Franchisorasecurity interest im (t) all of 
Franchisee'sinterestsinthis Agreement and any Development AgreementbetweenFrancbisee and 
Franchisor; and (2) all of Franchisee's general intangibles (collectively, ^Collateral") Franchisee 
warrants and represents that tbe security interest granted hereby is prior to all other security inte^^ 
the Collateral. Upon tbe occurrence of any event entitling Franchisor to terminate tbis Agreement or any 
other agreement between tbe parties, Franchisor sball have all the rights and remedies ofasecured party 
under theUniformCommercialCode^UCC") inthe state wberetheFremisesarelocated as 
determined under tbe U.C.C. Franchisee hereby authorizes Francbisorto fileafinancing statement to 
perfect Franchisor's interest in tbe Collateral, and hereby appoints Franchisor as its true and 1^^ 
attomey-in-fact to execute any documents in the name, place and stead of Franchisee for the purpose of 
attaining such perfection. Franchisee agrees toprovideFranchisor with any information and further 
assistance as may be reasonably necessary in connection with attaining such perfection and fulfilb^^ 
purposes ofthis Section 25. 

26. SFYFRABtUtTYANDCONSFRUCTtON 

26.t Striking UnenforceahleTerms Except as expressly provided to the contrary 
herein, each portion, section, part, term and^orprovision ofthis Agreement shall be considered sever̂ ^̂  
and if, for any reason, any portion, section, part, term and̂ or provision herein is determined t^ 
and contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation byacourt or agency having 
validjurisdiction, such sball not impair tbe operation ofor have any other affect upon such other portions, 
sections, parts, terms and̂ or provisions of this Agreement as may remain intelligible, and the lat̂ ^̂  
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continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid portions, sections, 
parts, terms and/or provisions shall be deemed as amended to conform with the law, rule or regulation 
otherwise violated, while following the original intent of the parties as nearly as possible. 

26.2 Construction After Striking Unenforceable Terms. Franchisee expressly 
agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is 
subsumed within the terms ofany provision hereof, as though it were separately articulated in and made a 
part of this Agreement, that may result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or 
portions which a court may hold to be unreasonable and unenforceable in a final decision to which 
Franchisor is a party, or from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to 
comply with such a court order or to the extent which Franchisor in its sole discretion may otherwise 
determine. 

26.3 Captions. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the 
convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any 
provision hereof. 

26.4 Gender: Plurals. All references herein to the masculine, neuter, or singular 
shall be construed to include the masculine, feminine, neuter, or plural, where applicable; and all 
acknowledgments, promises, covenants, agreements and obligations herein made or undertaken by 
Franchisee shall be deemed jointly and severally undertaken by all those executing this Agreement on 
behalf ofFranchisee. 

26.5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several parts, and each copy 
so executed shall be deemed an original. 

26.6 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this agreement for each 
provision in which time is a factor. 

26.7 No Third Party Rights. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, 
nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or entity other than 
Franchisee, Franchisor, Franchisor's officers, directors, agents and employees, and such of Franchisee's 
and Franchisor's respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated (and, as to Franchisee, 
permitted) by Section 17 hereof, any rights or remedies under or by reason ofthis Agreement. 

26.8 Execution of Agreement. By providing a copy of this Agreement to Franchisee, 
Franchisor is making an offer to sell a franchise to Franchisee. Franchisor may withdraw that offer at any 
time prior to Franchisor's execution ofthis Agreement. This Agreement will become effective only upon 
execution ofthis Agreement by the President or a Vice President ofFranchisor. 

27. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Exhibits hereto constitute the entire, full 
and complete agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the subject matter hereof and shall 
supersede all prior agreements. There are no other representations, inducements, promises, agreements, 
arrangements, or undertakings, oral or written, between the parties relating to the matters covered by this 
Agreement other than those set forth in this Agreement and in the attachments to this Agreement. 
Nothing in this or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made by Franchisor 
in its Franchise Disclosure Document. There are no warranties, express or implied, or otherwise, made by 
Franchisor other than those expressly set forth in this Agreement. Except those permitted to be made 
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unilaterally by Franchisor hereunder, no amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be 
binding on either party unless mutually agreed to by Franchisor and Franchisee and executed in writing. 

28. FORCE MAJEURE 

As used in this Agreement, the term "Force Majeure" means any act of God, strike, lock-out or 
other industrial disturbance, war (declared or undeclared), riot, epidemic, fire or other catastrophe, act of 
any government or other third party and any other similar cause not within the control of the party 
affected thereby. Franchisee's inability to obtain financing (regardless of the reason) shall not constitute 
Force Majeure. If the performance of any obligation by any party under this Agreement is prevented, 
hindered or delayed by reason of Force Majeure, which cannot be overcome by reasonable commercial 
measures, the parties shall be relieved of their respective obligations (to the extent that the parties, having 
exercised best efforts, are prevented, hindered or delayed in such performance) during the period ofsuch 
Force Majeure. The party whose performance is affected by an event of Force Majeure shall give prompt 
written notice of such Force Majeure event to the other party by setting forth the nature thereof and an 
estimate as to its duration. 

29. ENFORCEMENT 

29.1 Interpretation. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may grant numerous 
franchise rights throughout the United States on terms and conditions similar to or different from those set 
forth in this Agreement, and that it is of mutual benefit to Franchisee and Franchisor that these terms and 
conditions be interpreted in a consistent and uniform manner. Therefore, the parties agree that to the 
extent that the law ofthe state of Kansas does not conflict with local franchise investment statutes, rules 
and regulations, Kansas law shall apply to the interpretation and construction of this Agreement and shall 
govern all questions which arise with reference hereto. 

29.2 Submission to Mediation. Except as provided in Section 29.7 and except for 
claims by either party for payments owed by one party to the other, any controversy or claim arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement or the making, interpretation, or performance hereof, shall first be 
submitted to mediation within thirty (30) days after notice by the complaining party to the other party. 
The controversy or claim shall be submitted to mediation administered by JAMS in accordance with its 
then-current procedures or rules. The mediation shall be held in the city in which Franchisor has, at the 
time of the commencement of the mediation, its principal place of business. Franchisee agrees and 
acknowledges that Franchisor may, through the Manuals, or otherwise in writing, designate: (a) another 
administrative entity, in lieu of JAMS, to administer any mediation required to be brought under this 
Section 29.2, and (b) different procedures or rules for any such mediation. 

29.3 Acceptance of Venue and Jurisdiction. Except as described in Sections 29.2 
and 29.7 hereof, the parties agree that any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the making, interpretation or the performance hereof which cannot be amicably settled, 
shall be resolved by a legal proceeding in a court in the judicial district in which Franchisor has, at the 
time of the commencement of such legal proceeding, its principal place of business, and Franchisee 
irrevocably accepts the venue and jurisdiction of the courts of the state, and federal courts located in the 
judicial district, in which Franchisor has, at the time of the commencement of such legal proceeding, its 
principal place ofbusiness for such claims, controversies or disputes; provided, however, with respect to 
any legal proceeding which includes injunctive relief, Franchisor may bring such legal proceeding in any 
state which has jurisdiction. 

29.4 Claims Barred After One Year. Any and all claims, controversies or disputes 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the performance of Franchisor hereunder, shall be 
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commenced by Franchisee against Franchisor within one (1) year from the occurrence first giving rise to 
such claim, controversy or dispute, or such claim, controversy or dispute shall be barred. 

29.5 Prohibition Against Punitive Damages and Class Actions: Jury Trials. 
FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, FOR THEMSELVES AND THEIR SUCCESSORS AND 
ASSIGNS, HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY 
RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER 
AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM EACH SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY IT. 
FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT FRANCHISEE SHALL NOT 
INITIATE OR PARTICIPATE IN LITIGATION AS A MEMBER OR REPRESENTATIVE OF, 
OR ON BEHALF OF, ANY CLASS OF PERSONS OR ENTITIES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON 
OR ENTITY, ANY DISPUTE, CONTROVERSY, OR CLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR ANY BREACH HEREOF. THE PARTIES ALSO WAIVE, TO 
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. 

29.6 Service of Process. The parties agree that service of process in any proceeding 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the performance thereof may be made as to Franchisee by 
serving a person of suitable age and discretion (such as the person in charge of the office) at the notice 
address of Franchisee specified in Exhibit B to this Agreement and as to Franchisor, by serving the 
President or a Vice President of Franchisor at the notice address specified in Section 21.1 or by serving 
Franchisor's registered agent. 

29.7 Extraordinary Relief. Nothing herein contained shall bar Franchisor's or 
Franchisee's respective rights to obtain injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will cause it loss 
or damage, under the usual equity rules, including the applicable rules for obtaining specific performance, 
restraining orders, and preliminary injunctions. 

29.8 Franchisor's Cost to Enforce. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor all damages, 
costs and expenses, including all court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Franchisor in 
successfully enforcing any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to the obtaining of 
injunctive relief. 

30. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

30.1 Independent Franchisee Investigation: Warranty Disclaimer. Franchisee 
acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this 
Agreement, and recognizes that it involves business risks and that the success of the venture is largely 
dependent upon the business abilities of Franchisee. Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of, and 
Franchisee acknowledges that it has not received or relied upon, any warranty or guaranty express or 
implied, as to the potential volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated by this 
Agreement. 

30.2 No Franchisee Misrepresentations. Franchisee represents to Franchisor, as an 
inducement to its entry into this Agreement, that Franchisee has made no misrepresentations in obtaining 
the franchise rights granted herein. 

Houlihan's Franchise Agreement 47 01/14 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as ofthe day 
and year first above written. 

ATTEST: 

By: 

Name:_ 

Title: 

HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 

Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: 

By: 

Name:. 

Title: 

FRANCHISEE: 

By: 

Name:, 

Title: 
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E X H ^ T A 

G U A ^ N T Y ^ N D E M N I F ^ ^ 

In considemfion of and as an indncement to, tbe exeention of tbe Honbban's Restaurants 
Francbise Agreement dated as of ("Agreements by Honbban's Restaurants, Ine 
("Franebisor") entered into witb ("Franebisee"), tbe undersigned ("Guarantors"), jointly 
andseveraiiy,berebyuneonditionaiiy: ( f ) guarantee to Franebisor and its successors and assigns,for tbe 
InitiaiTerm and any renewal terms of tbe Agreement, tbat Franchisee sball punctually pay and 
eacb and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set tortb in tbe Agreement and any other agreement 
with Franchisor that is related toFranchisee's operation of the Restaurant;(2) agree personally to be 
bound by each and every provision in tbe Agreement, including,witbout limitation, the p rov i so 
Sectionsl6and23^and (3) agree personally to be liable forthe breach of eacb and every provision 
the Agreement, including, without limitation, Sectionl^ 

Each of the undersigned waives: (f)acceptance and notice ofacceptance by Franchisor ofthe 
foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any 
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respectto tbe 
indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he may have to 
require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person asacondition ofliability;^) aft 
rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which any ofthe undersigned may have 
against Franchisee arising asaresultofthe execution of and performance under this Guaranty by the 
undersigned; (6) any law or statute which requires that Franchisor make demand upon, assert claims 
against or collect ftom Franchisee or any others, foreclose any security interest, sell collateral, exha 
any remedies or take any other action against Franchisee or any others prior to making any demand upon, 
collecting ftom or taking any action against tbe undersigned with respect to tbis Guaranty; (7) any and aft 
otbernotices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be entitled; and (8) any and all right to have 
any legal action under tbis Guaranty decided byajury. 

Each ofthe undersigned consents and agrees that: ( f ) his direct and immediate liability underthis 
Guaranty sball be joint and several; (2) he shall render any payment or performance required under tbe 
Agreement upon demand IfFranchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so; (3) such liability sball not be 
contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of any remedies against Franchisee or any other 
person; (4) such liability sball not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any amendment ofthe 
Agreement, any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may ftom time to time 
grant toFrancbisee or to any other person including,without limitation,the acceptance of any partial 
payment or performance or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any way 
modi^oramendtbisGuaranty,whichsballbe continuing and irrevocable during tbe termof tbe 
Agreement and for solong thereafter as there are monies or obligations owing from Franchisee to 
Franchisor or its afftliates under the Agreement; and (^monies received ftom any source by Franchisor 
for application toward payment of the obligations under tbe Agreement and under this Guaranty may be 
applied in any manner or order deemed appropriate by Franchisor. 

i f any of tbe following events occur,adefault ("Default") under this Guaranty shall exist 
(f)failure of timely payment or performance of tbe obligations under this Guaranty; (2) breach of any 
agreement or representation contained or referred to in this Guaranty; (3) appointment ofaguardianf^^^ 
dissolution of, termination of existence of, loss of good standing status by,appomtmentofareceiverf^^^ 
assignmentfortbebenefttofcreditorsof,ortbecommencementofany insolvency or bankruptcy 
proceeding by or against, any of tbe undersigned; and̂ or (4) the entry of any monetary judgment or the 
assessment against, tbe filing of any tax lien against, or tbe issuance of any writ of garnishment or 
attachment against any propertyof or debts due anyof tbe undersigned. IfaDefault occurs, any 
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monetary obligations owed to Franchisor by any ofthe undersigned shall be due immediately and payable 
without notice. 

Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be bound by this 
Guaranty, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the obligations 
ofthe other guarantors will continue in full force and effect. 

Franchisor's interests in and rights under this Guaranty are freely assignable, in whole or in part, 
by Franchisor. Any assignment shall not release the undersigned from this Guaranty. 

Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guaranty shall have the same meaning 
as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with Section 26 of the 
Agreement. Sections 29.1 through 29.8 of the Agreement are incorporated by reference into this 
Guaranty. 

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Guaranty shall be in writing, and shall be 
delivered by any means which affords the sender evidence of delivery or of attempted delivery, to the 
respective parties at the following addresses, unless and until a different address has been designated by 
written notice to the other party: 

Notices to Franchisor: 

with a copy to: 

Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
Attention: Vice-President/Development 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, Kansas 66206 

General Counsel 
Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, Kansas 66206 

Notices to Guarantors: 

Notices shall be deemed to have been given at the date and time of delivery or of attempted delivery. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each ofthe undersigned has signed this Guaranty as ofthe date ofthe 
Agreement. 

WITNESS: 

By: 

Name: 

GUARANTORS: 

Name: 

By: 

Name: Name: 

By: 

Name: Name: 
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EXHIBIT B 

FRANCHISE INFORMATION 

1. Premises. The franchise granted under this Agreement is for the establishment of a single 
Houlihan's Restaurant at the following location: 

2. Existing Houlihan's Restaurants: 

3. Protected Area. Franchisee's Protected Area shall be: (A) that area designated on Exhibit B- l ; 
or (B) if there is no area so designated, a mile radius around the Restaurant Premises. 

4. Plan Submission Date: 

5. Construction Commencement Date: 

6. Opening Date: 

7. Initial Franchise Fee: 

8. Franchisee's Notice Address: 
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EXHIBIT B-l 

PROTECTED AREA 
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EXHIBIT C 

OWNERS; PARTNERS: LLC MEMBERS: SHAREHOLDERS 

NAME AND ADDRESS TITLE NATURE OF INTEREST 
(i.e., limited partner, general 

partner, member, or 
shareholder) 

PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL OWNERSHIP 

INTEREST 

Controlling Principal. 
Agreement is 

Franchisee's Controlling Principal as of the Effective Date of the Franchise 
Franchisee may not change the Controlling 

Principal without Franchisor's prior written approval. 
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EXHIBITS 

C O N G E N I A L I T Y A N ^ 
^for persons holdrngposftmns with franch^e^ 

I n c o ^ d ^ i o n o f m y p o ^ o n ^ ^of ^ F m n ^ s e ^ 
a n d O ^ O o ^ ^ ^ ^ 

L H o u l i h ^ R ^ u m n ^ Inc ^ F ^ h i s o ^ through ski^ efibrt ^ ^ o u ^ s has 
d ^ o ^ a u d o o n t m u e s t o ^ ^ a d i s t m ^ ^ 
o ^ i o u o f ^ s ^ o e ^ s t a u m ^ operating 
"System Restaurant The distinguishing eharaeteristies of the System include the exterior a 
design, deeo^eotorseheme and furnishings; special recipes and menu items; standards, sp 
procedures for inventory and management control; training and assistance; a d v e r t s 
programs; and financial control concepts. 

2 ^ ofFranchisee,twill receive valuable confidential information, 
disclosure of which would he detrimental to Franchisor and Franchisee, such as informafi^^ 
purchasing techniques; promotionandadvertising; pricing,sales,officeandpersonnelpoliciesand 
procedures; training programs; operation procedures or programs ofFranchisor and the S y s t e m s 
the estahlishmentand operation ofSystem Restaurants which are heyondthepresent skills and ex^^^^ 
possessedhyme.Thislistofconfidential matters is illustrative only, and does not include all matt^^ 
considered confidential hyFranchisor and Franchisee. 

3 t ^ i l l hold in strict confidence all information designated hyFranchisor or Franchisee as 
confidential Unless Franchisor otherwise agrees in writing,fwill disclose and̂ or use the confident 
informationonlyinconnectionwithmydutiesas ofFranchisee Myundertaking 
not to disclose confidential information isacondition of my position with Franchisee, and con̂  
afferlceasetoheinthatposition. 

4 ^ i l e in my position with Fmnchisee,lwill not do anythingwhich may injure Franchisee 
or Franchisor, such as^diver t or attempt to divert any actual or prospective business or customer of 
Franchisee's business to any competitor, by direct inducement or otherwise; (h) do or perf^ 
directly or indirectly, injurious or prejudicial to tbe goodwill associated with Fmn^ 
System; or (c) employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time or has within one (l)year been 
employed by Franchisor or any franchisee of Franchisor (including Franchisee), or otherwise d ^ ^ 
indirectly induce such person to leave bis or her employment. 

5. ^bile in my position with Francbisee,lwill not own, maintain, advise, be employed bŷ  
consult for, make loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership interest (including any rights 
revenuesorprofrts) in anyrestaurant offering (a) tbesameorsubstantiallysimilar^^ 
services as those offered in System Restaurants; or (h)any food items that are the same as, orsubs^^ 
similar to, tbe menu items of System Restaurants; and which restaurant is, or is intended to be, loc^ 
witbim (u) the Protected Area, tbe boundaries of whichlacknowledge have been described to me; (h)a 
radius often (10) miles from the Premises; (c)aradius of ten (10) miles of any System Restau^^^ 
tbe United States Tbisrestrictiondoes notapplyto my ownership interest ofless than five percent(^)of 
tbe outstanding equity securities of any publicly-held company,iflown such interest for inves 
and 1 am not an officer, director, employee or consultant of such publicly-beld company. 
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6. For two (2) years after I cease to be in my position with Franchisee, 1 will not own, 
maintain, advise, be employed by, consult for, make loans to, operate, engage in or have an ownership 
interest (including any right to share in revenues or profits) in any restaurant offering (a) the same or 
substantially similar sit-down, casual dining services as those offered in System Restaurants; or (b) any food 
items that are the same as, or substantially similar to, the menu items of System Restaurants; and which 
restaurant is, or is intended to be, located within: (a) the Protected Area; (b) a radius often (10) miles from 
the Premises; or (c) a radius of ten (10) miles of any System Restaurant. This restriction does not apply to 
my ownership interest of less than five percent (5%) of the outstanding equity securities of any publicly-held 
company, if I own such interest for investment only and I am not an officer, director, employee or consultant 
of such publicly-held company. 

7. Franchisor is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement and may enforce it, solely and/or 
jointly with Franchisee. I am aware that my violation of this Agreement will cause Franchisor and 
Franchisee irreparable harm; therefore, I acknowledge and agree that Franchisor and/or Franchisee may 
apply for the issuance of an injunction preventing me from violating this Agreement in addition to any other 
remedies it may have hereunder, at law or in equity; and I agree to pay Franchisor and Franchisee all the 
costs it/they incur/s, including without limitation attorneys' fees, if this Agreement is enforced against me. 
Due to the importance ofthis Agreement to Franchisor and Franchisee, any claim I have against Franchisor 
or Franchisee is a separate matter and does not entitle me to violate, or justify any violation of, this 
Agreement. If any part ofthis Agreement is held invalid by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction, the 
rest of the Agreement is still enforceable and the part held invalid is enforceable to the extent found 
reasonable by the court or agency. I agree that all the words and phrases used in this Agreement will have 
the same meaning as used in the Franchise Agreement, and that such meaning has been explained to me. 

8. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in this 
Agreement, without my consent, effective immediately upon my receipt of written notice thereof; and I 
agree to comply with any covenant as so modified. 

9. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State in which Franchisee's 
restaurant is located. The only way this Agreement can be changed is in writing signed by both Franchisee 
and me. 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY FRANCHISEE: 

By: Signature: 

Name Name: _ 

Title Address: 

Title: 

Date: 
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ADDENDUM TO HOULIHAN^ RESTAURANTS 
ERANCHISEAOREEMENTEORHOTEUUOOATIONS 

H o u ^ ^ R ^ u m ^ ^ ^ F ^ b ^ ^ ^ ^ i s ^ 
baveftfts d^e, ^ 201 en^ed into a certainHouliban^ Restamants 
F m n c h i ^ A ^ m e n t ^ ^ a n c b i ^ A ^ m e n ^ 
parties hereto tbe^fore agree as follows 

L The following provision shall he added at the end ofSeetion^ 

6.4 Hotel Premises. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the hotel 
estahlishment ("Hotels in which the Restaurant is located is essential to the h n s ^ 
operations of the Restaurant, that the business of the Restaurant is dependent on the 
business of the Hotel, and that Franchisor has granted the franchise rights hereunder in 
reliance ontbe identity and reputation of theHotel Accordingly, Franchisor and 
Franchisee expressly agree that: 

6B4t Franchisee shall innnediately notify Franchisor of (^any planned 
or actual change in tbe operating name or brand of the Hotel; or (h) any temporary or 
permanent cessation of hotel business operations of tbe Hotel Franchisee's failure to 
provide tbe notice required by tbis Section641sball constitute an event of default under 
this Agreement for which Franchisor may terminate tbis Agreement pursuant to Section 

1821bereof;and 

6.4.2 Franchisor may, at its sole option, terminate tbis Agreement 
pursuant to Sectionl8210hereof upon tbe occurrence of either of tbe following events: 
^tbeoperatingnameorbrandoftbeHotel changes; or(h) the Hotel ceases operating as 

ahotel business. 

2. The language in SectioniS21sballbedeleted and replaced by tbe following: 

t^2.t Failure to Onen or Relocate Restaurant Ohtain Eiuuor 
Eicensê  or Provide Notice of Hotel Change. Franchisee fails to open the Restaurant 
within two hundred seventy (270) days after tbe execution of tbis Agreement as required 
herein, fails to relocate as provided in Section 14 hereof, fails to obtain tbe liquor license as 
required by Section^lhereof, or fails to provide tbe notice as required by Sect ional 

hereof; 

^ Thef^l l^wiHgpr^vi^i^^l lbe^dded^ttbeendofSectioniS.2: 

1^2.11 Change in Identity or Cessation of Business Onerations of 
Hotel. Tbe Hotel in which the Restaurant is located: (a) changes its operating name or 
brand; or (h)ceases hotel business operations. 

4. This Addendum constitutes anintegralpartoftbe Franchise Agreement between tbeparties 
hereto, and tbe terms of this Addendum shall be controlling with respect to tbe subject matter hereof 
Except as modified or supplemented by tbis Addendum, the terms of the Franchise Agreement are hereby 

ratified and confirmed. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Addendum as ofthe day 
and year first above written. 

ATTEST: 

By: 

Name:. 

Title: 

HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 

Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: 

By: 

Name:. 

Title: 

FRANCHISEE: 

By:. 

Name:. 

Title: 

Hotel Addendum 
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RECRUITING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS RECURITING SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made this day of 
, by and among ("Franchisee") and Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor"). 

RECITALS 

Franchisor and Franchisee have entered into a Franchise Agreement for Franchisee to operate a 
Houlihan's Restaurant ("Restaurant") at . 

Franchisee desires to purchase certain recruiting services from Franchisor, and Franchisor is 
willing to offer and provide such services, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. Recruiting Services. At Franchisee's option, Franchisor (or its designee) will provide the 
following pre-selection services to Franchisee to assist Franchisee in filling restaurant manager positions 
at the Restaurant, as requested from time to time by Franchisee: 

a. Franchisor will source qualified applicants through sourcing activities that may 
include one or more of the following: advertising in national restaurant publications, college campus 
recruiting activities and job fairs, with the specific sourcing activities to be determined by Franchisor in 
its sole discretion; 

b. Franchisor will qualify applicants based on qualification procedures that may 
include one or more ofthe following: phone screening, in-person interviews, review of applications and 
testing, with the specific qualification procedures to be determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion; 

c. Franchisor will conduct reference checks and background checks (consisting of 
motor vehicle, credit checks and criminal record checks) on applicants determined by Franchisor to be 
qualified; and 

d. Franchisor will present to Franchisee qualified candidates determined by 
Franchisor to have satisfactory references and background checks. 

2. Fees: Expenses. In consideration for Franchisor's services provided hereunder, 
Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a fee determined as follows: 

a. Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.b. and 2.c. hereof, for each position for 
which Franchisor presents qualified candidates to Franchisee, a fee of One Thousand Seven Hundred 
Fifty Dollars ($1,750) payable upon Franchisor's engagement to select candidates for a position (the 
"Initial Fee") and a fee of One Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750) payable upon the hiring 
of one ofsuch candidates by Franchisee (the "Placement Fee"). The Initial Fee shall be fully earned by 
Franchisor upon presentation of at least two qualified candidates, regardless of whether Franchisee hires 
any ofsuch qualified candidates; in the event Franchisee elects not to hire any ofthe group of qualified 
candidates presented by Franchisor, Franchisor shall have no obligation to provide further recruiting 
services unless Franchisor is again engaged by Franchisee to select additional candidates for the position 
and Franchisee pays an additional Initial Fee. 
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b. Intheevent Franchisee engages F r a ^ 
more than one manager for the Restanran^tohe hired in eonneeftonw^ 
the initial Fee and the Fiaeement Fee for the second manager shaft each he OneFhonsandOoliars 
( $ 1 ^ ^ the initial Fee and the Placement Fee ft^r the third manager shaft each he Seven Hundred Fi^^ 
Dollars ( $ 7 ^ and the initial Fee and the Placement Fee for each additional m^^^^ 
HnndredDollars^OO) 

e tnthe event FranchiseeengagesFranchisortoprovideservieesthatdonot 
include applicant sonrcing, as described in Section l.a,then the Initial Fee and the P ^ 
each he Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (S7^(or such lower amount as may he applicable under Section 

2 b) 

d. Franchisee shall also reimburse Franchisor for all out-of-pocket costs and 
expenses incurred by Franchisor, and u n i ^ 
ormarket, as distinct from FrancbisoBsgeneral costs of advertising,job fairs, etc)^ 

hereunder. 

^ Hiring Decision Fbe decision to bireacandidate selected by Franchisor in performing 
its services hereunder shall be exclusively tbe decision of tbe Franchisee No employee or agent of 
Franchisor is authorized to make any such decision and Franchisor sball have no responsibility for any 
actions ofits employees or agents outside the scope oftbeir authority hereunder. 

4 Ferm:Fermination Phis Agreement shall continue until terminated by either Franchisor 
or Franchisee on not less than thirty (30) days 
tbat(a) Franchisorshall complete the services provided hereunder for each position fbrwbicbFran^ 
has engaged it to provide such services, notwithstanding the earlier termination of tbis Agreement 
Franchisee'sobligationtopayfbrall services provided shall survive any termination ofthis 
and(c)tbe provisions ofSections5,6and9tbrough 25, inclusive, sball survive any terminat̂ ^^ 
Agreement. 

^ Disclaimer: Limitation ofLiability Fi^NCHlSORMAi^S NO 
ORWAI^NFYWiFHRFSPEOFFOFHFSFRVlCFSFOBFPROVlDFDHFRFL^^ 
OAND1DAFFSFHAF M A Y B E PRFSFNFFDFOFf^NCHlSFF AND Fi^NOHlSOR SHALL 
HAVE NO L1AE1L1FY FO FRANCHISEE HEREUNDER, EXOEPF FO FHE EXFENF 
FRANCHISOR'S ACTIONS OONSF1FUFE CROSS NEOLIOENOE fNADDlF10N,WlTHOUF 
LIMIFINC THE FORECOINC, FRANCHISOR'S L1AE1L1FY HEREUNDER FOR ANY DAMAGES 
WIFHRESPECFFO ANYSERVICES PROVIDED SHALL INNOEVENFEXCEEDFHEAMOUNF 
OFFEES RECEIVED EYFRANCHISORFORSUCH SERVICES 

^ Indemnification Franchisee shall defend, indemnify, and hold Franchisor and its 
afftliates, and their respective officers, directors, agents, and employees harmless against any â ^ 
claims, liabilities, damages, and Losses and Expenses (as defined below) arising directly or ^ 
from tbis Agreement, including asaresult of, or in connection witb(a)Francbisee'sactions with respect 
to any candidate hired by Franchisee (including hiring promotion, disciplinary action or t ^ ^ 
(b) any acts, errors, omissions or negligence of any such candidate hired by Franchisee As used in this 
Section 6, the phrase Losses and Expenses includes aft losses, compensatory, exemplary, or punitive 

damages, fines, charges, lost profits, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, settlement amounts, 
judgments, compensation for damages toFranchisor'sreputationand goodwill, and any other costs and 

expenses whatsoever. 
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7 Notices All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent 
by personal delivery, by next-day delivery service, by electronic means, or by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to the respective parties. 

If directed to Franchisor, the notice shall be addressed to Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., attention: 

the notice shall be addressed to Franchisee, at its address on the signature pages hereto. 

Any notices sent by personal delivery, next-day delivery service or by electronic means shall be 

^ ^ : : z ^ ^ z ^ j ^ z : ^ ^ z : 
shall be effected by giving fifteen (15) days written notice of such change to the other party. 

8 Payments. Unless otherwise specified, all payments required to be made by Franchisee 
to Franchisor under this Agreement an: due and payable immediately upon demand and/or receipt ofany 
billing then:for and shall be sent by personal delivery, by next-day delivery service, by electronic means, 

or by mail, postage prepaid, and directed to Franchisor as shown above. 

9 StrikinP Unenforceable Terms. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein each 

: r : r : ; : « = : r = : % : t 2 

s s m s E S H S g 
^ ^ ^ = 1 , 1 ^ ^ ^ — - ^ ^ ^ 
otherwise violated, while following the original intent ofthe parties as nearly as possible. 

10 Construction After Striking Unenforceable Terms. Franchisee expressly agrees to be 
bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which ,s subsumed 

S^r~-~HtESS5SS 
party or from reducing the scope ofany promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such a 
court'order or to the extent which Franchisor in its sole discretion may otherwise determine. 

11 Captions. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the 
parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof. 

12 Gender- Plurals. All references herein to the masculine, neuter, or singular shall be 
construed to include the masculine, feminine, neuter, or plural ^^ere applicable; and aU 
behalf of Franchisee. 

13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several parts, and each copy so 

executed shall be deemed an original. 

14 No Third Party Rights. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in 
this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or entity other than 
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F ^ b i ^ ^ ^ ^ 
F ^ n ^ o B s ^ e o f t v e s ^ 
by S e c f t o n ^ b ^ ^ any rights o r ^ m e d i ^ u n ^ o r b y ^ ^ 

^ ExeonrionofA^ment T b i s A g ^ m e n t w i f t b e ^ ^ 
be^ofby tbe President oraVice President o f F r a n c b ^ 

16 Assignment Tbis Agreement sball be binding npon tbe parties hereto and their 
respective sneeessors and assigns, bnt tbis Agreement may be assigned by Franchisee only wft^ 

express written consent ofFranchisor. 

t ^ Entire Agreement. Tbis Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and tbe Exhibits 
hereto constitute the entire, full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee co 
tbe subject matter hereof and shall supersede all prior agreements, no other representations^ 
induced Franchisee to execute tbis Agreement Except those permitted to be made unilaterally by 
Franchisorbereunder, no amendment, change orvariance from tbis Agreement shall bebinding on either 
partyunless mutually agreed to by the Franchisor and Franchisee and executed in writing 

18 AnolicableEaw This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

thelawsoftbeStateofKansas 

t9 Submission to Mediation. Except as provided in Section 24, any controversy or claim 
arisingoutoforrelatingto tbis Agreement orthe making, interpretation, o r p e r f o ^ 
be submitted to mediation within tbirty^daysafternotice by the complaining party 
The controversy or claim shall be submitted to mediation administered by JAMS in accordance with i^^ 
then-current procedures or rules The mediation shall be held in the city in which Franchisor has, at tbe 
time of the commencement of tbe mediation, its principal place of business Franchisee agrees and 
acknowledges that Franchisor may at any time designate: (a) another administrative entity 

JAMS, to administer any mediation required^ 
procedures or rules for any such mediation. 

20 Acceptance ofVenue and Jurisdiction Exceptas described in Sections 19and24 hereof, 
tbe parties agree that any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of orrelating to this Agreement o 
making, interpretationortheperformance hereofwhicb cannot beamicably settled, shaft 
legal proceedingin acourt in tbejudicialdistrict in wbichFrancbisorhas, atthe timeof tbe 
commencement of such legal proceeding, its principal place of business, and Franchisee irrevocably 
accepts tbe venue and jurisdiction of tbe courts of tbe state, and federal courts located in tbe judic^ 
district, in which Franchisor has, atthe time ofthe commencement of such legal proceeding, its princi^^^ 
place ofbusiness forsucb claims, controversies ordisputes; provided, however, with ^ 
proceeding which includes injunctive relief, Franchisor may bring such legal proceeding in any state 

which has jurisdiction. 

21 Claims Earred After OneYear Any and all claims, controversies or disputes arising out 
of or relating to this agreement, or tbe performance of Franchisor hereunder, sball be commenced by 
Franchisee against Franchisor within one (1) year from the occurrence ftrst giving rise to such c ^ ^ 
controversy or dispute, or such claim, controversy or dispute sball be barred. 

22 Prohibition AgainstPunitiveDamages and Class Actions Franchisor andFrancbise^^ 

themselvesandtheirsuccessorsandassigns,be^ 
to orclaimofpunitiveorexemplary damages againstthe other Franchisee acknowledges andagreestb^ 
Franchisee shall not initiate or participate in litigation asamember or representative of, or on behalf 
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any ^855 Of p^SOnS Or e n f t f i e ^ O r ^ 

ontofor related to this Agreement or any breach hereof 

23 Service ofProeess The parties agree that service of process in any proceeding arising 
ont of or relating to this agreement or the performance thereof may he made as to Franchisee hy service of 
aperson of snitahle age and discretion (snch as the person in charge of the office) at the address of 
Franchisee specified in this Agreement and as to Franchisor, hy serving the President oraViceFresi^^^ 
ofFranchisor at the address ofFranchisor or hy serving Franchisor'sregistered agent. 

2^ Extraordinary Relief Nothingherein shall harFranchisor'sor Franchisee's respective 
rights to ohtain injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will canse it loss or damage,^ 
usual equity rules, including the applicable rules for obtaining specific performance, restrâ ^̂ ^ 
and preliminary injunctions. 

25 Francbisor'sCosts to Enforce Franchisee sball pay to Franchisor all damages, costs and 
expenses, including all court costs and reasonable attorney'sfees, incurred by Franchisor enforcing any 
provision ofthis Agreement, including but not limited to theobtainingofinjunctive relief 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,Francbisee and Franchisor have executed tbis Agreement as of tbe 
day and year first above written. 

ATTEST: HOUEIHAN'SRESTAURANTS^NC 

By: By: 

Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE 

By: . By: 

Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: 

Address: 
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HOULIHANSRESTAURANT^INC 
SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT 

THIS SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SUPPORT A G R E E M E N T S 
^ ^ ^ f ^ 20^, by and between Henbban^ Restaurant Ine ("LieensoB^ and 

^ ^Lieensee") 

RECITALS 

Pursuant toafranebiseorfteense agreement between License and Licensee i ^ ^ ^ 
A(tbe"Franebise Agreements Licensee is tbe operator of tbe Houbban^sres^^ 
address listed in attached ExbibitA^FrancbisedRestaurant") 

Licensor owns or bas tbe right to use and license tbe use of tbeSoftware(as defined below) for 
use in the Houlihan'srestaurant^includingtbe Franchised Restaurant 

Licenseedesiresto obtainalicense, andLicensordesiresto grantalicense to Licensee, foruse of 
tbe Software and Documentation (as defined below) in the Franchised Restaurant upon the terms and 

conditions contained in tbis Agreement. 

Licensee has requested to use, and Licensor has agreed to provide, in-house technical support f^^ 
tbeSofiwareandLicensee'sCoveredEquipment(asdefinedbelow),ontbetermsandconditionsset^^ 

this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual covenants, agreements and obligations set 
forth below,and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are bere^^ 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLEI 

DEFINITIONS 

^ 1 ^Designated Euviroumeu^ means tbe point of sale ("FOS") hardware, cables, POS 
supplies, POS software, (̂ SR system and manager workstation required by Licensor to be used for the 
FrancbisedRestaurantundertbisAgreement The Designated Environmentinitiallyrequ^ 
describedinFxbibitB LicensorreservestherigbttochangetbeDesignatedFnvironmentata 
from time to time. Sucbcbangesmayincludearequirementthat Licensee obtain specified enhancements 
orupgrades to tbe software included in tbe Designated Environment. 

^2 ^Coufideutiailuformatiou^ means tbe Software, Documentation and Specifications, 
and tbe terms and conditionsofthis Agreement, which areeacb confidential and proprietarytoLicen^ 

^3 ^Designated Hardware" means Licensee'sbardware used in the Franchised Restaurant 
and meeting tbe specifications set forth in FxhibitB Licensor shall have no obligation to support or 
maintain any ofthe Designated Hardware. 

t ^ ^Documentation" means tbe user, system and installation documentation, if any, 
providedby Licensor forthe Software. 
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1.5 "Enhancement" means any and all changes to the Software that: (a) improve the 
operating performance but do not alter the basic function of the Software; or (b) incorporate fixes or 
bypasses for errors; and (c) Licensor offers generally to other users of the Software. 

1.6 "License Fee" means that fee payable to Licensor for the license granted in Section 2.1 
below. 

1.7 "Release" means an update of the Software that incorporates Enhancements or other 
changes made by Licensor. 

1.8 "Software" means the software licensed hereunder which is designed for use as part of 
the Designated Environment at the Franchised Restaurant as of tbe date of this Agreement and all 
Releases and Upgrades ofany kind, i f any, in machine-readable, object code form, as well as all computer 
programs, if any, subsequently delivered to Licensee in machine-readable, object code form for 
maintenance of the software system; such software is described on Exhibit C hereto and consists of (a) 
third party software licensed to Licensor which Licensor has the right to license to Licensee hereunder for 
use in the Franchised Restaurant in accordance with the terms hereof, and (b) proprietary software 
developed and owned by Licensor. The Software may include point of sale, kitchen and/or back office 
administrative systems. 

1.9 "Specifications" means Licensor's current published description (if any) ofthe Software. 

1.10 "Support Services" has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.1 hereof. 

1.11 "Upgrade" means all improvements to the Software that add to or alter the basic 
functions ofthe Software and that Licensor offers generally to other users of the Software. 

ARTICLE 2 

SOFTWARE LICENSE 

2.1 License. Licensor grants Licensee a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the 
Software and Documentation in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this 
Agreement solely for its internal operations at the Franchised Restaurant, and then only on the Designated 
Environment at each such Franchised Restaurant. Licensee agrees to install, and maintain at all times 
during the term ofthis Agreement, the Designated Environment at the Franchised Restaurant. 

2.2 Distribution. Licensee shall not: (a) make available or distribute all or part of the 
Software or Documentation to any third party by assignment, sublicense or by any other means; (b) copy, 
adapt, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or modify, in whole or in part, any ofthe Software or 
Documentation; or (c) use the Software to operate in or as a time-sharing, outsourcing, or service bureau 
environment, or in any way allow third party access to the Software. 

2.3 Proprietary Rights. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the copyright, patent, trade 
secret, and all other intellectual property rights of whatever nature in the Software, Documentation and 
Specifications are and shall remain the property of Licensor, and nothing in this Agreement should be 
construed as transferring any aspects of such rights to Licensee or any third party. 

Software License Agreement 2 0 1 / 1 4 



ARTICLE 3 

RELEASES, UPGRADES AND ACCESS TO DATA 

3.1 Releases and Upgrades. During the term of this Agreement, provided that Licensee is 
not in default of its obligations under this Agreement, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement 
between Licensor and Licensee (or any of its affiliates), Licensor will offer to Licensee any Releases or 
Upgrades to the same extent and on the same terms that Licensor offers such Releases or Upgrades to 
other users ofthe Software. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensor shall have no obligation to create 
Releases or Upgrades. 

3.2 Dedicated Data Line. Licensee agrees to procure and install in the Franchised 
Restaurant such required dedicated data lines including telephone and/or high speed Internet connections 
(with a fixed Internet protocol address), modems, and other computer-related accessory or peripheral 
equipment as specified by Licensor from time to time. 

3.3 Access to Data. Licensee agrees that Licensor and/or its designee shall have the free and 
unfettered right to retrieve any data, customer information and other information from Licensee's 
computers as Licensor, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including electronically polling the daily 
sales, computer information and other data ofthe Franchised Restaurant, with the cost of the retrieval to 
be borne by Licensor. Licensee shall comply with all operational requirements required by the Franchise 
Agreement and any manuals that govern the operation of the Franchised Restaurant. 

ARTICLE 4 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

4.1 Support Services. Licensor agrees to provide during the term of this Agreement the 
support services described in Exhibit D hereof (the "Support Services"). 

4.2 Designated Hardware. In order to facilitate the Support Services, Licensee agrees to 
operate the Designated Hardware in accordance with the Licensor's and the manufacturer's instructions. 
Licensor shall have the right, at any time that, in Licensor's judgment, the Designated Hardware is not 
operating properly, to call service or maintenance providers for the Designated Hardware used at the 
Franchised Restaurant and arrange for them to provide services. Licensee shall be responsible for 
payment for all such services, and shall indemnify Licensor for fees and expenses incurred in connection 
therewith. Licensee agrees that Licensor shall have no liability or obligation whatsoever in connection 
with Licensor's arrangement of service or maintenance of the Designated Hardware. 

4.3 Restricted Internet Access. Licensor shall have the right to restrict Licensee's access to 
the Internet through the Designated Environment to the extent determined from time to time by Licensor 
in its sole discretion. 

4.4 Right to Suspend License and Provision of Service. Licensor reserves the right to 
suspend the license ofthe Software and the provision ofSupport Services hereunder at any time without 
notice to Licensee if Licensee violates any provision of this Article 4. Licensee agrees that Licensor shall 
have no liability whatsoever arising from any such suspension of the license of the Software or the 
provision of Support Services. 
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ARTICLED 

FEES 

5.1 E^nseEee. For each year o f ^ A g ^ e m ^ ^ p o r t i o n ^ e o ^ E i c ^ 
Lieensor,madvanee,wfthouta^ 
FbeEieenseFee shaftbe payable uponexeeurion ofthis Agreement 
"Anniversary Date") of the date hereof Eieensorshallhavetheright^npon^days'prior written notice 
to Licensee, to increase the License Fee payable on any Anniversary Date Each License Fee when paid 
sball be deemed tnlly earned by Licensor and sball not be refundable under any circumstances 
whatsoever. The License Fee does not include tbe cost of any parts and/or labor needed to keep the 
Covered Equipment functional. 

5.2 Faxes. Licensee shall be responsible for any applicable sales or use taxes or any value 
added or similar taxes payable with respect to tbe licensing of the Software, or arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, other than taxes levied or imposed based upon Licensor's income, tnthe 
event that Licensor pays any such taxes on bebalfofLicensee, Licensor shall invoice Licensee for such 
taxes and Licensee agrees to pay such taxes witbin^days from tbe dateofinvoice. 

5.3 Support Service Fees. Intbe event Licensor,initsreasonablediscretion,electsto 
provide Support Services at Licensee's Franchised Restaurant, Licensee sball pay for the services of 
Licensor employees that may be reasonably required at Licensor'sregular hourly rates for such services 

5.4 Reimhursemeut of Expenses. Licensee sball reimburse Licensor for all out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by Licensor in providing any Support Services to Licensee at Licensee's Franchised 
Restaurant, includingbutnot limited to reasonable lodging, meals and transportation expenses of 
Licensee's employees or agents, and the cost of service or maintenance providers incurred pursuant to 

Sectional. 

5.5 Interest. If any payments by Licensee due to Licensor are not received by Licensor by 
the due date, Licensee, in addition to paying tbe amount owed, sball pay Licensor interest on the amount 
owed from tbe date due until paid at tbe maximum rate permitted for indebtedness of tbis nature in the 
state in which tbe Franchised Restaurant is located o r l ^ p e r annum, whichever is less. 

ARFtCEE6 

CONFtDENFtAEFFY 

6.1 Contidenthd Information. Licensee agrees that it sball not,witbout Licensor's prior 
written consent: (a) modi^ any Confidential information; (h) reverse engineer, decom 
disassemble tbe Confidential information or attempt to do so; (c) transfer, rent lease, lend or sû ^̂ ^ 
any Confidential information to anyone for any purpose;or(d) reveal or disclose any Confidential 
Information for any purpose to any other person, firm, corporation or other entity,other than L 
employees withaneed to know such Confidential information to perform employment responsibil^ 
consistent witbLicensee'srights underthis Agreement Licenseesball safeguardandprotecttbe 
Confidential Information from t h e f t s 
protections Licensee uses to protect its own most confidential information Licensee shall inform its 
employees oftbeir obligations underthis Agreement and sball take such steps as may be reasonable in tbe 
circumstances, or as may be reasonably requested by Licensor, to prevent any unauthorised disclosure, 
copying or use ofthe Confidential Information. 
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6.2 Unauthorized Disclosure. Licensee shall notify Licensor immediately upon discovery 
of any prohibited use or disclosure of the Confidential Information, or any other breach of these 
confidentiality obligations by Licensee, and shall fully cooperate with Licensor to help Licensor regain 
possession of the Confidential Information and prevent the further prohibited use or disclosure of the 
Confidential Information. 

ARTICLE 7 

NO WARRANTY 

LICENSOR EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS, AND LICENSEE HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES, 
ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. LICENSOR DOES NOT 
WARRANT THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL MEET LICENSEE'S REQUIREMENTS OR THAT THE 
OPERATION OF THE SOFTWARE WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE, OR THAT 
ERRORS IN THE SOFTWARE WILL BE CORRECTED. THE ENTIRE RISK OF THE SOFTWARE'S 
QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE IS WITH LICENSEE. LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES THAT IT IS ACCEPTING THE SOFTWARE UNDER THIS LICENSE IN ITS "AS IS" 
CONDITION. 

ARTICLE 8 

INFRINGEMENT 

8.1 Bv Licensor. Subject to Section 8.2, Licensor will indemnify Licensee against any claim 
that the Software, furnished and used within the scope of this Agreement, infringes any U.S. copyright or 
patent, provided that: (a) Licensor is given prompt notice of the claim; (b) Licensor is given immediate 
and complete control over the defense and/or settlement of the claim and Licensee fully cooperates with 
Licensor in such defense and/or settlement; (c) Licensee does not prejudice in any manner Licensor's 
conduct of such claim; and (d) the alleged infringement is not based upon the use of the Software in a 
manner prohibited under this Agreement, in a manner for which the Software was not designed, or in a 
manner not in accordance with the Specifications. 

8.2 Altered Version. Licensor shall have no liability for any claim of infringement based 
on: (a) the use of a superseded or altered version of the Software if infringement would have been 
avoided by the use of a current or unaltered version of the Software which Licensor made available to 
Licensee; or (b) the combination, operation or use of the Software with software, hardware or other 
materials not furnished or approved for use with the Software by Licensor. 

8.3 Injunction. I f a final injunction is obtained against the use ofany part of the Software by 
reason of infringement of a U.S. copyright or patent, Licensor shall have the right, at its option, either to: 
(a) procure for Licensee the right to continue to use the Software; (b) modify the Software so that it 
becomes non-infringing; or (c) terminate this Agreement without penalty. 

8.4 Liability. The foregoing states Licensor's entire obligation and liability with respect to 
the infringement of any property right. 

8.5 Bv Licensee. Licensee will indemnify Licensor against any claim (other than a claim 
indemnified by Licensor pursuant to Section 8.1) for: (a) alleged infringement of any U.S. copyright or 
patent, arising out ofthe use ofthe Software by Licensee in any manner prohibited by this Agreement; or 
(b) related to or arising out of Licensee's use or misuse of the Software. 
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ARTICLED 

LIMITATION O F L I A B ^ T Y 

LICENSOR SHALL HAVENO LIABILITY FORCONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, 
SPECIAL INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE OAMACES WITH RESPECT TO ITS OBLIGATIONS 
UNDERTHIS ACREEMENTOROTHERWISE EVEN IP IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OP THE 
POSSIBILITYOE SUCH DAMAGES LICENSOR WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE EORANY LOSS 
OPSALESBYLICENSEEDURINGTHEPERIODINWHICHTHESOETWAREISINOPERATIVE, 
NORWILLLICENSORBERESPONSIBLEPORANYLOSSORINACCURACYOFDATA 
CAUSED BYTHE SOFTWARE IN ANY EVENT, THE LIABILITY OE LICENSOR TO LICENSEE 
FOR ANY REASON AND UPON ANY CAUSE OPACTION SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE 
AMOUNT OF THE LAST ANNUAL LICENSE FEEPAID TO LICENSOR BY LICENSEE UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT (EXCLUSIVE OF CLAIMS DESCRIBED IN SECTION8IABOVE) THIS 
LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OFACTION IN THE AGGREGATE, INCLUDING 

WITHOUT LIMITATION TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF WARRANTY, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY,MISREPRESENTATIONS, AND OTHER TORTS BOTH 
PARTIES UNDERSTANDANDAGREETHATTHEREMEDIES AND LIMITATIONS SETFORTH 
IN THIS ARTICLE9ALLOCATETHE RISKS OF PRODUCT AND SERVICE NONCONFORMITY 
BETWEENTHEPARTIESASAUTHORI^ED BYTHE UNIFORM COMMERCIALCODEANDOF 
OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS THE FEES IN THIS AGREEMENT REFLECT,AND ARE SET IN 
RELIANCEUPON,THIS ALLOCATION OF RISKANDTHEE^CLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL 
ANDOTHERDAMAGESSETFORTHINTHISAGREEMENT 

ARTICLEI^ 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

10.1 Term. Tbis Ag^ment shall c o n f i x foraterm of one (I) year, andi^ 
thereafter unless terminatedbyeitberparty in aeeordanee with tbe 

1^2 Termmafton. Eitberparty may terminate tbis Agreement and tbe License granted in tbis 
Agreement upon any anniversary hereofbyproviding^days'priorwritten notice Licensor 
mayterminatetbisAgreementandtbe License at any time by providing^days'prior written noft^^ 
Licensee Licensor also may terminate tbis Agreement and the License, without prejudice to any other 
remedy Licensor may have, immediately without ftirther obligation to Licensee in tbe event oft (a) any 
material breaehbyLicensee ofany provisionoftbisAgreement,wbicbbreach is not or cannot be 
remedied within twenty-four^bours of Licensor's notice to Licensee; or (h) Licensee mak^̂ ^ 
assignment for tbe benefit of its creditors, tbe filing under any voluntary bankruptcy or insolvency^^ 
under tbe reorganisation or arrangement provisions of tbe United States Bankruptcy Code, or under the 
provisions ofany law oflike import in connection with Licensee, orthe appointment ofatrustee or 
receiver Ibr Licensee or its property Without limiting tbe generality of clause (a) of tbe preceding 
sentence,^) any breach by Licensee ofany ofthe p r o v i s o 
any failure to pay tbe License Fee on or before tbe Applicable Anniversary Date that is not remedied 
withinfive^business days of written notice by Licensor shaft be deemedamaterial breach of tbis 
Agreement TheLicensegrantedby tbis Agreement shaft also terminate simultaneously withthe 
termination or expiration ofthe Franchise Agreement for any reason whatsoever 

10.3 Cessation of Use. Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee shaft cease using the 
Software andDocumentation and promptly return aft copies ofthe Software, Documentation and aft o ^ 
Confidential Information in its possession or control Licensee shaft delete ail copies of such materials 
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aiding mon^meorofi^me computer 
mcorporate Licensees Confidents tnformatiom Licensor shail be entitled to enter tbe Francbised 
Restaurant to repossess and remove tbe Software, Documentation, and any otber Confidential 
Intormatiom Licensee sball,witbinfive^days ftom tbe effective date of tbe termination, certify t^ 
Licensor in writing tbat all copies of tbe Software and Documentation bave been returned, deleted or 
destroyed. 

InftrncfivcReftef Licensee acknowledges and agrees tbat its failure to comply witb tbe 
terms of tbis Agreement, including tbe failure to ft^lly comply witb tbe post^terminationobl^^^ 
ft^rtb in Sectiont^3,is likely to cause irreparable barm to Licensor not fully compensable by money 
damages and tberetore Licensor sball not bave an adequate remedy at law. Tberefore, Licensee agrees 
tbat, in tbe event ofabreacb or tbreatenedbreacb of any of tbe terms of tbis Agreement by Licensee, 
Licensor sball be entitled toapreliminary and final injunction restraining tbe breacband/or to specific 
pertormance,witbout tbe necessity of posting any bond or undertaking in connection tberewitb Any 
equitable remedies sougbt by Licensor sball be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all remedies and rigbts 
tbat Licensorotberwise may bavearising underapplicable law orby virtueof any breacbof tbis 
Agreement. 

ARTICLED 

CENTRAL 

Misccftaneous. Tbe headings used in tbis Agreement are tor convenience only and are 
not intended to be used as an aid to interpretation, i f any part of tbis Agreement is beld to be illegal or 
unenforceable, tbe validity or enforceability of tbe remainder of tbis Agreement sball not be affected. 
Tbis Agreement will be binding upon and inure to tbe benefit of tbe parties to tbis Agreement,tbeir 
respective successors and permitted assigns; Licensee may not assign its rights or obligations under tbis 
Agreement without tbe prior written consent of Licensor, failure by either party to exercise any right or 
remedy under tbis Agreement does not signify acceptance ofthe event giving rise to such right or remedy 
orawaiver of any right or remedy. Tbis Agreement contains the entire agreement between tbe parties 
concerning the grant of the License to Licensee to use tbe Software and Documentation and supercedes 
and merges allpriorproposals,understandings and allotheragreements,oralandwrittenbetweenthe 
parties relating to this Agreement. 

f L 2 CovcruiugLaw. This Agreement and any claimorcontroversy arisingoutof, or 
relating to, rights and obligations ofthe parties under tbis Agreement and any other claim or controversy 
between tbe parties shall be governed by and construed in accordance with tbe laws ofthe State ofKansas 
without regard to conflictsoflaws principles. 

Force Majeure. Licensor sball not be liable for any loss or damage due to: (a) delays 
caused by any act of Cod, strike, lock-out or other industrial disturbance, war(declared or undeclared), 
riot, epidemic, fire or other catastrophe, act of any government or otber tbird party; (h) food spoilage or 
loss ofbusiness; or(c)any other cause not within its control. 

f L 4 Limitafiou of Action. Except for payments owed by one party to tbe other, and unless 
prohibited by applicable law, anylegal action or proceeding brought or instituted with respect to any 
dispute arising ftomor related totbis Agreement or with respect to any breach of tbe terms of this 
Agreement must be brought or instituted withinaperiod of two (2) years after tbe initial occurrence of 
any act or omission tbat is tbe basis ofthe legal action orproceeding, whenever discovered 
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11.5 Jurisdiction. The parties agree that, to the extent any disputes cannot be resolved 
directly between them, Licensee shall file any suit against Licensor only in the federal or state court that 
has jurisdiction and is located in the same United States District (for federal court) or county (for state 
court) where Licensor's principal offices are located at the time suit is filed. Licensor may file suit in the 
federal or state court located in the jurisdiction where its principal offices are located at the time suit is 
filed, in the jurisdiction where Licensee resides or does business, or where the Franchised Restaurant is or 
was located. Licensee consents to the personal jurisdiction of those courts over Licensee and venue in 
those courts. 

11.6 Costs and Expenses. Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor on demand any and all costs 
and expenses incurred by Licensor in enforcing the terms of this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, collecting any monies owed by Licensee to Licensor. These costs and expenses include, but 
are not limited to, costs and commissions due a collection agency, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, 
expert witness fees and discovery costs, together with interest charges on all of the foregoing. 

11.7 Notice. No notice, demand, request or other communication to the parties shall be 
binding upon the parties unless the notice is in writing, refers specifically to this Agreement and is 
addressed to: (a) i f to Licensee, addressed to Licensee at the notice address set forth in Exhibit A; and 
(b) if to Licensor, addressed to Licensor as follows: 

Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, KS 66206 
Attention: Vice President-Information Technology 
Fax (913) 901-2650 

With a copy to: Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, KS 66206 
Attention: General Counsel 
Fax (913) 901-2661 

Any party may designate a new address for notices by giving written notice of the new 
address pursuant to this Section. Notices shall be effective upon receipt (or first rejection) and may be: 
(a) delivered personally; (b) transmitted by facsimile to the number(s) set forth above (or in Exhibit A) 
with electronic confirmation of receipt; (c) mailed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested; or (d) sent by reputable overnight courier. 

11.8 Survival. Section 2.3 and Articles 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement for any reason. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have cause this Agreement to be duly executed by 
their authorized representatives to be effective as of the date first written above. 

LICENSOR: 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 

LICENSEE: 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 
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EXHIBIT A 

Franchise Agreement: 

Location of Franchised Restaurant: 

Franchise Notice Address: 

Fax Number: 

i n 01/14 
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EXHIBIT B 

Designated Environment (including Designated Hardware) 

Item Description Quantity 

POS Hardware: 
IBM 4851-514 (or then current 
model) 

IBM SurePOS (Base Model POS 
terminal,) Track MSR, Low Voltage 
Power Supply) 

7 

Epson Receipt Printers Guest check printers for each POS 7 

Bar Code Scanners Scanners for coupon validation 7 

Cash Drawer Cash Drawer w/ 2 Tills - Locking 
cash drawers, minimum 1 per Bar 
POS terminal 

2 

Y Cable Y Cable for Dual Cash Drawer - if 2 
drawers on 1 Bar POS terminal 

1 

A Cable A Cable for Y Cable - Operates 
Drawer "A" 

2 

B Cable B Cable for Y Cable - Operates 
Drawer "B" 

1 

JPM088 Black Box Pivoting Panel -
Mounting Rack for BackOffice 
components 

1 

PRM24 APC Rack Mount Chassis - Holds 
APC Surge Protectors in Rack 

1 

PNETR5 APC Network Protection Module -
Surge Protection for each 
communication line at the 
BackOffice. 

36 

JFS516NA NetGear 16 Port Network Switch -
Connects all POS terminals and 
other devices on the POS Network 

1 

FSM726 NetGear 24 Port Network Switch -
managed router 

1 

Sonicwall (up to 10 nodes) Firewall Router 1 

Sonicwall(ll to 25 nodes) Firewall Router 
BE500U APC UPS 500 - Battery Backup and 

Surge Protectors for Office 
computers 

2 

BE350U APC UPS 350 - Battery Backup and 
Surge Protectors for POS terminals 

12 

TMU220B Remote Printer (Serial, Black) -
Requisition printers (bar, expo, 
pantry, etc. plus 1 backup) 

4 
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Item Description Quantity 
DB25 connector Connector for Remote Printer -

adapters to connect comm line to 
printer 

5 

POS BackOffice computer IBM/Lenovo ThinkCentre 1 

Miscellaneous Cables: 
T Black T Black Patch Cable 15 
3' Grey 3' Grey Patch Cable 11 
3' White 3'White Patch Cable 1 

3' Yellow 3' Yellow Patch Cable 

3'Red 3' Red Patch Cable 1 

3' Green 3' Green Patch Cable 

3' Blue 3' Blue Patch Cable 1 

1 Grey I'Grey Patch Cable 14 
T White 1'White Patch Cable 1 

!• Yellow 1'Yellow Patch Cable 

I'Red I'Red Patch Cable 1 

1* Green 1' Green Patch Cable 

1'Blue I'Blue Patch Cable 1 

POS Supplies: 
Thermal Case of Thermal Paper 2 

Bond Case of Bond Paper 2 

Ribbons Case of 10 Epson Ribbons 2 

Molded Printer Covers Protective Requisition Printer 
Covers 

3 

USB thumb drive Imaging tool 1 

Swipe Cards Pkg. of 50 Swipe Cards 1 

POS Software: 
POSitouch software Store License for POS application 1 

POS Client Software - Each 
Terminal 

POS application for each terminal 7 

Credit Card Module Process Credit Card Transactions 1 

Gift Card Module Process Gift Cards 1 

Table Management Module Display Tables - status and alarms 1 

Enterprise Store Module 

Corporate maintenance of menu 
database and POS 

1 

PMS Interface (Hotel) Sends transactions to Hotel system 
Labor Scheduling Control scheduled clocking in/out 

QSR System: 

QSR Software Kitchen Display System 1 

KDS Bundle Controls output to display 1 

IBM Flatscreen monitor 1 

Mounting Bracket for monitor 1 

Mounting Bracket for bump bar 1 

QSR-Full CSK System: 
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Item Description Quantity 

FPD300-B-1-R BR Metal FPD 300 Mount 4 

100D293 BR Metal Bump Bar Arm 4 

EG150-G-1-A Bump Bar Bracket 4 
Neoflex LCD Arm 1 

1715L 17" ELO Tchscm Accutouch 1 

145-2001 eXpert KDS Controller 5 

24" Data Shelf Stainless Shelves 5 

001-4005 CSK Software 1 

125-3010 Bump Bar w/10' PS2 Cable 5 
17" IBM LCD Monitor 4 

Manager Workstation: 
Manager BackOffice Computer IBM/Lenovo ThinkCentre 1 

Brother Network Printer Brother NW Pmtr 1 

On-site Installation/Training: 

System installation/mgr training 10 days on-site 1 

HRI nSuite Software Package: 

nBusiness - DSR 
HRI Daily Sales Report - Store 
Level 1 

nBusiness - Manager Reports 
HRI Manager Reports -
Consolidated Store Reporting 1 

nLine - Food Costing System 
HRI Food/Beverage Inventory & 
Cost Control 1 

Support Software: 

Term Server Access to HRI applications 1 

Windows 2003 Server Access to HRI applications 1 

Citrix Access to HRI applications 1 

McAffee (price per terminal/pc) Virus protection 2 

Connected Nightly backup of office computers 1 

Xcellenet Data transfers to/from HRI 1 

Dame ware Support access to systems 1 

Sonicwall Network communications control 1 
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EXHIBIT C 

nSuite® Software Package 

nBusiness™ Includes the Daily Sales Report, Manager Reports and the Sink. 
The DSR interface to the POSitouch POS system to provide enhanced daily reporting and 
cash reconciliation. Manager Reports provides consolidated DSR reports for all 
locations. 

nLine® Inventory and cost control system that identifies variances in food and beverage costs. 
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EXHIBITD 

nServ^e™ Package 

Help Desk Screes 

LiccnsorwiftprovidcPuftHelp Desk Services with respects 
and sot^arc that is incited in this agreement during the hours ofMon^^ 
pmCST,andEmergencyHeipDeskServicesaftcrthcscstatcdhoursandon Saturday Sunday 
andHotidays These Hcip Desk Services wift include: 

Puft Help Desk Services: MondayPriday,8amto5pm Central Standard Time 
t Respond to Licensee telephone calls hy providing initial telephone and diagnost̂ ^ 

level two services and, ifrequired^notit^ designated third party maintenance vendorin 
accordance with the licensee'smaintenance contract. 

2. Assisting Licensee to diagnose errors, malfunctions and defects. 
3 Technical services to Licensee to attemptto correct diagnosed errors, malfunctions or defects 
4 Technical services to make enhancements, modifications and additions to the PCS database in 

accordance with Houlihan'sstandard operating procedures and policies, menu offerings and 
capahilitiesofthe software. 

5. Technical services to assist Licensee in the utilization ofthe nSuite® software applica^ 

Emergency tfeip Desk Services: After tfours,Saturday,Sunday and Holidays 
1. Respond to Licensee pager calls hy providing initial telephone and diagnostic level one and level 

two services and, ifrequired,noti^ designated third party maintenance vendor in accordance 
with the licensee'smaintenance contract. 

2. Assisting Licensee to diagnose errors, malfunctions and defects. 
3 Technical services to Licensee to attemptto correct diagnosed errors, malfunctions or defects 
4 Determination ofwhetherfbllow up during normal office hours will he required to correct the 

error, malfunction or defect. 

l^ten^ maintenance 

Menu Maintenance: MondayEriday,8amto5pm Central Standard Time 
1. Maintain all menu items, windows, modifiers, prices, printerseftings and all programming related 

to the Menu Database according to Houlihan'sRestaurants, Inc. standards. 
2 Maintain sales tax rates as applicable in the PCS system for Pood, Liquor, Beer, Wine and 

miscellaneous sales. 
3 Changes, Additions and Deletions to the menu database will be completed within reasonable 

timeframes based on the scope and extent ofthe changes, additions and deletions 
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EXHIBIT I 

LIST OF DEVELOPERS AND FRANCHISEES 
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES AND DEVELOPERS 

DEVELOPERS 

A.C.E. Management Corporation 
100 Franklin Avenue 
Nutley,NJ 07110 
(973)284-1111 

Northcott Company 
250 Lake Drive East 
Chanhassen, MN 55317 
(952) 294-5100 

A.C.E. Restaurant Group of New York, LLC 
100 Franklin Avenue 
Nutley, NJ 07110 
(973)284-1111 

JDL Investments 
2801 Wicklow Street 
Savannah, GA 31404 
(912)354-8828 

FRANCHISEES: 

SMS Venture Partners LLC 
604 Lake Shore Drive 
Pasadena, MD 21122 
(443)570-6431 

Fox Development Corporation 
1909 Fox Drive 
Champaign, IL 61820 
(217)351-1430 

O'Reilly Hospitality LLC 
2808 S. Ingram Mill Rd., Bldg A104 
Springfield, MO 65804 
(417) 890-1555 

California 

Lotus Hospitality, Inc. 
Holiday Inn-Airport 
275 South Airport Boulevard 
S. San Francisco, CA 94080 
(650) 588^683 

Florida 

ADAK at Maingate 
8520 West Irlo Bronson Memorial Highway 
Kissimmee, FL 34747 
(321)952-6457 

Plaza International, Inc. 
9150 South International Drive 
Orlando, FL 32819 
(321)952-6457 

ADAK on Colonial, LLC 
2600 East Colonial Drive 
Orlando, FL 32803 
(321)952-6457 

Georgia 

Four JS Family LLLP 
Columbus Marriott 
800 Front Avenue 
Columbus, GA 31901 
(706) 653-9455 

Four JS Family LLLP 
Doubletree Hotel 
5351 Sidney Simons Blvd. 
Columbus, GA 31904 
(706) 653-9455 

JDL Investments 
17029 Abercom Street 
Savannah, GA 31419 
(912) 650-6510 

Illinois 

I Operations, LLC 
1902 S. First Street 
Champaign, IL 61820 
(217)351-1430 
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ADAK of Illinois, LLC 
111 East Wacker Drive 
Chicago, IL 60601 
(312) 952-6457 

Indiana 

Irish I's Are Smiling, LLC 
4240 North Main Street 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
(321)952-6457 

CT Chicago LLC 
1550 U.S. Rt. 41 
Schererville, IN 46375 
(219) 786-0077 

Iowa 

Dubuque Casino Hotel, LLC. 
Hilton-Garden Inn 
1801 Greyhound Park Drive 
Dubuque, IA 52001 
(563)583-2169 

Kansas 

Wheatsone Restaurant Group 
12725 Elm Creek Boulevard 
Maple Grove, MN 55369 
(952) 294-5100 

Wheatsone Restaurant Group 
6601 Lyndale Avenue 
Richfield, MN 55423 
(952) 294-5100 

Missouri 

O'Reilly Hospitality V, LLC. 
2541 Broadway Bluffs Drive 
Columbia, MO 65201 
(417) 890-1555 

O'Reilly Hospitality, LLC 
2431 Glenstone 
Springfield, MO 65803 
(417) 890-1555 

O'Reilly Hospitality III , LLC 
2110 E. Republic Road 
Springfield, MO 65804 
(417) 890-1555 

Manhattan Hospitality, Inc. 
1641 Anderson Avenue 
Manhattan, KS 66502 
(785)539-3800 

Maryland 

SMS Columbia, LLC 
8240 Gateway Overlook Drive 
Elkridge, MD 21075 
(443)570-6431 

SMS Crofton LLP 
1407 S. Main Chapel Way, #115 
Gambrills, MD 21054 

Minnesota 

Wheatsone Restaurant Group 
530 Pond Promenade 
Chanhassen, MN 55317 
(952) 294-5100 

Wheatsone Restaurant Group 
1294 Promenade Place 
Eagan, MN 55121 
(952) 294-5100 

New Jersey 

Bayonne Restaurant LLC 
151 LeFante Way 
Bayonne, NJ 07002 
(201)845-3002 

Bridgewater Restaurant LLC 
1288 Route 22 East 
Bridgewater, NJ 08807 
(201)845-3002 

Brick Food LLC 
491 Route 70 East 
Brick, NJ 08723 
(201)845-3002 

Cherry Hill Restaurant, LLC 
2050 Route 70 West 
Cherry Hill, NJ 08002 
(201)845-3002 

Eatontown Food LLC 
308 New Jersey State Highway - Route 35 South 
Eatontown, NJ 07724 
(201)845-3002 
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Fairfield Restaurant LLC 
645 Route 46 West 
Fairfield, NJ 07004 
(201) 845-3002 

Heights Restaurant LLC 
5 Route 17 South 
Hasbrouck Heights, NJ 07604 
(201)845-3002 

Holmdel Food LLC 
2136 Route 36 South 
Holmdel, NJ 07733 
(201) 845-3002 

Lawrencevill Restaurants, LLC 
3357 Brunswick Pike-Route 1 South 
Lawrenceville, NJ 08648 
(201)845-3002 

New Brunswick Restaurant, LLC 
55 Route 1 South 
New Brunswick, NJ 08901 
(201) 845-3002 

Paramus Restaurant, LLC 
65 Route 4 West 
Paramus, NJ 07652 
(201)845-3002 

Ramsey Restaurant LLC 
706 Route 17 North 
Ramsey, NJ 07446 
(201) 845-3002 

Seacaucus Restaurant LLC 
700 Plaza Drive 
Secaucus, NJ 07094 
(201)845-3002 

Weehawken Restaurant LLC 
1200 Harbor Blvd. 
Weehawken, NJ 07087 
(201)845-3002 

Woodbridge Restaurant, LLC 
65 Route 1 South 
Woodbridge, NJ 08840 
(201)845-3002 

New York 

Farmingdale Restaurant LLC 
923 Broad Hollow Road 
Route 110 South 
Farmingdale, NY 11735 
(201)845-3002 

Westbury ACE LLC 
725 Merrick Avenue 
Westbury, NY 11590 
(201)845-3002 

Ohio 

Houlihan's of Cleveland Ltd 
230 W Huron Road 
Cleveland, OH 44113 
(440) 899-7070 

Houlihan's of Cleveland, Ltd. 
2 Southpark Center 
Strongsville, OH 44136 
(440) 899-7070 

Houlihan's of Cleveland, Ltd. 
25651 Detroit Road 
Westlake, OH 44145 
(440) 899-7070 

Pennsylvania 

Hershey Entertainment & Resorts Co. 
Hershey Press Building 
27 West Chocolate Avenue 
Hershey, PA 17033 
(717) 534-3110 

Food Brand, LLC 
The Galleria at Pittsburgh Mills 
Space #433 
2012 Butler Logan Road 
Tarentum, PA 15084 
(866) 467-4676 

Virginia 

Green Mountain, LLC 
Holiday Inn Hotel & Suites 
Blue Ridge Shadows 
101 Hospitality Drive 
Front Royal, VA 22630 
(516) 631-3045 
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Tonsu, L.C. 
Dulles-Crown Plaza 
2200 Centreville Road 
Herndon, VA 20170 
(301)474-6200 

Ramspring Limited Partnership 
6550 Louisdale Road 
Springfield, VA 22150 
(301)474-6200 
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM IN OUR LAST FISCAL YEAR OR 
WITHIN 10 WEEKS OF THE DATE OF THIS FDD 

Name Address Business Phone Number 

Charlie Brown 
Reed Station 

Restaurants, LLC 

609 W. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2496 

Carbondale, IL 62901 

618-529-5005 

James White 11 
ADAK, Inc. 

ADAK at Maingate 
ADAK on Colonial, LLC 
ADAK of Illinois, LLC 

405 E. Strawbridge Avenue 
Melbourne, FL 32901 

321-952-6457 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY CERTAIN STATES 
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ADDENDA REQUIRED BY THE 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DISCLOSURES 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

In recognition ofthe requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, the Franchise 
Disclosure Document for Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. for use in the State of Illinois shall be amended as 
follows: 

Cover Page & Item 17. Additional Disclosures. The following statements are added to the cover page 
and Item 17: 

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in the Franchise Agreement or 
the Development Agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of Illinois 
is void with respect to any cause of action which otherwise is enforceable in Illinois. 

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act requires that Illinois law apply to any claim arising under 
the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 

Each provision of the Additional Disclosures shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional 
requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, with respect to such provision, are met 
independent of the Additional Disclosures. The Additional Disclosures shall have no force or effect if 
such jurisdictional requirements are not met. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Development Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Developer") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution of the Development Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into, the 
Development Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale of a 
franchise to Developer was made in the State of Illinois; (B) Developer is a resident of the State of 
Illinois; and/or (C) part or all ofthe Territory is located in the State of Illinois. 

2. The first sentence of Section 16 is deleted and replaced with the following: 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Exhibits hereto constitute the entire, 
full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Developer concerning the subject matter 
hereof and shall supersede all prior agreements, no other representations (except for or other than 
those contained in the disclosure document) having induced Developer to execute this 
Agreement. 

3. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 17.1: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act shall govern this Agreement. 

4. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 17.3: 

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in this Agreement 
which designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any 
cause of action which otherwise is enforceable in Illinois. 

5. The following sentence is added at the end of Section 17.4: 

Section 27 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that causes of action under the Act 
must be brought within the earlier of: 3 years of the violation, 1 year after Developer becomes 
aware ofthe underlying facts or circumstances, or 90 days after delivery to Developer of a written 
notice disclosing the violation. 

6. Section 18.1 is deleted. 

7. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 18: 

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that any condition, stipulation or 
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any 
provision of the Act is void. 

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Development Agreement. 

9. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Development Agreement remains 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

IL-01/14 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Development Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Development Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: By:. 

Print Name: Print Name:. 

Title: Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER 

By: By:. 

Print Name:_ Print Name:. 

Title: Title: 

IL-01/14 



AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Franchise Agreement dated between 
Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Franchisee") is entered 
into simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

L The provisions of this Amendment fonn an integral part of, and are incorporated into, the 
Franchise Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale ofthe franchise 
to Franchisee was made in the State of Illinois; (B) Franchisee is a resident of the State of Illinois; and/or 
(C) the Restaurant will be located or operated in the State of Illinois. 

2. The first sentence of Section 27 is deleted and replaced with the following: 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Exhibits hereto constitute the entire, 
full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the subject matter 
hereof and shall supersede all prior agreements, no other representations (except for or other than 
those contained in the disclosure document) having induced Franchisee to execute this 
Agreement. 

3. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 29.1: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act shall govern this Agreement. 

4. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 29.3: 

Section 4 ofthe Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in this Agreement 
which designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any 
cause of action which otherwise is enforceable in Illinois. 

5. The following sentence is added at the end of Section 29.4: 

Section 27 ofthe Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that causes of action under the Act 
must be brought within the earlier of: 3 years of the violation, 1 year after Franchisee becomes 
aware of the underlying facts or circumstances, or 90 days after delivery to Franchisee of a 
written notice disclosing the violation. 

6. Section 30.1 is deleted. 

7. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 30: 

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that any condition, stipulation or 
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any 
provision of the Act is void. 

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Franchise Agreement. 

9. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified 
and in full force and effect. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

IL-01/14 



ADDENDA REQUIRED BY THE 

STATE OF MARYLAND 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DISCLOSURES 
REQUIRED 8YTHE STALE OEMARYLAND 

I n ^ o g m f t o n o f ^ ^ q ^ 
F m n c b i ^ D i ^ o ^ e D o c u m ^ ^ H o u f t b ^ R e ^ 
amended as fbftow^ 

R e m l ^ A d d f t m n a l D ^ o s u ^ ^ 

Tbe franchise agreements provide^termmafion upon These provisions may not be 
enfbreeabiennder federal bankrnpteyiaw. 

Any provision requiring yon to signageneral release of claims against Honbhan^inelndin^ 
upon renewal or transfer, does not release any claim yon may have underthe Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law. 

Section l ^ l ^ c ) ^ ) ofthe Maryland Franchise Registration and D i s c ^ 
any provision inafrancbise agreement which requires you to file suit against Houlihan's ina 
forum outside ofMaryland is void with respect to any cause ofaction otherwise enforceable in 
Maryland Afrancbisee in Maryland may sue in Maryland for claims arising underthe Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

AnyclaimsarisingundertbeMarylandFrancbiseRegistration and Disclosure Law must be 
brought witbin^yearsafrertbe grant ofthe franchise 

Each provision of tbe Additional Disclosures sball be effective only to tbe extent tbat tbe 
jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, with 
each such provision, are met independent ofthe Additional Disclosures The Additional Disclosures sbâ ^ 
have no force or effect ifsucbjurisdictional requirements are not met. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Development Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Developer") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution ofthe Development Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into, the 
Development Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale of a 
franchise to Developer was made in the State of Maryland; (B) Developer is a resident of the State of 
Maryland; and/or (C) part or all ofthe Territory is located in the State of Maryland. 

2. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 9.2.2.3: 

This release shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and 
Disclosure Law. 

3. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 17.3: 

Section 14-216(c)(25) ofthe Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law provides that 
any provision in this Agreement which requires Developer to file suit against Franchisor in a 
forum outside of Maryland is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable in 
Maryland. 

4. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 17.4: 

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be 
brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise. 

5. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 18: 

This Section is not intended to, nor shall it act as a, release, estoppel or waiver of any liability 
incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

6. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Development Agreement. 

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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7. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Development Agreement remains 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Development Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Development Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: . By:. 

Print Name: Print Name:. 

Title: Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER 

B y : _ By: 

Print Name: P r i n t Name:. 

Title: Title: 

MD-01/14 



AMENDMENTTOTHE HOULIHAN^ RESTAURANT 
ERANCHISEAGREEMENTREQUIREDRYTHE STATE OEMARYEAND 

This Amendment to^Houf tban^R^urant Franchise between 
Honhhan'sRestanmnts^ne^Franehisor^and ^Franchisees is entered 
into simnitaneonsiy with the execution ofthe Franchise Agreement. 

L The provisions of this Amendment f b r m a n i n ^ ^ 
Franchise Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A)tbe offer or sate of tbe franchise 
to Franchisee was made in tbe State of Maryland; (B) Franchisee isaresident of the State of Maryland; 
and/or^theRestaurantwill be located or operated in the State ofMaryland 

2. Tbe following sentence is added to the end ofSections22(e)andl7223: 

Tbis releasesballnot apply to any liability under theMarylandFranchiseRegistration and 
Disclosure Faw. 

3. Tbe following sentence is added to the end ofSection 29.3: 

Section 14-216^25) ofthe Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law pr̂ ^̂  
any provision in this Agreement which requires Franchisee totile suit against Franchisor ina 
forum outside of Maryland is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable in 

Maryland. 

4. Tbe following sentence is added to tbe end ofSection 29.4: 

Any claimsarisingundertbeMarylandFrancbiseRegistrationandDisclosureFawmustbe 
brought within3years after tbe grant ofthe franchise. 

5. The following sentence is added to tbe end ofSection 30: 

Tbis Section is not intended to, nor sball it act as a, release, estoppel or waiver of any liability 
incurred underthe Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

6. Any capitalized terms tbat are not defined in tbis Amendment sball have tbe meaning given them 
in tbe Franchise Agreement. 

7. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified 
and in full force and effect. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY THE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
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DISCLOSURES REQUIREDBYMICHIGAN 

LRE STALE DE MICHIGAN R R D ^ 
ARE SOMETIMES IN ERANCHISE DOCUMENTS IE A N Y O E T H E EOLLOWINC 
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE ERANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID 
ANDCANNOTREENEORCEDACAINSTVOU. 

Each oftbefoftowmg provisions is void and unenfor^ 
toafranobise: 

(a) Aprobibit ionof^ri^ofafranchisee to join an association o f f r a n c ^ 

(b) Arcqnircmcntthatafrancbiscc assent toarcicasc, assignment, novation,^ 
cstoppci which dcprivcsafranchiscc of rights and protections provided i ^ 
Investment Law This shaft not prccindcafranchiscc, after entering intoafranchisc agreement, from 

scttftng any and aft claims. 

(c) Aprovision that pcrmitsafranchisortotcrminatcaftanchiscpriorto the expiration ofits 
term except for good cansc Coodcansc shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any 
lawftil provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after hcing given written no t^ 
thereof andarcasonahlc opportunity, which in no cvcntnccd he more than 30 days, to cure such failure 

(d) Aprovisionthat permits afranchisortorcftisctorcncwafranchisc without fairly 
compensating the franchisee hy repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of 
expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and f u r n ^ ^ Personalized 
materials which havcnovalucto thefranchisorandinventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and 
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business arc not subject to 
compensation Tbis subsection applies only i f (i^thc term of the franchise is less than^ycars; and 
(ii)tbc franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct 
substantiallythcsamcbusincssundcranothcrtradcmark, servicemark, tradename, logotyp^^ 
or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the 
franchisee docs not receive at Icast^montbs advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the 

franchise. 

(c) Aprovision tbat permits the franchisor to rctnsc to rcncwafrancbisc on terms generally 
available to other franchisees ofthe same class ortypcundcrsimilarcircumstanccs This section docs not 

rcquircarcncwal provision. 

(t) Aprovision requiring tbatarbitration or litigation be conducted outside tbis state This 
sball not preclude the franchisee from c n ^ ^ 
arbitrationatalocationoutsidc tbis state. 

(g) Aprovision which pcrmitsafrancbisor to refuse to pcrmitatransfcr of ownership ofa 
franchise, except for good cansc. This subdivision docs not preventafranchisor from excrcisingaright 
offirstrcfusal to purchase the franchise Good cause sball include, but is not limited to: 

(i) Thcfailurcof tbcproposcdtransfcrcctomccttbcfrancbisor'stbcncurrcnt 

reasonable qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact tbat tbeproposed transferee is acompctitor of tbefranchisor or 
subfrancbisor. 
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(iii) The unwillingness ofthe proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with 

all lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure ofthe franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer. 

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to tbe franchisor items that are not 
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a 
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as 
a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a 
provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or 
appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise 
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c). 

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or 
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has 
been made for providing the required contractual services. 

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE 
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR 
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL. 

Any questions regarding this Notice shall be directed to the Department of Attorney General, 
Consumer Protection Division, 670 Law Building, 525 West Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48913, 
(517) 373-7117. 
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ADDENDA REQUIRED BY THE 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
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ADD^ONALD^CLOSUREDOCUMENTD^CLOSURES 
REQUIRED BYTHE STATE OFMINNESOTA 

^ ^ o g m f t o n o f ^ ^ q m ^ m e n ^ o f ^ M m n ^ a ^ S^ ^ 800^1 
^ougb 8 0 C ^ and o f the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder hy the Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commeree^Mlnn Rû  
Document of Houlihan's Res tauran ts ,^^ 
shall he amended as follows: 

^ Items6^I7.EiouidatcdDamages.The following statement is added to Items6andl7: 

MinnesotaRule 2 ^ 4 4 0 ^ prohibits us from requiringyou to agree to pay ^ 

^ Iteml^Additiouai Disclosures. The following statements are added to iteml7: 

With respect to franchises governed hy Minnesota law,Houlihan's will comply with Minn^ 
Statute ^0C14 , subdivisions 3,4, and^which requires, exceptin certain s p e c ^ 
franchisee be given 90 days notice fortermination(with^days to cure) and 180 days notice for 
non-renewal ofthe franchise agreements. 

Minnesota Statutes ^80C21 and Minnesota Rule 286044001 prohibit us from requiring 
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota in addition, nothing in tbe disclosure document or 
agreements can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 80C,oryour rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by tbe laws of tbe 

jurisdiction. 

Minnesota Rule 28604400D prohibits us from requiring you to assent toarelease, assignment, 
novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute 

^80C01-80C22 

Eacb provision of the Additional Disclosures to tbe Disclosure document shall be effects 
to tbe extent,with respect to such provision,that the jurisdictional requirements of tb^ 
ErancbiseAct,Minn Stat ^ 8 0 C 0 1 through 80C22 and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated 
thereunderby the Minnesota Commissioner ofCommerce,MinnRules^28600100through28609^ 
are met independently without reference to tbe Additional Disclosures to tbe Disclosure document Tbe 
AdditionalDisclosures sball bavenoeffectifsuchjurisdictional requirements are notmet. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Development Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Developer") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution ofthe Development Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into, the 
Development Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale of a 
franchise to Developer was made in the State of Minnesota; (B) Developer is a resident of the State of 
Minnesota; and/or (C) part or all ofthe Territory is located in the State of Minnesota. 

2. The following statement is added to the end of Sections 8.2.1.2 and 8.2.2.2: 

Under Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. 

3. Section 8.7.(c) is deleted and replaced with the following: 

(c) therefore, Franchisor shall be entitled, in addition to any other remedies which it may have 
hereunder, at law or in equity, to obtain specific performance of, or an injunction against violation 
of, the requirements of this Agreement. 

4. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 9.2.2.3: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer will not be required to assent to a release, assignment, 
novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute 
§§ 80C.01 - 80C.22. 

5. The following sentence is added at the end of Section 10: 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor will comply with Minnesota 
Statute § 80C.14, Subdivisions 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in certain cases, that a franchisee 
be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure). 

6. The following sentences are added at the end of Sections 17.1 and 17.3: 

Minnesota Statute § 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit Franchisor from requiring 
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in this Agreement can abrogate 
or reduce Developer's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or Developer's 
rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

7. The last sentence in Section 17.5 is deleted. 

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Development Agreement. 

9. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Development Agreement remains 
unmodified and in frill force and effect. 

MN-01/14 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Development Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Development Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

MN-01/14 



AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRED FOR MINNESOTA FRANCHISEES 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Franchise Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Franchisee") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into the 
Franchise Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale ofthe franchise 
to Franchisee was made in the State of Minnesota; (B) Franchisee is a resident of the State of Minnesota; 
and/or (C) the Restaurant is or will be located or operated in the State of Minnesota. 

2. The following sentence is added to the end of Sections 2.2.(e) and 17.2.2.3: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer will not be required to assent to a release, assignment, 
novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute 
§§ 80C.01 - 80C.22. 

3. The following sentence is added at the end of Sections 2 and 18: 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor will comply with Minnesota 
Statute § 80C.14, Subdivisions 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in certain cases, that a franchisee 
be given 90 days notice for termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non­
renewal of franchise agreements. 

4. The following statement is added to the end of Sections 16.2.1.2 and 16.2.2.2: 

Under Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. 

5. Section 16.6.(c) is deleted and replaced with the following: 

(c) therefore. Franchisor shall be entitled, in addition to any other remedies which it may have 
hereunder, at law, or in equity, to obtain specific performance of or an injunction against the 
violation ofthe requirements of this Agreement. 

6. The following sentences are added at the end of Sections 29.1 and 29.3: 

Minnesota Statute § 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit Franchisor from requiring 
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in this Agreement can abrogate 
or reduce Franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or Franchisee's 
rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

7. The last sentence in Section 29.5 is deleted. 

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Franchise Agreement. 

9. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified 
and in full force and effect. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution ofthe Franchise Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 
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ADD^ONALD^CLOSUREDOCUMENT ^CLOSURES 
REQUIRED BYTHE STATE OF NEWYORK 

I n ^ o g m f i o n o f ^ ^ q m ^ m e n ^ o f ^ N e w Y ^ O e n ^ 
6 8 0 ^ u g h 6 9 ^ a n d o f ^ O o ^ R u ^ a n d R e g u ^ o n s o ^ 
V ^ S ^ o n 2 0 0 1 ^ u g b 2 0 1 1 6 ^ F ^ ^ e D i s ^ ^ 
^ u s e m t b e S ^ o f N e w Y o r k shaft be amended as foftows: 

L Rem^AddftmnalDise^ure. ftem^is deleted and replaced wftft the ft^ftow^^ 

Otherthan the one action listed In this ftem^neltherwe, nor onrparent or any o 
norany person Identlftedln ftem2 above, nor any afftllateoffering franchises nnderonr 
trademark, has any admlnlstratlve,crlmlnal,oramaterialclvft or arbft̂ ^^ 
against him alleging a violation of any franchise law, frand, embezzlement, frandnlent 
conversion, restraintoftrade,nnfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of proper 
comparable allegations. 

Neither we, nor onr parent or any of onr predecessors, nor any person identifted in ftem^above, 
nor any affiliate offering franchises nnderonr trademark, has been convicted ofafelony or 
pleaded nolo contendere to anv other felony charge or, during the ten-year period immediately 
preceding the application ft^r registration, been convicted ofamisdemeanor or pleaded no^ 
contendere to any misdemeanor charge or been found liableinan arbitration proceeding oracivil 
actionbyfinaljudgment,orbeentbesubjectofany otber materialcomplaintorlegalor 
arbitration proceeding if such misdemeanor conviction or charge, civil action, complaint, or otber 
such proceeding involvedaviolation of any franchise law,securitieslaw,fraud, embezzlement, 
fraudulent conversion, restraint of trade,unfairordeceptivepractices, misappropriationof 
property,or comparable allegation. 

Neither we, nor our parent or any of our predecessors, nor any person identified in ftem^above, 
nor any affiliate offering franchises under our trademark, is subject to any currently effective 
injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating tofrancbises, or under any federal, sta^ 
Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation, or trade practice law as 
concludedorpending action orproceedingbroughtbyapublicagency; oris subject to any 
currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities excba 
defined in tbe Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from 
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject toacurrentlyefiective injunctive or 
restrictive orderrelating to any other business activity asaresult of an action brought byapubli^ 
agency or department, including,without limitation, actions affectingalicenseasareal estate 

broker or sales agent. 

Otber than tbe one matter listed in this ftem, no litigation is required to be disclosed in tbis 

disclosure document. 
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2. Item 4, Additional Disclosure. The last paragraph in Item 4 is deleted and replaced with the 
following: 

Except as described above, neither we nor any of our predecessors, affiliates, or officers, during 
the 10-year period immediately before the date of the disclosure document: (a) filed as debtor (or 
had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a 
discharge ofits debts under the Bankruptcy Code; or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a 
general partner in a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to 
start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Code during or within one year after the officer or general partner of the 
franchisor held this position in the company or partnership. 

3. Item 7, Initial Investment. The following statement is added to Item 7: 

THERE ARE NO OTHER DIRECT OR INDIRECT PAYMENTS TO HOULIHAN'S IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH THE PURCHASE OF THE FRANCHISE. 

4. Item 9, Franchisee's Obligations. The following statement is added to Item 9. 

Houlihan's imposes no further restrictions or conditions on the purchasing, leasing, or renting of 
goods or services by you. 

5. Item 12. Territory. The following statement is added to Item 12 under the subheading 
"Franchise Agreement". 

In the event that Houlihan's elects to use or franchise others to use the System or Proprietary 
Marks at any office location within your Territory, you have no right to rescind or amend the 
Agreement. 

6. Item 14. Patents. Copyrights and Proprietary Information. The following statement is added 
to Item 14 under the subheading "Manuals". 

Any revisions to the Manuals will not unreasonably affect your obligations, including economic 
requirements, under the Franchise Agreement. 

7. Item 15. Obligation to Participate in the Actual Operation of the Franchise Business. The 

following statement is added to Item 15 at the end of the first paragraph. 

There is no specific amount of equity interest that the Representative must own. 

8. Item 17. Additional Disclosures. The following statements are added to Item 17: 

Houlihan's will not assign its rights under the Development Agreement or the Franchise 
Agreement except to an assignee who in Houlihan's good faith and judgment is willing and able 
to assume Houlihan's obligations under the Development Agreement and the Franchise 
Agreement. 
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T b e N e w Y o r k F ^ c h i ^ L ^ 
arises undertbeNewYorkF^nch^ Law. 

Tbe NewY^kGeneml Business L a w , A ^ e ^ S e e r i ^ 
provision oftbeOeveiopmentAgreementortbeFranebise^^ 

Yon must signagenerai release wben yon enter tbe Development Agreement and tbe Trane 
Agreement and if yon transfer your tranebise Tbese provisions may not be enforceable under 
NewYorklaw. 

TbeNewYorkFranebises Law requires tbat Houliban's make proper proofs to tbe appropriate 
authority prior to tbat authority granting to Houliban's injunctive relief under tbe Development 
Agreement orthe Franchise Agreement. 

You may terminate tbe Development Agreement and tbe Franchise Agreement upon any grounds 

available by law. 

Each provision of this Additional Disclosure to the Disclosure document sball be effective on̂  
to tbe extent^witb respect to such provision, tbat tbe jurisdictional requirements ofNewYork 
Business Law,Article 33 ,Sec t ion^O^ 
of New York,Tit lel3,CbapterVii , S e c t i o n a l through 20116 are met independently without 
reference to tbis Additional to tbe Disclosure document Tbe Additional Disclosures shall have no force 
oreffectifsuchjurisdictional requirements are notmet 



AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Development Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Developer") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution ofthe Development Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into the 
Development Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale of a 
franchise to Developer was made in the State of New York; (B) Developer is a resident of the 
State of New York; and/or (C) part or all ofthe Territory is located in the State of New York. 

2. Any provision in the Development Agreement that is inconsistent with the New York General 
Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 - 695 may not be enforceable. 

3. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 8.7: 

The New York Franchises Law requires that Franchisor make proper proofs to the appropriate 
authority prior to that authority granting Franchisor injunctive relief under this Agreement. 

4. The following sentence is added to Section 9.1: 

Franchisor will not assign its rights under this Agreement except to an assignee who in 
Franchisor's good faith and judgment is willing and able to assume Franchisor's obligations 
under this Agreement. 

5. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 9.2.2.3: 

Any provision in this Agreement requiring Developer to sign a general release of claims against 
Franchisor does not release any claim Developer may have under New York General Business 
Law, Article 33, Sections 680-695. 

6. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 17.1: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the New York Franchises Law sball govern any claim arising 
under that law. 

7. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Development Agreement. 

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS 
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8. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Development Agreement remains 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Development Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Development Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER 

By:. By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 
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AMENDMENT TO THE HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANT 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

This Amendment to the Houlihan's Restaurant Franchise Agreement dated 
between Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") and ("Franchisee") is 
entered into simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

1. The provisions of this Amendment form an integral part of, and are incorporated into the 
Franchise Agreement. This Amendment is being executed because: (A) the offer or sale ofthe 
franchise to Franchisee was made in the State of New York; (B) Franchisee is a resident of the 
State of New York; and/or (C) the Restaurant is or will be located or operated in tbe State of New 
York. 

2. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that is inconsistent with the New York General 
Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 - 695 may not be enforceable. 

3. The following sentence is added to the end of Sections 2.2(e) and 17.2.2.3: 

Any provision in this Agreement requiring Franchisee to sign a general release of claims against 
Franchisor does not release any claim Franchisee may have under New York General Business 
Law, Article 33, Sections 680-695. 

4. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 5.1: 

Any revisions to the Manuals shall not unreasonably affect Franchisee's obligations, including 
economic requirements, under this Agreement. 

5. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 16.6: 

The New York Franchises Law requires that Franchisor make proper proofs to tbe appropriate 
authority prior to that authority granting Franchisor injunctive relief under this Agreement. 

6. The following sentence is added to Section 17.1: 

Franchisor will not assign its rights under this Agreement except to an assignee who in 
Franchisor's good faith and judgment is willing and able to assume Franchisor's obligations 
under this Agreement. 

7. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 29.1: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the New York Franchises Law shall govern any claim arising 
under that law. 

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning given them 
in the Franchise Agreement. 
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9. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified 
and in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and Franchisor have executed this Amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement in duplicate simultaneously with the execution of the Franchise Agreement. 

ATTEST: HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By:. 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

By: 

Print Name:. 

Title: 

NY-01/14 



RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain 
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully. 

IfHoulihan's Restaurants, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days 
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, Houlihan's or its affiliate in connection with the 
proposed sale or sooner if required by applicable state law. New York requires that Houlihan's give you this disclosure 
document at the earlier ofthe first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other 
agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that 
Houlihan's give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution ofany binding franchise or 
other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

If Houlihan's does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a 
material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal 
Trade Commission, Washington, D C. 20580 and the appropriate state administrator identified in Exhibit A. 

The franchisor is Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., located at 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, Leawood, Kansas 66206. Its 
telephone number is (913) 901-2500. 

Issuance date: January 24, 2014. 

The franchise seller for this offering is Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. and Rob Ellis, Chief Development Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, Leawood, Kansas 66206, (913) 901-2500. 

Houlihan's authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for it in the 
particular state. This disclosure document is for use in all states and the District of Columbia. 

I have received a disclosure document dated January 24, 2014 (the effective dates of this disclosure document in states 
with franchise registration laws are listed on the State Cover Page) that included the following Exhibits: 

A. List of State Administrators F. Hotel Addendum to Franchise Agreement 
B Agents for Service of Process G. Recruiting Services Agreement 
C. Financial Statements H. Software License and Support Agreement 
D Development Agreement L List of Developers and Franchisees 
E Franchise Agreement J- Additional Information Required by Certain States 

Date of receipt: 

Signature Print Name 

Company Name Street Address 

Telephone Number City, State Zip Code 

Signature P r i n t N a m e 

Company Name Street Address 

Telephone Number City, State Zip Code 

TO BE RETURNED TO HOULIHAN'S RESTAURANTS, INC. 
8700 State Line Road, Suite 100 
Leawood, KS 66206 
Facsimile: 913/901-2661 
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RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain 
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully. 

IfHoulihan's Restaurants, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days 
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, Houlihan's or its affiliate in connection with the 
proposed sale or sooner if required by applicable state law. New York requires that Houlihan's give you this 
disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution ofthe 
franchise or other agreement or the payment ofany consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan 
requires that Houlihan's give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution ofany 
binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

IfHoulihan's does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement or a 
material omission, a violation offederal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal 
Trade Commission, Washington, D C. 20580 and the appropriate state administrator identified in Exhibit A. 

The franchisor is Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., located at 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, Leawood, Kansas 66206. 
Its telephone number is (913) 901-2500. 

Issuance date: January 24, 2014. 

The franchise seller for this offering is Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc. and Rob Ellis, Chief Development Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, Houlihan's Restaurants, Inc., 8700 State Line Road, Suite 100, Leawood, Kansas 66206, (913) 901-
2500. 

Houlihan's authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for it in the 
particular state. This disclosure document is for use in all states and the District of Columbia. 

I have received a disclosure document dated January 24, 2014 (the effective dates of this disclosure document in 
states with franchise registration laws are listed on the State Cover Page) that included the following Exhibits: 

A. List of State Administrators F. Hotel Addendum to Franchise Agreement 
B Agents for Service of Process G. Recruiting Services Agreement 
C. Financial Statements H. Software License and Support Agreement 
D Development Agreement L List of Developers and Franchisees 
E Franchise Agreement J- Additional Information Required by Certain States 

Date of receipt: 

Signature Print Name 

Company Name Street Address 

Telephone Number City, State Zip Code 

Signature Print Name 

Company Name Street Address 

Telephone Number City, State Z i p C o d e 

TO BE RETAINED BY YOU 
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